
Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 25, 2025 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity       Regular Board Meeting 

February 25, 2025                             Page | 1 

 

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

2:30 p.m.- Tuesday, February 25, 2025 
 

Disneyland Hotel 

1150 Magic Way 

Anaheim, CA 92802 

Wilderness Room 

 

 
Board of Directors 

 
President Dean Wetter 

Vice President Michelle Lacy 
Secretary Colin Miller 

Director Lorena Cervantes 
Director Jim Friedl 

Director Mathew Fuzie 
Director Jill Nunes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda posting and meeting are done in accordance with Government Code ∮ 54954.2 and 54953. If members of the public 

require special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact CAPRI at (916) 722-5550. Notification at least 72 

hours prior will enable CAPRI to make reasonable efforts to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

 
Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Board of Directors less than 72 

hours before this meeting is available for inspection at 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 240, Roseville, CA 95678.  



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 25, 2025 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity       Regular Board Meeting 

February 25, 2025                             Page | 2 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board relative to matters of the CAPRI 
not on the agenda.  No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless authorized by law. 
 
The CAPRI Board encourages public participation. If you desire to address the Board on any CAPRI 
related item on the Agenda, you are asked to complete a speaker form and turn it in to the Executive 
Director. Members of the public may also offer public comment by email. Emails must be submitted 
to mbreck@capri-jpa.gov no later than one hour prior to the start of the meeting. Please note, emailed 
public comments will be distributed to the Board and treated as a public comment. 
 

4. CLOSED SESSION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report in open session any action 
taken, or lack thereof, taken in closed session. 
 
4.1 Workers’ Compensation: Existing Litigation – Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 Magaziner v. Fulton-El Camino Recreation & Park District 
 Podschun v. Rancho Simi Recreation & Park District 

 
4.2 Liability & Property: Existing Litigation – Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1) 

 CAPRI $5K Summary 
 Shook v. Greater Vallejo Recreation District 
 Butler v. Valley-Wide Recreation & Park District 
 Juarez v. Valley-Wide Recreation & Park District 

 
5. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report in open session any action 
taken, or lack thereof, taken in closed session. 

6. CONSENT ITEMS 
The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by the 
Board at one time without discussion, unless a Board member requests that an item be removed 
from the consent agenda and held for discussion. 
 
6.1 Approval of CAPRI Board Minutes 

 November 7, 2024 
 November 8, 2024 

6.2 Warrant Listings:  October 2024 – December 2024 
6.3 Financial Reports 

mailto:mbreck@capri-jpa.gov


Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 25, 2025 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity       Regular Board Meeting 

February 25, 2025                             Page | 3 

 Statement of Net Position 
 Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position 
 Statement of Revenue and Expenses Budget to Actual 
 Consolidating Statement of Net Position 
 Consolidating Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net 

Position 
 

7. PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 
 

8. SPECIAL REPORTS 
8.1 Investment Status Report – PFM 
8.2 CAPRI Audit Report for 2023-2024 – James Marta & Company LLP  
8.3 Insurance Market Report – Alliant Insurance Services 
8.4 WC Program Status Report 
8.5 General Liability Program Status Report 
8.6 Property Program Status Report 

 
9. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

9.1 Law Enforcement Liability & Workers’ Compensation Coverage Review 
 The Board shall review and discuss the status of armed law enforcement 

with the CAPRI pool. 
9.2 CAPRI Office Lease Renewal 

 The Board shall review and discuss the potential renewal of the office 
lease. 

9.3 District Visit Cycle XIX Safety Awards 
 The Board shall review and approve proposed revisions to the Criteria 

used in its District Visitation Program in advance of Cycle XX. 
9.4 PARK Award – Excellence in Risk Management 

 The Board shall review and approve proposed winners of the second 
annual PARK Award. 

9.5 Opioid Diversion Review 
 The Board shall review legal and coverage updates with respect to opioid 

antagonists and changes to recommended risk management practices. 
9.6 CAPRI Job Description Update & Organizational Chart Review 

 The Board shall review and discuss and approve the duties identified in the 
recommended job descriptions for Director of Safety and Risk Control and 
Executive Assistant. 

 
 
 



Agenda           
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 25, 2025 
 

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity       Regular Board Meeting 

February 25, 2025                             Page | 4 

10. STAFF REPORTS 
10.1 District Visit Update 
10.2 CARPD Update 
10.3 RIO Update 
10.4 Employee Assistance Program – Member Training Update 
10.5 Renewal Platform Update 
10.6 Online Training Program Utilization Review 

 
11. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

11.1 Board Member Comments 
 

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
This section is reserved for items identified by Board members and Staff as matters for future 
Board business. 
 
 Actuarial Report – Workers’ Compensation 
 Actuarial Report – General Liability & Property 
 Experience Modification Factor Review 
 Safety Discount Calculations 2024-2025 
 General Liability & Property Program 2024-2025 Funding Review 
 Workers’ Compensation Program 2024-2025 Funding Review 
 Budget 2024-2025 

 
13. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The next CAPRI Board of Directors Meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 21, 2025 in 
San Diego, California. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 6.1 

Consent Items 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of CAPRI Board Minutes 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached for review are the meeting minutes from the recent Meetings of the CAPRI Board 
of Directors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the meeting minutes for the recent Meetings of the CAPRI Board of Directors. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Draft CAPRI Board Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 
• Draft CAPRI Board Meeting Minutes – November 8, 2024 

Page 5



CAPRI Board of Director Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 1 

 
 
 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
 

November 7, 2024 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on November 7, 2024. The Meeting was 
called to order by President Wetter at 12:18 p.m.  
 
Members Present: President Dean Wetter, Vice President Michelle Lacy , Secretary Colin Miller, 
Director Lorena Cervantes , Director Jim Friedl, Director Mathew Fuzie, and Director Jill Nunes. 
 
Members Absent:  None. 
 
CAPRI Staff Present: Executive Director Matthew Duarte, Director of Administrative Operations 
Monica Breck, and Safety Analyst Kirk Andre. 
 
Others Present: Byrne Conley (Gibbons and Conley), Doug Wozniak (Alliant Insurance), Charles 
Torretta (George Hills Company), Amy Whitman (Sedgwick), Sally Town (Sedgwick), Allison 
Kaune (PFM), and Mallory Sampson (PFM). 
 

2. INTRODUCTIONS:  None. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 

4. CLOSED SESSION:   
The Board convened to Closed Session at 12:19 p.m. 
 
4.1 Liability & Property – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government Code § 

54956.9(d)(1) 
 Bolbol/Cuviello v. Hayward Area Recreation & Park District 
 Cullifer v. Carmichael Recreation & Park District 
 White v. Hesperia Recreation & Park District 
 CAPRI $5K Summary 
 

The Board came out of Closed Session at 12:45 p.m. 
 
The Board returned to Closed Session at 1:12 p.m. 
 

Page 6



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 2 

 
 
 

4.2 Worker’s Compensation – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government Code § 
54956.9(d)(1) 
 Bellinger v. Jurupa Area Recreation & Park District 
 Cisneros v. North of the River Recreation & Park District 
 Dickerson v. Cordova Recreation & Park District 
 Zanotto v. Weed Recreation & Park District 

 
The Board came out of Closed Session at 1:55 p.m. 
 
The Board convened to Closed Session a final time at 4:34 p.m. 
 
4.3 Public Employee Evaluation – Performance Review Pursuant to Government Code § 

54957 
 Executive Director 

 
Closed session concluded at 4:49 p.m. 
 

5. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION:   
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.1, the Board must report in open session any 
action taken, or lack thereof, taken in closed session. 

No reportable action. 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
6.1      Approval of CAPRI Board Minutes 

 September 3, 2024 
6.2 Warrant Listings: July 2024 – September 2024 
6.3 Financial Reports: July 2024 – September 2024 

 Statement of Net Position 
 Statement of Revenue and Expenses Budget to Actual 
 Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position 
 

MOTION: 
Vice President Michelle Lacy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda items 6.1 - 
6.3. Director Mathew Fuzie seconded the motion.  

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 
 

7. PULLED CONSENT ITEMS:  None. 
 
 

Page 7



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 3 

 
 
 

8. SPECIAL REPORTS:  
8.1  WC Program Status Report 
Amy Whitman and Sally Town with Sedgwick reviewed and discussed the status of the Workers’ 
Compensation Program. For FY 2023/2024 the closing ratio was over 100% and CAPRI ended 
the year with 134 open claims. The Board was provided with a trending report and a summary of 
the WC loss history by fiscal year.  
 
8.2  Investment Status Report 
Allison Kaune and Mallory Sampson with PFM provided a report on the status of RIO’s 
investment holdings. Investments have seen a positive return. The investment portfolio remains 
consistent with our investment policy. 
 
8.3  Insurance Market Report 
Doug Wozniak with Alliant Insurance Services provided an update regarding the current 
insurance market and outlook for 25/26. The current year’s Property Program renewal was 
positive, and we are expecting the same for the next renewal. Workers’ Compensation remains 
stable, with an increase corresponding to the increased total payroll. Lastly, Liability is still a 
tough market with large verdicts affecting the rates, but we are in a good place as part of 
PRISM’s program.    
 
8.4  FY 2023-2024 State of CAPRI Report 
Executive Director Duarte presented the first annual State of CAPRI Address via YouTube in 
October 2024. The presentation was circulated to the membership and highlighted CAPRI’s 
financial performance, member services summary, RIO, CARPD, and outlook for YF 24/25. The 
Board was provided with a copy of the Address  as well as the Updated Consolidated Statement 
of Net Position for FY 23/24. 
 
8.5  General Liability Program Status Report 
Executive Director Duarte reviewed and discussed the status of the General Liability Program. 
The total open claim count is up; however, several are slated for closure very soon. Total 
reserves are down as one of our larger claims has closed. The Board was provided with a 
summary of the GL loss history by fiscal year.    
 
8.6  Property Program Status Report 
Executive Director Duarte reviewed and discussed the status of the Property Program. The 24/25 
fiscal year is seeing a mix of claims including storm damage, theft, vandalism, and vehicle 
accidents.  The Board was provided with a summary of open claims for the first quarter of the 
fiscal year.  
 

9. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS: 
9.1 Investment Policy Review 
The Board reviewed the CAPRI Investment Policy and discussed whether amendments were 
necessary. This year, PFM noted a few minor revisions to the policy including language that will 
clarify that the captive funds are guided by a separate Investment Policy. 

Page 8



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 4 

 
 
 

 
MOTION: 

Director Jim Friedl made a motion to approve proposed revisions to the CAPRI 
Investment Policy. Secretary Colin Miller seconded the motion. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.2  Review of 2023/2024 WC Final Payroll 
The Board reviewed the 2023/2024 Final Payroll for the Workers’ Compensation program. CAPRI 
has concluded collection of final payroll and has calculated final premiums for the Program. As a 
pool, actual payroll totals increased 6% as compared to the member estimates. This results in a 
net final premium contribution of approximately $249k due from members. 
 
MOTION: 

Director Jill Nunes made a motion to approve final payroll for FY 2023/2024 and the 
calculation of final premiums. Secretary Colin Miller seconded the motion. 
 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.3 Annual Target Equity Policy Review 
The Board reviewed and discussed the financial conditions of the General Liability & Property 
and Workers’ Compensation programs as part of its annual Target Equity review. This item was 
information only. 
 
9.4 Annual Workers’ Compensation Program Dividends Review 
The Board reviewed and discussed whether the issuance of dividends in the Workers’ 
Compensation program was warranted this fiscal year. This item was taken in one action with 
item 9.5. 
 
9.5 Annual GL & Property Program Dividends Review 
The Board reviewed and discussed whether the issuance of dividends in the GL & Property 
program was warranted this fiscal year.  
 
MOTION: 

Director Jim Friedl made a motion to decline the issuance of dividends from both the WC 
and the GL & Property programs this fiscal year. Vice President Michelle Lacy seconded 
the motion. 

 

Page 9



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 5 

 
 
 

Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 
 

9.6 Review of CAPRI Policies and Procedures 
The Board reviewed proposed revisions to the CAPRI Financial Management Policy and Claims 
Management Policy contained within the CAPRI Policies and Procedures. Proposed revisions 
align with current practices and conform to CAJPA standards. 
 
MOTION: 

Vice President Michelle Lacy made a motion to accept the proposed changes to the Financial 
Management Policy and Claims Management Policy, with further proposed changes noted 
below. Secretary Colin Miller seconded the motion. 

• Financial Management Policy, item D – update authority to “$50k or within 
budgeted amounts” 

• Claims Management Policy, item A.3. – update to “Excess insurers are notified of 
claims per excess insurance guidelines” 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.7 District Visit Cycle XX Criteria Overview 
The Board reviewed and discussed the proposed updates to the District Visitation Criteria and 
Scoring for the upcoming Cycle XX. This Cycle’s updates were developed after considering 
recent claim trends, new laws, and ever-developing industry best practices. This item was 
information only.  
 
9.8 Renewal Data Collection Tool 
The Board reviewed and evaluated the proposed contract with In2vate for data collection 
software services. The online data collected tool will streamline the renewal for both General 
Liability and Property and the Workers’ Compensation programs. 
 
MOTION: 

President Dean Wetter made a motion to authorize Staff to sign the Master Service 
Agreement with in2vate, LLC for the Data Collection Tool build and licensing. Vice President 
Michelle Lacy seconded the motion. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

Page 10



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 6 

 
 
 

 
9.9 Proposed CAPRI Member Benefit – Gym Membership Discount 
The Board reviewed and evaluated the proposed agreement for an employee-paid gym 
membership discounts for District employees. CAPRI Staff has been investigating partnerships 
with regional gyms in which District employees could obtain discounted gym memberships at 
no cost to CAPRI. Staff recommended moving forward with In-Shape Family Fitness. 
 
MOTION: 

Vice President Michelle Lacy made a motion to authorize Staff to execute an agreement with 
In-Shape Family Fitness for an employee-paid corporate partnership. Director Jill Nunes 
seconded the motion. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.10 Amendments to GSRMA MOU 
The Board reviewed the amended Memorandum of Understanding with GSRMA. CAPRI is a 
member of Golden State Risk Management Agency (“GSRMA”) for employee health benefits for 
CAPRI Staff. 
 
MOTION: 

Secretary Colin Miller made a motion to authorize the CAPRI Board President to execute the 
Amended Memorandum of Understanding with GSRMA. Director Jim Friedl seconded the 
motion. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.11 CAPRI BOD Election of Officers 2025-2026 
The Board conducted an election of Board Officers consistent with the CAPRI Bylaws. 
 
MOTION: 

President Dean Wetter was nominated to serve as Board President. Vice President Michelle 
Lacy made the nomination, seconded by Director Jill Nunes. There were no other 
nominations. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

Page 11



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 7 

 
 
 

 
MOTION: 

Vice President Michelle Lacy was nominated to serve as Board Vice President. Director Jim 
Friedl made the nomination, seconded by Secretary Colin Miller. There were no other 
nominations. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 
 

MOTION: 
Secretary Colin Miller was nominated to serve as Board Secretary. Director Lorena Cervantes 
made the nomination, seconded by Director Jill Nunes. There were no other nominations. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
MOTION: 

Executive Director Matthew Duarte was nominated to serve as Board Treasurer. Director Jill 
Nunes made the nomination, seconded by Secretary Colin Miller. There were no other 
nominations.  

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
9.12 Board Meeting Calendar 2025 
The Board reviewed the proposed CAPRI Board Meeting Calendar for 2025. At this time four of 
the five meetings are planned to be in person at various locations noted. Director Mathew Fuzie 
offered to host the November 2025 meetings.  
 
MOTION: 

Director Jill Nunes made a motion to approve the Board Meeting Calendar for 2025. Vice 
President Michelle Lacy seconded the motion. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 

Page 12



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 8 

 
 
 

9.13 Annual Executive Director Contract Review 
The Board reviewed and discussed the Executive Director employment contract. This matter was 
before the Board as part of the annual performance evaluation process for the Executive 
Director. In its review, the Board may consider amendments to the Contract. 
 
MOTION: 

Secretary Colin Miller made a motion to approve amendments to the Executive Director’s 
contract as noted below. Vice President Michelle Lacy seconded the motion.  

• 7.5% increase in annual salary to $232,890; 
• Monthly car allowance of $500; 
• Add one year to the contract (through October 1, 2028); and 
• All terms retroactive to October 1, 2024. 

 
Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

 
10.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/STAFF REPORTS: 

10.1 District Visit Update:  This item was information only. 
 
10.2 CARPD Update:  This item was information only. 
 
10.3 RIO Update:  This item was information only 
 
10.4 Employee Assistance Program Utilization Report:  This item was information only. 

 
11. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

 
11.1   Board Member Comments:  None. 

 
12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

  The Board of Directors had no comments or questions. 
 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
The next CAPRI Board of Directors Meeting is scheduled for February 25, 2025. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Board adjourned the meeting at 4:51 p.m.  
 
MOTION: 

Secretary Colin Miller made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Director Jill Nunes seconded 
the motion. 

 

Page 13



CAPRI Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes – November 7, 2024 

Page | 9 

 
 
 

Ayes:  Wetter, Lacy, Miller, Cervantes, Friedl, Fuzie, and Nunes 
Nays:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent: None 

  
 
 
 

______________________________________  
Colin Miller, 
Secretary for the CAPRI Board of Directors 

Page 14



CAPRI Board of Directors Special Meeting Minutes – November 8, 2024 

Page | 1 

 
 
 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

November 8, 2024 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The special meeting of the Board of Directors was held on November 8, 2024. The Meeting 
was called to order by President Wetter at 9:15 a.m.  
 
Members Present: President Dean Wetter, Vice President Michelle Lacy, Secretary Colin 
Miller, Director Lorena Cervantes, Director Jim Friedl, and Director Jill Nunes. 
 
Members Absent:  None. 
 
CAPRI Staff Present: Executive Director Matthew Duarte, Director of Administrative 
Operations Monica Breck, and Safety Analyst Kirk Andre. 
 
Others Present: Byrne Conley (Gibbons and Conley) and Doug Wozniak (Alliant Insurance). 
 

2. INTRODUCTIONS:  None. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 

4. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS: 
4.1 CAPRI Strategic Retreat 
The Board reviewed and discussed past performance of CAPRI and long-range planning 
for the organization. Direction was provided to Staff.  
 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
The next CAPRI Board of Directors Meeting is scheduled for February 25, 2025. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT:   The Board adjourned at 12:23 p.m. 

 

______________________________________ 
Colin Miller, 
Secretary for the CAPRI Board of Directors  

Page 15



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 6.2 

Consent Items 
 
SUBJECT: Warrant Listings 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached for review are the warrant listings evidencing the financial transactions for the 
last quarter. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the meeting minutes for the recent Meetings of the CAPRI Board of Directors. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• CAPRI Warrant Listings – 10/1/24 – 12/31/24 

Page 16



Date Transaction Type Name Memo/Description Amount

BMO (Bank of West) - Master Register
10/01/2024 Transfer -232,338.60  

10/01/2024 Bill Payment (Check) US Bank Inv # 14434684 -1,000.00  

10/01/2024 Deposit 311,236.25  

10/03/2024 Deposit 43,800.50  

10/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) California Computer Services (Corp) Inv # 618999 -111.70  

10/03/2024 Check -392.25  

10/04/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gilbert CPAs Inv 348692 -4,400.00  

10/04/2024 Payment West Side Recreation and Park District 11,238.50  

10/04/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02427 7005709865 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -20,000.00  

10/04/2024 Bill Payment (Check) PRISM Inv 25400877 -3,360.00  

10/07/2024 Deposit 38,793.50  

10/08/2024 Deposit 2,635.75  

10/08/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02428 2009266468 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -95,842.90  

10/10/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gibbons & Conley Inv 24Sept4438 -842.96  

10/10/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002139 -4,267.00  

10/10/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002107 -326.24  

10/14/2024 Deposit 25,552.75  

10/15/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -12,916.49  

10/15/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -860.02  

10/15/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -2,896.28  

10/15/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -3,138.30  

10/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Bickmore Actuarial Inv 31052 -5,000.00  

10/15/2024 Expenditure -132.08  

10/15/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -1,023.61  

10/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) George Hills Company Inv INV1029920 -15,572.70  

10/16/2024 Bill Payment (Check) California Computer Services (Corp) Inv 88775 -312.00  

10/16/2024 Deposit 70,138.25  

10/17/2024 Deposit 5,878.17  

10/21/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Kirk Andre Inv Exp Rpt 10/17/**** -491.44  

10/21/2024 Bill Payment (Check) George Hills Company Inv INV1029930 -150.00  

10/21/2024 Bill Payment (Check) York Risk Services Group, Inc Inv 420005538099 -1,080.00  

10/22/2024 Expenditure -4.24  

10/23/2024 Credit Card Payment -700.67  

10/23/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02429 6001516570 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -69,569.25  

10/23/2024 Credit Card Payment -1,864.02  

10/23/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02429 6001516578 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -25,000.00  

10/24/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Hofmann Holdings LP Inv 2024-11-01 -4,909.86  

10/28/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Kirk Andre Inv Exp Rpt 10/24/**** -461.26  

10/28/2024 Deposit 73,489.82  

10/29/2024 Bill Payment (Check) US Bank Inv 14477503 -1,000.00  

10/31/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -1,023.61  

10/31/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -12,916.49  

10/31/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -860.02  

10/31/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -2,828.80  

10/31/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -3,125.76  

11/04/2024 Transfer Capri Funding 241104 November Wc Replenishment | SF-0598-2024-01583304 -164,446.13  

11/06/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002186 -4,267.00  

11/06/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002232 -326.24  

11/06/2024 Deposit 21,470.19  

11/06/2024 Bill Payment (Check) California Computer Services (Corp) Inv 629623 -111.70  

11/07/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gilbert CPAs Inv # 349294 -2,964.38  

11/07/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gilbert CPAs Inv # 349178 -4,400.00  

11/08/2024 Payment Rio Linda Elverta Recreation & Park District 42,934.50  

11/12/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Reliance Standard Life Insurance Inv 9-06015-11/24 -66.00  

California Association for Park and Recreation Ind
Transaction Detail by  Account

October - December, 2024

Page 17



11/14/2024 Check Monte Rio Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -1,395.00  

11/14/2024 Check Tuolumne Park and Recreation District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -406.00  

11/14/2024 Check Sunrise Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -11,428.00  

11/14/2024 Check McFarland Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -1,183.00  

11/14/2024 Check Dunsmuir Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -1,666.00  

11/14/2024 Check Carmichael Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -5,387.00  

11/14/2024 Check Ambrose Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -2,502.00  

11/14/2024 Transfer Capri Funding 241114 Special Funding Request - Cazares | 4A24048Jg8G00 -118,751.60  

11/14/2024 Check Feather River Recreation & Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -11,345.00  

11/14/2024 Check Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -20,887.00  

11/14/2024 Check Pleasant Hill Recreation &  Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -10,706.00  

11/14/2024 Check Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -18,788.00  

11/14/2024 Check Soledad Mission Recreation District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -11,310.00  

11/14/2024 Check West Side Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -3,998.00  

11/14/2024 Check Wasco Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -232.00  

11/14/2024 Bill Payment (Check) George Hills Company Inv INV1030165 -17,526.90  

11/14/2024 Check Arden Manor Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -3,074.00  

11/14/2024 Check Arden Park Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -1,751.00  

11/14/2024 Check Central Plumas Recreation & Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -251.00  

11/14/2024 Check Coalinga-Huron Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -47,588.00  

11/14/2024 Check Fulton-El Camino Recreation &  Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -18,366.00  

11/14/2024 Check Isla Vista Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -9,603.00  

11/14/2024 Check Livermore Area Recreation & Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -29,244.00  

11/14/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02431 9003211869 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -107,259.22  

11/14/2024 Check Mt. Shasta Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -3,394.00  

11/14/2024 Check Weed Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -3,926.00  

11/14/2024 Check Strawberry Recreation District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -9,335.00  

11/14/2024 Check Paradise Recreation and Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -18,119.00  

11/14/2024 Check Rio Linda Elverta Recreation & Park District Refund - WC Final PR Adjustment FY23-24 -18,492.00  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Disability Access Consultants, LLC Inv 24-308 -2,720.00  

11/15/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -1,606.17  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Matthew Duarte Inv Exp Rpt 11/12/**** -859.98  

11/15/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -1,023.61  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Matthew Duarte Inv Exp Rpt 11/13/**** -275.50  

11/15/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -13,467.94  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Colin Miller Inv Exp Rpt 11/6-11/8 -82.14  

11/15/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -860.02  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Colin Miller Inv Exp Rpt 1/26-1/27 -280.97  

11/15/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -3,180.90  

11/15/2024 Bill Payment (Check) California Computer Services (Corp) Inv 88872 -150.00  

11/18/2024 Transfer Capri Funding 241118 Cash Call - Young (Weed Rpd) 4942820598 -40,361.03  

11/19/2024 Payment Hesperia Recreation and Park District 10,000.00  

11/19/2024 Bill Payment (Check) George Hills Company Inv INV1030220 -7.84  

11/19/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02432 4006991703 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -18,078.40  

11/20/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Kirk Andre Inv Exp Rpt 11/19/**** -972.62  

11/21/2024 Check Valley-Wide Recreation and Park District CAPRI BOD - November 2024 -124.87  

11/21/2024 Payment Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation & Park District 9,218.50  

11/21/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Monica Breck Inv Expt Rpt 11/7/24 -122.48  

11/22/2024 Bill Payment (Check) In2Vate Llc Inv 202411003 -6,000.00  

11/22/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Lorena Cervantes Inv 11/21/2024 Reimburs -511.14  

11/22/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Hofmann Holdings LP Inv 2024-12-01 -4,909.86  

11/22/2024 Credit Card Payment -2,481.30  

11/22/2024 Credit Card Payment -1,504.16  

11/30/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -1,418.82  

11/30/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -15,413.49  

11/30/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -4,027.01  

11/30/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -1,162.63  

11/30/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -1,050.69  

12/02/2024 Deposit 120,856.83  

12/02/2024 Transfer -153,913.17  

12/02/2024 Check Jill Nunes CAPRI BOD Meeting/Retreat Nov 2024 -107.87  

Page 18



12/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) US Bank Inv 14526711 -1,000.00  

12/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Reliance Standard Life Insurance Inv 9-06015-12/01 -132.00  

12/03/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02433 7008653982 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDIN -81,045.00  

12/03/2024 Bill Payment (Check) California Computer Services (Corp) Inv 640307 -111.70  

12/04/2024 Deposit 135,433.72  

12/04/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gilbert CPAs Inv 349515 -4,400.00  

12/05/2024 Payment Bear Mountain Recreation & Park District 8,001.00  

12/05/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Department of Industrial Relations Inv # OSIP 72421 / Assessment FY 24-25 -45,506.47  

12/09/2024 Deposit 75,791.25  

12/10/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02434 5007418091 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -74,470.89  

12/10/2024 Transfer -66,000.00  

12/10/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02434 5007418096 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -36,750.00  

12/12/2024 Deposit 18,884.00  

12/15/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -2,206.52  

12/15/2024 Expenditure Internal Revenue Service -157.72  

12/15/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -1,418.82  

12/15/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -1,948.46  

12/15/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -5,984.63  

12/15/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -19,224.09  

12/16/2024 Deposit 996,258.75  

12/17/2024 Bill Payment (Check) York Risk Services Group, Inc Inv 400000219361 -21,154.75  

12/17/2024 Bill Payment (Check) SearchPros Inv 24121005 -151.91  

12/17/2024 Bill Payment (Check) George Hills Company Inv INV1030379 -12,543.60  

12/17/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Gibbons & Conley Inv 24Nov4585 -4,356.66  

12/17/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Kirk Andre Inv Exp Rpt 12/12/**** -84.70  

12/17/2024 Deposit Truckee-Donner Recreation & Park District 259,754.75  

12/18/2024 Deposit Bear River Recreation and Park District 5,772.50  

12/19/2024 Transfer CAPRI FUNDING REF # 02435 4006129242 CAPRI 1680084481FUNDING -115,073.75  

12/19/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Caltronics Inv 4248512-CAL -250.72  

12/19/2024 Deposit Highlands Recreation District 65,574.25  

12/20/2024 Payment Belvedere-Tiburon Joint Recreation 15,192.50  

12/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) In2Vate Llc Inv 202412009 -8,437.50  

12/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002308 -335.69  

12/23/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Golden State Risk Management Authority Inv EB-002263 -4,447.00  

12/23/2024 Credit Card Payment -1,936.78  

12/23/2024 Credit Card Payment -4,787.17  

12/23/2024 Deposit 2,874,936.25  

12/24/2024 Bill Payment (Check) Hofmann Holdings LP Inv 2025-01-01 -4,909.86  

12/27/2024 Deposit 1,486,784.25  

12/30/2024 Deposit 449,216.00  

12/31/2024 Journal Entry Fed Payroll Taxes (Fed W/H + Medicare EE & ER) -3,461.05  

12/31/2024 Journal Entry State Payroll Taxes -954.86  

12/31/2024 Journal Entry Pers Payment -1,418.82  

12/31/2024 Journal Entry 457 Payment -1,030.38  

12/31/2024 Journal Entry Net Pay + $7 Payroll Fee -14,560.47  

TOTAL $   5,146,702.43  

Page 19



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 6.3 

Consent Items 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Reports 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached for review are the financial reports for CAPRI and RIO as of December 31, 2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the meeting minutes for the recent Meetings of the CAPRI Board of Directors. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2024 
• Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position as of December 31, 

2024 
• Statement of Revenue and Expenses Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2024 
• Consolidating Statement of Net Positions as of December 31, 2024 
• Consolidating Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position as of 

December 31, 2024 

Page 20



Consolidated Consolidated
December 31, 24 December 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Bank of West - Master Register 7,899,967.53$                        445,877.24$                           
BMO - MM 50,004.83                               525,126.74                             
BMO - Checking RIO 1,307.33                                 49,982.16                               
BMO - MM RIO 204,271.61                             200,065.43                             
Claims Trust Accounts

Juris - New Workers' Comp (26,695.35)                             (128,813.97)                           
California Bank & Trust - Liability 17,551.95                               43,189.42                               
LAIF 8,598,650.31                          10,214,871.61                        

Total Checking/Savings 16,745,058.21                        11,350,298.63                        

 Investment Account
PFM Investment Account 24,617,602.16                        
US Bank 60,682.29                               22,946,953.11                        

Total Investment Account 24,678,284.45                        22,946,953.11                        

Due from CARPD 113.87                                    6,472.30                                 
Accounts Receivable 46,112.70                               256,015.03                             
Interest Receivable 100,246.49                             63,026.38                               
Recovery Receivable 312,424.24                             191,794.63                             
Prepaid Insurance 4,444,191.12                          7,367,994.39                          
Prepaid Expenses 5,978.68                                 4,689.46                                 

Total Other Current Assets 29,587,351.55                        30,836,945.30                        

Total Current Assets 46,332,409.76                        42,187,243.93                        

Capital Assets
Capital Assets

Computer Hardware/Software 38,419.81                               36,906.88                               
Furniture & Equipment 75,760.98                               71,358.42                               
Accumulated Depreciation (100,895.41)                           (95,642.53)                             

Total Capital Assets 13,285.38                               12,622.77                               
Intangible Lease Asset 240,182.00                             240,182.00                             

Amoritization of Lease Asset (202,036.00)                           (156,292.00)                           
Total Intangible Lease Asset 38,146.00                               83,890.00                               

Total Fixed Assets 51,431.38                               96,512.77                               
Other Assets

Deferred Outflows - Pension 352,168.32                             353,979.00                             

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 46,736,009.46$                      42,637,735.70$                      

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity
Consolidated Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 21



Consolidated Consolidated
December 31, 24 December 31, 23

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Credit Cards

BMO / MC - Kirk 1,211.78$                               671.25$                                  
BMO / MC - Matt 580.71                                    8,355.81                                 

Total Credit Cards 1,792.49                                 9,027.06                                 

Other Current Liabilities
District Overpayments 5,973,592.75                          4,222,193.00                          
Claims Payable

Liability Claim Reserves 1,442,705.33                          1,919,964.33                          
Property Claims Reserves 1,237,721.00                          2,024,006.00                          
W/C Claim Reserves 4,858,113.00                          4,648,145.00                          

Total Claims Payable 7,538,539.33                          8,592,115.33                          

Accrued Expenses 33,208.68                               25,184.00                               
Accounts Payable 1,107,140.97                          613,945.63                             
Lease Liability 29,035.56                               84,901.48                               

Total Other Current Liabilities 14,681,517.29                        13,538,339.44                        
Total Current Liabilities 14,683,309.78                        13,547,366.50                        

Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Inflows - Pension 53,295.97                               82,989.00                               
Net Pension Liability 874,137.00                             831,201.00                             
IBNR

IBNR Reserves - Liability 3,609,430.00                          2,363,293.00                          
IBNR Reserves - Property 458,836.00                             592,767.00                             
IBNR Reserves - Workers Comp 6,432,229.00                          6,775,477.00                          

Total IBNR 10,500,495.00                        9,731,537.00                          

ULAE
ULAE - Liability 252,607.00                             214,163.00                             
ULAE - Property 84,828.00                               130,839.00                             
ULAE - Workers' Compensation 564,517.00                             571,181.00                             

Total ULAE 901,952.00                             916,183.00                             
Total Long Term Liabilities 12,329,879.97                        11,561,910.00                        

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 27,013,189.75                        25,109,276.50                        

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets 13,285.38                               12,622.72                               
Designation of Net Position 50,004.83                               525,126.74                             
Unrestricted Net Position 18,825,196.67                        12,990,585.79                        
Net Income 834,332.83                             894,623.95                             

Total Net Position 19,722,819.71$                      14,422,959.20$                      

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 22



CONSOLIDATED
Oct '24 - Dec '24 Jul '24 - Dec '24 Jul '23 - Dec '23

Ordinary Revenue
Revenue

Member Contributions 4,637,005.75$       9,274,011.50$       8,747,515.50$       
Bank/LAIF Interest 100,016.82            193,925.73            97,618.85              
Managed Portfolio 362,860.72            523,600.09            493,442.04            
CARPD - Quarterly Services 21,250.00              42,500.00              38,633.50              

Total Operating Revenue 5,121,133.29         10,034,037.32       9,377,209.89         

Operating Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses

Administration-CAPRI Office

Bank Service Charges 4.24                       2,950.41                7,948.81                
Copier Service / Repair 250.72                   493.08                   436.67                   
Depreciation Expense 1,260.33                2,520.66                2,178.50                
District Visitations 4,549.73                8,303.92                2,766.69                
Miscellaneous 140.19                   589.66                   1,491.12                
Office Supplies 283.57                   958.80                   287.12                   
Postage and Delivery 194.93                   1,266.20                917.64                   
Printing and Reproduction -                        1,288.69                94.82                     
Professional Dues 1,325.00                1,305.00                2,844.58                
Rent 11,894.00              23,956.00              29,148.24              
Safety Meetings/Workshops -                        -                        50.00                     
Salaries & Benefits 152,035.71            380,086.60            339,345.86            
Telephone 1,382.70                3,148.12                3,159.85                
Travel/Meeting 1,305.98                3,998.56                8,333.28                

Total Administration-CAPRI Office 174,627.10            430,865.70            399,003.18            

Board Meeting/Travel 7,671.54                14,358.33              11,584.26              
Consulting Services

Actuarial Services 5,000.00                5,000.00                -                        
Claims Management 126,928.50            128,008.50            124,231.95            
Claims Management - Admin -                        5,500.00                -                        
Claims Management - Liability 31,886.10              62,483.10              57,408.76              
Claims Management - Property 10,143.94              24,309.04              32,800.29              
Financial Accounting 16,408.14              33,361.10              22,974.53              
Financial Audit -                        -                        6,500.00                
Investment Advisors 13,109.32              15,051.58              13,143.25              
IT Services 762.00                   1,322.00                2,579.75                
Legal Fees 4,356.66                6,016.23                16,790.70              
Loss Prevention Services 17,157.50              17,157.50              4,285.00                

Total Consulting Services 225,752.16            298,209.05            280,714.23            
Total General and Administrative Expenses 408,050.80            743,433.08            691,301.67            

Insurance Expenses
Crime Policy 7,342.24                14,684.48              14,964.08              
Workers' Compensation 266,868.50            533,737.00            652,066.50            
Combined GL/AL Excess 547,247.75            1,095,077.50         879,557.50            
Other Premiums -WC 45,506.47              45,506.47              65,146.89              
Property Coverage 1,374,387.08         2,748,774.16         2,877,737.32         

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity
Consolidated Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position
For the Quarter and Year to Date December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 23



CONSOLIDATED
Oct '24 - Dec '24 Jul '24 - Dec '24 Jul '23 - Dec '23

EAP 3,360.00                6,720.00                3,756.40                
Broker Fees 26,250.00              52,500.00              52,500.00              

Total Insurance Expenses 2,270,962.04         4,496,999.61         4,545,728.69         

Claims Expenses
Workers' Compensation Claims 708,355.80            1,369,061.76         1,405,610.58         
Liability Claim Payments 278,386.41            1,192,133.21         557,237.71            

Property Claims 335,008.15            776,433.93            1,310,374.58         
Subrogation Recovery (108,101.58)           (113,967.83)           (26,735.78)             

Change in Reserves 199,548.00            (379,941.00)           421,248.00            

Changes in IBNR 795,594.00            1,400,307.00         486,293.00            
Change in ULAE 49,757.00              51,019.00              45,378.00              
Total Claims Expenses 2,258,547.78         4,295,046.07         4,199,406.09         

Total Expenses 4,937,560.62         9,535,478.76         9,436,436.45         

Net Operating Revenue 183,572.67            498,558.56            (59,226.56)             

Other Revenue (Expense)

Investment Gain/Loss (777,307.21)           335,774.27            953,850.51            

Net Revenue Over (Under) Expenses (593,734.54)$         834,332.83$          894,623.95$          

Beginning Net Position 18,888,486.88       13,528,335.25       

Ending Net Position 19,722,819.71$     14,422,959.20$     

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 24



Jul '24 - Dec '24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Revenue

Member Contributions 9,274,011.50 18,548,019.00 -9,274,007.50 50.0%

Bank/LAIF Interest 193,925.73 150,000.00 43,925.73 129.28%

Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Managed Portfolio 523,600.09 350,000.00 173,600.09 149.6%

CARPD Administration 42,500.00 85,000.00 -42,500.00 50.0%

RIO Administration 0.00 45,000.00 -45,000.00 0.0%

Go Forward Premium 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Revenue 10,034,037.32 19,178,019.00 -9,143,981.68 52.32%

Expense

Operating Expenditures

Administration-CAPRI Office

Bank Service Charges 2,950.41 16,000.00 -13,049.59 18.44%

Copier Service/Repair 493.08 2,000.00 -1,506.92 24.65%

Depreciation Expense 2,520.66 4,000.00 -1,479.34 63.02%

District Visitations 8,303.92 10,000.00 -1,696.08 83.04%

Miscellaneous 589.66 4,000.00 -3,410.34 14.74%

Office Supplies 958.80 7,500.00 -6,541.20 12.78%

Part-Time Services 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Postage and Delivery 1,266.20 2,200.00 -933.80 57.56%

Printing and Reproduction 1,288.69 500.00 788.69 257.74%

Professional Dues 1,305.00 5,000.00 -3,695.00 26.1%

Rent 23,956.00 60,000.00 -36,044.00 39.93%

Salaries & Benefits

Salaries

Executive Director 117,611.80  216,642.00 -99,030.20 54.29%

Administrative Analyst 61,800.04  118,000.00 -56,199.96 52.37%

Administrative Assistant 7,625.35  44,000.00 -36,374.65 17.33%

Safety Analyst 52,800.04  100,000.00 -47,199.96 52.8%

Contingency 0.00 16,000.00 -16,000.00 0.0%

Total Salaries 239,837.23 494,642.00 -254,804.77 48.49%

Employee Benefits

Medical 27,748.89 63,500.00 -35,751.11 43.7%

Life Insurance 462.00 950.00 -488.00 48.63%

457 ER Contributions 10,623.90 22,414.00 -11,790.10 47.4%

PERS Contributions 14,933.93 31,924.00 -16,990.07 46.78%

Payroll Tax Expense 3,919.15 6,100.00 -2,180.85 64.25%

Total Employee Benefits 57,687.87 124,888.00 -67,200.13 46.19%

Payroll Fees 168.00  0.00 168.00 100.0%

Accrued Vacation 2,583.50  0.00 2,583.50 100.0%

PERS Unfunded Liability 79,810.00  75,856.00 3,954.00 105.21%

Total Salaries & Benefits 380,086.60 695,386.00 -315,299.40 54.66%

Safety Meetings/Workshops 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

Telephone 3,148.12 6,500.00 -3,351.88 48.43%

Travel/Meeting 3,998.56 12,000.00 -8,001.44 33.32%

Total Administration-CAPRI Office 430,865.70 831,086.00 -400,220.30 51.84%

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity
Statement of Revenue, Expenses Budget to Actual (Consolidated)

July 2024 through December 2024

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 25



Jul '24 - Dec '24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Board Meeting/Travel 14,358.33 27,500.00 -13,141.67 52.21%

CARPD Expense 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Consulting Services

Actuarial Services 5,000.00 11,250.00 -6,250.00 44.44%

Claims Management 220,300.64 413,857.00 -193,556.36 53.23%

Financial Accounting 33,361.10  46,350.00 -12,988.90 71.98%

Financial Audit 0.00  26,700.00 -26,700.00 0.0%

Investment Advisors 15,051.58  32,000.00 -16,948.42 47.04%

IT Services 1,322.00  3,000.00 -1,678.00 44.07%

Legal Fees 6,016.23  30,000.00 -23,983.77 20.05%

Loss Prevention Services 17,157.50  55,000.00 -37,842.50 31.2%

Total Consulting Services 298,209.05 618,157.00 -319,947.95 48.24%

Total Operating Expenditures 743,433.08 1,478,743.00 -735,309.92 50.28%

Insurance Expenditures

Crime Policy 14,684.48 25,000.00 -10,315.52 58.74%

Workers' Compensation 533,737.00 1,067,474.00 -533,737.00 50.0%

Other Premiums (W/C) 45,506.47 60,000.00 -14,493.53 75.84%

Employee Assistance Program 6,720.00 15,000.00 -8,280.00 44.8%

Combined GL/AL Excess 1,095,077.50 2,188,991.00 -1,093,913.50 50.03%

Property Coverage 2,748,774.16 5,497,548.00 -2,748,773.84 50.0%

Broker Fees 52,500.00 105,000.00 -52,500.00 50.0%

Total Insurance Expenditures 4,496,999.61 8,959,013.00 -4,462,013.39 50.2%

Claims Expenditures

Claims Payments 1,369,061.76 8,190,263.00 -6,821,201.24 16.72%

Property Claims 776,433.93 0.00 776,433.93 100.0%

Liability Claim Payments 1,192,133.21 0.00 1,192,133.21 100.0%

Subrogation Recovery -113,967.83  0.00 -113,967.83 100.0%

Change in IBNR 1,400,307.00 0.00 1,400,307.00 100.0%

Change in ULAE 51,019.00 0.00 51,019.00 100.0%

Change in Reserves -379,941.00 0.00 -379,941.00 100.0%

Total Claims Expenditures 4,295,046.07 8,190,263.00 -3,895,216.93 52.44%

Contingency

General 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Contingency 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 9,535,478.76 18,678,019.00 -9,142,540.24 51.05%

Net Operating Income 498,558.56 500,000.00 -1,441.44 99.71%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Investment Gain/Loss 335,774.27 0.00 335,774.27 100.0%

Total Other Income 335,774.27 0.00 335,774.27 100.0%

Net Income 834,332.83 500,000.00 334,332.83 166.87%

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 26



CAPRI RIO Consolidated
December 31, 24 December 31, 24 Eliminations December 31, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Bank of West - Master Register 7,899,967.53$           -$                       7,899,967.53$             

BMO - MM 50,004.83                  -                         50,004.83                    

BMO - Checking RIO -                             1,307.33                1,307.33                      

BMO - MM RIO -                             204,271.61            204,271.61                  
Claims Trust Accounts

Juris - New Workers' Comp (26,695.35)                 -                         (26,695.35)                   
California Bank & Trust - Liability 17,551.95                  -                         17,551.95                    

Total Claims Trust Accounts
LAIF 8,598,650.31             -                         8,598,650.31               

Total Checking/Savings 16,539,479.27           205,578.94            -                            16,745,058.21             

 Investment Account
PFM Investment Account -                             24,617,602.16       24,617,602.16             
US Bank -                             60,682.29              60,682.29                    

Total Investment Account -                             24,678,284.45       24,678,284.45             

Due from CARPD 113.87                       -                         113.87                         
Due to CAPRI from RIO 9,280,795.03             -                         (9,280,795.03)           -                               
Premium for Go Forward due from CAPRI to RIO -                             10,457,335.83       (10,457,335.83)         -                               
Accounts Receivable 46,112.70                  -                         46,112.70                    

Interest Receivable 100,016.82                229.67                   100,246.49                  

Recovery Receivable 312,424.24                -                         312,424.24                  

Prepaid Insurance 8,561,822.12             -                         (4,117,631.00)           4,444,191.12               
Prepaid Expenses 5,978.68                    -                         5,978.68                      

Total Other Current Assets 18,307,263.46           35,135,849.95       (23,855,761.86)         29,587,351.55             

Total Current Assets 34,846,742.73           35,341,428.89       (23,855,761.86)         46,332,409.76             

Capital Assets
Capital Assets

Computer Hardware/Software 38,419.81                  -                         38,419.81                    
Furniture & Equipment 75,760.98                  -                         75,760.98                    
Accumulated Depreciation (100,895.41)               -                         (100,895.41)                 

Total Capital Assets 13,285.38                  -                         -                            13,285.38                    

Intangible Lease Asset 240,182.00                -                         240,182.00                  
Amoritization of Lease Asset (202,036.00)               -                         (202,036.00)                 

Total Intangible Lease Asset 38,146.00                  -                         -                            38,146.00                    

Total Fixed Assets 51,431.38                  -                         -                            51,431.38                    

Other Assets

Investment in RIO 250,000.00                -                         (250,000.00)              -                               

Deferred Outflows - Pension 352,168.32                -                         352,168.32                  

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 35,500,342.43$         35,341,428.89$     (24,105,761.86)$       46,736,009.46$           

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity
Consolidating Statement of Net Position

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 27



CAPRI RIO Consolidated
December 31, 24 December 31, 24 Eliminations December 31, 24

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Credit Cards

BMO / MC - Kirk 1,211.78$                  -$                       1,211.78$                    
BMO / MC - Matt 580.71                       -                         580.71                         

Total Credit Cards 1,792.49                    -                         -                            1,792.49                      

Other Current Liabilities
Due from RIO to CAPRI -                             9,280,795.03         (9,280,795.03)           -                               
District Overpayments 5,973,592.75             -                         5,973,592.75               
Claims Payable

Liability Claim Reserves -                             1,442,705.33         1,442,705.33               
Property Claims Reserves -                             1,237,721.00         1,237,721.00               
W/C Claim Reserves -                             4,858,113.00         4,858,113.00               

Total Claims Payable -                             7,538,539.33         7,538,539.33               

Due to CARPD -                             -                         -                               

Premium for Go Forward due to RIO 10,457,335.83           -                         (10,457,335.83)         -                               

Deferred Revenue - RIO -                             4,117,631.00         (4,117,631.00)           -                               
Accrued Expenses 33,208.68                  -                         33,208.68                    
Accounts Payable 1,107,140.97             -                         1,107,140.97               
Lease Liability 29,035.56                  -                         29,035.56                    

Total Other Current Liabilities 17,600,313.79           20,936,965.36       (23,855,761.86)         14,681,517.29             

Total Current Liabilities 17,602,106.28           20,936,965.36       (23,855,761.86)         14,683,309.78             

Long Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows - Pension 53,295.97                  -                         53,295.97                    

Net Pension Liability 874,137.00                -                         874,137.00                  
IBNR

IBNR Reserves - Liability -                             3,609,430.00         3,609,430.00               
IBNR Reserves - Property -                             458,836.00            458,836.00                  
IBNR Reserves - Workers Comp -                             6,432,229.00         6,432,229.00               

Total IBNR -                             10,500,495.00       10,500,495.00             

ULAE
ULAE - Liability 252,607.00                -                         252,607.00                  
ULAE - Property 84,828.00                  -                         84,828.00                    
ULAE - Workers' Compensation 564,517.00                -                         564,517.00                  

Total ULAE 901,952.00                -                         901,952.00                  

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,829,384.97             10,500,495.00       12,329,879.97             

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 19,431,491.25           31,437,460.36       (23,855,761.86)         27,013,189.75             

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets 13,285.38                  -                         13,285.38                    
Add'l Paid in Capital - RIO -                             250,000.00            (250,000.00)              -                               
Designation of Net Position 50,004.83                  -                         50,004.83                    
Unrestricted Net Position 15,657,604.50           3,167,592.17         18,825,196.67             
Net Income 347,956.47                486,376.36            834,332.83                  

Total Net Position 16,068,851.18$         3,903,968.53$       (250,000.00)$            19,722,819.71$           

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 28



CAPRI RIO CONSOLIDATED
Jul '24 - Dec '24 Jul '24 - Dec '24 Eliminations Jul '24 - Dec '24

Ordinary Revenue
Revenue

Member Contributions 9,274,011.50$            9,274,011.50$    
Go Forward Premium -                              4,117,632.00       (4,117,632.00)  -                      
Bank/LAIF Interest 193,925.73                 -                       193,925.73         
Managed Portfolio 2.50                            523,597.59          523,600.09         
CARPD - Quarterly Services 42,500.00                   -                       42,500.00           

Total Operating Revenue 9,510,439.73              4,641,229.59       (4,117,632.00)  10,034,037.32    
Operating Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses
Bank Service Charges 18.41                          2,932.00              2,950.41             
Copier Service / Repair 493.08                        -                       493.08                
Depreciation Expense 2,520.66                     -                       2,520.66             
District Visitations 8,303.92                     -                       8,303.92             
Miscellaneous 561.66                        28.00                   589.66                
Office Supplies 958.80                        -                       958.80                
Postage and Delivery 1,266.20                     -                       1,266.20             
Printing and Reproduction 1,288.69                     -                       1,288.69             
Professional Dues 1,305.00                     -                       1,305.00             
Rent 23,956.00                   -                       23,956.00           
Salaries & Benefits 380,086.60                 -                       380,086.60         
Telephone 3,148.12                     -                       3,148.12             
Travel/Meeting 3,998.56                     -                       3,998.56             

Total Administration-CAPRI Office 427,905.70                 2,960.00              430,865.70         
Board Meeting/Travel 14,034.50                   323.83                 14,358.33           
Consulting Services

Actuarial Services -                              5,000.00              5,000.00             
Claims Management -                              128,008.50          128,008.50         
Claims Management - Admin -                              5,500.00              5,500.00             
Claims Management - Liability -                              62,483.10            62,483.10           
Claims Management - Property -                              24,309.04            24,309.04           
Financial Accounting 30,396.72                   2,964.38              33,361.10           
Investment Advisors -                              15,051.58            15,051.58           
IT Services 1,322.00                     -                       1,322.00             
Legal Fees 6,016.23                     -                       6,016.23             
Loss Prevention Services 17,157.50                   -                       17,157.50           

Total Consulting Services 54,892.45                   243,316.60          298,209.05         
Total General and Administrative Expenses 496,832.65                 246,600.43          743,433.08         

Insurance Expenses
Crime Policy 14,684.48                   -                       14,684.48           
Workers' Compensation 533,737.00                 -                       533,737.00         
Combined GL/AL Excess 1,095,077.50              -                       1,095,077.50      
Other Premiums -WC 45,506.47                   -                       45,506.47           
Property Coverage 2,748,774.16              -                       2,748,774.16      
EAP 6,720.00                     -                       6,720.00             
Broker Fees 52,500.00                   -                       52,500.00           
Premium Go Forward 4,117,632.00              -                       (4,117,632.00)  -                      

Total Insurance Expenses 8,614,631.61              -                       (4,117,632.00)  4,496,999.61      
Claims Expenses

Workers' Compensation Claims -                              1,369,061.76       1,369,061.76      
Liability Claim Payments -                              1,192,133.21       1,192,133.21      
Property Claims -                              776,433.93          776,433.93         

Subrogation Recovery -                              (113,967.83)         (113,967.83)        
Change in Reserves -                              (379,941.00)         (379,941.00)        

California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity
Consolidating Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Change in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 29



CAPRI RIO CONSOLIDATED
Jul '24 - Dec '24 Jul '24 - Dec '24 Eliminations Jul '24 - Dec '24

Changes in IBNR -                              1,400,307.00       1,400,307.00      
Change in ULAE 51,019.00                   -                       51,019.00           
Total Claims Expenses 51,019.00                   4,244,027.07       4,295,046.07      

Total Expenses 9,162,483.26              4,490,627.50       (4,117,632.00)  9,535,478.76      
Net Operating Revenue 347,956.47                 150,602.09          498,558.56         
Other Revenue (Expense)

Investment Gain/Loss -                              335,774.27          335,774.27         
Net Revenue Over (Under) Expenses 347,956.47$               486,376.36$        834,332.83$       

Beginning Net Position 15,720,894.71            3,417,592.17       (250,000.00)     18,888,486.88    

Ending Net Position 16,068,851.18$          3,903,968.53$     (250,000.00)$   19,722,819.71$  

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are omitted and no assurance is provided.Page 30



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 8.1 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Investment Status Report 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Alison Kaune of PFM Asset Management LLC will be present at the Board Meeting and 
will provide an in-depth report regarding the status of RIO’s investment portfolio. 
 
For reference, below is a summary of the return comparison for RIO versus historic 
investment strategies (pre-7/2023). 
 

Returns of Various Investment Strategies 
As of December 31, 2024 

Account/Index Past 
Quarter 

Past 1 
Year 

Since RIO 
Inception 
8/1/2023 

RIO Portfolio -1.85% 7.55% 9.73% 

RIO Blended Benchmark -2.23% 7.43% 9.23% 

1-5 Year U.S. Treasury Index -0.77% 3.40% 4.66% 

1-5 Year AAA-A Corporate & Government Index -0.71% 3.68% 4.93% 

As of December 31, 2024. Source of fixed income index returns, ICE Index Platform. Source of RIO return, 
PFMAM. RIO blended benchmark comprises Russell 3000 Index, MSCI AC World ex USA (Net), and Blmbg. 
U.S. Aggregate.  Returns for periods one year or less are presented on a periodic basis. Returns for periods 
greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• RIO Investment Performance Review for Quarter Ended December 31, 2024 

Page 31



R
e

cr
e

a
tio

n
 I
n

su
ra

n
ce

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

tio
n

C
lie

n
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
P

F
M

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

A
 d

iv
is

io
n

 o
f 

U
.S

. 
B

a
n

co
rp

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 I
n

c.

1
 C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
 S

tr
e

e
t

S
u

ite
 1

0
0

0

S
a

n
 F

ra
n

ci
sc

o
, 

C
A

 9
4

1
1

1

1
7

3
5

 M
a

rk
e

t 
S

tr
e

e
t

4
3

rd
  

F
lo

o
r

P
h

ila
d

e
lp

h
ia

, 
P

A
 1

9
1

0
3

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 R

e
v

ie
w

F
o

r 
th

e
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
E

n
d

e
d

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

3
1

, 
2

0
2

4

M
a

llo
ry

 S
a

m
p

so
n

, 
D

ir
e

ct
o

r

Page 32



F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
rk

e
ts

 &
 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 R

e
v

ie
w

1

Page 33



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Q
TD

YT
D

O
ne

 Y
ea

r
Th

re
e 

Ye
ar

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

r
Se

ve
n 

Ye
ar

Te
n 

Ye
ar

D
O

M
ES

TI
C

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
S

&
P

 5
00

 (T
R

)
2.

41
%

25
.0

2%
25

.0
2%

8.
94

%
14

.5
3%

13
.8

3%
13

.1
0%

R
us

se
ll 

30
00

2.
63

%
23

.8
1%

23
.8

1%
8.

01
%

13
.8

6%
13

.1
6%

12
.5

5%
R

us
se

ll 
10

00
 G

ro
w

th
7.

07
%

33
.3

6%
33

.3
6%

10
.4

7%
18

.9
6%

18
.0

8%
16

.7
8%

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

2.
75

%
24

.5
1%

24
.5

1%
8.

41
%

14
.2

8%
13

.5
8%

12
.8

7%
R

us
se

ll 
10

00
 V

al
ue

-1
.9

8%
14

.3
7%

14
.3

7%
5.

63
%

8.
68

%
8.

41
%

8.
49

%
R

us
se

ll 
M

id
ca

p
0.

62
%

15
.3

4%
15

.3
4%

3.
79

%
9.

92
%

9.
65

%
9.

63
%

R
us

se
ll 

M
id

ca
p 

G
ro

w
th

8.
14

%
22

.1
0%

22
.1

0%
4.

04
%

11
.4

7%
12

.0
8%

11
.5

4%
R

us
se

ll 
M

id
ca

p 
V

al
ue

-1
.7

5%
13

.0
7%

13
.0

7%
3.

88
%

8.
59

%
7.

72
%

8.
10

%
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 G

ro
w

th
1.

70
%

15
.1

5%
15

.1
5%

0.
21

%
6.

86
%

7.
17

%
8.

09
%

R
us

se
ll 

20
00

0.
33

%
11

.5
4%

11
.5

4%
1.

24
%

7.
40

%
6.

91
%

7.
82

%
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 V

al
ue

-1
.0

6%
8.

05
%

8.
05

%
1.

94
%

7.
29

%
6.

13
%

7.
14

%
IN

TE
R

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

M
S

C
I E

A
FE

-8
.1

1%
3.

82
%

3.
82

%
1.

65
%

4.
73

%
4.

10
%

5.
20

%
M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
-0

.9
9%

17
.4

9%
17

.4
9%

5.
44

%
10

.0
6%

9.
21

%
9.

23
%

M
S

C
I A

C
 W

or
ld

 e
x-

U
S

A
-7

.6
0%

5.
53

%
5.

53
%

0.
82

%
4.

10
%

3.
53

%
4.

80
%

M
S

C
I A

C
 W

or
ld

 e
x-

U
S

A
 S

m
al

l C
ap

-7
.6

6%
3.

36
%

3.
36

%
-1

.4
7%

4.
30

%
3.

07
%

5.
66

%
M

S
C

I E
M

 (E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
)

-8
.0

1%
7.

50
%

7.
50

%
-1

.9
2%

1.
70

%
1.

38
%

3.
64

%
AL

TE
R

N
AT

IV
ES

FT
SE

 N
ar

ei
t/E

qu
ity

 R
EI

Ts
 - 

IN
V

-6
.2

1%
8.

73
%

8.
73

%
-2

.2
0%

4.
27

%
5.

77
%

5.
73

%
M

S
C

I U
.S
. R

E
IT

 IN
D

E
X

-6
.3

9%
7.

49
%

7.
49

%
-3

.4
3%

3.
10

%
4.

54
%

4.
38

%
FT

S
E

 G
lo

ba
l C

or
e 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
50

/5
0 

In
de

x
-5

.7
4%

9.
45

%
9.

45
%

2.
12

%
3.

24
%

5.
01

%
5.

36
%

B
lo

om
be

rg
 C

om
m

od
ity

 In
de

x
-0

.4
5%

5.
38

%
5.

38
%

4.
05

%
6.

77
%

4.
11

%
1.

28
%

FI
XE

D
 IN

C
O

M
E

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

-3
.0

6%
1.

25
%

1.
25

%
-2

.4
1%

-0
.3

3%
0.

97
%

1.
35

%
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 U
.S
. G

ov
er

nm
en

t/C
re

di
t

-3
.0

8%
1.

18
%

1.
18

%
-2

.5
9%

-0
.2

1%
1.

12
%

1.
50

%
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 U
.S
. I

nt
er

m
ed

ia
te

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t/C

re
di

t
-1

.6
0%

3.
00

%
3.

00
%

-0
.1

8%
0.

86
%

1.
69

%
1.

71
%

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
.S
. T

re
as

ur
y 

(1
-3

 Y
) (

In
ce

pt
io

n 
4/

30
/1

99
6)

-0
.1

0%
4.

03
%

4.
03

%
1.

43
%

1.
36

%
1.

71
%

1.
38

%
IC

E
 B

of
A

 U
.S
. H

ig
h 

Y
ie

ld
0.

16
%

8.
20

%
8.

20
%

2.
91

%
4.

04
%

4.
53

%
5.

08
%

B
lo

om
be

rg
 G

lo
ba

l A
gg

re
ga

te
 e

x-
U

S
D

-6
.8

4%
-4

.2
2%

-4
.2

2%
-6

.2
8%

-3
.3

7%
-2

.0
3%

-0
.9

0%
C

AS
H

 E
Q

U
IV

AL
EN

T
B

lo
om

be
rg

 3
 M

on
th

 T
-B

ill
1.

18
%

5.
29

%
5.

29
%

3.
97

%
2.

51
%

2.
39

%
1.

80
%

S
ou

rc
e:

 In
ve

st
m

en
t M

et
ric

s.
 R

et
ur

ns
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s.

 P
le

as
e 

re
fe

r t
o 

th
e 

la
st

 p
ag

e 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t f
or

 im
po

rta
nt

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l.

1
.1

Page 34



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

TH
E 

EC
O

N
O

M
Y

 
►

In
 th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rte

r, 
U

.S
. g

ro
ss

 d
om

es
tic

 p
ro

du
ct

 (G
D

P)
 g

re
w

 a
t a

n 
an

nu
al

iz
ed

 ra
te

 
of

 3
.1

%
, a

n 
up

tic
k 

fro
m

 3
.0

%
 in

 Q
2.

 T
hi

s 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

bi
gg

es
t g

ro
w

th
 ra

te
 s

o 
fa

r i
n 

20
24

, r
efl

ec
tin

g 
ac

ce
le

ra
tio

ns
 in

 e
xp

or
ts

, i
m

po
rts

, c
on

su
m

er
 s

pe
nd

in
g,

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

pe
nd

in
g.

 W
hi

le
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 re

m
ai

ne
d 

st
ro

ng
, i

t s
lo

w
ed

 in
 

C
an

ad
a 

an
d 

Ja
pa

n,
 w

hi
ch

 g
re

w
 1

.0
%

 a
nd

 1
.2

%
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 M

ea
nw

hi
le

, t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

, g
re

w
 a

t 0
.1

%
 a

nd
 th

e 
Eu

ro
 A

re
a 

gr
ew

 1
.2

%
.

 
►

Th
e 

U
.S

. u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
e 

en
de

d 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r a
t 4

.2
%

, i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 Q
3,

 b
ut

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 th
e 

4.
0%

 th
at

 w
as

 re
co

rd
ed

 in
 Q

2.
 T

he
 la

te
st

 in
iti

al
 jo

bl
es

s 
cl

ai
m

s 
nu

m
be

r t
ic

ke
d 

lo
w

er
 a

s 
la

yo
ffs

 re
m

ai
n 

su
bd

ue
d,

 b
ut

 a
 p

er
si

st
en

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 c

la
im

s 
in

 2
02

4 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

ed
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

re
 fi

nd
in

g 
it 

ha
rd

er
 to

 la
nd

 n
ew

 jo
bs

, w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 
m

ea
n 

th
at

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r w

or
ke

rs
 is

 w
an

in
g,

 d
es

pi
te

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g 

ec
on

om
y.

 
►

In
fla

tio
n 

ed
ge

d 
up

 in
 Q

4 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

br
oa

d 
tre

nd
 o

f i
nfl

at
io

n 
he

ad
in

g 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l R
es

er
ve

’s
 (F

ed
) t

ar
ge

t o
f 2

%
 re

m
ai

ne
d 

in
 p

la
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ye
ar

. H
ea

dl
in

e 
in

fla
tio

n 
(C

PI
) g

re
w

 a
t a

 y
ea

r-o
ve

r-y
ea

r r
at

e 
of

 2
.7

%
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
up

 fr
om

 th
e 

2.
4%

 
re

ad
in

g 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

C
or

e 
C

PI
, w

hi
ch

 e
xc

lu
de

s 
vo

la
til

e 
fo

od
 a

nd
 e

ne
rg

y,
 re

m
ai

ne
d 

fla
t a

t 3
.3

%
 o

n 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

. C
on

su
m

er
 p

ric
es

 ro
se

 a
t a

 fa
st

er
 a

nn
ua

l p
ac

e 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
a 

re
m

in
de

r t
ha

t i
nfl

at
io

n 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

n 
is

su
e 

bo
th

 fo
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ym

ak
er

s.
 

U
.S

. U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 M

on
th

ly
 A

ve
ra

ge
 C

on
tin

ue
d 

C
la

im
s

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
. 

U
.S

. G
D

P 
G

ro
w

th

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
. L

ig
ht

 b
lu

e 
ba

rs
 in

di
ca

te
 a

ct
ua

l n
um

be
rs

; d
ar

k 
bl

ue
 b

ar
s 

in
di

ca
te

 
fo

re
ca

st
ed

 e
st

im
at

es
.

0.
0%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

5.
0%

6.
0%

7.
0%

8.
0%

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0 D

ec
-2

0
Ju

n-
21

D
ec

-2
1

Ju
n-

22
D

ec
-2

2
Ju

n-
23

D
ec

-2
3

Ju
n-

24
D

ec
-2

4

Millions

M
on

th
ly

 A
ve

ra
ge

 C
on

tin
ue

d 
C

la
im

s 
(In

su
re

d 
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t)
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t R
at

e 
(R

ig
ht

)

3.
1%

2.
3%

1.
9%

2.
0%

2.
0%

-2
%

-1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%8%

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Q1

Q2

Q3

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

QoQ% Change, SA, Annualized

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

ab
or

 S
ta

tis
tic

s.

0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%8%9%10
% D

ec
-2

0
D

ec
-2

1
D

ec
-2

2
D

ec
-2

3
D

ec
-2

4

YoY% Change

C
or

e 
C

PI
C

PI

U
.S

. I
nfl

at
io

n 
R

at
e 

S
ea

so
na

lly
 A

dj
us

te
d 

(S
A

)

1
.2

Page 35



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

W
H

AT
 W

E’
R

E 
W

AT
C

H
IN

G
 

►
Th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l R
es

er
ve

 (F
ed

) c
ut

 ra
te

s 
by

 2
5 

ba
si

s 
po

in
ts

 (b
ps

) a
t t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 

m
ee

tin
g,

 a
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

. N
ew

 p
ol

ic
ym

ak
er

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 n
ow

 fo
re

ca
st

 tw
o 

qu
ar

te
r-

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
-p

oi
nt

 ra
te

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
02

5,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 h

al
f a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

po
in

t 
le

ss
 th

an
 w

as
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

O
ut

si
de

 o
f t

he
 U

.S
., 

th
e 

Eu
ro

pe
an

 C
en

tra
l 

Ba
nk

 (E
C

B)
 c

ut
 ra

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 fo

ur
th

 ti
m

e 
th

is
 y

ea
r a

nd
 s

ig
na

le
d 

fu
rth

er
 e

as
in

g 
ah

ea
d 

gi
ve

n 
cu

rre
nt

 g
ro

w
th

 p
re

ss
ur

es
, w

hi
le

 th
e 

Ba
nk

 o
f J

ap
an

 (B
O

J)
 h

el
d 

th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
ra

te
 s

te
ad

y 
si

nc
e 

its
 ra

te
 h

ik
e 

in
 J

ul
y.

 
►

U
.S

. m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
ac

tiv
ity

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 c
on

tra
ct

, a
lb

ei
t a

t a
 s

of
te

ni
ng

 p
ac

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

th
ird

 q
ua

rte
r, 

w
ith

 th
e 

IS
M

 U
.S

. M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
PM

I r
is

in
g 

to
 a

 n
in

e-
m

on
th

 h
ig

h 
of

 
49

.3
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r. 
Al

th
ou

gh
 d

ow
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
io

r t
w

o 
m

on
th

s 
to

 5
1.

5,
 th

e 
N

ov
em

be
r 

Se
rv

ic
es

 P
M

I fi
gu

re
 s

til
l m

ar
ke

d 
th

e 
fif

th
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
m

on
th

 o
f e

xp
an

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
ec

to
r.

 
►

U
.S

. C
on

su
m

er
 c

on
fid

en
ce

, a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f M
ic

hi
ga

n’
s 

C
on

su
m

er
 S

en
tim

en
t s

ur
ve

y,
 re

ac
he

d 
its

 h
ig

he
st

 le
ve

l i
n 

fiv
e 

m
on

th
s 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

co
m

in
g 

in
 a

t 7
4.

0,
 u

p 
fro

m
 6

6.
4 

(th
e 

lo
w

es
t r

ea
di

ng
) i

n 
Ju

ly.
 

 
►

Ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
Pa

ci
fic

, C
hi

na
’s

 to
p 

de
ci

si
on

-m
ak

in
g 

bo
dy

 p
le

dg
ed

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t m

or
e 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
fis

ca
l p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
to

 a
do

pt
 a

 “m
od

er
at

el
y 

lo
os

e”
 m

on
et

ar
y 

po
lic

y 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r, 

th
e 

fir
st

 n
ar

ra
tiv

e 
ch

an
ge

 s
in

ce
 2

00
8.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 le

ft 
ke

y 
de

ta
ils

 o
f h

ow
 it

 w
ou

ld
 re

al
iz

e 
“re

as
on

ab
le

 p
ric

e 
re

co
ve

ry
” u

nc
le

ar
.

G
lo

ba
l C

en
tr

al
 B

an
k 

R
at

es

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

U
.S

. I
SM

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
&

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
PM

I

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

40455055606570

D
ec

-2
0

D
ec

-2
1

D
ec

-2
2

D
ec

-2
3

D
ec

-2
4

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
Se

rv
ic

es

-1
.0

0%

0.
00

%

1.
00

%

2.
00

%

3.
00

%

4.
00

%

5.
00

%

6.
00

% D
ec

-2
0

D
ec

-2
1

D
ec

-2
2

D
ec

-2
3

D
ec

-2
4

Fe
d 

Ta
rg

et
 R

at
e

EC
B 

Ta
rg

et
 R

at
e

Ba
nk

 o
f E

ng
la

nd
 T

ar
ge

t R
at

e
Ba

nk
 o

f C
an

ad
a 

Ta
rg

et
 R

at
e

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f M
ic

hi
ga

n 
C

on
su

m
er

 S
en

tim
en

t

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

02040608010
0 D

ec
-2

0
D

ec
-2

1
D

ec
-2

2
D

ec
-2

3
D

ec
-2

4

1
.3

Page 36



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
O

M
ES

TI
C

 E
Q

U
IT

Y

 
►

Th
e 

S&
P 

50
0 

In
de

x 
(S

&P
) p

os
te

d 
a 

2.
4%

 re
tu

rn
 fo

r t
he

 fo
ur

th
 q

ua
rte

r o
f 

20
24

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r, 

S&
P 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

in
 tw

o 
ou

t o
f t

hr
ee

 
m

on
th

s,
 p

os
tin

g 
a 

qu
ar

te
r h

ig
h 

of
 5

.9
%

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r, 

an
d 

a 
lo

w
 o

f -
2.

4%
 in

 
D

ec
em

be
r. 

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

th
e 

in
de

x 
po

st
ed

 a
 re

tu
rn

 o
f 2

5.
0%

.

 
►

W
ith

in
 th

e 
S&

P 
50

0,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 m

ix
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

11
 G

IC
S 

se
ct

or
s.

 
Th

e 
w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

se
ct

or
s 

w
er

e 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 (-
12

.4
%

), 
H

ea
lth

ca
re

 (-
10

.3
%

), 
an

d 
R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
(-8

.0
%

). 
Th

e 
be

st
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
se

ct
or

s 
w

er
e 

C
on

su
m

er
 D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 
(1

4.
3%

), 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 (8

.9
%

), 
an

d 
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

 (7
.0

%
). 

 
►

La
rg

e-
ca

ps
, a

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x,
 re

tu
rn

ed
 2

.8
%

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r, 

an
d 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
ot

h 
m

id
-c

ap
s 

an
d 

sm
al

l-c
ap

s.
 T

he
 R

us
se

ll 
M

id
ca

p 
an

d 
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 in

di
ce

s 
re

tu
rn

ed
 0

.6
%

 a
nd

 0
.3

%
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
►

Ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 F
ac

tS
et

 E
ar

ni
ng

s 
In

si
gh

t (
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 2

0,
 2

02
4)

, t
he

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 y

ea
r-o

ve
r-y

ea
r e

ar
ni

ng
s 

gr
ow

th
 ra

te
 fo

r t
he

 S
&P

 5
00

 in
 Q

4 
20

24
 w

as
 

11
.9

%
, d

ow
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0t

h 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 1
4.

6%
. A

t t
he

 s
ec

to
r l

ev
el

, 
En

er
gy

 (-
12

.6
%

 to
 -2

4.
1%

) a
nd

 H
ea

lth
ca

re
 (2

0.
5%

 to
 1

1.
9%

) s
aw

 th
e 

bi
gg

es
t 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
re

vi
si

on
s 

in
 Y

oY
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

gr
ow

th
 e

st
im

at
es

 fr
om

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0 
to

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

0.
 C

on
ve

rs
el

y,
 th

e 
se

ct
or

s 
th

at
 s

aw
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t u
pw

ar
d 

re
vi

si
on

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
w

er
e 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (1
7.

0%
 to

 2
0.

8%
) a

nd
 F

in
an

ci
al

s 
(3

9.
3%

 to
 3

9.
7%

). 

 
►

W
hi

le
 a

na
ly

st
s 

ex
pe

ct
 th

e 
“M

ag
ni

fic
en

t S
ev

en
” c

om
pa

ni
es

 to
 re

po
rt 

ea
rn

in
gs

 
gr

ow
th

 o
f 2

1.
3%

 in
 2

02
5,

 d
ow

n 
fro

m
 3

3.
3%

 in
 2

02
4,

 th
ey

 e
xp

ec
t t

he
 o

th
er

 4
93

 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
to

 p
os

t 1
3.

0%
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

gr
ow

th
 in

 2
02

5,
 u

p 
fro

m
 

4.
2%

 in
 2

02
4.

 
►

At
 q

ua
rte

r e
nd

, t
he

 fo
rw

ar
d 

12
-m

on
th

 p
ric

e-
to

-e
ar

ni
ng

s 
(P

/E
) r

at
io

 fo
r t

he
 

S&
P 

50
0 

w
as

 2
1.

4,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

5-
ye

ar
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 1
9.

7.
 B

y 
co

m
pa

ris
on

, 
th

e 
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
, w

hi
ch

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 s

m
al

l-c
ap

 s
to

ck
s,

 h
ad

 a
 fo

rw
ar

d 
P/

E 
ra

tio
 o

f 
18

.1
, a

bo
ve

 it
s 

5-
ye

ar
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 1
7.

8.

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

S&
P 

50
0 

In
de

x 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 b

y 
Se

ct
or

P
er

io
ds

 E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

*P
/E

 ra
tio

s 
ar

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
on

e-
ye

ar
 fo

rw
ar

d 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

ly
 

po
si

tiv
e 

ea
rn

in
gs

 re
su

lts
 fo

r c
on

si
st

en
cy

. 

P/
E 

R
at

io
s 

of
 M

aj
or

 S
to

ck
 In

di
ce

s*

C
on

su
m

er
D

is
c.

C
on

su
m

er
St

ap
le

s
En

er
gy

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
H

'lt
hc

ar
e

In
du

st
ria

ls
In

fo
. T

ec
h

M
at

er
ia

ls
R

ea
l

Es
ta

te
Te

le
co

m
U

til
iti

es

Q
TD

14
.2

5%
-3

.2
6%

-2
.4

4%
7.

06
%

-1
0.

30
%

-2
.4

1%
4.

84
%

-1
2.

42
%

-7
.9

4%
8.

87
%

-5
.5

1%

YT
D

30
.1

4%
14

.8
7%

5.
72

%
30

.5
0%

2.
58

%
17

.3
0%

36
.6

1%
-0

.0
4%

5.
23

%
40

.2
3%

23
.4

3%

1 
Ye

ar
30

.0
5%

14
.8

3%
5.

71
%

30
.4

1%
2.

57
%

17
.2

5%
36

.4
9%

-0
.0

4%
5.

21
%

40
.1

0%
23

.3
6%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

051015202530

101520253035 Ja
n-

20
Ja

n-
21

Ja
n-

22
Ja

n-
23

Ja
n-

24

S&P 600

S&P 500

S&
P 

50
0

S&
P 

50
0 

5-
Ye

ar
 A

ve
ra

ge
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 5

-Y
ea

r A
ve

ra
ge

1
.4

Page 37



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

N
O

N
-U

.S
. E

Q
U

IT
Y

 
►

M
ar

ke
ts

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

, a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

M
SC

I A
C

W
I 

ex
-U

.S
. I

nd
ex

, u
nd

er
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 th

ei
r U

.S
. c

ou
nt

er
pa

rts
, r

et
ur

ni
ng

 -7
.6

%
 fo

r t
he

 
qu

ar
te

r. 
Fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r, 
th

e 
in

de
x 

re
tu

rn
ed

 5
.5

%
. 

 
►

Tw
o 

of
 th

e 
11

 s
ec

to
rs

 p
os

te
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

r, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
 (9

.6
%

) a
nd

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

(1
0.

5%
). 

Al
l o

th
er

 s
ec

to
rs

 w
er

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fo

r t
he

 q
ua

rte
r a

nd
 th

e 
w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

er
s 

w
er

e 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 (-
17

.2
%

), 
H

ea
lth

ca
re

 
(-1

3.
9%

), 
an

d 
U

til
iti

es
 (-

12
.8

%
). 

 
►

D
ev

el
op

ed
 e

x-
U

.S
. M

ar
ke

ts
, a

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 th
e 

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
In

de
x,

 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 u

nd
er

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

ts
 (E

M
), 

as
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 th
e 

M
SC

I 
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

t I
nd

ex
, r

et
ur

ni
ng

 -8
.1

%
 v

er
su

s 
-8

.0
%

 fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

r.

 
►

O
f t

he
 fi

ve
 la

rg
es

t-w
ei

gh
te

d 
co

un
tri

es
 in

 th
e 

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
In

de
x,

 M
SC

I F
ra

nc
e 

(-1
1.

1%
) w

as
 th

e 
no

ta
bl

e 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
er

 d
riv

en
 b

y 
po

lit
ic

al
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
. M

SC
I 

Ja
pa

n 
(-3

.3
%

), 
M

SC
I U

ni
te

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
 (-

3.
9%

), 
M

SC
I S

w
itz

er
la

nd
 (-

8.
1%

), 
an

d 
M

SC
I G

er
m

an
y 

(-4
.8

%
) a

ll 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
in

de
x.

 
►

O
f t

he
 fi

ve
 la

rg
es

t-w
ei

gh
te

d 
co

un
tri

es
 in

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

ts
, M

SC
I T

ai
w

an
 

(-0
.9

%
) w

as
 th

e 
so

le
 o

ut
pe

rfo
rm

er
, w

hi
le

 M
SC

I C
hi

na
 (-

9.
3%

), 
M

SC
I I

nd
ia

 
(-8

.0
%

), 
M

SC
I K

or
ea

 (-
12

.8
%

), 
an

d 
M

SC
I B

ra
zi

l (
-1

2.
0%

) a
ll 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
M

SC
I E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 In
de

x.

 
►

G
ro

w
th

 s
to

ck
s 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 v

al
ue

 s
to

ck
s 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

r a
s 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

by
 th

e 
br

oa
d 

be
nc

hm
ar

k.
 T

he
 M

SC
I A

C
 W

or
ld

 e
x-

U
SA

 G
ro

w
th

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 

-7
.8

%
, w

hi
le

 th
e 

M
SC

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 e

x-
U

SA
 V

al
ue

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 -7

.2
%

. W
ith

in
 E

M
, 

gr
ow

th
 o

ut
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 v

al
ue

, r
et

ur
ni

ng
 -6

.9
%

 v
er

su
s 

-8
.9

%
.

 
►

Sm
al

l c
ap

s,
 a

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 M
SC

I A
C

W
I e

x-
U

.S
. S

m
al

l C
ap

 In
de

x,
 a

ls
o 

so
ld

 o
ff 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r, 
po

st
in

g 
a 

re
tu

rn
 o

f -
7.

7%
.

 
►

N
on

-U
.S

. e
qu

iti
es

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 re

m
ai

n 
cl

os
e 

to
 th

ei
r l

on
g-

te
rm

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
cr

os
s 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke

ts
. A

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1s

t, 
20

24
, M

SC
I E

AF
E’

s 
P/

E 
st

oo
d 

at
 1

5.
4 

ve
rs

us
 a

 5
-y

ea
r a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 1
6.

1.
 M

SC
I E

M
 e

nd
ed

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r w

ith
 

a 
P/

E 
ra

tio
 o

f 1
3.

4,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

ls
o 

its
 5

-y
ea

r a
ve

ra
ge

.  

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
. 

M
SC

I A
C

W
I e

x-
U

.S
. S

ec
to

rs
P

er
io

ds
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
. 

*P
/E

 ra
tio

s 
ar

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
on

e-
ye

ar
 fo

rw
ar

d 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

ly
 

po
si

tiv
e 

ea
rn

in
gs

 re
su

lts
 fo

r c
on

si
st

en
cy

.

P/
E 

R
at

io
s 

of
 M

SC
I E

qu
ity

 In
di

ce
s*

C
on

su
m

er
D

is
c.

C
on

su
m

er
St

ap
le

s
En

er
gy

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
H

ea
lth

ca
re

In
du

st
ria

ls
In

fo
 T

ec
h

M
at

er
ia

ls
R

ea
l

Es
ta

te
Te

le
co

m
U

til
iti

es

Q
TD

-8
.1

1%
-1

2.
38

%
-7

.9
3%

9.
60

%
-1

3.
87

%
-7

.0
9%

-1
.7

5%
-1

7.
19

%
10

.4
7%

-6
.7

9%
-1

2.
84

%

YT
D

4.
63

%
-7

.8
3%

-3
.5

3%
11

.8
0%

-1
.3

8%
7.

50
%

13
.3

0%
-1

2.
59

%
1.

70
%

12
.4

1%
-1

.9
9%

1 
Ye

ar
4.

63
%

-7
.8

3%
-3

.5
3%

11
.8

0%
-1

.3
8%

7.
50

%
13

.3
0%

-1
2.

59
%

1.
70

%
12

.4
1%

-1
.9

9%

-2
0%

-1
5%

-1
0%-5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

8101214161820222426 Ja
n-

20
Ja

n-
21

Ja
n-

22
Ja

n-
23

Ja
n-

24

M
SC

I E
AF

E
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

5-
Ye

ar
 A

ve
ra

ge
M

SC
I E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
SC

I E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 5

-Y
ea

r A
ve

ra
ge

1
.5

Page 38



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

FI
XE

D
 IN

C
O

M
E

 
►

Th
e 

U
.S

. b
on

d 
m

ar
ke

t r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

 
(A

gg
re

ga
te

) I
nd

ex
 w

as
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 w
ea

ke
r i

n 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 q
ua

rte
r, 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
-3

.1
%

 a
s 

ra
te

s 
ro

se
. F

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
, t

he
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 in
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 1

.3
%

.

 
►

Th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U

S 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 In

de
x 

cl
os

ed
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r r
et

ur
ni

ng
 -3

.1
%

. 
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d,

 th
e 

FO
M

C
 m

ad
e 

tw
o 

qu
ar

te
r p

oi
nt

 c
ut

s 
to

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

 
ra

te
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fe
w

er
 c

ut
s 

in
 2

02
5.

 R
at

es
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
on

e-
ye

ar
 ra

ng
e 

ro
se

 
hi

gh
er

. T
he

 1
0-

ye
ar

 ro
se

 to
 4

.6
%

, w
hi

le
 th

e 
2-

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 a

t 4
.2

%
.

 
►

C
or

po
ra

te
 c

re
di

t h
ad

 m
ix

ed
 re

su
lts

 fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

r o
n 

th
e 

ris
in

g 
ra

te
s.

 T
he

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t G
ra

de
 B

lo
om

be
rg

 U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 (I

G
 C

or
p)

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 a

 -3
.0

%
 

w
hi

le
 H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d 
bo

nd
s,

 a
s 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
 H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d 
(H

Y)
 In

de
x,

 re
tu

rn
ed

 0
.2

%
. S

pr
ea

ds
 w

er
e 

fla
t t

o 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 ti

gh
t a

cr
os

s 
qu

al
ity

 
sp

ec
tru

m
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 “C

C
C

” H
Y 

ca
te

go
ry

 h
ad

 a
 s

ha
rp

 ra
lly

, g
en

er
at

in
g 

a 
2.

3%
 

re
tu

rn
.

 
►

Th
e 

fix
ed

-ra
te

 m
or

tg
ag

e 
m

ar
ke

t, 
as

 m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U

.S
. 

M
or

tg
ag

e-
Ba

ck
ed

 S
ec

ur
iti

es
 (M

BS
) I

nd
ex

 re
tu

rn
ed

-3
.2

%
. O

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

si
de

, r
et

ur
ns

 fa
re

d 
be

tte
r w

ith
 lo

w
er

 d
ur

at
io

n 
as

 th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U

.S
. A

ge
nc

y 
C

M
BS

 In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

in
g-

2.
2%

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
no

n-
ag

en
cy

 C
M

BS
 in

de
x 

po
st

ed
 a

 re
tu

rn
 

of
 -0

.8
%

. 

 
►

EM
 U

SD
 s

ov
er

ei
gn

 b
on

ds
, a

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 th
e 

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
EM

BI
 G

lo
ba

l 
D

iv
er

si
fie

d 
in

de
x,

 re
tu

rn
ed

 1
.9

%
. T

he
 s

ub
-in

de
x 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

Af
ric

a 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 

th
e 

be
st

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
M

id
dl

e 
Ea

st
 in

de
x 

ha
d 

th
e 

w
ea

ke
st

 re
tu

rn
s 

fo
r t

he
 q

ua
rte

r.

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
. 

R
et

ur
ns

 fo
r F

ix
ed

-In
co

m
e 

Se
gm

en
ts

P
er

io
ds

 E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
lo

om
be

rg
.

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y 
Yi

el
d 

C
ur

ve

4.
24

%
4.

38
%

4.
57

%
4.

78
%

0.
0%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

5.
0%

6.
0%

12
/3

1/
20

23
9/

30
/2

02
4

12
/3

1/
20

24

3-
m

o 
 2

-y
r 

   
  5

-y
r 

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0-
yr

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

-y
r 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Bl
m

bg
 U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

Bl
m

bg
 U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y

Bl
m

bg
 U

.S
. M

BS
Bl

m
bg

 U
.S

. C
or

po
ra

te
Bl

m
bg

 U
.S

. H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d

Q
TD

-3
.0

6%
-3

.1
4%

-3
.1

6%
-3

.0
4%

0.
17

%
YT

D
1.

25
%

0.
58

%
1.

20
%

2.
13

%
8.

19
%

1 
Ye

ar
1.

25
%

0.
58

%
1.

20
%

2.
12

%
8.

17
%

-4
%

-2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

1
.6

Page 39



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
LT

ER
N

AT
IV

ES

 
►

R
EI

Ts
, a

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 th

e 
FT

SE
 N

AR
EI

T 
Eq

ui
ty

 R
EI

Ts
 In

de
x,

 re
tu

rn
ed

 -6
.2

1%
 in

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r, 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 1

6.
09

%
 re

tu
rn

 in
 th

e 
pr

io
r q

ua
rte

r. 
M

os
t m

aj
or

 s
ec

to
rs

 s
aw

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
re

tu
rn

s.
 T

he
 re

ve
rs

al
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

at
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ris
e 

in
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 T

re
as

ur
y 

yi
el

ds
 

as
 th

e 
Fe

d 
si

gn
al

ed
 a

 m
or

e 
ca

ut
io

us
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 m

on
et

ar
y 

po
lic

y 
ea

si
ng

 g
oi

ng
 in

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 y

ea
r. 

Pr
iv

at
e 

re
al

 e
st

at
e,

 a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

N
C

R
EI

F 
Pr

op
er

ty
 In

de
x,

 g
ai

ne
d 

0.
83

%
 in

 
th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rte

r o
f 2

02
4,

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 -3
.3

0%
 re

tu
rn

 o
ve

r t
he

 tw
el

ve
-m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

en
de

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
4.

 Q
3 

sa
w

 th
e 

fir
st

 q
ua

rte
r o

f p
os

iti
ve

 to
ta

l r
et

ur
n 

in
 2

 y
ea

rs
 a

s 
pr

op
er

ty
 v

al
ue

 
de

cl
in

es
 le

ve
le

d 
off

 a
cr

os
s 

m
os

t s
ec

to
rs

. H
ot

el
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
er

e 
ag

ai
n 

th
e 

to
p 

pe
rfo

rm
er

s,
 

re
tu

rn
ed

 2
.6

7%
 w

hi
le

 o
ffi

ce
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 fa
re

 p
oo

rly
, r

et
ur

ne
d 

-0
.8

9%
.

 
►

Li
st

ed
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

S&
P 

G
lo

ba
l I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
In

de
x,

 re
tu

rn
ed

 
-2

.4
8%

 in
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r, 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 a

 1
3.

43
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
pr

io
r q

ua
rte

r. 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
w

as
 m

os
tly

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 s

ec
to

rs
 a

s 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

ro
se

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 o

f 2
02

4,
 4

6 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fu
nd

s 
ra

is
ed

 $
64

.4
9 

bi
llio

n,
 a

 s
ub

du
ed

 p
ac

e 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 
m

ac
ro

ec
on

om
ic

 b
ac

kd
ro

p 
of

 e
le

va
te

d 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ex

it 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
M

os
t o

f t
he

 c
ap

ita
l w

en
t t

o 
fu

nd
s 

la
rg

er
 th

an
 $

1 
bi

llio
n 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 c

ap
ita

liz
e 

on
 s

ec
ul

ar
 tr

en
ds

 
ar

ou
nd

 d
ig

ita
liz

at
io

n,
 d

ec
ar

bo
ni

za
tio

n,
 a

nd
 d

eg
lo

ba
liz

at
io

n.
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

dr
y 

po
w

de
r h

as
 

fa
lle

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r a

nd
 s

ta
nd

s 
at

 $
28

2.
27

 b
illi

on
 a

s 
of

 Q
1 

20
24

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 
Pi

tc
hB

oo
k,

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fu

nd
s 

po
st

ed
 a

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 0
.5

4%
 in

 Q
2 

20
24

. T
he

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

 h
as

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

an
 a

nn
ua

liz
ed

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 1
0.

55
%

 fo
r t

he
 5

 y
ea

rs
 e

nd
ed

 Q
2 

20
24

.

 
►

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 o

f 2
02

4,
 1

05
 p

riv
at

e 
de

bt
 fu

nd
s 

ra
is

ed
 $

16
9.

20
 b

illi
on

. 
Fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
ha

s 
re

bo
un

de
d 

fro
m

 a
 s

lo
w

 s
ta

rt 
to

 th
e 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 is
 o

n 
tra

ck
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r’s
 to

ta
l. 

 P
riv

at
e 

de
bt

 d
ry

 p
ow

de
r r

em
ai

ns
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
t 

$4
52

.3
8 

bi
llio

n 
as

 o
f Q

1 
20

24
; a

lth
ou

gh
 o

ve
r 7

1%
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

fo
r m

or
e 

th
an

 3
 

ye
ar

s.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 P

itc
hB

oo
k,

 p
riv

at
e 

de
bt

 fu
nd

s 
po

st
ed

 a
 re

tu
rn

 o
f 4

.1
9%

 in
 Q

2 
20

24
. T

he
 

as
se

t c
la

ss
 h

as
 g

en
er

at
ed

 a
n 

an
nu

al
iz

ed
 re

tu
rn

 o
f 8

.4
7%

 fo
r t

he
 5

 y
ea

rs
 e

nd
ed

 Q
2 

20
24

.

 
►

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 o

f 2
02

4,
 3

90
 p

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 fu
nd

s 
ra

is
ed

 $
40

0.
45

 b
illi

on
 –

 
w

hi
le

 s
lo

w
er

 th
an

 2
02

3 
th

is
 is

 a
 s

ol
id

 p
ac

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

Th
e 

bu
lk

 
of

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ai
se

d 
w

en
t t

o 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 m
an

ag
er

s 
ra

is
in

g 
ca

pi
ta

l f
or

 fu
nd

s 
la

rg
er

 th
an

 $
1 

bi
llio

n.
 G

lo
ba

l p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 d

ry
 p

ow
de

r, 
w

hi
ch

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r t
he

 b
ul

k 
of

 p
riv

at
e 

ca
pi

ta
l d

ry
 

po
w

de
r, 

re
m

ai
ns

 h
ig

h 
at

 $
1.

42
 tr

illi
on

 a
s 

of
 Q

1 
20

24
. P

riv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ut
ed

 d
ue

 to
 h

ig
h 

bo
rro

w
in

g 
co

st
s,

 li
m

ite
d 

de
bt

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
d 

de
al

 fl
ow

. A
cc

or
di

ng
 

to
 P

itc
hB

oo
k,

 p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 fu

nd
s 

po
st

ed
 a

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 1
.4

2%
 in

 Q
2 

20
24

. T
he

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

 h
as

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

an
 a

nn
ua

liz
ed

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 1
6.

69
%

 fo
r t

he
 5

 y
ea

rs
 e

nd
ed

 Q
2 

20
24

.

S
ou

rc
e:

 N
C

R
E

IF
, P

itc
hB

oo
k,

 C
liff

w
at

er
, C

am
br

id
ge

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

  
A

s 
of

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

4,
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t p
er

io
d 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

in
de

x 
da

ta
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.

R
et

ur
ns

 fo
r P

riv
at

e 
C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
s

S
ou

rc
es

: P
itc

hb
oo

k.
 

* 
To

ta
l c

ap
ita

l r
ai

se
d 

in
 2

02
4 

as
 o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

02
4 

- m
os

t r
ec

en
t p

er
io

d 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 A

LL
 

fu
nd

ra
is

in
g 

da
ta

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

  
**

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

dr
y 

po
w

de
r a

nd
 to

ta
l A

U
M

 a
s 

of
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
02

4.
  

**
* 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 o

pe
n-

en
d,

 e
ve

rg
re

en
 fu

nd
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

Pr
iv

at
e 

C
ap

ita
l F

un
dr

ai
si

ng
 &

 D
ry

 P
ow

de
r

Pr
iv

at
e 

R
ea

l E
st

at
e

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
Pr

iv
at

e 
D

eb
t

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
Q

TD
-0

.2
6%

0.
54

%
4.

19
%

1.
42

%
YT

D
-1

.2
4%

4.
81

%
4.

15
%

3.
76

%
1 

Ye
ar

-5
.5

3%
8.

46
%

10
.8

7%
7.

99
%

-8
%

-6
%

-4
%

-2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

Pr
iv

at
e

R
ea

l
Es

ta
te

**
*

Pr
iv

at
e

In
fra

st
ru

c
tu

re
**

*

Pr
iv

at
e

D
eb

t
Pr

iv
at

e
Eq

ui
ty

Ve
nt

ur
e

C
ap

ita
l

YT
D

 F
un

dr
ai

si
ng

 ($
B)

*
$5

2.
08

$6
4.

49
$1

69
.2

0
$4

00
.4

5
$1

56
.2

8
D

ry
 P

ow
de

r (
$B

)*
*

$3
56

.6
4

$2
82

.2
7

$4
52

.3
8

$1
,4

17
.4

8
$6

41
.7

2
To

ta
l A

U
M

 ($
B)

**
$1

,2
53

.3
7

$1
,3

50
.8

0
$1

,6
42

.4
1

$5
,4

03
.3

0
$3

,4
36

.3
3

$0

$1
,0

00

$2
,0

00

$3
,0

00

$4
,0

00

$5
,0

00

$6
,0

00

$ Billions

1
.7

Page 40



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

In
fla

tio
n 

(U
.S

.):
 

•
W

hi
le

 in
fla

tio
n 

ha
s 

fa
lle

n 
si

nc
e 

its
 p

ea
k 

in
 2

02
2,

 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 s

ta
lle

d 
in

 th
e 

pa
st

 fe
w

 m
on

th
s.

•
Th

e 
Fe

d 
ha

s 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 h

ig
he

r i
nf

la
tio

n 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 g

oi
ng

 in
to

 2
02

5.
 F

ur
th

er
 ra

te
 c

ut
s 

w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
in

fla
tio

n 
m

ov
in

g 
cl

os
er

 to
 it

s 
2%

 ta
rg

et
. 

Pr
op

os
ed

 fi
sc

al
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

m
ay

 p
ut

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 w
ag

es
 

an
d 

go
od

s 
co

st
s.

 

Ec
on

om
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 (G
lo

ba
l):

•
U

.S
. e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 re
m

ai
ns

 s
tro

ng
 o

n 
co

ns
um

er
 

sp
en

di
ng

 w
hi

ch
 re

m
ai

ns
 q

ui
te

 re
si

lie
nt

.
•

Ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

U
.S

. r
em

ai
ns

 m
od

es
t. 

Ta
rif

fs
 p

os
e 

so
m

e 
ris

ks
 w

ith
 tr

ad
in

g 
pa

rtn
er

s.
 

•
D

ec
lin

es
 in

 fo
re

ig
n 

di
re

ct
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 w
ea

k 
do

m
es

tic
 d

em
an

d 
co

ul
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 im

pa
ct

 C
hi

na
’s

 
gr

ow
th

.

M
on

et
ar

y 
Po

lic
y 

(G
lo

ba
l):

•
Th

e 
Fe

d 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

its
 e

as
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l o

f  
10

0 
ba

si
s 

po
in

ts
 (b

ps
) o

f r
at

e 
cu

ts
 in

 2
02

4 
an

d 
su

gg
es

te
d 

an
ot

he
r 5

0 
bp

s 
in

 c
ut

s 
in

 2
02

5,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 p

rio
r e

st
im

at
es

.
•

W
hi

le
 th

e 
Fe

d 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

aj
or

 c
en

tra
l b

an
ks

 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

Ba
nk

 o
f J

ap
an

) c
on

tin
ue

 to
 e

as
e,

 
un

ce
rta

in
ty

 a
ro

un
d 

in
fla

tio
n 

an
d 

gr
ow

th
 re

m
ai

ns
.

La
bo

r M
ar

ke
ts

 (U
.S

.):

•
Th

e 
la

bo
r m

ar
ke

t r
em

ai
ns

 w
el

l-p
os

iti
on

ed
 a

nd
 in

 
ba

la
nc

e 
de

sp
ite

 in
tra

-q
ua

rte
r d

at
a 

vo
la

til
ity

 c
au

se
d 

by
 w

ea
th

er
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
st

rik
es

. 
•

La
yo

ffs
 re

m
ai

n 
ne

ar
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
 lo

w
 le

ve
ls

; h
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
pa

ce
 o

f h
iri

ng
 h

as
 s

lo
w

ed
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y.

 A
ny

 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

ha
s 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
. 

C
on

su
m

er
 S

pe
nd

in
g 

(U
.S

.):
 

•
Br

oa
d 

co
ns

um
er

 m
et

ric
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

st
re

ng
th

. A
 g

ro
w

in
g 

di
ve

rg
en

ce
 a

m
on

g 
co

ns
um

er
s 

ex
is

ts
 a

s 
lo

w
er

-in
co

m
e 

co
ho

rts
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 fe
el

 
m

or
e 

st
ra

in
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

hi
gh

er
 o

ve
ra

ll 
le

ve
l o

f p
ric

es
. 

•
An

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

m
at

er
ia

l d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 la
bo

r 
m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
 is

 th
e 

bi
gg

es
t r

is
k 

to
 c

on
su

m
er

 
sp

en
di

ng
. 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 (U

.S
.):

•
N

ar
ro

w
 c

or
po

ra
te

 y
ie

ld
 s

pr
ea

ds
 a

nd
 s

tro
ng

 e
qu

ity
 

re
tu

rn
s 

po
in

t t
o 

th
e 

st
ab

ilit
y 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
di

tio
ns

. 
Th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

er
eg

ul
at

io
n 

un
de

r t
he

 in
co

m
in

g 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

ha
s 

bu
oy

ed
 m

ar
ke

t c
on

fid
en

ce
.

•
W

hi
le

 o
ur

 b
as

e 
ca

se
 is

 n
ot

 fo
r a

 d
ra

m
at

ic
 s

hi
ft 

in
 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

tra
de

 a
nd

 
ta

rif
f p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
ar

ra
nt

s 
at

te
nt

io
n.

Po
lit

ic
al

 R
is

ks
:

•
G

eo
po

lit
ic

al
 ri

sk
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
el

ev
at

ed
. 

Br
oa

de
ni

ng
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

ea
st

 c
on

fli
ct

, t
ra

de
 a

nd
 ta

rif
f 

te
ns

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
U

.S
. a

nd
 C

hi
na

, r
en

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
of

 tr
ad

e 
de

al
s 

w
ith

 C
an

ad
a 

an
d 

M
ex

ic
o 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 

po
lit

ic
al

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 in
 E

ur
op

e 
ad

d 
to

 ri
sk

s.
 

Va
lu

at
io

ns
:  

•
U

.S
. e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
re

di
t m

ar
ke

ts
 h

av
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

 
ru

n 
up

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

. A
ny

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
sh

oc
k 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 c
ou

ld
 le

ad
 to

 a
 s

el
l-o

ff.

•
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l e

qu
iti

es
 lo

ok
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

bu
t c

on
tin

ue
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 g
eo

po
lit

ic
al

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 a
re

le
ad

in
g 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
vo

la
til

ity
.  

C
or

po
ra

te
 F

un
da

m
en

ta
ls

:

•
Ea

rn
in

gs
 g

ro
w

th
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 a

re
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

cr
os

s 
gl

ob
al

 e
qu

iti
es

, b
ut

 a
ny

 im
pa

ct
s 

fro
m

 ta
rif

fs
 a

nd
 

sl
ow

er
 g

ro
w

th
ne

ed
 to

 c
lo

se
ly

 m
on

ito
re

d 
fo

r a
ny

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pr
of

it 
m

ar
gi

ns
. 

•
In

 th
e 

U
.S

., 
co

rp
or

at
io

ns
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 p

os
t 

hi
gh

er
 p

ro
fit

 m
ar

gi
ns

an
d 

an
y 

ta
x 

cu
ts

/d
er

eg
ul

at
io

n 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

os
iti

ve
. 

St
an

ce
 U

nf
av

or
ab

le
 

to
 R

is
k 

As
se

ts
 

St
an

ce
 F

av
or

ab
le

 
to

 R
is

k 
As

se
ts

 
C

ur
re

nt
 o

ut
lo

ok
O

ut
lo

ok
 o

ne
 q

ua
rt

er
 a

go
Po

si
tiv

e
Sl

ig
ht

ly
 

Po
si

tiv
e

N
eu

tr
al

Sl
ig

ht
ly

 
N

eg
at

iv
e

N
eg

at
iv

e

Fa
ct

or
s 

to
 C

on
si

de
r O

ve
r t

he
 N

ex
t 6

-1
2 

M
on

th
s

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 n
ex

t 6
-1

2 
m

on
th

s 
w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 o

ur
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t r
es

ea
rc

h 
w

ith
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 fr

om
 B

lo
om

be
rg

. T
he

 v
ie

w
s 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
st

itu
te

 th
e 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ju
dg

m
en

t o
f P

FM
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

a 
di

vi
si

on
 o

f U
.S

. B
an

co
rp

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
In

c.
, a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

(D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4)
 a

nd
 a

re
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ch

an
ge

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
is

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 s

ou
rc

es
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
el

ie
ve

d 
to

 b
e 

re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
; h

ow
ev

er
, w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 it

s 
ac

cu
ra

cy
, c

om
pl

et
en

es
s,

 o
r s

ui
ta

bi
lit

y.

1
.8

Page 41



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 P

riv
at

e 
C

ap
ita

l/A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

R
ec

en
t T

re
nd

s 
Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Vi

ew
 

Su
b-

As
se

t C
la

ss

•
H

ig
he

r i
nt

er
es

t r
at

es
, l

ow
er

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
, a

 la
ck

 o
f d

ea
l t

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y,

 a
nd

 
ec

on
om

ic
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
ea

dw
in

ds
 fo

r t
hi

s 
gr

ou
p 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 
co

up
le

 q
ua

rte
rs

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

 d
ec

lin
e 

in
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d;

 a
lth

ou
gh

, 
bu

yo
ut

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 ti
ck

ed
 u

p 
in

 Q
3 

20
24

.
•

Th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t i
s 

fa
vo

rin
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

ec
on

da
rie

s 
an

d 
co

in
ve

st
in

g,
w

hi
le

 v
en

tu
re

 c
ap

ita
l a

nd
 g

ro
w

th
 in

ve
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 h

av
e 

se
en

 a
 

pu
ll 

ba
ck

.
•

D
ry

 p
ow

de
r f

or
 n

ew
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
t h

is
to

ric
 h

ig
hs

, w
hi

le
 tr

ai
lin

g 
sh

or
t-

te
rm

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 la

gg
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 m
ar

ke
ts

.

Pr
ov

id
e 

at
tra

ct
iv

e 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

ith
 lo

w
er

 
co

rre
la

tio
ns

 to
 p

ub
lic

 m
ar

ke
t e

qu
iti

es
 d

ue
 

to
 th

ei
r a

bi
lit

y 
to

 in
ve

st
 in

 e
ar

ly
-s

ta
ge

 
gr

ow
th

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 o

r a
bi

lit
y 

to
 tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 
a 

st
ru

gg
lin

g 
fir

m
.

Pr
iv

at
e 

Eq
ui

ty
 

•
Le

ss
 le

ve
ra

ge
d 

bu
yo

ut
s 

be
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 h
as

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 lo

w
er

 le
nd

in
g 

de
al

 
flo

w
, b

ut
 lo

w
er

 b
an

k 
le

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
m

or
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r p

riv
at

e 
le

nd
er

s.
•

H
ig

he
r i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

 a
re

 c
re

at
in

g 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

cr
ed

it 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
in

 h
ig

he
r r

is
k/

 
re

tu
rn

 a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 m
ar

ke
t.

•
Pe

ss
im

is
m

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

 b
en

ef
itt

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
of

 n
ew

 re
al

 e
st

at
e-

ba
ck

ed
 d

eb
t.

Pr
ov

id
es

 h
ig

he
r r

et
ur

ns
 th

an
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
m

ar
ke

t d
eb

t d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ab

ilit
y 

to
 c

us
to

m
iz

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

flo
at

in
g 

ra
te

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
of

 m
os

t 
no

te
s.

Pr
iv

at
e 

D
eb

t

•
H

ig
h 

in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s 
an

d 
tig

ht
 le

nd
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
a 

dr
ag

 o
n 

th
e 

re
al

 
es

ta
te

 m
ar

ke
t; 

al
th

ou
gh

, p
ro

pe
rty

 v
al

ue
 d

ec
lin

es
 a

re
 le

ve
lin

g 
of

f s
ug

ge
st

in
g 

ne
w

 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
on

 th
e 

ho
riz

on
.

•
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
sp

ac
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

 fo
r t

he
 m

ar
ke

ts
.

•
R

ea
l e

st
at

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 is
 b

ifu
rc

at
ed

 –
w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 s
tru

gg
lin

g 
w

hi
le

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l &

 in
du

st
ria

l a
ss

et
s 

ha
ve

 d
on

e 
w

el
l.

•
Th

e 
Ar

tif
ic

ia
l I

nt
el

lig
en

ce
 b

oo
m

 is
 d

riv
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

ed
 e

ne
rg

y 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
hi

le
 d

ec
ar

bo
ni

za
tio

n 
tre

nd
 is

 d
riv

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r c

le
an

 e
ne

rg
y 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.

Pr
ov

id
es

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 in
fla

tio
n 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
as

se
ts

 th
at

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 g
en

er
at

e 
re

tu
rn

s 
fro

m
 a

 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 c
ap

ita
l a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n.

R
ea

l A
ss

et
s

R
ea

l E
st

at
e

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e

•
YT

D
 2

02
4,

 e
qu

ity
 h

ed
ge

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
-d

riv
en

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 h

av
e 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
st

ro
ng

 
re

tu
rn

s 
am

id
 s

tro
ng

 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

t v
ol

at
ilit

y.
 

•
H

ig
he

r i
nt

er
es

t r
at

es
 h

av
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f c

re
di

t s
tra

te
gi

es
.

•
Ex

tre
m

e 
co

nc
en

tra
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

eq
ui

ty
 m

ar
ke

ts
 h

as
n’

t b
ee

n 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

he
ad

w
in

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
s 

se
en

 w
ith

 a
ct

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t e
qu

ity
 m

an
ag

er
s.

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 lo

w
er

 th
e 

vo
la

til
ity

 a
nd

 
co

rre
la

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 p

or
tfo

lio
s 

w
hi

le
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 e

so
te

ric
 s

tra
te

gi
es

.

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
As

se
ts

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 A
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 P
riv

at
e 

C
ap

ita
l/A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

Th
e 

vi
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l c
on

st
itu

te
 th

e 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
ju

dg
m

en
t o

f P
FM

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
a 

di
vi

si
on

 o
f U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
(D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4)

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

1
.9

Page 42



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

m
en

ts
O

ur
 Q

1 
20

25
 In

ve
st

m
en

t O
ut

lo
ok

As
se

t C
la

ss

•
M

od
er

at
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 c
ou

pl
ed

 w
ith

  p
os

si
bl

e 
ta

x 
cu

ts
 a

nd
 

de
re

gu
la

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ul
d 

bo
de

 w
el

l f
or

 U
.S

. e
qu

iti
es

. R
ec

en
t 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
at

a 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

ea
rn

in
gs

 g
ro

w
th

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

of
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

eq
ui

ty
 re

tu
rn

s 
w

hi
le

 h
ig

h 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 
(P

/E
s)

, F
ed

 ra
te

 p
at

h,
an

d 
ta

rif
f d

riv
en

 v
ol

at
ilit

y 
ar

e 
ne

ga
tiv

es
. 

•
Ea

rn
in

gs
 g

ro
w

th
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 b

ro
ad

en
in

g 
of

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
gr

ow
th

 
st

re
ng

th
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 A
I f

oc
us

ed
 n

am
es

 b
od

es
 w

el
l f

or
 

la
rg

e-
ca

ps
 w

hi
le

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

 h
ea

dw
in

d.
 

•
Sm

al
l-c

ap
s 

ha
ve

 la
gg

ed
 la

rg
e 

ca
ps

 in
 2

02
4 

du
e 

to
 lo

w
er

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
gr

ow
th

 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

 le
ve

l o
f i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

.  
W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
as

 
ra

te
 c

ut
s 

ta
ke

 h
ol

d.
 

U
.S

. E
qu

iti
es

La
rg

e-
C

ap
s

Sm
al

l-C
ap

s

•
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l e

qu
iti

es
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 tr
ad

e 
at

 a
 d

is
co

un
t t

o 
U

.S
. a

nd
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
ce

nt
ly

 h
el

pe
d 

by
 E

C
B 

ra
te

 c
ut

s.
 A

ny
 ta

rif
fs

 w
ill 

be
 a

 h
ea

dw
in

d 
at

 a
 

tim
e 

of
 s

lo
w

er
 g

ro
w

th
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
m

ar
ke

ts
. 

•
In

di
an

 e
qu

iti
es

 a
re

 tr
ad

in
g 

at
 e

xp
en

si
ve

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
, a

nd
 w

e 
do

n’
t e

xp
ec

t a
 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 in

 C
hi

ne
se

 e
qu

iti
es

 d
ue

 to
 s

tim
ul

us
 u

nl
es

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
/g

eo
po

lit
ic

al
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
de

bt
 o

ve
rh

an
g 

an
d 

ge
op

ol
iti

ca
l 

st
ab

ilit
y.

 U
.S

. i
m

po
se

d 
ta

rif
fs

 w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

a 
he

ad
w

in
d 

fo
r E

M
 e

qu
iti

es
 w

ith
 

a 
lo

t o
f u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
n 

ho
w

 e
xa

ct
ly

 th
e 

ta
rif

fs
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

. 

N
on

-U
.S

. E
qu

iti
es

D
ev

el
op

ed
 M

ar
ke

ts

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

•
Th

e 
Fe

d 
cu

t b
y 

10
0 

bp
s 

in
 2

02
4 

w
ith

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

no
th

er
 tw

o 
cu

ts
 in

 
20

25
, m

uc
h 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

e 
fo

ur
 c

ut
s 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 S
ep

 2
02

4.
 F

ur
th

er
 ra

te
 

cu
ts

 w
ill 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fis
ca

l p
ol

ic
y 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
en

su
in

g 
im

pa
ct

 
on

 in
fla

tio
n 

an
d 

la
bo

r m
ar

ke
ts

, l
ea

di
ng

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

ra
te

 v
ol

at
ilit

y 
in

 th
e 

ne
ar

 te
rm

. W
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
du

ra
tio

n 
cl

os
er

 to
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
ac

ro
ss

 m
od

el
s.

 
•

C
re

di
t m

ar
ke

ts
 re

m
ai

n 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

du
e 

to
 s

tro
ng

 c
or

po
ra

te
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

ls
. 

W
e 

re
m

ai
n 

po
si

tiv
e 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 b

ut
 a

re
 s

ta
yi

ng
 c

lo
se

r t
o 

ta
rg

et
s 

on
 h

ig
h 

yi
el

d 
gi

ve
n 

tig
ht

er
 s

pr
ea

ds
. W

e 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
at

ch
 fo

r s
ig

ns
 

fo
r a

ny
 d

is
tre

ss
 in

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
cr

ed
it 

sp
ac

e.

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e

C
or

e 
Bo

nd
s

In
ve

st
m

en
t G

ra
de

 C
re

di
t

H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d 

C
re

di
t

•
At

tra
ct

iv
e 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 e
qu

ity
 a

nd
 fa

llin
g 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 ra
te

s 
ha

ve
 le

d 
to

 s
tro

ng
 re

co
ve

ry
 in

 R
EI

Ts
 in

 2
02

4 
bu

t t
he

 b
ac

k 
up

 in
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 y

ie
ld

s 
le

d 
to

 R
EI

Ts
 la

gg
in

g 
U

.S
. e

qu
iti

es
 in

 Q
4.

 W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
po

si
tiv

e 
on

 
th

e 
as

se
t c

la
ss

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

y 
ba

ck
dr

op
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

. 
•

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
to

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y,
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 A
I l

ed
 d

at
a 

ce
nt

er
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
sp

en
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
sp

en
d 

ar
e 

ta
ilw

in
ds

 fo
r l

is
te

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
As

se
ts

Li
st

ed
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e

Li
st

ed
 G

lo
ba

l I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

C
ur

re
nt

 o
ut

lo
ok

O
ut

lo
ok

 o
ne

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
go

Po
si

tiv
e

Sl
ig

ht
ly

 
Po

si
tiv

e
N

eu
tr

al
Sl

ig
ht

ly
 

N
eg

at
iv

e
N

eg
at

iv
e

In
ve

st
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

O
ve

rv
ie

w

Th
e 

vi
ew

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 m
at

er
ia

l c
on

st
itu

te
 th

e 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
ju

dg
m

en
t o

f P
FM

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
a 

di
vi

si
on

 o
f U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

, a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
(D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4)

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

1
.1

0

Page 43



Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 M

A
R

K
E

T 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Fo
r t

he
 Q

ua
rt

er
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4
M

ul
ti-

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
Fa

ct
se

t

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.b
ea

.g
ov

/s
ite

s/
de

fa
ul

t/fi
le

s/
20

24
-1

2/
gd

p3
q2

4-
3r

d-
fa

x.
pd

f

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.b
ls

.g
ov

/n
ew

s.
re

le
as

e/
pd

f/e
m

ps
it.

pd
f

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.b
ls

.g
ov

/n
ew

s.
re

le
as

e/
pd

f/c
pi

.p
df

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.is
m

w
or

ld
.o

rg
/s

up
pl

y-
m

an
ag

em
en

t-n
ew

s-
an

d-
re

po
rts

/re
po

rts
/is

m
-r

ep
or

t-o
n-

bu
si

ne
ss

/

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.s
ca

.is
r.u

m
ic

h.
ed

u/

N
C

R
E

IF

P
itc

hB
oo

k

D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

S 
In

di
ce

s 
sh

ow
n 

ar
e 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t. 
Th

e 
in

de
x 

da
ta

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
he

re
in

 is
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

 in
de

x 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

nd
/o

r i
ts

 li
ce

ns
or

s.
 T

he
 in

de
x 

pr
ov

id
er

 a
ss

um
es

 n
o 

lia
bi

lit
y 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 it

s 
us

e 
an

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 s

po
ns

or
, e

nd
or

se
 o

r r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

 o
r s

er
vi

ce
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

. I
nd

ex
 re

tu
rn

s 
do

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 
sa

le
s 

ch
ar

ge
s 

or
 fe

es
 a

n 
in

ve
st

or
 w

ou
ld

 p
ay

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

th
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
th

ey
 re

pr
es

en
t. 

Th
e 

im
po

si
tio

n 
of

 th
es

e 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 w

ou
ld

 c
au

se
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 to
 

be
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 s

ho
w

n.

Th
e 

vi
ew

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
st

itu
te

 th
e 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ju
dg

m
en

t o
f U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
an

d 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
. A

ny
 fo

re
ca

st
, p

ro
je

ct
io

n,
 o

r p
re

di
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t, 
th

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

co
no

m
ic

 tr
en

ds
, a

nd
 e

qu
ity

 o
r fi

xe
d-

in
co

m
e 

m
ar

ke
ts

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

cu
rr

en
t o

pi
ni

on
 a

s 
of

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f i

ss
ue

 a
nd

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
. O

pi
ni

on
s 

an
d 

da
ta

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

re
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 e
ve

nt
s 

or
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

da
ta

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 s
ta

tis
tic

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 is
su

er
 re

po
rts

 o
r c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
, o

r o
th

er
 s

ou
rc

es
, b

el
ie

ve
d 

to
 b

e 
re

lia
bl

e.
 N

o 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 

m
ad

e 
as

 to
 it

s 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

r c
om

pl
et

en
es

s.

P
FM

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

ve
s 

cl
ie

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r a

nd
 is

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n 

of
 U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

, w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

le
ga

l e
nt

ity
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ad
vi

so
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

 is
 a

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
er

, a
 d

ire
ct

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 U

.S
. B

an
k 

N
.A

. a
nd

 a
n 

in
di

re
ct

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

of
 U

.S
. 

B
an

co
rp

. U
.S

. B
an

k 
N

.A
. i

s 
no

t r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

, s
er

vi
ce

s,
 o

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f U

.S
. B

an
co

rp
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

In
c.

N
O

T 
FD

IC
 IN

S
U

R
E

D
 : 

N
O

 B
A

N
K

 G
U

A
R

A
N

TE
E

 : 
M

AY
 L

O
S

E
 V

A
LU

E

Fu
rth

er
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 w

ith
ou

t p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t.

1
.1

1

Page 44



P
la

n
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

2

Page 45



A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

M
a

rk
e

t
V

a
lu

e
($

)
%

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
(%

)

1
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
2

0
2

4
1

Y
e

a
r

3
Y

e
a

rs
5

Y
e

a
rs

S
in

c
e

In
c

e
p

ti
o

n
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

D
a

te

T
o

ta
l 
F

u
n

d
2

4
,6

7
8

,4
9

0
1

0
0

.0
0

-1
.8

5
7

.5
5

7
.5

5
N

/A
N

/A
9

.7
3

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

B
le

n
d

e
d

 B
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
-2

.2
3

7
.4

3
7

.4
3

N
/A

N
/A

9
.2

3

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 E

q
u

it
y

6
,5

3
8

,4
5

4
2

6
.4

9

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
6

,5
3

8
,4

5
4

2
6

.4
9

2
.5

6
2

1
.5

3
2

1
.5

3
6

.3
2

1
2

.7
5

1
7

.9
6

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

R
u

ss
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x
2

.6
3

2
3

.8
1

2
3

.8
1

8
.0

1
1

3
.8

6
2

0
.0

8

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 U
S

 L
a

rg
e

-C
a

p
 E

T
F

 -
 6

4
.6

%
0

.0
0

2
.8

1
2

4
.9

1
2

4
.9

1
8

.4
8

1
4

.3
6

1
2

.6
5

0
6

/0
1

/2
0

2
4

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x
2

.7
5

2
4

.5
1

2
4

.5
1

8
.4

1
1

4
.2

8
1

2
.6

0

  
  
V

a
u

g
h

a
n

 N
e

ls
o

n
 S

e
le

ct
 -

 1
0

.0
%

 (
^)

-0
.0

3
1

1
.0

6
1

1
.0

6
4

.7
2

1
4

.2
2

1
0

.1
1

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
R

u
ss

e
ll 

3
0

0
0

 p
ri

o
r)

2
.7

5
2

4
.2

6
2

4
.2

6
8

.1
4

1
3

.9
5

2
0

.3
9

  
  
A

ri
st

o
tle

 A
tla

n
tic

 C
o

re
 E

q
u

ity
 -

 1
0

.4
%

 (
^)

4
.2

4
2

7
.9

1
2

7
.9

1
7

.4
3

N
/A

2
1

.6
1

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
R

u
ss

e
ll 

3
0

0
0

 p
ri

o
r)

2
.7

5
2

4
.2

6
2

4
.2

6
8

.1
4

1
3

.9
5

2
0

.3
9

  
  
P

u
tn

a
m

 U
S

 C
o

re
 E

q
u

ity
 -

 9
.7

%
 (

^)
0

.0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

-2
.5

3
1

2
/0

1
/2

0
2

4

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x
2

.7
5

2
4

.5
1

2
4

.5
1

8
.4

1
1

4
.2

8
-2

.7
9

  
  
Ja

co
b

s 
L

e
vy

 S
m

a
ll 

C
a

p
 -

 5
.1

%
 (

^)
1

.8
2

7
.3

5
7

.3
5

1
.0

5
1

1
.3

5
5

.8
8

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

2
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
S

&
P

 6
0

0
 p

ri
o

r)
0

.3
3

9
.4

7
9

.4
7

2
.1

5
8

.5
1

9
.3

9

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

q
u

it
y

2
,9

8
3

,9
6

0
1

2
.0

9

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

2
,9

8
3

,9
6

0
1

2
.0

9
-6

.7
4

5
.4

1
5

.4
1

-1
.4

5
3

.5
5

4
.8

0
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

-7
.6

0
5

.5
3

5
.5

3
0

.8
2

4
.1

0
4

.9
6

  
  
W

C
M

 F
o

cu
se

d
 G

ro
w

th
 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l -
 1

6
.2

%
 (

^)
-6

.7
3

9
.1

1
9

.1
1

-2
.5

2
7

.7
8

7
.8

0
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
N

in
e

ty
 O

n
e

 I
n

t'l
 D

yn
a

m
ic

 E
q

u
ity

 -
 1

6
.5

%
 (

^)
-4

.8
9

9
.2

1
9

.2
1

-0
.1

5
N

/A
6

.5
2

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
M

S
C

I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

-7
.6

0
5

.5
3

5
.5

3
0

.8
2

4
.1

0
4

.9
6

  
  
A

ca
d

ia
n

 N
o

n
-U

.S
. 
E

q
u

ity
 -

 8
.5

%
 (

^)
-4

.3
6

1
0

.4
3

1
0

.4
3

3
.7

4
7

.2
3

1
1

.5
4

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
A

ri
st

o
tle

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 -
 8

.5
%

 (
^)

-6
.6

6
6

.2
9

6
.2

9
0

.0
5

5
.2

7
6

.0
5

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)
-8

.1
1

3
.8

2
3

.8
2

1
.6

5
4

.7
3

4
.5

4

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 E
T

F
 -

 3
5

.9
%

0
.0

0
-7

.9
2

3
.4

2
3

.4
2

1
.3

6
4

.9
7

-6
.9

4
0

9
/0

1
/2

0
2

4

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)
-8

.1
1

3
.8

2
3

.8
2

1
.6

5
4

.7
3

-7
.2

6

  
  
S

ch
ro

d
e

rs
 G

lo
b

a
l E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 -
 1

1
.0

%
 (

^)
-6

.3
0

8
.3

5
8

.3
5

-2
.3

1
2

.7
7

4
.0

7
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)
-8

.0
1

7
.5

0
7

.5
0

-1
.9

2
1

.7
0

4
.1

8

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 E

q
u

ity
 E

T
F

 -
 3

.0
%

0
.0

0
-6

.2
5

1
1

.5
9

1
1

.5
9

-0
.0

4
2

.6
2

1
.3

9
0

9
/0

1
/2

0
2

4

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)
-8

.0
1

7
.5

0
7

.5
0

-1
.9

2
1

.7
0

-1
.8

6

A
s

s
e

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

R
e

tu
rn

s 
a

re
 n

e
t 

o
f 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 f
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 a

s 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s.

(^
) 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 is
 g

ro
ss

 o
f 

fe
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

fle
ct

s 
sl

e
e

ve
 le

ve
l i

n
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 (
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fic

 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

lie
n

t/
in

ve
st

o
r)

. 
It

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 b

y 
su

b
-a

d
vi

se
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 F
ir

st
A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
, 

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

F
ix

e
d

-I
n

co
m

e
 F

u
n

d
.

2
.1

Page 46



A
s

s
e

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

M
a

rk
e

t
V

a
lu

e
($

)
%

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
(%

)

1
Q

u
a

rt
e

r
2

0
2

4
1

Y
e

a
r

3
Y

e
a

rs
5

Y
e

a
rs

S
in

c
e

In
c

e
p

ti
o

n
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

D
a

te

F
ix

e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e

1
4

,7
4

3
,8

9
6

5
9

.7
4

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
 I
n

co
m

e
 F

u
n

d
1

4
,7

4
3

,8
9

6
5

9
.7

4
-2

.6
0

2
.5

7
2

.5
7

-1
.6

4
0

.3
5

4
.5

5
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

-3
.0

6
1

.2
5

1
.2

5
-2

.4
1

-0
.3

3
3

.3
2

  
  
P

G
IM

 C
o

re
 F

ix
e

d
 -

 3
2

.1
%

 (
^)

-2
.7

9
2

.3
3

2
.3

3
-1

.9
8

0
.3

3
4

.4
4

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
T

IA
A

 C
o

re
 F

ix
e

d
 -

 3
2

.1
%

 (
^)

-2
.7

5
2

.8
2

2
.8

2
-2

.1
1

0
.4

5
4

.6
7

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

-3
.0

6
1

.2
5

1
.2

5
-2

.4
1

-0
.3

3
3

.3
2

  
  
P

e
n

n
 M

u
tu

a
l C

o
re

 P
lu

s 
- 

8
.8

%
 (

^)
0

.0
0

-2
.6

0
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
0

.1
4

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
4

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

-3
.0

6
1

.2
5

1
.2

5
-2

.4
1

-0
.3

3
-0

.3
5

  
  
iS

h
a

re
s 

C
o

re
 U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 B
o

n
d

 E
T

F
 -

 5
.9

%
-3

.0
5

1
.3

7
1

.3
7

-2
.3

7
-0

.3
4

3
.3

3
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

-3
.0

6
1

.2
5

1
.2

5
-2

.4
1

-0
.3

3
3

.3
2

  
  
iS

h
a

re
s 

1
0

-2
0

 Y
e

a
r 

T
re

a
su

ry
 B

o
n

d
 E

T
F

 -
 3

.2
%

0
.0

0
-7

.6
3

-4
.0

0
-4

.0
0

-9
.3

8
-4

.3
6

-0
.5

2
0

3
/0

1
/2

0
2

4

  
  
IC

E
 U

.S
. 
T

re
a

su
ry

 1
0

-2
0

 Y
e

a
r 

B
o

n
d

 I
n

d
e

x
-7

.6
7

-3
.9

8
-3

.9
8

-9
.4

7
-4

.3
5

-0
.5

0

  
  
P

in
e

B
ri

d
g

e
 I
G

 C
re

d
it 

- 
4

.8
%

 (
^)

-2
.8

5
2

.6
1

2
.6

1
-2

.1
7

1
.4

1
5

.4
4

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

2
3

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
C

re
d

it 
In

d
e

x
-3

.0
4

2
.0

3
2

.0
3

-2
.2

0
0

.2
3

4
.6

8

  
  
B

ro
w

n
 B

ro
s.

 H
a

rr
im

a
n

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

d
 -

 6
.7

%
 (

^)
0

.8
2

8
.2

6
8

.2
6

3
.9

4
3

.6
5

8
.7

5
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
IC

E
 B

o
fA

 A
B

S
 F

xd
 &

 F
lti

n
g

 R
a

te
 A

A
-B

B
B

 I
d

x
0

.2
7

7
.2

9
7

.2
9

2
.8

4
2

.8
4

8
.0

9

  
  
B

ra
n

d
yw

in
e

 G
lo

b
a

l H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 -
 4

.0
%

1
.5

4
9

.7
1

9
.7

1
4

.6
5

6
.6

2
1

1
.8

8
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
B

a
 t
o

 B
 U

.S
. 
H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
-0

.1
5

6
.7

6
6

.7
6

2
.4

2
3

.9
3

9
.1

6

  
  
N

Y
L

I 
M

a
cK

a
y 

H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 C
o

rp
 B

o
n

d
 F

u
n

d
 -

 2
.2

%
0

.2
0

7
.1

4
7

.1
4

3
.4

1
4

.1
7

8
.6

6
0

8
/0

1
/2

0
2

3

  
  
IC

E
 B

o
fA

 U
S

 H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 I
n

d
e

x
0

.1
6

8
.2

0
8

.2
0

2
.9

1
4

.0
4

1
0

.2
5

C
a

s
h

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t

6
0

,8
8

8
0

.2
5

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 I
n

st
itu

tio
n

a
l P

ri
m

e
 O

b
lig

a
tio

n
6

0
,8

8
8

0
.2

5
1

.2
1

5
.2

5
5

.2
5

3
.9

8
2

.4
8

N
/A

0
8

/0
1

/2
0

0
3

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 3

 M
o

n
th

 U
.S

. 
T

-B
ill

1
.1

7
5

.2
5

5
.2

5
3

.8
9

2
.4

6
1

.6
3

R
e

tu
rn

s 
a

re
 n

e
t 

o
f 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 f
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 a

s 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s.

(^
) 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 is
 g

ro
ss

 o
f 

fe
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

fle
ct

s 
sl

e
e

ve
 le

ve
l i

n
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 (
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fic

 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

lie
n

t/
in

ve
st

o
r)

. 
It

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 b

y 
su

b
-a

d
vi

se
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 F
ir

st
A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
, 

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

F
ix

e
d

-I
n

co
m

e
 F

u
n

d
.

2
.2

Page 47



2
0

2
3

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

T
o

ta
l 
F

u
n

d
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

B
le

n
d

e
d

 B
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 E

q
u

it
y

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
2

2
.0

5
-1

8
.9

7
2

6
.2

8
2

0
.0

5
2

9
.7

0

R
u

ss
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x
2

5
.9

6
-1

9
.2

1
2

5
.6

6
2

0
.8

9
3

1
.0

2

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 U
S

 L
a

rg
e

-C
a

p
 E

T
F

 -
 6

4
.6

%
2

6
.8

7
-1

9
.4

5
2

6
.7

5
2

0
.9

0
3

1
.4

0

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x
2

6
.5

3
-1

9
.1

3
2

6
.4

5
2

0
.9

6
3

1
.4

3

  
  
V

a
u

g
h

a
n

 N
e

ls
o

n
 S

e
le

ct
 -

 1
0

.0
%

 (
^)

2
2

.8
1

-1
5

.7
9

4
1

.0
5

2
0

.0
1

2
9

.1
7

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
R

u
ss

e
ll 

3
0

0
0

 p
ri

o
r)

2
5

.9
6

-1
9

.2
1

2
5

.6
6

2
0

.8
9

3
1

.0
2

  
  
A

ri
st

o
tle

 A
tla

n
tic

 C
o

re
 E

q
u

ity
 -

 1
0

.4
%

 (
^)

2
3

.3
7

-2
1

.4
3

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
R

u
ss

e
ll 

3
0

0
0

 p
ri

o
r)

2
5

.9
6

-1
9

.2
1

2
5

.6
6

2
0

.8
9

3
1

.0
2

  
  
P

u
tn

a
m

 U
S

 C
o

re
 E

q
u

ity
 -

 9
.7

%
 (

^)
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x
2

6
.5

3
-1

9
.1

3
2

6
.4

5
2

0
.9

6
3

1
.4

3

  
  
Ja

co
b

s 
L

e
vy

 S
m

a
ll 

C
a

p
 -

 5
.1

%
 (

^)
1

3
.8

6
-1

5
.5

8
3

9
.6

1
1

8
.8

1
N

/A

  
  
R

u
ss

e
ll 

2
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x 
(s

in
ce

 8
/1

/2
4

, 
S

&
P

 6
0

0
 p

ri
o

r)
1

6
.0

5
-1

6
.1

0
2

6
.8

2
1

1
.2

9
2

2
.7

8

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

q
u

it
y

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

1
4

.6
3

-2
0

.7
9

9
.3

8
1

3
.7

4
2

1
.2

3

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

1
5

.6
2

-1
6

.0
0

7
.8

2
1

0
.6

5
2

1
.5

1

  
  
W

C
M

 F
o

cu
se

d
 G

ro
w

th
 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l -
 1

6
.2

%
 (

^)
1

8
.1

4
-2

8
.1

4
1

8
.7

8
3

2
.2

1
N

/A

  
  
N

in
e

ty
 O

n
e

 I
n

t'l
 D

yn
a

m
ic

 E
q

u
ity

 -
 1

6
.5

%
 (

^)
1

3
.6

1
-1

9
.7

7
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

  
  
M

S
C

I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

1
5

.6
2

-1
6

.0
0

7
.8

2
1

0
.6

5
2

1
.5

1

  
  
A

ca
d

ia
n

 N
o

n
-U

.S
. 
E

q
u

ity
 -

 8
.5

%
 (

^)
1

5
.3

7
-1

2
.3

7
1

4
.3

1
1

1
.1

0
N

/A

  
  
A

ri
st

o
tle

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 -
 8

.5
%

 (
^)

1
8

.5
4

-2
0

.5
2

1
7

.2
1

1
0

.1
4

2
5

.4
5

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)
1

8
.2

4
-1

4
.4

5
1

1
.2

6
7

.8
2

2
2

.0
1

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 E
T

F
 -

 3
5

.9
%

1
8

.2
9

-1
4

.8
9

1
1

.4
1

9
.8

6
2

2
.1

4

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)
1

8
.2

4
-1

4
.4

5
1

1
.2

6
7

.8
2

2
2

.0
1

  
  
S

ch
ro

d
e

rs
 G

lo
b

a
l E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 -
 1

1
.0

%
 (

^)
8

.3
2

-2
1

.4
4

-4
.6

5
2

6
.1

6
N

/A

  
  
S

ch
w

a
b

 E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 E

q
u

ity
 E

T
F

 -
 3

.0
%

7
.9

7
-1

7
.0

9
-0

.7
2

1
4

.7
8

1
9

.9
1

  
  
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)
9

.8
3

-2
0

.0
9

-2
.5

4
1

8
.3

1
1

8
.4

2

C
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 -
 C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

Y
e

a
r

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

R
e

tu
rn

s 
a

re
 n

e
t 

o
f 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 f
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 a

s 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s.

(*
) 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 is
 g

ro
ss

 o
f 

fe
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

fle
ct

s 
sl

e
e

ve
 le

ve
l i

n
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 (
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fic

 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

lie
n

t/
in

ve
st

o
r)

. 
 I

t 
is

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

su
b

-a
d

vi
se

rs
 o

f 
th

e
F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

D
o

m
e

st
ic

 E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

, 
F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
-I

n
co

m
e

F
u

n
d

.
2
.3

Page 48



C
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 -
 C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

Y
e

a
r

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

F
ix

e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
 I
n

co
m

e
 F

u
n

d
6

.7
0

-1
3

.0
6

-0
.8

5
7

.8
6

9
.5

6

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

5
.5

3
-1

3
.0

1
-1

.5
5

7
.5

1
8

.7
2

  
  
P

G
IM

 C
o

re
 F

ix
e

d
 -

 3
2

.1
%

 (
^)

6
.7

0
-1

3
.7

6
-0

.9
8

9
.0

1
9

.6
5

  
  
T

IA
A

 C
o

re
 F

ix
e

d
 -

 3
2

.1
%

 (
^)

6
.3

5
-1

4
.2

3
-0

.6
4

9
.7

6
9

.5
9

  
  
P

e
n

n
 M

u
tu

a
l C

o
re

 P
lu

s 
- 

8
.8

%
 (

^)
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

  
  
iS

h
a

re
s 

C
o

re
 U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 B
o

n
d

 E
T

F
 -

 5
.9

%
5

.5
9

-1
3

.0
6

-1
.6

7
7

.4
2

8
.6

8

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

5
.5

3
-1

3
.0

1
-1

.5
5

7
.5

1
8

.7
2

  
  
iS

h
a

re
s 

1
0

-2
0

 Y
e

a
r 

T
re

a
su

ry
 B

o
n

d
 E

T
F

 -
 3

.2
%

3
.9

7
-2

5
.4

4
-5

.3
3

1
3

.6
0

1
0

.8
3

  
  
IC

E
 U

.S
. 
T

re
a

su
ry

 1
0

-2
0

 Y
e

a
r 

B
o

n
d

 I
n

d
e

x
3

.3
2

-2
5

.2
0

-5
.0

0
1

3
.5

6
N

/A

  
  
P

in
e

B
ri

d
g

e
 I
G

 C
re

d
it 

- 
4

.8
%

 (
^)

8
.4

0
-1

5
.8

3
0

.0
2

1
4

.5
4

1
5

.4
8

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
C

re
d

it 
In

d
e

x
8

.1
8

-1
5

.2
6

-1
.0

8
9

.3
5

1
3

.8
0

  
  
B

ro
w

n
 B

ro
s.

 H
a

rr
im

a
n

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

d
 -

 6
.7

%
 (

^)
7

.9
0

-3
.8

7
3

.0
1

3
.4

2
5

.0
7

  
  
IC

E
 B

o
fA

 A
B

S
 F

xd
 &

 F
lti

n
g

 R
a

te
 A

A
-B

B
B

 I
d

x
8

.2
3

-6
.3

3
1

.7
7

3
.9

4
4

.3
1

  
  
B

ra
n

d
yw

in
e

 G
lo

b
a

l H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 -
 4

.0
%

1
5

.2
7

-9
.3

8
5

.5
2

1
3

.9
2

1
5

.5
6

  
  
B

lm
b

g
. 
B

a
 t
o

 B
 U

.S
. 
H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
1

2
.5

7
-1

0
.5

9
4

.7
1

7
.7

8
1

5
.1

8

  
  
N

Y
L

I 
M

a
cK

a
y 

H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 C
o

rp
 B

o
n

d
 F

u
n

d
 -

 2
.2

%
1

1
.9

7
-7

.8
1

5
.3

5
5

.2
8

1
3

.0
3

  
  
IC

E
 B

o
fA

 U
S

 H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 I
n

d
e

x
1

3
.4

6
-1

1
.2

2
5

.3
6

6
.1

7
1

4
.4

1

C
a

s
h

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t

F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 I
n

st
itu

tio
n

a
l P

ri
m

e
 O

b
lig

a
tio

n
5

.1
2

1
.6

2
0

.0
5

0
.5

0
2

.2
8

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 3

 M
o

n
th

 U
.S

. 
T

-B
ill

5
.0

2
1

.4
6

0
.0

5
0

.6
7

2
.2

8

R
e

tu
rn

s 
a

re
 n

e
t 

o
f 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 f
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

re
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 a

s 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s.

(*
) 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 is
 g

ro
ss

 o
f 

fe
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

fle
ct

s 
sl

e
e

ve
 le

ve
l i

n
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 (
n

o
t 

sp
e

ci
fic

 t
o

 t
h

is
 c

lie
n

t/
in

ve
st

o
r)

. 
 I

t 
is

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y 

su
b

-a
d

vi
se

rs
 o

f 
th

e
F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

D
o

m
e

st
ic

 E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

, 
F

ir
st

 A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 M
u

lti
-M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 F
ir

st
 A

m
e

ri
ca

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
-I

n
co

m
e

F
u

n
d

.
2
.4

Page 49



Q
T

R

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
1

0
/0

1
/2

0
2

4
N

e
t 

F
lo

w
s

R
e

tu
rn

 O
n

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
2

5
,1

4
4

,6
4

8
5

3
(4

6
6

,2
1

2
)

2
4

,6
7

8
,4

9
0

Y
T

D

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
0

1
/0

1
/2

0
2

4
N

e
t 

F
lo

w
s

R
e

tu
rn

 O
n

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
2

2
,9

4
7

,1
6

7
(1

,7
1

2
)

1
,7

3
3

,0
3

5
2

4
,6

7
8

,4
9

0

1
 Y

e
a

r

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
0

1
/0

1
/2

0
2

4
N

e
t 

F
lo

w
s

R
e

tu
rn

 O
n

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
A

s
 o

f
1

2
/3

1
/2

0
2

4

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
2

2
,9

4
7

,1
6

7
(1

,7
1

2
)

1
,7

3
3

,0
3

5
2

4
,6

7
8

,4
9

0

A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
R

e
c

o
n

c
il

ia
ti

o
n

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

2
.5

Page 50



A
s

s
e

t
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
(%

)

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
(%

)

M
in

im
u

m
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
(%

)

M
a

x
im

u
m

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

(%
)

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

(%
)

T
o

ta
l 
F

u
n

d
1

0
0

.0
1

0
0

.0
N

/A
N

/A
0

.0

D
o

m
e

st
ic

 E
q

u
ity

2
6

.5
2

6
.0

6
.0

4
6

.0
0

.5

In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
1

2
.1

1
4

.0
0

.0
3

4
.0

-1
.9

O
th

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

1
.4

0
.0

0
.0

1
0

.0
1

.4

F
ix

e
d

 I
n

co
m

e
5

9
.7

6
0

.0
4

0
.0

8
0

.0
-0

.3

O
th

e
r 

In
co

m
e

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
0

.0
0

.0

R
e

a
l R

e
tu

rn
0

.0
0

.0
0

.0
1

0
.0

0
.0

C
a

sh
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t
0

.2
0

.0
0

.0
2

0
.0

0
.2

T
a

rg
e

t 
A

llo
c
a

tio
n

A
c
tu

a
l A

llo
c
a

tio
n

A
llo

c
a

tio
n

 D
iff

e
re

n
c
e

s

0
.0

%
2

0
.0

%
4

0
.0

%
6

0
.0

%
8

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

-2
0

.0
 %

-4
0

.0
 %

C
a

s
h

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t

$
6

0
,8

8
7

.6

R
e

a
l R

e
tu

rn

$
0

.0

O
th

e
r 

In
c
o

m
e

$
0

.0

F
ix

e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e

$
1

4
,7

4
3

,8
9

5
.9

O
th

e
r 

G
ro

w
th

$
3

5
1

,2
9

3
.1

In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
$

2
,9

8
3

,9
5

9
.5

D
o

m
e

s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

$
6

,5
3

8
,4

5
3

.6

0
.0

%

0
.0

%

0
.0

%

6
0

.0
%

0
.0

%

1
4

.0
%

2
6

.0
%

0
.2

%

0
.0

%

0
.0

%

5
9

.7
%

1
.4

%

1
2

.1
%

2
6

.5
%

0
.2

%

0
.0

%

0
.0

%

-0
.3

 %

1
.4

%

-1
.9

 %

0
.5

%

A
s

s
e

t 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 -
 T

o
ta

l 
F

u
n

d

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

2
.6

Page 51



A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
d

a
te

W
e

ig
h

t 
(%

)

A
u

g
-2

0
2

3

R
u

ss
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x
1

2
.0

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

6
.4

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

2
7

.6

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 3

 M
o

n
th

 U
.S

. 
T

-B
ill

5
4

.0

S
e

p
-2

0
2

3

R
u

ss
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x
2

0
.5

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

1
1

.1

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

4
7

.4

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 3

 M
o

n
th

 U
.S

. 
T

-B
ill

2
1

.0

O
c

t-
2

0
2

3

R
u

ss
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x
2

6
.0

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

1
4

.0

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

6
0

.0

H
is

to
ri

c
a

l 
H

y
b

ri
d

 C
o

m
p

o
s

it
io

n
 -

 B
le

n
d

e
d

 B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 O
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

2
.7

Page 52



In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
R

e
v

ie
w

3

Page 53



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
 F

un
d 

– 
Su

b-
A

dv
is

or
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
A

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4 
       

  
 

S
ch

w
ab

 U
.S

. L
ar

ge
-C

ap
 E

T
F

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 C

hr
is

to
ph

er
 B

lis
s 

(s
in

ce
 2

01
7)

, J
er

em
y 

Br
ow

n 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

8)
, F

er
ia

n 
Ju

w
on

o 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

0)
, a

nd
 A

gn
es

 Z
au

 (s
in

ce
 2

02
2)

 a
re

 a
ll 

co
- p

or
tfo

lio
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r d
ay

-to
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 fu

nd
. 

  
• 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
  T

he
 F

un
d’

s 
go

al
 is

 to
 tr

ac
k 

as
 c

lo
se

ly
 a

s 
po

ss
ib

le
, b

ef
or

e 
fe

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s,

 th
e 

to
ta

l r
et

ur
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ow
 J

on
es

 U
.S

. L
ar

ge
-C

ap
 T

ot
al

 
St

oc
k 

M
ar

ke
t I

nd
ex

. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

Fu
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

s 
a 

“p
as

si
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t” 

– 
or

 in
de

xi
ng

 –
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 tr
ac

k 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 D

ow
 J

on
es

 
U

.S
. L

ar
ge

-C
ap

 T
ot

al
 S

to
ck

 M
ar

ke
t I

nd
ex

. T
he

 in
de

x 
is

 a
 s

ub
se

t o
f t

he
 D

ow
 J

on
es

 U
.S

 T
ot

al
 S

to
ck

 M
ar

ke
t I

nd
ex

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

la
rg

es
t c

om
pa

ni
es

 
ra

nk
ed

 1
-7

50
 b

y 
m

ar
ke

t c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n.
   

 


 

V
au

gh
an

 N
el

so
n

 S
el

ec
t 

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Sc

ot
t W

eb
er

, C
FA

 is
 th

e 
le

ad
 p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 fi

na
l d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

er
. H

e 
is

 th
e 

le
ad

 P
M

 o
n 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 s
in

ce
 in

ce
pt

io
n.

 C
hr

is
 

W
al

lis
, c

o-
po

rtf
ol

io
 m

an
ag

er
, s

er
ve

s 
as

 th
e 

C
IO

 o
f t

he
 fi

rm
.  

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
ub

-a
dv

is
or

 s
ee

ks
 to

 in
ve

st
 in

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 th

at
 a

re
 tr

ad
in

g 
at

 a
 d

is
co

un
t t

o 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ge
ne

ra
te

 a
bo

ve
-a

ve
ra

ge
 

ra
te

s 
of

 re
tu

rn
s 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Ty
pi

ca
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
of

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Se

le
ct

 s
tra

te
gy

 a
re

:  

 
U

nd
er

va
lu

ed
 G

ro
w

th
: c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
R

O
IC

 th
at

 a
re

 tr
ad

in
g 

at
 a

n 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 

 
U

nd
er

va
lu

ed
 A

ss
et

s:
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
he

re
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t i
s 

un
de

r a
pp

re
ci

at
in

g 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
as

se
ts

 

 
U

nd
er

va
lu

ed
 D

iv
id

en
ds

: c
om

pa
ni

es
 w

ith
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

di
vi

de
nd

 y
ie

ld
s 

or
 re

tu
rn

 to
 s

ha
re

ho
ld

er
s 

 


 

A
ri

st
ot

le
 A

tl
an

ti
c 

C
o

re
 E

q
u

it
y 

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

a 
te

am
 o

f t
hr

ee
 P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
s.

 O
w

en
 F

itz
pa

tri
ck

, C
FA

, i
s 

th
e 

le
ad

 p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 is
 u

lti
m

at
el

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

po
rtf

ol
io

 d
ec

is
io

ns
. T

ho
m

as
 H

yn
es

 a
nd

 B
re

nd
an

 O
’N

ei
ll 

sh
ar

e 
in

 p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
e 

as
 re

se
ar

ch
 

an
al

ys
ts

. 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

ap
ita

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x 
ov

er
 a

 fu
ll 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
yc

le
 u

til
iz

in
g 

a 
ris

k-
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 
 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

su
b-

ad
vi

so
r i

nv
es

ts
 in

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 s
to

ck
s 

w
ith

 a
 fo

cu
s 

on
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 g

ro
w

th
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

bo
th

 b
ot

to
m

-u
p 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

an
al

ys
is

 a
nd

 to
p-

do
w

n 
th

em
es

 a
pp

ro
ac

h.
 T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

co
nc

en
tra

te
d 

in
 4

5-
60

 c
om

pa
ni

es
. T

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x.
 

  

3
.1

Page 54



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
 F

un
d 

– 
Su

b-
A

dv
is

or
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 
A

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4 
       

 

 


 

P
u

tn
am

 U
S

 C
o

re
 E

q
u

it
y 

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

a 
te

am
 o

f t
hr

ee
 p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
s 

– 
Je

rry
 S

ul
liv

an
, A

rth
ur

 Y
ea

ge
r, 

an
d 

W
al

te
r S

cu
lly

. T
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 P
ut

na
m

’s
 c

en
tra

l r
es

ea
rc

h 
de

pa
rtm

en
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l a

nd
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

na
ly

st
s.

  

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

ap
ita

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x 
ov

er
 a

 fu
ll 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
yc

le
 w

hi
le

 m
in

im
iz

in
g 

se
ct

or
, m

ar
ke

t c
ap

ita
liz

at
io

n,
 o

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t s

ty
le

 b
et

s.
 

 
• 

St
ra

te
gy

:  
Th

e 
su

b-
ad

vi
so

r i
nv

es
ts

 w
ith

 a
 v

al
ua

tio
n-

se
ns

iti
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 th
e 

la
rg

e 
ca

p 
co

re
 u

ni
ve

rs
e.

 T
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

 is
 w

el
l d

iv
er

si
fie

d 
an

d 
ho

ld
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

80
-1

20
 s

to
ck

s.
 T

he
 in

ve
st

m
en

t t
ea

m
 lo

ok
s 

fo
r c

om
pa

ni
es

 th
at

 c
an

 d
ur

ab
ly

 g
ro

w
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

an
d 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

 p
er

 s
ha

re
 a

t a
n 

ab
ov

e 
in

du
st

ry
 ra

te
. 

Th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x.
 

 
 

Ja
co

b
s 

L
ev

y 
S

m
al

l C
ap

 E
q

u
it

y 
 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
D

r. 
Br

uc
e 

I. 
Ja

co
bs

 a
nd

 M
r. 

Ke
nn

et
h 

N
. L

ev
y 

co
-fo

un
de

d 
Ja

co
bs

 L
ev

y 
in

 1
98

6.
 T

he
 tw

o 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ow

n 
10

0%
 o

f t
he

 fi
rm

 a
nd

 a
re

 th
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

 m
an

ag
er

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 d
ay

-to
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f f

irm
 a

ss
et

s.
 T

he
 tw

o 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ar

e 
ba

ck
ed

 b
y 

a 
te

am
 o

f o
ve

r 5
0 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s.
  

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
hr

ou
gh

 a
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
, t

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 s

ee
ks

 o
ut

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

20
00

 In
de

x.
   

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 e
m

pl
oy

s 
an

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 o

ut
pe

rfo
rm

 th
e 

R
us

se
ll 

20
00

 o
ve

r a
 fu

ll 
m

ar
ke

t c
yc

le
. T

he
 te

am
 u

se
s 

a 
m

ul
ti-

fa
ct

or
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

ith
 o

ve
r 8

0 
fa

ct
or

s,
 a

bo
ut

 h
al

f a
re

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l f

ac
to

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
ot

he
r h

al
f a

re
 in

du
st

ry
 fa

ct
or

s.
 S

to
ck

 s
el

ec
tio

n 
is

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
an

 o
pt

im
iz

er
 ru

n 
fo

r e
xp

ec
te

d 
al

ph
a.

 

3
.2

Page 55



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

9
7

4
,5

8
0

9
5

1
,6

3
8

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
4

,3
6

9
2

,2
4

8

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

6
.3

5
2

6
.2

0

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
4

.7
4

4
.7

1

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

2
1

.6
2

2
0

.0
8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
1

.1
8

1
.2

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
1

,0
3

3
2

,9
7

3

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

F
ir

s
t 
A

m
e

ri
c
a

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
D

o
m

e
s
tic

 E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

R
u

s
s
e

ll 
3

0
0

0
 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

6
.0

1
2

.0
1

8
.0

2
4

.0
3

0
.0

3
6

.0

C
a

s
h

O
th

e
r

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

s
ta

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

c
ia

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
D

is
c
re

tio
n

a
ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.8

0
.3

1
.92
.02
.4

3
0

.4

9
.09

.8

1
4

.2

3
.1

4
.8

1
1

.9

9
.5

0
.0

0
.0

2
.32
.6

2
.3

2
9

.9

9
.41

0
.4

1
4

.2

3
.4

5
.3

1
1

.4

8
.9

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
5

.9
6

5
.5

5
0

.4
1

1
0

.5
9

A
p

p
le

 I
n

c
5

.9
3

6
.3

3
-0

.4
0

7
.6

0

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 C

o
rp

5
.8

2
5

.5
4

0
.2

8
-1

.8
5

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
4

.0
7

3
.6

4
0

.4
3

1
7

.7
4

M
e

ta
 P

la
tf
o

rm
s 

In
c

2
.6

6
2

.2
7

0
.3

9
2

.3
6

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
2

.3
5

1
.9

7
0

.3
8

1
4

.2
7

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
1

.9
7

1
.8

6
0

.1
1

3
4

.7
4

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 C
h

a
se

 &
 C

o
1

.6
5

1
.1

9
0

.4
6

1
4

.3
6

T
e

sl
a

 I
n

c
1

.5
3

1
.9

8
-0

.4
5

5
4

.3
6

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
1

.4
9

1
.6

3
-0

.1
4

1
4

.0
4

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
3

.4
3

3
1

.9
6

1
.4

7

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

K
o

d
ia

k 
S

ci
e

n
ce

s 
In

c
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

2
8

1
.2

2

A
st

e
ra

 L
a

b
s 

In
c

0
.0

0
0

.0
3

-0
.0

3
1

5
2

.8
2

O
m

e
ro

s 
C

o
rp

0
.0

1
0

.0
0

0
.0

1
1

4
8

.8
7

A
p

p
L

o
vi

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

0
.0

8
0

.1
5

-0
.0

7
1

4
8

.0
5

R
e

d
w

ir
e

 C
o

rp
0

.0
1

0
.0

0
0

.0
1

1
3

9
.5

9

P
a

la
n

tir
 T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

In
c

0
.1

9
0

.2
7

-0
.0

8
1

0
3

.3
1

S
o

F
i T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

In
c

0
.0

2
0

.0
3

-0
.0

1
9

5
.9

3

H
o

n
e

st
 C

o
 I

n
c 

(T
h

e
)

0
.0

1
0

.0
0

0
.0

1
9

4
.1

2

S
u

p
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 (

S
G

H
C

) 
L

td
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

7
5

.7
3

B
ri

n
ke

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l I
n

c.
0

.0
7

0
.0

1
0

.0
6

7
2

.8
6

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

0
.3

9
0

.4
9

-0
.1

0

Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 D
om

es
tic

 E
qu

ity
 v

s.
 R

us
se

ll 
30

00
 In

de
x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

T
h

e
 f
u

n
d

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

a
n

d
 t

o
p

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

sh
o

w
n

 a
b

o
ve

 a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
 lo

o
k-

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
a

n
y 

u
n

d
e

rl
yi

n
g

 m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

s 
o

r 
E

T
F

s 
h

e
ld

 w
ith

in
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

. 
 E

T
F

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 d

a
ily

,
w

h
ile

 m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

a
re

 o
n

ly
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
b

a
si

s.
  

A
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt,
 h

o
ld

in
g

s 
u

se
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 lo

o
k-

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
th

ir
d

-p
a

rt
y 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

s 
m

a
y 

b
e

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ri

o
r 

m
o

n
th

o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

e
n

d
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 r

e
ce

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
va

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

.

3
.3

Page 56



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
,0

3
5

,3
8

9
9

9
8

,3
3

1

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

2
2

,3
3

3
1

5
,1

7
5

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

6
.8

8
2

6
.6

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
5

.0
3

4
.9

1

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

2
0

.7
7

2
0

.3
4

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
1

.2
8

1
.2

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
7

4
9

1
,0

0
7

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

w
a

b
 U

S
 L

a
rg

e
-C

a
p

 E
T

F
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.0

2
.22
.3

2
.1

3
1

.9

8
.8

1
0

.0

1
3

.8

3
.2

5
.3

1
1

.3

9
.1

0
.0

2
.22
.4

2
.2

3
0

.7

9
.01

0
.1

1
4

.0

3
.3

5
.4

1
1

.5

9
.2

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

A
p

p
le

 I
n

c
7

.1
2

6
.6

5
0

.4
7

7
.6

0

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
6

.1
9

5
.8

3
0

.3
6

1
0

.5
9

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 C

o
rp

5
.8

9
5

.8
1

0
.0

8
-1

.8
5

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
3

.8
6

3
.8

2
0

.0
4

1
7

.7
4

M
e

ta
 P

la
tf
o

rm
s 

In
c

2
.4

0
2

.3
8

0
.0

2
2

.3
6

T
e

sl
a

 I
n

c
2

.1
2

2
.0

8
0

.0
4

5
4

.3
6

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
2

.0
8

2
.0

6
0

.0
2

1
4

.2
7

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
2

.0
4

1
.9

5
0

.0
9

3
4

.7
4

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
1

.7
0

1
.7

1
-0

.0
1

1
4

.0
4

B
e

rk
sh

ir
e

 H
a

th
a

w
a

y 
In

c
1

.5
6

1
.5

4
0

.0
2

-1
.5

2

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
4

.9
6

3
3

.8
3

1
.1

3

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

A
st

e
ra

 L
a

b
s 

In
c

0
.0

0
0

.0
3

-0
.0

3
1

5
2

.8
2

A
p

p
L

o
vi

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

0
.1

3
0

.1
6

-0
.0

3
1

4
8

.0
5

P
a

la
n

tir
 T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

In
c

0
.2

9
0

.2
8

0
.0

1
1

0
3

.3
1

S
o

F
i T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

In
c

0
.0

3
0

.0
3

0
.0

0
9

5
.9

3

M
ic

ro
S

tr
a

te
g

y 
In

c
0

.1
0

0
.0

9
0

.0
1

7
1

.7
8

U
n

ite
d

 A
ir

lin
e

s 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
In

c
0

.0
6

0
.0

6
0

.0
0

7
0

.1
7

T
w

ili
o

 I
n

c
0

.0
3

0
.0

3
0

.0
0

6
5

.7
2

R
o

b
in

h
o

o
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I

n
c

0
.0

5
0

.0
5

0
.0

0
5

9
.1

0

A
m

e
ri

ca
n

 A
ir

lin
e

s 
G

ro
u

p
 I

n
c

0
.0

2
0

.0
2

0
.0

0
5

5
.0

7

T
e

sl
a

 I
n

c
2

.1
2

2
.0

8
0

.0
4

5
4

.3
6

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

2
.8

3
2

.8
3

0
.0

0

S
ch

w
ab

 U
S

 L
ar

ge
-C

ap
 E

TF
 v

s.
 R

us
se

ll 
10

00
 In

de
x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.4

Page 57



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

8
7

9
,8

0
9

9
9

8
,3

3
1

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

8
5

,5
5

8
1

5
,1

7
5

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

9
.8

2
2

6
.6

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
4

.6
9

4
.9

1

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

2
6

.5
1

2
0

.3
4

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
0

.8
7

1
.2

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
3

0
1

,0
0

7

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

V
a

u
g

h
a

n
 N

e
ls

o
n

 S
e

le
ct

R
u

ss
e

ll 
1

0
0

0
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
.0

0
.0

0
.0

5
.0

3
1

.7

9
.6

8
.4

1
0

.4

3
.9

1
.0

1
4

.7

1
3

.3

0
.0

2
.22
.4

2
.2

3
0

.7

9
.01

0
.1

1
4

.0

3
.3

5
.4

1
1

.5

9
.2

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
6

.9
5

5
.8

3
1

.1
2

1
0

.5
9

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 C

o
rp

6
.8

9
5

.8
1

1
.0

8
-1

.8
5

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
6

.4
7

3
.8

2
2

.6
5

1
7

.7
4

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
5

.2
2

2
.0

6
3

.1
6

1
4

.2
7

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
 A

D
R

5
.0

6
0

.0
0

5
.0

6
1

4
.0

8

W
a

lt 
D

is
n

e
y 

C
o

 (
T

h
e

)
4

.5
3

0
.3

7
4

.1
6

1
6

.2
8

In
te

rc
o

n
tin

e
n

ta
l E

xc
h

a
n

g
e

 I
n

c
4

.2
5

0
.1

6
4

.0
9

-6
.9

7

S
e

rv
ic

e
N

o
w

 I
n

c
4

.0
7

0
.4

0
3

.6
7

1
8

.5
3

M
o

n
o

lit
h

ic
 P

o
w

e
r 

S
ys

te
m

s 
In

c
3

.8
9

0
.0

5
3

.8
4

-3
5

.8
6

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 C
h

a
se

 &
 C

o
3

.7
6

1
.2

5
2

.5
1

1
4

.3
6

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

5
1

.0
9

1
9

.7
5

3
1

.3
4

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

E
xp

a
n

d
 E

n
e

rg
y 

C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
2

.5
9

0
.0

4
2

.5
5

2
1

.7
6

S
e

rv
ic

e
N

o
w

 I
n

c
4

.0
7

0
.4

0
3

.6
7

1
8

.5
3

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
6

.4
7

3
.8

2
2

.6
5

1
7

.7
4

D
o

o
rD

a
sh

 I
n

c
3

.1
8

0
.1

1
3

.0
7

1
7

.5
3

W
a

lt 
D

is
n

e
y 

C
o

 (
T

h
e

)
4

.5
3

0
.3

7
4

.1
6

1
6

.2
8

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 C
h

a
se

 &
 C

o
3

.7
6

1
.2

5
2

.5
1

1
4

.3
6

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
5

.2
2

2
.0

6
3

.1
6

1
4

.2
7

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
 A

D
R

5
.0

6
0

.0
0

5
.0

6
1

4
.0

8

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
6

.9
5

5
.8

3
1

.1
2

1
0

.5
9

C
o

m
fo

rt
 S

ys
te

m
s 

U
S

A
 I

n
c

3
.0

4
0

.0
3

3
.0

1
8

.7
2

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

4
4

.8
7

1
3

.9
1

3
0

.9
6

V
au

gh
an

 N
el

so
n 

S
el

ec
t v

s.
 R

us
se

ll 
10

00
 In

de
x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.5

Page 58



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
,1

2
8

,5
8

7
9

9
8

,3
3

1

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

9
1

,7
6

4
1

5
,1

7
5

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

9
.8

9
2

6
.6

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
5

.6
0

4
.9

1

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

2
4

.1
1

2
0

.3
4

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
0

.8
2

1
.2

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
5

1
1

,0
0

7

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

A
ri

st
o

tle
 A

ll 
C

a
p

 C
o

re
R

u
ss

e
ll 

1
0

0
0

 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
.31

.9

1
.21
.4

3
2

.3

8
.4

1
0

.9

1
3

.2

2
.3

4
.1

1
2

.4

1
0

.7

0
.0

2
.22
.4

2
.2

3
0

.7

9
.01

0
.1

1
4

.0

3
.3

5
.4

1
1

.5

9
.2

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 C

o
rp

7
.0

4
5

.8
1

1
.2

3
-1

.8
5

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
6

.8
6

5
.8

3
1

.0
3

1
0

.5
9

A
p

p
le

 I
n

c
6

.4
2

6
.6

5
-0

.2
3

7
.6

0

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
5

.0
2

3
.8

2
1

.2
0

1
7

.7
4

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
4

.6
9

2
.0

6
2

.6
3

1
4

.2
7

M
e

ta
 P

la
tf
o

rm
s 

In
c

4
.5

9
2

.3
8

2
.2

1
2

.3
6

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
4

.4
8

1
.9

5
2

.5
3

3
4

.7
4

JP
M

o
rg

a
n

 C
h

a
se

 &
 C

o
3

.1
0

1
.2

5
1

.8
5

1
4

.3
6

C
o

st
co

 W
h

o
le

sa
le

 C
o

rp
2

.5
6

0
.7

5
1

.8
1

3
.4

9

S
e

rv
ic

e
N

o
w

 I
n

c
2

.4
5

0
.4

0
2

.0
5

1
8

.5
3

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

4
7

.2
1

3
0

.9
0

1
6

.3
1

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

C
h

a
rt

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

e
s 

In
c

0
.8

6
0

.0
0

0
.8

6
5

3
.7

3

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
4

.4
8

1
.9

5
2

.5
3

3
4

.7
4

G
u

a
rd

a
n

t 
H

e
a

lth
 I

n
c

0
.7

8
0

.0
0

0
.7

8
3

3
.1

7

E
xp

e
d

ia
 G

ro
u

p
 I

n
c

1
.1

9
0

.0
4

1
.1

5
2

5
.8

8

N
e

tf
lix

 I
n

c
1

.4
4

0
.7

1
0

.7
3

2
5

.6
7

A
n

te
ro

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

1
.2

3
0

.0
2

1
.2

1
2

2
.3

4

C
ro

w
d

S
tr

ik
e

 H
o

ld
in

g
s 

In
c

0
.7

4
0

.1
5

0
.5

9
2

1
.9

9

G
e

n
e

ra
l M

o
to

rs
 C

o
1

.2
5

0
.1

1
1

.1
4

1
9

.0
7

S
e

rv
ic

e
N

o
w

 I
n

c
2

.4
5

0
.4

0
2

.0
5

1
8

.5
3

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
5

.0
2

3
.8

2
1

.2
0

1
7

.7
4

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

1
9

.4
4

7
.2

0
1

2
.2

4

A
ris

to
tle

 A
ll 

C
ap

 C
or

e 
vs

. R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.6

Page 59



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
,0

2
8

,8
8

3
9

9
8

,3
3

1

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

6
0

,2
5

3
1

5
,1

7
5

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

2
.0

4
2

6
.6

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
4

.5
0

4
.9

1

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

2
3

.5
1

2
0

.3
4

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
1

.3
0

1
.2

9

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
1

1
4

1
,0

0
7

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

P
u

tn
a

m
 U

S
 C

o
re

 E
q

u
ity

 -
 9

.7
%

 (
^)

R
u

ss
e

ll 
1

0
0

0
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

6
.0

1
2

.0
1

8
.0

2
4

.0
3

0
.0

3
6

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
.22
.7

2
.62
.8

1
.9

2
7

.6

6
.1

8
.1

1
7

.2

2
.1

6
.1

1
1

.3

9
.2

0
.0

0
.0

2
.22
.4

2
.2

3
0

.7

9
.0

1
0

.1

1
4

.0

3
.3

5
.4

1
1

.5

9
.2

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

A
p

p
le

 I
n

c
6

.7
8

6
.6

5
0

.1
3

7
.6

0

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 C

o
rp

6
.1

1
5

.8
1

0
.3

0
-1

.8
5

N
V

ID
IA

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
5

.7
0

5
.8

3
-0

.1
3

1
0

.5
9

A
m

a
zo

n
.c

o
m

 I
n

c
4

.1
4

3
.8

2
0

.3
2

1
7

.7
4

A
lp

h
a

b
e

t 
In

c
3

.9
9

1
.7

1
2

.2
8

1
4

.0
4

M
e

ta
 P

la
tf
o

rm
s 

In
c

2
.8

8
2

.3
8

0
.5

0
2

.3
6

C
A

S
H

2
.2

4
0

.0
0

2
.2

4
N

/A

M
a

st
e

rc
a

rd
 I
n

c
2

.0
9

0
.8

0
1

.2
9

6
.7

8

B
e

rk
sh

ir
e

 H
a

th
a

w
a

y 
In

c
1

.9
9

1
.5

4
0

.4
5

-1
.5

2

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
1

.9
2

1
.9

5
-0

.0
3

3
4

.7
4

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
7

.8
4

3
0

.4
9

7
.3

5

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

B
ri

n
ke

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l I
n

c.
0

.0
7

0
.0

0
0

.0
7

7
2

.8
6

T
e

sl
a

 I
n

c
1

.6
0

2
.0

8
-0

.4
8

5
4

.3
6

L
u

lu
le

m
o

n
 A

th
le

tic
a

 I
n

c
0

.1
6

0
.0

8
0

.0
8

4
0

.9
3

B
ro

a
d

co
m

 I
n

c
1

.9
2

1
.9

5
-0

.0
3

3
4

.7
4

A
p

o
llo

 G
lo

b
a

l M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
In

c
1

.7
0

0
.1

6
1

.5
4

3
2

.6
0

R
a

ym
o

n
d

 J
a

m
e

s 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l I

n
c.

1
.3

4
0

.0
5

1
.2

9
2

7
.3

1

V
ik

in
g

 H
o

ld
in

g
s 

L
td

0
.3

9
0

.0
0

0
.3

9
2

6
.2

8

G
o

D
a

d
d

y 
In

c
0

.5
4

0
.0

5
0

.4
9

2
5

.8
9

A
n

te
ro

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

0
.3

2
0

.0
2

0
.3

0
2

2
.3

4

S
A

L
E

S
F

O
R

C
E

 I
N

C
0

.9
5

0
.5

7
0

.3
8

2
2

.2
9

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

8
.9

9
4

.9
6

4
.0

3

P
ut

na
m

 U
S

 C
or

e 
E

qu
ity

 - 
9.

7%
 (^

) v
s.

 R
us

se
ll 

10
00

 In
de

x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.7

Page 60



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

3
,1

0
4

3
,5

8
8

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

9
8

3
9

6
0

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

7
.3

4
1

7
.8

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.1
8

2
.4

7

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

7
.9

0
1

2
.1

1

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
1

.0
6

1
.3

3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
2

7
8

1
,9

6
6

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

Ja
co

b
s 

L
e

vy
 S

m
a

ll 
C

a
p

R
u

ss
e

ll 
2

0
0

0
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.8

0
.0

3
.3

4
.6

1
1

.6

1
8

.0

1
2

.2

2
2

.7

3
.0

4
.4

1
4

.2

5
.4

0
.0

2
.7

6
.1

4
.3

1
3

.8

1
7

.8

1
6

.3

1
8

.7

5
.1

2
.8

9
.7

2
.7

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

W
o

rk
iv

a
 I
n

c
1

.8
1

0
.2

1
1

.6
0

3
8

.4
0

P
H

IN
IA

 I
n

c
1

.6
5

0
.0

8
1

.5
7

5
.1

1

C
o

rc
e

p
t 
T

h
e

ra
p

e
u

tic
s 

In
c

1
.5

6
0

.1
5

1
.4

1
8

.8
8

B
re

a
d

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l H
o

ld
in

g
s 

In
c

1
.3

9
0

.1
1

1
.2

8
2

8
.7

9

F
lu

o
r 

C
o

rp
1

.3
3

0
.3

1
1

.0
2

3
.3

7

B
ri

n
ke

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l I
n

c.
1

.3
3

0
.2

2
1

.1
1

7
2

.8
6

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l M

e
ta

ls
 C

o
1

.3
2

0
.2

1
1

.1
1

-9
.4

5

T
ri

 P
o

in
te

 H
o

m
e

s 
In

c
1

.3
0

0
.1

2
1

.1
8

-1
9

.9
7

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 H

o
m

e
s 

In
c

1
.2

8
0

.1
8

1
.1

0
-7

.1
2

T
e

xa
s 

C
a

p
ita

l B
a

n
cs

h
a

re
s 

In
c

1
.2

7
0

.1
4

1
.1

3
9

.4
3

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

1
4

.2
4

1
.7

3
1

2
.5

1

T
e

n
 B

e
s

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

K
o

d
ia

k 
S

ci
e

n
ce

s 
In

c
0

.0
6

0
.0

1
0

.0
5

2
8

1
.2

2

O
m

e
ro

s 
C

o
rp

0
.1

3
0

.0
2

0
.1

1
1

4
8

.8
7

R
e

d
w

ir
e

 C
o

rp
0

.1
9

0
.0

1
0

.1
8

1
3

9
.5

9

H
o

n
e

st
 C

o
 I

n
c 

(T
h

e
)

0
.1

6
0

.0
2

0
.1

4
9

4
.1

2

S
u

p
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 (

S
G

H
C

) 
L

td
0

.0
4

0
.0

3
0

.0
1

7
5

.7
3

B
ri

n
ke

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l I
n

c.
1

.3
3

0
.2

2
1

.1
1

7
2

.8
6

S
e

le
ct

Q
u

o
te

 I
n

c
0

.0
6

0
.0

2
0

.0
4

7
1

.4
3

A
lle

g
ia

n
t 

T
ra

ve
l C

o
0

.6
5

0
.0

5
0

.6
0

7
0

.9
4

R
o

b
in

h
o

o
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 I

n
c

0
.8

4
0

.0
0

0
.8

4
5

9
.1

0

D
e

sp
e

g
a

r.
co

m
 C

o
rp

0
.1

1
0

.0
4

0
.0

7
5

5
.2

4

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
.5

7
0

.4
2

3
.1

5

Ja
co

bs
 L

ev
y 

S
m

al
l C

ap
 v

s.
 R

us
se

ll 
20

00
 In

de
x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.8

Page 61



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
 F

un
d 
–

 S
ub

-A
dv

is
er

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

A
s 

of
  D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4 

     

  
 

W
C

M
 F

oc
us

ed
 G

ro
w

th
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
Pa

ul
 R

. B
la

ck
, M

ic
ha

el
 T

rig
g,

 S
an

ja
y 

Ay
er

, a
nd

 J
on

 T
rin

ga
le

. P
au

l a
nd

 M
ic

ha
el

 h
av

e 
be

en
 w

ith
 th

e 
fu

nd
 s

in
ce

 
its

 in
ce

pt
io

n 
in

 2
01

1.
 S

an
ja

y 
an

d 
Jo

n 
w

er
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 to
 p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
s 

in
 2

02
0 

an
d 

20
22

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

 
•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 s

ee
ks

 to
 o

ut
pe

rfo
rm

 th
e 

M
SC

I A
C

W
I e

x 
U

.S
. b

y 
us

in
g 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
se

cu
rit

y 
se

le
ct

io
n.

 

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

: A
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
d,

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

, g
ro

w
th

-o
rie

nt
ed

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
qu

ity
 s

tra
te

gy
, b

as
ed

 p
ur

el
y 

on
 d

ee
p 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l r
es

ea
rc

h.
 

 


 

N
in

e
ty

-O
n

e
 I

n
te

r
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

D
y

n
a

m
ic

 E
q

u
it

y
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 T
he

 fu
nd

 is
 c

o-
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
Ad

am
 C

hi
ld

 a
nd

 B
en

 L
am

be
rt.

 M
r. 

C
hi

ld
 jo

in
ed

 th
e 

fir
m

 in
 2

01
2,

 a
nd

 M
r. 

La
m

be
rt 

jo
in

ed
 in

 2
02

2.
 T

he
y 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nd
us

try
 fo

r 1
6 

an
d 

22
 y

ea
rs

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
  T

he
 S

tra
te

gy
 s

ee
ks

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 c
ap

ita
l g

ro
w

th
 p

rim
ar

ily
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 in

 c
om

pe
llin

g 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 a
cr

os
s 

se
ct

or
s 

an
d 

ge
og

ra
ph

ie
s,

 
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
. 

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

:  
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 u

til
iz

es
 a

 4
-fa

ct
or

 fr
on

t e
nd

 s
cr

ee
n 

(s
tra

te
gy

, e
ar

ni
ng

s,
 v

al
ue

, t
ec

hn
ic

al
s)

 fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l a

na
ly

si
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 re
tu

rn
s 

of
 c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 s
tro

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

gr
ow

th
 d

riv
er

s.
 T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 te
nd

s 
to

 b
e 

co
nc

en
tra

te
d 

in
 5

0-
70

 c
om

pa
ni

es
. T

he
 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
fo

r t
hi

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 th
e 

M
SC

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 e

x 
U

.S
. I

nd
ex

. 

 
 

A
c

a
d

ia
n

 N
o

n
-U

.S
. 

E
q

u
it

y
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

Th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

ea
m

 is
 o

ve
rs

ee
n 

by
 C

IO
, B

re
nd

an
 B

ra
dl

ey
, w

ho
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

fir
m

 s
in

ce
 2

00
4.

 A
ls

o 
le

ad
in

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
ea

m
 

ar
e 

R
ya

n 
Ta

lia
fe

rro
, M

al
co

lm
 B

ak
er

, A
le

xa
nd

re
 V

oi
te

no
k.

  

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y 
in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 g

lo
ba

l s
ec

ur
iti

es
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f t
he

 U
.S

.  

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

: S
ys

te
m

at
ic

, q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

ith
 a

n 
al

l-c
ap

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ut

iliz
in

g 
va

lu
e,

 q
ua

lit
y,

 g
ro

w
th

, a
nd

 te
ch

ni
ca

l f
ac

to
rs

 fo
r s

ec
ur

ity
 

se
le

ct
io

n.
  

 
 

A
r

is
to

tl
e

 I
n

te
r

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

q
u

it
y

 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
a 

te
am

 o
f t

hr
ee

 P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

s,
 H

ow
ar

d 
G

le
ic

he
r, 

C
FA

, G
eo

ffr
ey

 S
te

w
ar

t, 
C

FA
, a

nd
 S

ea
n 

Th
or

pe
, w

ith
 

al
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 u
na

ni
m

ou
s 

ap
pr

ov
al

. T
he

 th
re

e 
PM

s 
ar

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 1
0-

m
em

be
r g

lo
ba

l s
ec

to
r a

na
ly

st
 te

am
. 

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
’s

 f
o
c
u
s
 i
s
 o

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 h

ig
h

 q
u
a

lit
y
 s

to
c
k
s
, 
s
e
lli

n
g
 a

t 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
n
d

 w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
e

lli
n
g
 c

a
ta

ly
st

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
gr

ow
th

. 

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

: A
ri

s
to

tl
e
’s

 “
v
a
lu

e
 e

q
u

it
y
” 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 u
n
if
o
rm

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
h
ilo

s
o
p

h
y
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti
n
g
 i
n
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
ra

di
ng

 a
t d

is
co

un
ts

 
to

 th
ei

r e
st

im
at

es
 o

f i
nt

rin
si

c 
va

lu
e.

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 lo
ok

ed
 a

t t
hr

ou
gh

 d
iff

er
en

t l
en

s:
 re

la
tiv

e 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
va

lu
e 

fo
r a

 b
uy

er
, d

is
co

un
te

d 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
s,

 
an

d 
at

tra
ct

iv
e 

co
m

pa
ny

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
 p

ee
rs

. Q
ua

lit
y,

 V
al

ua
tio

n,
 a

nd
 C

at
al

ys
ts

 a
re

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r a
ll 

of
 th

ei
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t d
ec

is
io

ns
. 

3
.9

Page 62



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
 F

un
d 
–

 S
ub

-A
dv

is
er

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

A
s 

of
  D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4 

     

  
 

S
c

h
w

a
b

 I
n

te
r

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
E

q
u

it
y

 E
T

F
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 C
hr

is
to

ph
er

 B
lis

s 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

7)
, D

av
id

 R
io

s 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

7)
, J

os
el

le
 D

un
ca

n 
(s

in
ce

 2
02

3)
, J

iw
ei

 G
u 

(s
in

ce
 2

02
3)

, a
nd

 M
ar

ie
la

 J
ob

so
n 

(s
in

ce
 

20
24

) a
re

 a
ll 

co
- p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r d

ay
-to

-d
ay

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fu
nd

. 
  

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
  T

he
 F

un
d 

se
ek

s 
to

 tr
ac

k 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 F

TS
E 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 e

x 
U

S 
In

de
x.

  

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

:  
T

h
e
 F

u
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
s
 a

 “
p
a
s
s
iv

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t”

 –
 o

r i
nd

ex
in

g 
–
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 tr
ac

k 
as

 c
lo

se
ly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

, b
ef

or
e 

fe
es

 a
nd

 
ex

pe
ns

es
, t

he
 to

ta
l r

et
ur

n 
of

 th
e 

FT
SE

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 e

x 
U

S 
In

de
x.

 T
he

 in
de

x 
is

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f L
ar

ge
 a

nd
 M

id
-c

ap
 s

to
ck

s 
in

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 c

ou
nt

rie
s 

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
U

.S
. 

 


 S
c

h
r
o

d
e

r
s
 E

m
e

r
g

in
g

 M
a

r
k

e
ts

 E
q

u
it

y
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

Th
e 

fu
nd

 is
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
a 

te
am

 o
f s

ix
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 l
e
d
 b

y
 T

o
m

 W
ils

o
n
, 
S

c
h
ro

d
e
rs

’ 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

m
e
rg

in
g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q
u
it
y
. 
H

e
 h

a
s
 

w
or

ke
d 

at
 S

ch
ro

de
rs

 s
in

ce
 2

00
1 

an
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

ts
 e

qu
iti

es
 a

t S
ch

ro
de

rs
 s

in
ce

 2
00

4.
 

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 T

he
 F

un
d 

se
ek

s 
ca

pi
ta

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n.
 

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

: 
Th

e 
Fu

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
s 

an
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
th

at
 c

om
bi

ne
s 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l, 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
st

oc
k 

re
se

ar
ch

 w
ith

 a
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
co

un
try

 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 C
ou

nt
ry

 ra
nk

in
gs

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 v

al
ua

tio
n,

 g
ro

w
th

, c
ur

re
nc

y,
 m

om
en

tu
m

, a
nd

 in
te

re
st

 ra
te

s.
 S

to
ck

 le
ve

l 
re

se
ar

ch
 ta

rg
et

s 
a 

co
re

 u
ni

ve
rs

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t l
iq

ui
d 

st
oc

ks
 in

 th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
ts

 u
ni

ve
rs

e,
 u

til
iz

in
g 

a 
re

la
tiv

e 
va

lu
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fo
r s

to
ck

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

gr
ow

th
/v

al
ue

 s
pe

ct
ru

m
 w

ith
ou

t a
ny

 s
ys

te
m

at
ic

 s
ty

le
 b

ia
s.

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 ri

sk
 c

on
tro

ls
 a

re
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 to
 k

ee
p 

fa
ct

or
 e

xp
os

ur
es

 in
 c

he
ck

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ra

in
 

st
ra

te
gy

-le
ve

l t
ra

ck
in

g 
er

ro
r t

o 
m

od
er

at
e 

le
ve

ls
. 

 
 

S
c

h
w

a
b

 E
m

e
r

g
in

g
 M

a
r

k
e

ts
 E

q
u

it
y

 E
T

F
 

•
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t: 

 C
hr

is
to

ph
er

 B
lis

s 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

7)
, D

av
id

 R
io

s 
(s

in
ce

 2
01

7)
, J

os
el

le
 D

un
ca

n 
(s

in
ce

 2
02

3)
, J

iw
ei

 G
u 

(s
in

ce
 2

02
3)

, a
nd

 M
ar

ie
la

 J
ob

so
n 

(s
in

ce
 

20
24

) a
re

 a
ll 

co
- p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r d

ay
-to

-d
ay

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fu
nd

. 
  

•
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
  T

he
 F

un
d 

se
ek

s 
to

 tr
ac

k 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 F

TS
E 

Em
er

gi
ng

 In
de

x.
 

•
 

St
ra

te
gy

:  
T

h
e
 F

u
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
s
 a

 “
p
a
s
s
iv

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t”

 –
 o

r i
nd

ex
in

g 
–
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 tr
ac

k 
as

 c
lo

se
ly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

, b
ef

or
e 

fe
es

 a
nd

 
ex

pe
ns

es
, t

he
 to

ta
l r

et
ur

n 
of

 th
e 

FT
SE

 E
m

er
gi

ng
 In

de
x.

 T
he

 in
de

x 
is

 c
om

pr
is

ed
 o

f L
ar

ge
 a

nd
 M

id
-c

ap
 s

to
ck

s 
in

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

t c
ou

nt
rie

s.
 

3
.1

0

Page 63



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
0

7
,8

0
8

1
0

7
,6

0
6

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

5
,1

8
5

9
,8

1
8

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

7
.9

6
1

5
.8

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.8
7

2
.5

3

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
2

.7
0

1
2

.0
3

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
2

.3
6

2
.9

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
3

,7
7

8
2

,0
5

8

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

F
ir

s
t 
A

m
e

ri
c
a

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x
 U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

s
h

O
th

e
r

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

s
ta

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

In
d

u
s
tr

ia
ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

c
ia

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
D

is
c
re

tio
n

a
ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
.8

0
.5

2
.1

1
.6

5
.1

1
5

.1

1
7

.3

8
.4

2
1

.5

3
.4

5
.3

1
1

.4

6
.6

0
.0

0
.0

3
.0

1
.8

6
.3

1
3

.5

1
4

.0

8
.7

2
3

.7

5
.0

7
.0

1
1

.2

5
.9

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 E
q

u
it

y
 H

o
ld

in
g

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
2

.6
4

3
.1

2
-0

.4
8

8
.8

4

S
A

P
 S

E
1

.9
0

0
.9

9
0

.9
1

7
.2

6

T
e

n
ce

n
t 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
L

T
D

1
.4

0
1

.3
5

0
.0

5
-6

.2
1

N
o

vo
 N

o
rd

is
k 

A
/S

1
.3

3
1

.0
8

0
.2

5
-2

6
.4

2

A
st

ra
ze

n
e

ca
 P

L
C

1
.1

0
0

.7
9

0
.3

1
-1

5
.6

6

S
a

fr
a

n
 S

A
1

.0
5

0
.3

1
0

.7
4

-6
.7

8

S
ch

n
e

id
e

r 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

S
 E

1
.0

4
0

.5
3

0
.5

1
-5

.3
7

F
e

rr
a

ri
 N

V
0

.9
5

0
.2

1
0

.7
4

-8
.8

3

S
e

a
 L

im
ite

d
0

.9
3

0
.1

5
0

.7
8

1
2

.5
4

IC
IC

I 
B

a
n

k 
L

td
0

.9
3

0
.3

0
0

.6
3

0
.0

3

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

1
3

.2
7

8
.8

3
4

.4
4

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

F
ir

s
t 
A

m
e

ri
c
a

n
 M

u
lti

-M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l E
q

u
ity

 F
u

n
d

M
S

C
I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x
 U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

C
a

s
h

O
th

e
r

P
a

c
ifi

c

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

c
a

M
id

d
le

 E
a

s
t

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x
 E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
c
a

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

s
t 
+

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
s
ia

1
.8

1
.1

2
2

.4

7
.4

0
.9

2
0

.2

2
6

.1

2
.3

1
.9

1
5

.9

0
.00
.1

2
2

.0

8
.2

0
.6

1
9

.3

2
1

.3

2
.0

3
.6

2
3

.0

Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
 v

s.
 M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (n
et

)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

T
h

e
 f
u

n
d

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

a
n

d
 t

o
p

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

sh
o

w
n

 a
b

o
ve

 a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
 lo

o
k-

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
a

n
y 

u
n

d
e

rl
yi

n
g

 m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

s 
o

r 
E

T
F

s 
h

e
ld

 w
ith

in
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

. 
 E

T
F

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 d

a
ily

,
w

h
ile

 m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

a
re

 o
n

ly
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
b

a
si

s.
  

A
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt,
 h

o
ld

in
g

s 
u

se
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 lo

o
k-

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
th

ir
d

-p
a

rt
y 

m
u

tu
a

l f
u

n
d

s 
m

a
y 

b
e

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ri

o
r 

m
o

n
th

o
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

e
n

d
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 r

e
ce

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
va

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

.

3
.1

1

Page 64



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
3

1
,3

3
6

1
0

7
,6

0
6

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

5
8

,5
7

4
9

,8
1

8

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

8
.2

4
1

5
.8

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
4

.9
5

2
.5

3

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
5

.0
6

1
2

.0
3

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
0

.8
7

2
.9

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
3

7
2

,0
5

8

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

W
C

M
 F

o
cu

se
d

 G
ro

w
th

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l
M

S
C

I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
.5

0
.0

0
.0

1
.9

1
8

.0

2
5

.2

1
2

.6

1
6

.1

1
.6

0
.0

1
3

.3

7
.7

0
.0

3
.0

1
.8

6
.3

1
3

.5

1
4

.0

8
.7

2
3

.7

5
.0

7
.0

1
1

.2

5
.9

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
 A

D
R

5
.2

4
3

.1
2

2
.1

2
1

4
.0

8

N
o

vo
 N

o
rd

is
k 

A
/S

4
.2

9
1

.0
8

3
.2

1
-2

6
.4

2

S
e

a
 L

im
ite

d
3

.9
7

0
.1

5
3

.8
2

1
2

.5
4

S
a

fr
a

n
 S

A
3

.9
1

0
.3

1
3

.6
0

-6
.7

8

S
A

P
 S

E
3

.8
5

0
.9

9
2

.8
6

7
.2

6

F
e

rr
a

ri
 N

V
3

.8
5

0
.2

1
3

.6
4

-8
.8

3

S
p

o
tif

y 
T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y 
S

A
3

.7
5

0
.2

7
3

.4
8

2
1

.4
0

C
A

S
H

3
.4

5
0

.0
0

3
.4

5
N

/A

A
st

ra
ze

n
e

ca
 P

L
C

3
.2

4
0

.7
9

2
.4

5
-1

5
.6

6

R
o

lls
 R

o
yc

e
 H

o
ld

in
g

s 
P

L
C

3
.1

2
0

.2
3

2
.8

9
0

.7
0

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
8

.6
7

7
.1

5
3

1
.5

2

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

W
C

M
 F

o
cu

se
d

 G
ro

w
th

 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l
M

S
C

I 
A

C
 W

o
rl

d
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (
N

e
t)

0
.0

1
0

.0
2

0
.0

3
0

.0
4

0
.0

5
0

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

M
id

d
le

 E
a

st

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

3
.54

.8

9
.4

1
2

.4

2
.1

2
2

.1

3
3

.7

1
.7

0
.0

1
0

.6

0
.0

0
.1

2
2

.0

8
.2

0
.6

1
9

.32
1

.3

2
.03

.6

2
3

.0

W
C

M
 F

oc
us

ed
 G

ro
w

th
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l v

s.
 M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (N
et

)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

2

Page 65



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
3

8
,3

8
9

1
0

7
,6

0
6

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

6
4

,2
9

1
9

,8
1

8

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

0
.3

0
1

5
.8

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
3

.0
3

2
.5

3

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
5

.3
9

1
2

.0
3

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
1

.7
2

2
.9

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
7

0
2

,0
5

8

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

N
in

e
ty

 O
n

e
 I

n
t'l

 D
yn

a
m

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 

M
S

C
I 

A
C

 W
o

rl
d

 e
x 

U
S

A
 (

N
e

t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
.7

2
.83
.2

3
.0

5
.4

1
7

.0

1
6

.3

3
.6

2
3

.2

2
.4

2
.2

7
.6

1
1

.8

0
.0

0
.0

3
.0

1
.8

6
.3

1
3

.5

1
4

.0

8
.7

2
3

.7

5
.0

7
.0

1
1

.2

5
.9

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
5

.6
3

3
.1

2
2

.5
1

8
.8

4

S
A

P
 S

E
4

.1
4

0
.9

9
3

.1
5

7
.2

6

R
e

cr
u

it 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
C

o
 L

td
3

.0
9

0
.3

8
2

.7
1

1
6

.5
3

T
e

n
ce

n
t 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
L

T
D

3
.0

9
1

.3
5

1
.7

4
-6

.2
1

M
its

u
b

is
h

i U
F

J 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l G

ro
u

p
2

.8
7

0
.5

0
2

.3
7

1
5

.5
9

B
a

rc
la

ys
 P

L
C

2
.8

4
0

.1
9

2
.6

5
1

1
.5

0

iS
h

a
re

s 
T

ru
st

 -
 M

S
C

I 
In

d
ia

 E
T

F
2

.7
7

0
.0

0
2

.7
7

-9
.4

1

S
ch

n
e

id
e

r 
E

le
ct

ri
c 

S
 E

2
.6

0
0

.5
3

2
.0

7
-5

.3
7

S
o

m
p

o
 H

o
ld

in
g

s 
In

c
2

.3
9

0
.0

9
2

.3
0

1
7

.1
2

E
n

e
l E

n
te

 N
a

zi
o

n
a

le
 P

e
r 

L
'E

n
e

rg
ia

2
.1

7
0

.2
2

1
.9

5
-1

0
.9

5

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
1

.5
9

7
.3

7
2

4
.2

2

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

N
in

e
ty

 O
n

e
 I

n
t'l

 D
yn

a
m

ic
 E

q
u

ity
 

M
S

C
I 

A
C

 W
o

rl
d

 e
x 

U
S

A
 (

N
e

t)

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

4
8

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

M
id

d
le

 E
a

st

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

1
.7

0
.9

2
3

.3

6
.2

0
.0

1
7

.7

2
8

.6

2
.3

2
.1

1
7

.1

0
.00
.1

2
2

.0

8
.2

0
.6

1
9

.32
1

.3

2
.0

3
.6

2
3

.0

N
in

et
y 

O
ne

 In
t'l

 D
yn

am
ic

 E
qu

ity
  v

s.
 M

S
C

I A
C

 W
or

ld
 e

x 
U

S
A

 (N
et

)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

3

Page 66



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

4
8

,9
5

2
8

5
,8

7
2

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

2
,7

2
5

1
4

,5
2

9

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

5
.1

4
1

6
.4

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
3

.0
7

2
.4

8

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
2

.6
2

1
0

.5
8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
2

.8
7

3
.1

3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
3

3
5

7
2

2

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

A
ca

d
ia

n
 N

o
n

-U
.S

. 
E

q
u

ity
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.2

2
.3

0
.9

4
.3

1
5

.5

2
4

.5

9
.5

2
2

.3

1
.3

2
.2

1
1

.2

5
.7

0
.0

3
.2

2
.0

6
.1

8
.8

1
7

.8

1
2

.4

2
1

.8

3
.5

8
.3

1
1

.3

4
.8

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

R
o

ch
e

 H
o

ld
in

g
 A

G
3

.5
4

1
.2

3
2

.3
1

-1
2

.1
1

A
B

B
 L

td
2

.6
4

0
.5

3
2

.1
1

-6
.7

7

W
o

lte
rs

 K
lu

w
e

r 
N

V
2

.5
1

0
.2

5
2

.2
6

-1
.6

4

In
d

u
st

ri
a

 D
e

 D
is

e
n

o
 T

e
xt

il 
In

d
ite

x 
S

A
2

.2
6

0
.3

5
1

.9
1

-1
2

.0
5

A
ri

st
o

cr
a

t 
L

e
is

u
re

 L
td

2
.0

2
0

.1
5

1
.8

7
4

.7
6

B
a

rc
la

ys
 P

L
C

1
.9

8
0

.3
0

1
.6

8
9

.3
8

B
N

P
 P

a
ri

b
a

s
1

.9
8

0
.3

9
1

.5
9

-1
0

.7
3

R
e

cr
u

it 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
C

o
 L

td
1

.8
6

0
.6

2
1

.2
4

1
6

.5
3

G
S

K
 p

lc
1

.7
1

0
.4

3
1

.2
8

-1
6

.3
0

N
a

tW
e

st
 G

ro
u

p
 p

lc
1

.6
7

0
.2

2
1

.4
5

9
.1

7

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

2
2

.1
7

4
.4

7
1

7
.7

0

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

A
ca

d
ia

n
 N

o
n

-U
.S

. 
E

q
u

ity
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

1
0

.0
2

0
.0

3
0

.0
4

0
.0

5
0

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

M
id

d
le

 E
a

st

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

0
.20
.3

3
2

.6

0
.4

3
.5

2
8

.0

3
4

.2

0
.00
.8

0
.00
.1

3
4

.2

0
.01

.0

3
0

.9

3
3

.7

0
.0

0
.0

A
ca

di
an

 N
on

-U
.S

. E
qu

ity
 v

s.
 M

S
C

I E
A

FE
 (n

et
)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

4

Page 67



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

7
1

,5
4

1
8

5
,8

7
2

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

3
5

,0
8

2
1

4
,5

2
9

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
2

1
.4

1
1

6
.4

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.6
7

2
.4

8

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

4
.6

9
1

0
.5

8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
2

.3
0

3
.1

3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
4

0
7

2
2

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

A
ri

st
o

tle
 I

n
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
.4

0
.0

0
.0

4
.9

9
.5

1
8

.6

9
.8

2
1

.1

6
.0

1
2

.6

1
4

.1

0
.0

0
.0

3
.2

2
.0

6
.1

8
.8

1
7

.8

1
2

.4

2
1

.8

3
.5

8
.3

1
1

.3

4
.8

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

B
ro

o
kf

ie
ld

 C
o

rp
5

.5
2

0
.0

0
5

.5
2

8
.1

9

A
cc

e
n

tu
re

 P
L

C
4

.8
4

0
.0

0
4

.8
4

-0
.0

7

S
o

n
y 

G
ro

u
p

 C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
4

.0
6

0
.8

3
3

.2
3

1
0

.4
0

C
a

m
e

co
 C

o
rp

3
.8

9
0

.0
0

3
.8

9
7

.6
7

P
a

n
 P

a
ci

fic
 I
n

te
rn

a
tio

n
a

l H
o

ld
in

g
s

3
.7

6
0

.0
7

3
.6

9
6

.5
3

M
o

n
o

ta
ro

 C
o

 L
td

3
.6

7
0

.0
3

3
.6

4
1

.8
1

D
B

S
 G

ro
u

p
 H

o
ld

in
g

s 
L

td
3

.4
9

0
.4

0
3

.0
9

9
.3

3

S
a

fr
a

n
 S

A
3

.4
1

0
.5

0
2

.9
1

-6
.7

8

C
A

S
H

3
.3

9
0

.0
0

3
.3

9
N

/A

N
e

m
e

ts
ch

e
k 

S
E

3
.2

4
0

.0
3

3
.2

1
-6

.6
2

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
9

.2
7

1
.8

6
3

7
.4

1

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

A
ri

st
o

tle
 I

n
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
M

S
C

I 
E

A
F

E
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

8
.0

1
6

.0
2

4
.0

3
2

.0
4

0
.0

4
8

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

M
id

d
le

 E
a

st

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 A
si

a

3
.4

0
.0

2
3

.9

1
1

.0

0
.0

2
4

.0

3
3

.3

3
.0

1
.5

0
.00
.1

3
4

.2

0
.01

.0

3
0

.9

3
3

.7

0
.0

0
.0

A
ris

to
tle

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
 v

s.
 M

S
C

I E
A

FE
 (n

et
)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

5

Page 68



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

7
8

,8
5

1
8

5
,8

7
2

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

7
,2

5
1

1
4

,5
2

9

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

5
.8

4
1

6
.4

3

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.3
7

2
.4

8

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
0

.3
5

1
0

.5
8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
3

.1
0

3
.1

3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
1

,4
9

0
7

2
2

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

w
a

b
 I

n
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
 E

T
F

M
S

C
I 

E
A

F
E

 (
n

e
t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.0

3
.0

2
.4

7
.0

9
.9

1
7

.3

1
0

.4

2
3

.0

4
.7

7
.6

1
0

.9

3
.8

0
.0

3
.2

2
.0

6
.1

8
.8

1
7

.8

1
2

.4

2
1

.8

3
.5

8
.3

1
1

.3

4
.8

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

A
S

M
L

 H
o

ld
in

g
 N

V
1

.3
9

1
.7

5
-0

.3
6

-1
5

.3
5

S
A

P
 S

E
1

.3
5

1
.5

9
-0

.2
4

7
.2

6

N
o

vo
 N

o
rd

is
k 

A
/S

1
.3

5
1

.7
3

-0
.3

8
-2

6
.4

2

T
o

yo
ta

 M
o

to
r 

C
o

rp
1

.1
6

1
.2

8
-0

.1
2

1
2

.6
2

N
e

st
le

 S
A

, 
C

h
a

m
 U

n
d

 V
e

ve
y

1
.0

7
1

.3
5

-0
.2

8
-1

7
.9

6

A
st

ra
ze

n
e

ca
 P

L
C

0
.9

9
1

.2
6

-0
.2

7
-1

5
.6

6

N
o

va
rt

is
 A

G
0

.9
8

1
.2

0
-0

.2
2

-1
5

.0
1

R
o

ch
e

 H
o

ld
in

g
 A

G
0

.9
8

1
.2

3
-0

.2
5

-1
2

.1
1

S
h

e
ll 

P
lc

0
.9

6
1

.2
0

-0
.2

4
-3

.6
5

H
S

B
C

 H
o

ld
in

g
s 

P
L

C
0

.9
0

1
.1

1
-0

.2
1

1
0

.7
5

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

1
1

.1
3

1
3

.7
0

-2
.5

7

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

w
a

b
 I

n
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l E

q
u

ity
 E

T
F

M
S

C
I 

E
A

F
E

 (
n

e
t)

0
.0

1
0

.0
2

0
.0

3
0

.0
4

0
.0

5
0

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

M
id

d
le

 E
a

st

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

0
.00
.1

3
2

.3

9
.4

0
.7

2
5

.72
7

.9

0
.00
.3

3
.7

0
.00
.1

3
4

.2

0
.01

.0

3
0

.9

3
3

.7

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

S
ch

w
ab

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
 E

TF
 v

s.
 M

S
C

I E
A

FE
 (n

et
)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

6

Page 69



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
8

4
,6

5
8

1
6

5
,6

3
0

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

2
0

,7
6

3
7

,5
9

7

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

5
.5

0
1

4
.0

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.8
1

2
.7

9

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
9

.3
0

1
6

.7
0

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
2

.5
9

2
.6

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
1

2
2

1
,2

5
2

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

ro
d

e
rs

 G
lo

b
a

l E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

6
.0

1
2

.0
1

8
.0

2
4

.0
3

0
.0

3
6

.0

C
a

sh

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
.6

1
.5

1
.0

3
.8

2
7

.4

3
.9

2
.1

2
1

.9

2
.8

6
.9

1
4

.3

1
1

.7

0
.0

2
.7

1
.7

5
.7

2
4

.3

6
.6

3
.4

2
3

.7

4
.64
.8

1
3

.1

9
.4

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
1

2
.6

8
1

0
.5

4
2

.1
4

8
.8

4

T
e

n
ce

n
t 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
L

T
D

6
.8

5
4

.5
5

2
.3

0
-6

.2
1

S
a

m
su

n
g

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

s 
C

o
 L

td
3

.1
8

2
.2

5
0

.9
3

-2
3

.1
6

M
e

itu
a

n
2

.7
0

1
.2

6
1

.4
4

-1
1

.8
1

C
A

S
H

2
.6

4
0

.0
0

2
.6

4
N

/A

T
ri

p
 c

o
m

 G
ro

u
p

 L
td

2
.3

5
0

.5
6

1
.7

9
1

5
.5

3

M
e

d
ia

te
k 

In
co

rp
o

ra
tio

n
1

.8
3

0
.8

6
0

.9
7

1
6

.2
5

IC
IC

I 
B

a
n

k 
L

td
1

.7
7

1
.0

2
0

.7
5

0
.0

3

T
a

ta
 C

o
n

su
lta

n
cy

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

L
td

1
.7

2
0

.5
6

1
.1

6
-5

.8
7

H
D

F
C

 B
a

n
k 

L
im

ite
d

1
.7

2
1

.5
2

0
.2

0
2

.0
8

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

3
7

.4
4

2
3

.1
2

1
4

.3
2

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

ro
d

e
rs

 G
lo

b
a

l E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

2
5

.0
5

0
.0

7
5

.0
1

0
0

.0
1

2
5

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
E

M
U

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

2
.6

0
.6

5
.2

0
.00
.51
.4

1
1

.2

9
.5

6
9

.0

0
.0

0
.02

.3

0
.3

0
.01
.0

6
.6

1
2

.1

7
7

.6

S
ch

ro
de

rs
 G

lo
ba

l E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 v

s.
 M

S
C

I E
M

 (n
et

)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

7

Page 70



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
td

. 
A

vg
. 
M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

1
5

5
,9

5
9

1
6

5
,6

3
0

M
e

d
ia

n
 M

kt
. 
C

a
p

 (
$

M
)

4
,5

7
3

7
,5

9
7

P
ri

ce
/E

a
rn

in
g

s 
ra

tio
1

4
.6

5
1

4
.0

4

P
ri

ce
/B

o
o

k 
ra

tio
2

.7
8

2
.7

9

5
 Y

r.
 E

P
S

 G
ro

w
th

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

1
6

.9
2

1
6

.7
0

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)
2

.8
1

2
.6

8

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
S

to
ck

s
2

,0
5

7
1

,2
5

2

S
e

c
to

r 
W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

w
a

b
 E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q

u
ity

 E
T

F
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

5
.0

1
0

.0
1

5
.0

2
0

.0
2

5
.0

3
0

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

U
til

iti
e

s

R
e

a
l E

st
a

te

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

In
d

u
st

ri
a

ls

H
e

a
lth

 C
a

re

F
in

a
n

ci
a

ls

E
n

e
rg

y

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
S

ta
p

le
s

C
o

n
su

m
e

r 
D

is
cr

e
tio

n
a

ry

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

tio
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
.0

0
.0

3
.5

2
.1

6
.3

2
1

.3

7
.2

3
.5

2
3

.2

5
.05

.7

1
3

.3

9
.0

0
.0

0
.0

2
.7

1
.7

5
.7

2
4

.3

6
.6

3
.4

2
3

.7

4
.64
.8

1
3

.1

9
.4

T
o

p
 T

e
n

 H
o

ld
in

g
s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

W
e

ig
h

t
(%

)

A
c

ti
v

e
W

e
ig

h
t

(%
)

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
R

e
tu

rn
(%

)

T
a

iw
a

n
 S

e
m

ic
o

n
 M

a
n

u
 C

o
1

0
.2

6
1

0
.5

4
-0

.2
8

8
.8

4

T
e

n
ce

n
t 
H

o
ld

in
g

s 
L

T
D

4
.3

3
4

.5
5

-0
.2

2
-6

.2
1

A
lib

a
b

a
 G

ro
u

p
 H

o
ld

in
g

 L
td

2
.3

4
2

.2
5

0
.0

9
-2

5
.0

9

H
D

F
C

 B
a

n
k 

L
im

ite
d

1
.5

2
1

.5
2

0
.0

0
0

.1
9

M
e

itu
a

n
1

.4
0

1
.2

6
0

.1
4

-1
1

.8
1

R
e

lia
n

ce
 I
n

d
u

st
ri

e
s 

L
td

1
.2

3
1

.1
3

0
.1

0
-1

9
.4

3

C
h

in
a

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 B
a

n
k 

C
o

rp
1

.0
1

1
.0

5
-0

.0
4

1
0

.2
0

In
fo

sy
s 

L
td

1
.0

0
0

.9
5

0
.0

5
-0

.7
7

X
ia

o
m

i C
o

rp
o

ra
tio

n
0

.9
4

0
.8

9
0

.0
5

5
3

.3
3

P
D

D
 H

o
ld

in
g

s 
In

c
0

.8
9

0
.8

8
0

.0
1

-2
8

.0
5

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

2
4

.9
2

2
5

.0
2

-0
.1

0

R
e

g
io

n
 W

e
ig

h
ts

 (
%

)

S
ch

w
a

b
 E

m
e

rg
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 E
q

u
ity

 E
T

F
M

S
C

I 
E

M
 (

n
e

t)

0
.0

2
5

.0
5

0
.0

7
5

.0
1

0
0

.0
1

2
5

.0

C
a

sh

O
th

e
r

P
a

ci
fic

N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ri

ca

E
M

U

E
M

 L
a

tin
 A

m
e

ri
ca

E
M

 E
u

ro
p

e
 +

 M
id

d
le

 E
a

st
 +

 A
fr

ic
a

E
M

 A
si

a

0
.0

0
.12

.2

0
.11
.0

6
.9

1
3

.2

7
6

.4

0
.0

0
.02

.3

0
.31
.0

6
.6

1
2

.1

7
7

.6

S
ch

w
ab

 E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
ity

 E
TF

 v
s.

 M
S

C
I E

M
 (n

et
)

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.1

8

Page 71



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 F
ix

ed
-In

co
m

e 
Fu

nd
 –

 S
ub

-A
dv

is
er

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
  

A
s 

of
  D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4 

 
 

  
 

P
G

IM
 - 

C
or

e 
F

ix
ed

 I
n

co
m

e 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 R

ic
ha

rd
 P

ic
ci

ril
lo

 (2
01

2)
 a

nd
 G

re
go

ry
 P

et
er

s 
(2

01
4)

 a
re

 S
en

io
r P

or
tfo

lio
 M

an
ag

er
s.

 T
yl

er
 T

ho
rn

 a
nd

 M
at

t A
ng

el
uc

ci
, p

or
tfo

lio
 

m
an

ag
er

s,
 w

er
e 

al
so

 a
dd

ed
 to

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 2

02
4.

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 to

 o
ut

pe
rfo

rm
 th

e 
Bl

oo
m

be
rg

 U
S 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e 
In

de
x 

ov
er

 fu
ll 

m
ar

ke
t c

yc
le

s.
 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
ve

st
s 

in
 a

 b
ro

ad
 ra

ng
e 

of
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

U
.S

. g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

, c
or

po
ra

te
 b

on
ds

, t
ax

ab
le

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
m

or
tg

ag
e-

ba
ck

ed
 o

r o
th

er
 a

ss
et

-b
ac

ke
d 

se
cu

rit
ie

s.
  T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

in
ve

st
 in

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f n

on
-in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s.
   

Th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r C
or

e 
Fi

xe
d 

In
co

m
e 

po
rtf

ol
io

s 
ut

iliz
es

 b
ot

h 
to

p-
do

w
n 

an
d 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

. S
ec

to
r a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 d
ur

at
io

n,
 y

ie
ld

 c
ur

ve
, 

an
d 

“in
du

st
ry

 b
ia

s”
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
us

in
g 

to
p-

do
w

n 
re

se
ar

ch
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 s
ou

rc
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 o

ur
 g

lo
ba

l m
ac

ro
ec

on
om

ic
 

re
se

ar
ch

 te
am

 a
nd

 h
ea

ds
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

to
r i

nv
es

tm
en

t t
ea

m
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ex
te

rn
al

 s
ou

rc
es

. A
ct

ua
l s

ub
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 s
ec

ur
ity

 s
el

ec
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

by
 s

ec
to

r 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

 a
fte

r c
on

du
ct

in
g 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l a
nd

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 re
la

tiv
e 

va
lu

e 
an

al
ys

is
. 

 


 

T
IA

A
 –

C
or

e 
B

o
n

d
 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 S

te
ph

en
 L

ib
er

at
or

e,
 C

FA
 is

 a
 M

an
ag

in
g 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 L
ea

d 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 M

an
ag

er
 (2

01
0)

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 a

 fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 to

ta
l r

et
ur

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n.
  T

he
 P

M
 a

ls
o 

le
ad

s 
th

e 
fir

m
’s

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 c

er
ta

in
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

so
ci

al
, a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
(“E

SG
”) 

cr
ite

ria
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

is
 a

cc
ou

nt
. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
ve

st
s 

in
 a

 b
ro

ad
 ra

ng
e 

of
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

U
.S

. g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

, c
or

po
ra

te
 b

on
ds

, t
ax

ab
le

 m
un

ic
ip

al
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
m

or
tg

ag
e-

ba
ck

ed
 o

r o
th

er
 a

ss
et

-b
ac

ke
d 

se
cu

rit
ie

s.
  T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

in
ve

st
 in

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f n

on
-in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s.
 T

he
 s

tra
te

gy
 s

ee
ks

 to
 a

dd
 v

al
ue

 th
ro

ug
h 

du
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

yi
el

d-
cu

rv
e 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
, s

ec
to

r a
llo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
se

le
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

fa
vo

rs
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 w
ith

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 in

 E
SG

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

ei
r p

ee
rs

. 

 


 

P
en

n
 M

u
tu

al
 –

 C
o

re
 P

lu
s 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
M

ar
k 

H
ep

pe
ns

ta
ll 

(C
IO

) a
nd

 G
re

g 
Za

pp
in

 a
re

 p
or

tfo
lio

 m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 w

or
ke

d 
to

ge
th

er
 s

in
ce

 2
01

4.
 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 s
tra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 to

 m
ax

im
iz

e 
to

ta
l r

et
ur

n 
in

 th
e 

co
re

 d
ur

at
io

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

m
ar

ke
t. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
pp

lie
s 

a 
va

lu
e-

ba
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 u

si
ng

 b
ot

h 
to

p-
do

w
n 

an
d 

bo
tto

m
-u

p 
in

pu
ts

, s
ee

ki
ng

 to
 e

xp
lo

it 
m

ar
ke

t i
ne

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
.  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 h

av
e 

fe
w

er
 o

ve
ra

ll 
po

si
tio

ns
 th

an
 o

th
er

 c
or

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

in
 th

e 
tru

st
 a

nd
 m

ay
 h

ol
d 

ac
tiv

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
po

si
tio

ni
ng

. 
     

3
.1

9

Page 72



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 F
ix

ed
-In

co
m

e 
Fu

nd
 –

 S
ub

-A
dv

is
er

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
  

A
s 

of
  D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4 

 
 

 

  


 

iS
h

ar
es

 C
o

re
 U

.S
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
on

d
 E

T
F

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Ja

m
es

 M
au

ro
 a

nd
 K

ar
en

 U
ye

ha
ra

 (t
he

 “P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

s”
) a

re
 p

rim
ar

ily
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 d
ay

-to
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d.

 M
r. 

M
au

ro
 a

nd
 M

s.
 U

ye
ha

ra
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
o-

m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
Fu

nd
 s

in
ce

 2
01

1 
an

d 
20

21
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 F
un

d 
se

ek
s 

to
 tr

ac
k 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 o

f t
he

 B
lo

om
be

rg
 U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
on

d 
In

de
x.

 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k 
Fu

nd
 A

dv
is

or
s 

(“B
FA

”) 
us

es
 a

 “p
as

si
ve

” o
r i

nd
ex

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 tr

y 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

Fu
nd

’s
 in

ve
st

m
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

e.
 U

nl
ik

e 
m

an
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

om
pa

ni
es

, t
he

 F
un

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 tr

y 
to

 “b
ea

t” 
th

e 
in

de
x 

it 
tra

ck
s 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 s
ee

k 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 d
ef

en
si

ve
 p

os
iti

on
s 

w
he

n 
m

ar
ke

ts
 d

ec
lin

e 
or

 
ap

pe
ar

 o
ve

rv
al

ue
d.

 
 


 

iS
h

ar
es

 1
0

-2
0

 Y
ea

r 
T

re
as

u
ry

 B
o

n
d

 E
T

F
 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
Ja

m
es

 M
au

ro
 a

nd
 K

ar
en

 U
ye

ha
ra

 (t
he

 “P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
er

s”
) a

re
 p

rim
ar

ily
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 d
ay

-to
-d

ay
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d.

 M
r. 

M
au

ro
 a

nd
 M

s.
 U

ye
ha

ra
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
o-

m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
Fu

nd
 s

in
ce

 2
01

1 
an

d 
20

21
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 F
un

d 
se

ek
s 

to
 tr

ac
k 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 o

f t
he

 IC
E 

U
.S

. 1
0-

20
 Y

ea
r T

re
as

ur
y 

Bo
nd

 In
de

x.
 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k 
Fu

nd
 A

dv
is

or
s 

(“B
FA

”) 
us

es
 a

 “p
as

si
ve

” o
r i

nd
ex

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 tr

y 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

Fu
nd

’s
 in

ve
st

m
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

e.
 U

nl
ik

e 
m

an
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
t c

om
pa

ni
es

, t
he

 F
un

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 tr

y 
to

 “b
ea

t” 
th

e 
in

de
x 

it 
tra

ck
s 

an
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 s
ee

k 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 d
ef

en
si

ve
 p

os
iti

on
s 

w
he

n 
m

ar
ke

ts
 d

ec
lin

e 
or

 
ap

pe
ar

 o
ve

rv
al

ue
d.

 
 


 

P
in

eB
ri

d
ge

 –
 I

n
ve

st
m

en
t 

G
ra

d
e 

C
re

d
it

 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 R

ob
er

t V
an

de
n 

As
se

m
, C

FA
, M

an
ag

in
g 

D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 H
ea

d 
of

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 M

ar
ke

ts
 IG

 F
ix

ed
 In

co
m

e 
(2

00
1)

 &
 D

an
a 

Bu
rn

s,
 S

r. 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 

M
an

ag
er

 (2
00

7)
 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
he

 to
ta

l r
et

ur
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 s

tro
ng

 re
tu

rn
s 

by
 c

om
bi

ni
ng

 a
 to

p-
do

w
n 

vi
ew

 w
ith

 a
 b

ot
to

m
-u

p,
 c

re
di

t i
nt

en
si

ve
 re

se
ar

ch
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
ve

st
s 

in
 U

SD
-d

en
om

in
at

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 c

re
di

t, 
fo

cu
se

d 
in

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
se

ct
or

. T
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

 is
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 c

om
bi

ni
ng

 
vi

ew
s 

of
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

ls
, v

al
ua

tio
ns

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
t t

ec
hn

ic
al

s 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
. 

         
3
.2

0

Page 73



Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 F
ix

ed
-In

co
m

e 
Fu

nd
 –

 S
ub

-A
dv

is
er

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
  

A
s 

of
  D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4 

 
 

 

 


 

B
ro

w
n

 B
ro

th
er

s 
H

ar
ri

m
an

 –
 S

tr
u

ct
u

re
d

 F
ix

ed
 I

n
co

m
e 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 N

ei
l H

oh
m

an
n,

 P
hD

, H
ea

d 
of

 S
tru

ct
ur

ed
 P

ro
du

ct
s 

(2
00

6)
, A

nd
re

w
 H

of
er

, H
ea

d 
of

 T
ax

ab
le

 P
or

tfo
lio

 M
an

ag
em

en
t (

20
06

) &
 C

hr
is

 L
in

g 
(2

02
0)

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
o 

de
liv

er
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 re
su

lts
 th

ro
ug

h 
ca

pi
ta

l p
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
ta

ki
ng

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
 o

f d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
ls

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
bo

tto
m

-u
p 

re
se

ar
ch

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 p

or
tfo

lio
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 a
ss

et
-b

ac
ke

d 
se

cu
rit

ie
s 

ba
ck

ed
 b

y 
as

se
ts

 o
th

er
 th

an
 re

al
 e

st
at

e 
(a

ls
o 

kn
ow

n 
as

 
no

n-
tra

di
tio

na
l a

ss
et

-b
ac

ke
d 

se
cu

rit
ie

s)
. T

he
se

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

m
ix

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t l
ea

se
s,

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 ro
ya

lty
 a

nd
 in

su
ra

nc
e-

lin
ke

d,
 a

nd
 b

ro
ad

 
co

ns
um

er
 re

la
te

d 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 c
re

di
t c

ar
d,

 a
ut

o 
lo

an
s,

 s
tu

de
nt

 lo
an

s 
an

d 
de

bt
 re

fin
an

ci
ng

. T
he

 s
tru

ct
ur

ed
 fi

xe
d-

in
co

m
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
in

ve
st

 a
 li

m
ite

d 
am

ou
nt

 in
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 m

or
tg

ag
e-

ba
ck

ed
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 th
at

 a
re

 s
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

ta
ng

ib
le

 a
ss

et
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l o
r r

ev
en

ue
 s

tre
am

s.
 T

he
 s

tru
ct

ur
ed

 fi
xe

d-
in

co
m

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
re

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 u
si

ng
 e

ith
er

 a
 b

ot
to

m
-u

p 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
or

 a
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
 p

ot
en

tia
l. 

 

 


 

B
ra

n
d

yw
in

eG
L

O
B

A
L

 H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

  

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
 B

ill 
Zo

x,
 C

FA
 a

nd
 J

oh
n 

M
cC

la
in

, C
FA

 h
av

e 
le

d 
th

e 
fu

nd
 s

in
ce

 it
’s

 in
ce

pt
io

n 
in

 2
01

4.
 J

ac
k 

Pa
rk

er
, C

FA
 w

as
 a

dd
ed

 a
s 

co
-p

or
tfo

lio
 

m
an

ag
er

 in
 2

02
3.

 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  S
ee

ks
 h

ig
h 

cu
rr

en
t i

nc
om

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 fo
r c

ap
ita

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n.
 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

Th
e 

fu
nd

 g
en

er
al

ly
 h

ol
ds

 o
ve

r 8
0%

 o
f i

ts
 a

ss
et

s 
in

 c
or

po
ra

te
 d

eb
t r

at
ed

 b
el

ow
 in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
.  

Se
cu

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
yi

el
d 

an
d 

to
ta

l r
et

ur
n 

po
te

nt
ia

l a
re

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 a
ss

et
 a

nd
 in

te
re

st
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

an
d 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s.
  

 


 

N
Y

L
I 

M
ac

K
ay

 S
h

ie
ld

s 
H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
 C

or
p

o
ra

te
 

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
An

dr
ew

 S
us

se
r i

s 
th

e 
le

ad
 p

or
tfo

lio
 m

an
ag

er
 (s

in
ce

 2
01

3)
. D

oh
yu

n 
C

ha
, W

on
 C

ho
i a

nd
 N

at
e 

H
ud

so
n 

w
e 

ad
de

d 
as

 c
o-

PM
s 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
24

.  
Th

ey
 a

re
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 a

bo
ut

 a
 d

oz
en

 a
na

ly
st

s 
an

d 
tra

de
rs

. 

• 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

  T
o 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
 th

e 
hi

gh
 y

ie
ld

 m
ar

ke
t o

ve
r t

he
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

pe
rio

r c
re

di
t s

el
ec

tio
n,

 w
hi

le
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 

do
w

ns
id

e 
ris

ks
. 

• 
St

ra
te

gy
:  

A 
bo

tto
m

-u
p,

 v
al

ue
-o

rie
nt

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 th

e 
hi

gh
 y

ie
ld

 m
ar

ke
t. 

 T
he

 te
am

 s
et

s 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 1

.5
x 

as
se

t c
ov

er
ag

e 
on

 th
e 

un
iv

er
se

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 b
on

ds
 th

en
 b

re
ak

s 
do

w
n 

th
e 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 in

to
 fo

ur
 ri

sk
 g

ro
up

s 
w

ith
 d

iff
er

in
g 

sp
re

ad
 le

ve
ls

 n
ee

de
d 

fo
r p

ot
en

tia
l i

nc
lu

si
on

. T
he

 re
su

lt 
is

 a
 d

iv
er

si
fie

d 
po

rtf
ol

io
 th

at
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
so

m
e 

ex
po

su
re

 to
 lo

an
s 

or
 in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 c

re
di

ts
. 

  

3
.2

1

Page 74



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

5
.8

0
6

.0
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
5

.6
0

4
.9

0

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

8
.2

0
8

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

4
.0

0
3

.4
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

F
ir

s
t 

A
m

e
ri

c
a

n
 M

u
lt
i-

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 F
u

n
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

B

Bel
ow

 B

C
as

h  or
 NR

3
.4

7
3

.1

1
1

.3
1

2
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
8

.7

4
0

.8

1
3

.5
1

4
.9

4
.5

2
.9

0
.5

4
.2

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

F
ir

s
t 
A

m
e

ri
c
a

n
 M

u
lt
i-

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
F

ix
e

d
 I
n

c
o

m
e

 F
u

n
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

ABS
C

LO

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

Em
g  M

ar
ke

ts

C
as

h/
O

th
er

4
7

.8

0
.7

0
.5

0
.0

2
6

.7
2

4
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
9

.0

1
.7

9
.8

3
.8

3
1

.3

2
4

.8

7
.1

1
.1

1
.4

Fi
rs

t A
m

er
ic

an
 M

ul
ti-

M
an

ag
er

 F
ix

ed
 In

co
m

e 
Fu

nd
 v

s.
 B

lm
bg

. U
.S

. A
gg

re
ga

te

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

2

Page 75



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

6
.0

4
6

.0
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
5

.4
4

4
.9

0

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

7
.6

8
8

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

3
.7

8
3

.4
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
G

IM
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

B

Bel
ow

 B

C
as

h  or
 NR

3
.4

7
3

.1

1
1

.3
1

2
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

3
2

.3
3

7
.8

1
0

.8
1

6
.3

1
.8

0
.2

0
.1

0
.7

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
G

IM
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

ABS
C

LO

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

Em
g  M

ar
ke

ts

C
as

h/
O

th
er

4
7

.8

0
.7

0
.5

0
.0

2
6

.7
2

4
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

9
.3

1
.1

7
.5

9
.4

4
3

.9

2
4

.9

1
.3

2
.0

0
.7

P
G

IM
 C

or
e 

Fi
xe

d 
vs

. B
lm

bg
. U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

3

Page 76



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

6
.5

0
6

.0
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
5

.5
3

4
.9

0

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

9
.2

1
8

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

3
.7

3
3

.4
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

T
IA

A
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

B

Bel
ow

 B

C
as

h  or
 NR

3
.4

7
3

.1

1
1

.3
1

2
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

1
2

.3

4
9

.1

1
6

.1
1

2
.4

3
.9

0
.6

0
.1

5
.5

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

T
IA

A
 C

o
re

 F
ix

e
d

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

ABS

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

Em
g  M

ar
ke

ts

C
as

h/
O

th
er

4
7

.8

0
.7

0
.5

2
6

.7
2

4
.3

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

2
5

.4

3
.6

5
.7

3
3

.2

2
7

.1

3
.1

1
.4

0
.6

TI
A

A
 C

or
e 

Fi
xe

d 
vs

. B
lm

bg
. U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

4

Page 77



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

6
.0

2
6

.0
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
5

.5
4

4
.9

0

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

8
.5

9
8

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

3
.8

5
3

.4
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
e

n
n

 M
u

tu
a

l 
C

o
re

 P
lu

s
B

lm
b

g
. 

U
.S

. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

C
as

h  or
 NR

3
.4

7
3

.1

1
1

.3
1

2
.3

0
.0

0
.0

2
0

.5

4
8

.3

1
3

.0
1

5
.8

1
.6

0
.8

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
e

n
n

 M
u

tu
a

l 
C

o
re

 P
lu

s
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

ABS
C

LO

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

C
as

h/
O

th
er

4
7

.8

0
.7

0
.5

0
.0

2
6

.7
2

4
.3

0
.0

0
.0

1
6

.1

1
.8

5
.5

7
.1

4
3

.6

2
3

.5

1
.6

0
.8

P
en

n 
M

ut
ua

l C
or

e 
P

lu
s 

vs
. B

lm
bg

. U
.S

. A
gg

re
ga

te

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

5

Page 78



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

5
.9

8
6

.0
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
4

.9
2

4
.9

0

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

8
.3

7
8

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

3
.4

6
3

.4
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

iS
h

a
re

s
 C

o
re

 U
.S

. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 B
o

n
d

 E
T

F

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 

A
g

g
re

g
a

te

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

C
as

h  or
 NR

3
.4

7
3

.1

1
1

.3
1

2
.3

0
.0

3
.1

7
1

.5

1
1

.7
1

2
.7

1
.0

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

iS
h

a
re

s
 C

o
re

 U
.S

. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 B
o

n
d

 E
T

F
B

lm
b

g
. 
U

.S
. 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

ABS

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

C
as

h/
O

th
er

4
7

.8

0
.7

0
.5

2
6

.7
2

4
.3

0
.0

4
6

.8

0
.6

0
.5

2
6

.6
2

5
.3

0
.2

iS
ha

re
s 

C
or

e 
U

.S
. A

gg
re

ga
te

 B
on

d 
E

TF
 v

s.
 B

lm
bg

. U
.S

. A
gg

re
ga

te

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

6

Page 79



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

1
2

.4
1

1
2

.6
6

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
4

.8
4

4
.8

5

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

1
7

.2
3

1
7

.4
0

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

3
.0

5
3

.3
4

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

iS
h

a
re

s
 1

0
-2

0
 Y

e
a

r 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 B

o
n

d
 E

T
F

IC
E

 U
.S

. 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 1

0
-2

0
 Y

e
a

r 
B

o
n

d
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

AA/A
a

C
as

h  or
 NR

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

9
9

.8

0
.2

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

iS
h

a
re

s
 1

0
-2

0
 Y

e
a

r 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 B

o
n

d
 E

T
F

IC
E

 U
.S

. 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 1

0
-2

0
 Y

e
a

r 
B

o
n

d
 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

C
as

h/
O

th
er

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

9
9

.8

0
.2

iS
ha

re
s 

10
-2

0 
Y

ea
r T

re
as

ur
y 

B
on

d 
E

TF
 v

s.
 IC

E
 U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y 

10
-2

0 
Y

ea
r B

on
d 

In
de

x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

7

Page 80



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

6
.6

4
6

.6
5

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
5

.3
8

5
.2

9

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

1
0

.3
9

1
0

.3
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

4
.2

4
4

.2
1

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
in

e
B

ri
d

g
e

 I
G

 C
re

d
it

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 

C
re

d
it
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

C
as

h  or
 NR

6
.8

9
.3

4
0

.0

4
4

.0

0
.0

2
.9

1
1

.3

3
3

.5

5
0

.8

1
.4

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

P
in

e
B

ri
d

g
e

 I
G

 C
re

d
it

B
lm

b
g

. 
U

.S
. 
C

re
d

it
 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

G
ov

't  & Rel
at

ed

M
un

i/L
oca

l  Aut
ho

rit
y

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

C
as

h/
O

th
er

1
0

.4
2

.6

8
7

.0

0
.0

0
.0

9
.1

0
.0

8
9

.4

0
.1

1
.3

P
in

eB
rid

ge
 IG

 C
re

di
t v

s.
 B

lm
bg

. U
.S

. C
re

di
t I

nd
ex

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

8

Page 81



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

2
.0

1
2

.7
5

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
6

.2
5

5
.9

8

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

2
.5

9
3

.6
3

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

A
A

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

4
.8

8
5

.0
1

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

B
ro

w
n

 B
ro

s
. 

H
a

rr
im

a
n

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 A

B
S

 F
x
d

 &
 F

lt
in

g
 R

a
te

 A
A

-B
B

B
 I

d
x

0
.0

1
5

.0

3
0

.0

4
5

.0

6
0

.0

AAA/A
aa

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

C
as

h  or
 NR

0
.0

3
2

.8

3
7

.2

3
0

.0

0
.0

0
.0

3
3

.1

9
.7

2
1

.3

1
1

.3

1
.5

2
3

.1

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

B
ro

w
n

 B
ro

s
. 
H

a
rr

im
a

n
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
d

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 A

B
S

 F
x
d

 &
 F

lt
in

g
 R

a
te

 A
A

-B
B

B
 I
d

x

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

ABS
C

LO

M
ortg

age
s

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

C
as

h/
O

th
er

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

7
5

.0

1
.9

1
8

.4

1
.0

3
.8

B
ro

w
n 

B
ro

s.
 H

ar
rim

an
 S

tru
ct

ur
ed

 v
s.

 IC
E

 B
of

A
 A

B
S

 F
xd

 &
 F

lti
ng

 R
at

e 
A

A
-B

B
B

 Id
x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.2

9

Page 82



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

2
.9

4
3

.1
5

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
7

.7
1

6
.9

3

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 W

o
rs

t
7

.5
3

6
.7

8

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

5
.1

7
4

.8
0

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

B
B

B

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

7
.2

4
6

.2
5

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

B
ra

n
d

y
w

in
e

 H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

B
lm

b
g

. 
B

a
 t

o
 B

 U
.S

. 
H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld

0
.0

2
5

.0

5
0

.0

7
5

.0

1
0

0
.0

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

B

Bel
ow

 B

C
as

h  or
 NR

0
.0

5
9

.1

4
0

.9

0
.0

0
.0

6
.4

3
4

.8

4
7

.0

6
.2

5
.6

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

B
ra

n
d

y
w

in
e

 H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

B
lm

b
g

. 
B

a
 t
o

 B
 U

.S
. 
H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

C
as

h/
O

th
er

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

4
.1

8
8

.3

7
.6

B
ra

nd
yw

in
e 

H
ig

h 
Y

ie
ld

 v
s.

 B
lm

bg
. B

a 
to

 B
 U

.S
. H

ig
h 

Y
ie

ld

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.3

0

Page 83



P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

E
ff
e

ct
iv

e
 D

u
ra

tio
n

2
.8

6
3

.2
2

Y
ie

ld
 T

o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

 (
%

)
7

.2
9

7
.6

5

A
vg

. 
M

a
tu

ri
ty

4
.4

1
4

.7
4

A
vg

. 
Q

u
a

lit
y

B
B

B

C
o

u
p

o
n

 R
a

te
 (

%
)

6
.1

7
6

.5
0

C
re

d
it

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

N
Y

L
I 

M
a

c
K

a
y
 H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
 C

o
rp

 B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 U

S
 H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
 I

n
d

e
x

0
.0

2
0

.0

4
0

.0

6
0

.0

8
0

.0

AA/A
a

A

BBB/B
aa

BB/B
a

B

Bel
ow

 B

C
as

h  or
 NR

0
.0

0
.0

0
.0

5
3

.4

3
4

.5

1
2

.1

0
.0

0
.1

0
.2

5
.9

4
6

.1

3
3

.9

7
.0

6
.9

S
e

c
to

r 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

N
Y

L
I 
M

a
c
K

a
y
 H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
 C

o
rp

 B
o

n
d

 F
u

n
d

IC
E

 B
o

fA
 U

S
 H

ig
h

 Y
ie

ld
 I
n

d
e

x

0
.0

5
0

.0

1
0

0
.0

1
5

0
.0

In
v  G

ra
de

 C
or

p

Hig
h  Yie

ld
 Cor

ps

C
as

h/
O

th
er

0
.0

1
0

0
.0

0
.0

5
.4

9
0

.0

4
.5

N
Y

LI
 M

ac
K

ay
 H

ig
h 

Y
ie

ld
 C

or
p 

B
on

d 
Fu

nd
 v

s.
 IC

E
 B

of
A

 U
S

 H
ig

h 
Y

ie
ld

 In
de

x

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

s
A

s
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
3

1
, 
2

0
2

4

3
.3

1

Page 84



T
h

is
 m

a
te

ri
a

l i
s 

fo
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
l i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
o

n
ly

 a
n

d
 is

 n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

a
d

vi
c
e

 o
r 

a
 s

p
e

ci
fi
c 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
s 

it
 w

a
s

p
re

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
re

g
a

rd
 t

o
 a

n
y 

sp
e

ci
fi
c 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

r 
fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s.

P
F

M
A

M
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

ls
 h

a
ve

 e
xe

rc
is

e
d

 r
e

a
so

n
a

b
le

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l c

a
re

 in
 t

h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 is
o

b
ta

in
e

d
 f

ro
m

 s
o

u
rc

e
s 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l t

o
 P

F
M

A
M

 a
n

d
 is

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 b
e

lie
ve

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
lia

b
le

 a
n

d
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
; 

h
o

w
e

ve
r,

 w
e

 c
a

n
n

o
t 

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
 it

s
a

cc
u

ra
cy

, 
co

m
p

le
te

n
e

ss
 o

r 
su

it
a

b
ili

ty
. 

W
e

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
lie

n
t's

 c
u

st
o

d
ia

n
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
ty

 h
o

ld
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
s.

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 d

a
te

s 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
cu

st
o

d
ia

n
 m

a
y 

d
if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 m
o

n
e

y 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

st
a

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
h

ile
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

a
re

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 h

e
re

in
 is

 a
cc

u
ra

te
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

, 
w

e
d

is
cl

a
im

 a
ll 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a

n
y 

e
rr

o
rs

 t
h

a
t 

m
a

y 
o

cc
u

r.
 R

e
fe

re
n

ce
s 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

is
su

e
rs

 a
re

 f
o

r 
ill

u
st

ra
ti
ve

 p
u

rp
o

se
s 

o
n

ly
 a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
re

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s 

o
r 

a
d

vi
ce

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 s

u
ch

 is
su

e
rs

. 
F

ix
e

d
 in

co
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 in

d
e

x 
ch

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

a
re

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l s
o

u
rc

e
s.

 W
h

e
n

a
ve

ra
g

e
 c

re
d

it
 q

u
a

lit
y 

is
 n

o
t 

a
va

ila
b

le
, 

it
 is

 e
st

im
a

te
d

 b
y 

ta
ki

n
g

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

va
lu

e
 w

e
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l c
re

d
it
 t

ie
rs

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

ra
te

d
b

y 
a

 N
R

S
R

O
.

It
 is

 n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 in
ve

st
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 in
 a

n
 in

d
e

x.
 T

h
e

 in
d

e
x 

re
tu

rn
s 

sh
o

w
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

is
 m

a
te

ri
a

l d
o

 n
o

t 
re

p
re

se
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

o
f 

a
ct

u
a

l t
ra

d
in

g
 o

f
in

ve
st

o
r 

a
ss

e
ts

. 
T

h
ir

d
-p

a
rt

y 
p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 in

d
ic

e
s 

sh
o

w
n

 a
n

d
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 t

h
e

 in
d

e
x 

le
ve

ls
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 s
h

o
w

n
 o

r 
d

is
cu

ss
e

d
. 

In
d

e
x

re
tu

rn
s 

d
o

 n
o

t 
re

fl
e

ct
 p

a
ym

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
y 

sa
le

s 
ch

a
rg

e
s 

o
r 

fe
e

s 
a

n
 in

ve
st

o
r 

w
o

u
ld

 p
a

y 
to

 p
u

rc
h

a
se

 t
h

e
 s

e
cu

ri
ti
e

s 
th

e
y 

re
p

re
se

n
t.

 T
h

e
 im

p
o

si
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
se

fe
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

a
rg

e
s 

w
o

u
ld

 c
a

u
se

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 t

o
 b

e
 lo

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 s

h
o

w
n

.

T
h

e
 v

ie
w

s 
e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l c

o
n

st
it
u

te
 t

h
e

 p
e

rs
p

e
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 ju

d
g

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

P
F

M
A

M
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
.

A
n

y 
fo

re
ca

st
, 

p
ro

je
ct

io
n

, 
o

r 
p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 t
h

e
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 t

re
n

d
s,

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

it
y 

o
r 

fi
xe

d
-i

n
co

m
e

 m
a

rk
e

ts
 a

re
 b

a
se

d
 u

p
o

n
 c

e
rt

a
in

a
ss

u
m

p
ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
o

p
in

io
n

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
is

su
e

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
. 

S
o

m
e

, 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
a

ll 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 n
o

te
d

 in
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
.

A
ss

u
m

p
ti
o

n
s 

m
a

y 
o

r 
m

a
y 

n
o

t 
b

e
 p

ro
ve

n
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 a
s 

a
ct

u
a

l e
ve

n
ts

 o
cc

u
r,

 a
n

d
 r

e
su

lt
s 

m
a

y 
d

e
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 e

ve
n

ts
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
o

r 
o

u
r 

co
n

tr
o

l.
 C

h
a

n
g

e
s

in
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

m
a

y 
h

a
ve

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l e
ff

e
ct

 o
n

 r
e

su
lt
s.

 O
p

in
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ri
ly

 in
d

ic
a

ti
ve

 o
f 

fu
tu

re
 e

ve
n

ts
 o

r 
e

xp
e

ct
e

d
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
.

P
F

M
 A

ss
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

rv
e

s 
cl

ie
n

ts
 in

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
ct

o
r 

a
n

d
 is

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n

 o
f 

U
.S

. 
B

a
n

co
rp

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 I
n

c.
, 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 t

h
e

 le
g

a
l e

n
ti
ty

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
a

d
vi

so
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 U
.S

. 
B

a
n

co
rp

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 I
n

c.
 is

 a
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
a

d
vi

se
r,

 a
 d

ir
e

ct
 s

u
b

si
d

ia
ry

 o
f 

U
.S

. 
B

a
n

k
N

.A
. 

a
n

d
 a

n
 in

d
ir

e
ct

 s
u

b
si

d
ia

ry
 o

f 
U

.S
. 

B
a

n
co

rp
. 

U
.S

. 
B

a
n

k 
N

.A
. 

is
 n

o
t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s,

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 o
r

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 o
f 

U
.S

. 
B

a
n

co
rp

 A
ss

e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 I
n

c.

N
O

T
 F

D
IC

 I
N

S
U

R
E

D
  
: 

  
N

O
 B

A
N

K
 G

U
A

R
A

N
T

E
E

  
 :

  
 M

A
Y

 L
O

S
E

 V
A

L
U

E

F
o

r 
m

o
re

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 P
F

M
A

M
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

o
r 

e
n

ti
ti
e

s,
 p

le
a

se
 v

is
it

w
w

w
.p

fm
a

m
.c

o
m

.

©
 2

0
2

4
 U

S
B

A
M

..
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 is

 n
o

t 
p

e
rm

it
te

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
p

ri
o

r 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 c
o

n
se

n
t.

IM
P

O
R

T
A

N
T

 D
IS

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
S

4

Page 85

http://www.pfmam.com


 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 8.2 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Audit Report 2023-2024  
  

 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached is the audit for fiscal year (“FY”) ending June 30, 2024, which consists of 
CAPRI’s Financial Statements and Independent Audit Report (Attachment 1), Internal 
Control Letter (Attachment 2), and the Auditor’s Communication Letter (Attachment 3).  
The auditor’s role in preparing this Report concerns forming and expressing an 
opinion(s) about whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material 
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State’s Controller’s 
Office and state regulations governing special districts. 
 
Consistent with prior years, the auditors have issued an unqualified or “clean” opinion, 
which means they can state, without reservation, that the financial statements are fairly 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
James Marta with James Marta & Company CPAs will be presenting at the Board 
Meeting addressing his firm’s Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accept the audit for the FY23-24 as prepared by the accounting firm, James Marta & 
Company LLP, Certified Public Accountants. 
 
REFERENCES MATERIAL ATTACHED: 
 

• CAPRI’s Financial Statements w/ draft of Independent Audit Report 

Page 86



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND 

RECREATION INDEMNITY 
  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 WITH 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
  

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 
DRAFT 

Page 87



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 

 

 
Dean Wetter 

President 
Valley-Wide Recreation and Park District 

 
Michelle Lacy 
Vice President 

Pleasant Hill Recreation and Park District 
 

Colin Miller 
Secretary 

Arden Park Recreation and Park District 
 

Lorena Cervantes 
Bear Mountain Recreation and Park District 

 
Jim Friedl 

Conejo Recreation and Park District 
 

Mathew Fuzie 
Livermore Area Recreation and Park District 

 
Jill Nunes 

Cordova Recreation and Park District 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Matthew Duarte 
Administrator 

 
 

Page 88



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
 

  
 PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Statement of Net Position 8 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 9 
Statement of Cash Flows 10 
Notes to the Financial Statements 11  

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of Program 30 
Claims Development Information         32 

 Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability      36 
 Schedule of Contributions          37 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information       38 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 
 Combining Statement of Net Position         40 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position    41 
Graphical Summary of Claims         42

Page 89



 James Marta & Company LLP 
           Certified Public Accountants 
 
                Accounting, Auditing, Consulting, and Tax  

  
 

701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3   Sacramento, CA 95825   (916) 993-9494 fax (916) 993-9489 
www.jpmcpa.com    jmarta@jpmcpa.com 

 

1

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
  
Board of Directors 
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity 
Roseville, California 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Statement of Net Position of California Association for Park and 
Recreation Indemnity(CAPRI), as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows for the years then ended and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise California Association for Park and Recreation 
Indemnity’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as 
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special districts. 
 
Basis of our Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s management is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about California Association for Park and 
Recreation Indemnity’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial 
statements are issued. 
 
 
 

Page 90

http://www.jpmcpa.com
mailto:jmarta@jpmcpa.com


 
 

 
2 

 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users made on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

 
• Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.  
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit.  
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of Program, Claims Development 
Information, Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions, and the 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
 
 

Page 91



 
 

 
3 

 
 

Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of California 
Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity.  The Combining Statement of Net Position, Combining 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Graphical Summary of Claims are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our 
opinion, the Combining Statement of Net Position, Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position and Graphical Summary of Claims are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DATE on our 
consideration of California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entities internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
DRAFT 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Sacramento, California 
DATE 

Page 92



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
 

Page 93



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

4 
 

The following report reflects on the financial condition of California Association for Park and Recreation 
Indemnity (CAPRI) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  It is provided in order to enhance 
the information in the audited financial statements, footnotes and supplemental schedules, and should be 
reviewed in conjunction with that report. 
 
Financial Highlights for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

• Total Assets were $37.9 million, which was an increase of ~$5.1 million from the prior year.  
This was mainly due to an increase in Cash and Investment balances. 

 
• Total Liabilities were $19.3 million, a decrease of ~$252,000 from the prior year. The change is 

due mainly to a decrease in Claims Liabilities. 
 

• Total Net Position was $18.8 million, an increase of ~$5.4 million.  The change in Net Position 
was primarily driven by increases in Member Contributions and Investment Income. 

 
• Total Member Contributions were $17.7 million, an increase of approximately $2.1 million from 

the prior year.  This increase in contributions is largely due to an increase in excess insurance 
premiums and the total covered payroll for the membership. 

 
• Total operating expenses were $15.1 million, an increase of $4.4 million from the prior year.  

This was mainly due to an increase in both Claims and Insurance Expense. 
 

• Total nonoperating income increased by ~ $2.4 million over the prior year due to increases in 
Investment Income. 
 
 

Description of the Basic Financial Statements 
 
The accounts and records are maintained in-house with the assistance of Gilbert CPAs and are the basis 
for the financial statements and supplemental information. The financial statements consist of the 
Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the 
Statement of Cash Flows.  
 
The Statement of Net Position provides information on CAPRI’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  The Statement 
of Net Position provides information as of a particular moment in time, and further subdivides the assets 
and liabilities into current and noncurrent categories to reflect the degree of availability of CAPRI’s 
resources (assets) and the expected timing of liquidating CAPRI’s obligations (liabilities). 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position illustrates CAPRI’s revenues earned 
and expenses incurred.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides 
information on CAPRI’s transactions over a period of time, and the resulting increase or decrease in net 
position. Revenues and expenses are further subdivided between operating and nonoperating, where 

Page 94



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

5 
 

operating revenues and operating expenses are those transactions that arise from CAPRI’s core purpose 
and mission. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash receipts and cash payments during the 
year.  The cash activity is subdivided between operating and investing activities in order to illustrate the 
respective net cash effect of these activities.  The statement of cash flows also reconciles accrual-basis 
operating income (or loss) from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position to net 
cash provided (or used) by operating activities. 
 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 

 
 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
 

 
 

Page 95



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

6 
 

Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations 2023-24 

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, total assets increased by approximately $5.1 million.  This 
change was primarily reflected in cash and investments balances, which collectively increased by 
approximately $4.9 million. Total liabilities decreased by approximately $252,000 during the fiscal year 
due primarily to a decrease in Claims Liabilities.  Overall, net position increased $5.4 million in the 
current fiscal year due primarily to an increase in Member Contributions and Investment Income. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2024, total member contributions increased by $2 million over the prior 
year.  The changes in actuarial estimates resulted in an increase of claims expense of approximately $2.2 
million. On an individual program basis, Property claims expense decreased by approximately $1.9 
million in comparison to the prior year, Liability claims expense increased by approximately $1.8 million, 
and Workers’ Compensation claims expense increased by approximately $2.2 million. These changes are 
primarily a result of actuarial adjustments in the estimated ultimate losses of prior fiscal years. Actual 
claim payments during the current fiscal year were approximately $3 million more than the prior year. 
 
Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations 2022-23 

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, total assets increased by approximately $5 million.  This change 
was primarily reflected in cash and investments balances, which collectively increased by approximately 
$4.4 million. Total liabilities increased by approximately $247,000 during the fiscal year due primarily to 
a an increase in Net Pension Liability.  Overall, net position increased $5.3 million in the current fiscal 
year due primarily to an increase in member contributions and a decrease in claims expenditures.  
 
During the year ended June 30, 2023, total member contributions increased by $3.1 million over the prior 
year.  The changes in actuarial estimates resulted in a decrease in claims expense of approximately 
$906,000. The decrease in Claims Expense was partially offset by increases in other Operating Expenses 
of approximately $801,000. On an individual program basis, Property claims expense increased by 
approximately $1.2 million in comparison to the prior year, Liability claims expense increased by 
approximately $865,000, and Workers’ Compensation claims expense decreased by approximately $3 
million. These changes are primarily a result of actuarial adjustments in the estimated Reserves of prior 
fiscal years. Actual claim payments during the current fiscal year were approximately $2.5 million less 
than the prior year. 
 
Currently Known Facts or Conditions Expected to have a Significant Effect on Financial Position  
 
 
In May 2023, the CAPRI Board of Directors authorized the formation of a Captive Insurance 
Company, Recreation Insurance Organization (RIO), in order to diversify CAPRI’s investment 
portfolio and more effectively finance its claims liabilities on a reinsurance basis.  An initial 
capitalization payment of $250,000 was transferred from CAPRI to RIO in June of 2023. RIO 
officially began operations on July 1, 2023, and $21.5 million was transferred from CAPRI to 
RIO in order to fund: (1) the transfer of CAPRI’s existing Claims Liabilities incurred through 
June 30, 2023 in CAPRI’s Workers’ Compensation and Property/Liability programs to RIO (the 

Page 96



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

7 
 

“Loss Portfolio Transfer”), and (2) a fully-reinsured program of Workers Compensation and 
Property/Liability coverage for the 2023-24 policy year (the “Go Forward Premium”). It is 
anticipated that RIO’s investment of the proceeds of the Loss Portfolio Transfer and the Go 
Forward Premium into a diversified portfolio of investments will allow CAPRI to more 
effectively finance its claims liabilities and stabilize rates for members in the long-term. Since 
RIO is a component unit of CAPRI, all of RIO’s activities will be consolidated into the 
consolidated financial statements of CAPRI.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 

Page 98



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  8

2024 2023

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,269,894$     10,526,811$     
Investments Maturing Within One Year 14,129,403      21,499,971      
Interest Receivable 118,700           64,030
Receivable from Members 525,612           560,394
Reinsurance Receivable 205,354 75,119
Prepaid Expenses 17,890            5,279              

Total Current Assets 28,266,853      32,731,604      

Noncurrent Assets
Investments 9,587,786        -                 
Right to Use - Asset 61,018 110,665           
Capital Assets (net) 15,806            8,962

Total Noncurrent Assets 9,664,610        119,627

Total Assets 37,931,463      32,851,231      

Deferred Outflows on Pensions 352,168 353,979           

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 276,278           228,269
Premium Adjustments Payable 264,376           136,786
Claims Liabilities 5,000,000 5,000,000

Total Current Liabilities 5,540,654        5,365,055        

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net Pension Liability 874,137 831,201           
Lease Liaibility 57,411 110,665           
Claims Liabilities 12,869,601      13,286,916      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 13,801,149      14,228,782      

Total Liabilities 19,341,803      19,593,837      

Deferred Inflows on Pensions 53,296 82,989            

Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,806            8,962              
Unrestricted 18,872,726      13,519,422      

Total Net Position 18,888,532$     13,528,384$     

NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Page 99



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  9

2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES

Member Contributions 17,744,194$     15,673,387$     
Miscellaneous Revenues 77,267 76,125             

Total Operating Revenues 17,821,461 15,749,512

OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims Expense 4,920,673        2,742,752
Insurance Expense 8,814,943        6,941,810
Claims Management 428,003           357,835
Office Administration Expense 747,665           529,460
Consultants and Professional Services Expense 141,574           135,993
Travel, Conferences and Other Expense 52,675             40,146
Depreciation Expense 4,911              3,438              

Total Operating Expenses 15,110,444       10,751,434       

Operating Income 2,711,017        4,998,078        

NONOPERATING INCOME
Investment Income (Loss) 2,649,131        289,563           

Change in Net Position 5,360,148        5,287,641        

Beginning Net Position 13,528,384 8,240,743

Ending Net Position 18,888,532$     13,528,384$     

Page 100



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.  10

2024 2023
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Contributions Received 24,162,566$    15,137,187$    
Miscellaneous Revenue Received 77,267            76,125            
Reinsurance Recoveries Received (Paid) (130,235) 22,707
Claims Expenses Paid (5,765,991) (3,173,675)
Premiums Paid (15,038,554) (6,942,745)
Salaries and Benefits Paid (641,976) (657,030)
General/Administrative Cost Paid (232,459) 192,488

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 2,430,618 4,655,057

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets (2,006)             (2,006)             

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (2,006)             (2,006)             

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment Income Received 1,441,480        459,902          
Purchase of Investments (22,174,545)     (23,328,250)     
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 21,047,536      22,159,853      

 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 314,471          (708,495)         

             Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 2,743,083        3,944,556        

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,526,811      6,582,255        
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,269,894$    10,526,811$    

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities
     Operating Income (Loss) 2,711,017$      4,998,078$      
     Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash 
          Provided (Used) by Operations:

    Depreciation 4,911 3,438
          (Increase) Decrease in:

 Receivable from Members 34,782            (357,103)         
 Reinsurance Receivable (130,235)         22,707            
 Prepaid Expenses (12,611)           (935)               
 Deferred Ouflow on Pensions (292,109)         (293,920)         

           Increase (Decrease) in:
 Accounts Payable 48,009            191,641          
 Premium Adjustments Payable 127,590          (179,097)         
 Claims Liabilities (417,315)         (73,088)           
  Pension Liablility, Net 346,102          303,166          
  Deferred Inflow on Penisons 10,477            40,170            

                 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 2,430,618$      4,655,057$      

Supplemental Information: Noncash Investing Activities
Change in Fair Value of Investments 1,152,981$      (172,992)$       

Page 101



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

11 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Organization 
 

The California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI) is a Joint Powers 
Authority which provides insurance coverages, risk management, safety and loss prevention 
services through a financially sound risk-sharing pool.  The original pool was created in 1986 
while the current organization is the result of the merger on July 1, 2008 between California 
Association for Park and Recreation Insurance and Park and Recreation District Employee 
Compensation (PARDEC).   
 
CAPRI’s membership consists of various recreation and park districts in California.  Through its 
various programs, members are able to pool member contributions and to realize the advantages 
of self-insurance. It provides coverage for property, general liability, workers’ compensation, 
public officials and employee liability, automobile liability, and other minor coverages.  CAPRI 
is under the control and direction of the Board of Directors consisting of representatives of the 
member districts. 
 
In May 2023, the CAPRI Board of Directors authorized the formation of a Captive Insurance 
Company, Recreation Insurance Organization (RIO), in order to diversify CAPRI’s investment 
portfolio and more effectively finance its claims liabilities on a reinsurance basis.  An initial 
capitalization payment of $250,000 was transferred from CAPRI to RIO in June of 2023. RIO 
officially began operations on July 1, 2023, and $21.5 million was transferred from CAPRI to 
RIO in order to fund: (1) the transfer of CAPRI’s existing Claims Liabilities incurred through 
June 30, 2023 in CAPRI’s Workers’ Compensation and Property/Liability programs to RIO (the 
“Loss Portfolio Transfer”), and (2) a fully-reinsured program of Workers Compensation and 
Property/Liability coverage for the 2023-24 policy year (the “Go Forward Premium”). It is 
anticipated that RIO’s investment of the proceeds of the Loss Portfolio Transfer and the Go 
Forward Premium into a diversified portfolio of investments will allow CAPRI to more 
effectively finance its claims liabilities and stabilize rates for members in the long-term. Since 
RIO is a component unit of CAPRI, all of RIO’s activities will be consolidated into the 
consolidated financial statements of CAPRI. 
 

B. Admission and Withdrawal of Members 
 

A new member may be admitted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors and must pay an 
entry fee or charge as established by the Board.  

 
Members may not voluntarily withdraw for a period of three years. Members must submit six 
months written notice prior to voluntary withdrawal. Members may be involuntarily terminated 
from the program by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors.  The effect of withdrawal or 
involuntary termination does not terminate the responsibility of the member for any unpaid 
member contributions and debts or assessments levied against any year of its participation. 

 

Page 102



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

12 

C. Description of Programs 
  
Property/Liability Program 

 
The Property/Liability Program was established for the purpose of operating and maintaining a 
self-insurance or group insurance program. Under this program, CAPRI provides its member 
districts the following coverage: 
 
a. Property (Building and Content) / Boiler and Machinery 
 

The program provides an all-risk replacement cost coverage, subject to a $2,000 deductible 
for each loss at member level, a $150,000 deductible at the pool level, and an aggregate limit 
of $650,000.  The earthquake and flood coverage has a $5,000,000 and $10,000,000 
aggregate limit, respectively, subject to a deductible of 5% per occurrence of the building, 
contents, and/or structure damaged subject to a minimum of $50,000 for earthquake and 
$20,000 for flood.  The program also provides coverage for sudden and accidental breakdown 
of boiler and machinery replacement cost coverage, subject to a $2,000 deductible for 
member level, and $150,000 at the pool level.  
 
In excess of the above coverages, CAPRI provides a group purchased commercial insurance 
policy through the Public Entity Property Insurance Program (PEPIP) for all-risk replacement 
cost coverage, subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) of $150,000 beginning April 1, 2005 
to present. 

 
b. General Liability and Public Officials and Employment Practices Liability 

 
CAPRI provides comprehensive coverage with a limit of $25,000,000 per occurrence for 
personal injury or property damage and a limit of $25,000,000 annual aggregate per member 
district for errors and omissions of public officials. CAPRI self-funds coverage up to 
$1,000,000.  Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM) (Formerly, CSAC 
Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA)) provides $24,000,000 of coverage over self-
insured retention of $1,000,000.   
 
This Program also includes Employment Practices Liability which is subjected to a $20,000 
deductible.  If the Member District consults with its general counsel and if such counsel has 
experience with labor and employment law, or with its labor and employment counsel, or 
CAPRI–recommended labor and  employment counsel prior to termination, layoffs, 
downsizing or other employment related matter, the deductible will be reduced to $5,000 for 
any employment liability lawsuit brought by that employee. 

 
Workers’ Compensation Program 

 
This program provides coverage to its members of up to statutory limits per occurrence, including 
volunteer operations as long as each member has issued a resolution covering volunteers.  CAPRI 
self-funds up to $350,000; losses in excess of this amount are covered by PRISM up to  the 
Statutory limit per occurrence. CAPRI also provides its members with proactive claim oversight 
by working closely our third party claims administrator and the members.   

 

Page 103



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

13 

D. Reporting Entity 
 

CAPRI’s reporting entity includes all activities (operations of its administrative staff, officers, 
executive committee and board of directors) as they relate to CAPRI.  This includes financial 
activity relating to all of the membership years.  CAPRI has developed criteria to determine 
whether other entities with activities that benefit CAPRI should be included within its financial 
reporting entity.  The criteria include, but are not limited to, whether the entity exercises oversight 
responsibility (which includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, 
designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations and accountability for 
fiscal matters, scope of public service and special financing relationship). 
 
CAPRI has determined that no other outside entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no 
agency has been included as a component unit in these financial statements.  In addition, CAPRI 
is not aware of any entity that would exercise such oversight responsibility that would result in 
CAPRI being considered a component unit of that entity.  In determining its reporting entity, 
CAPRI considered all governmental units that were members of the CAPRI since inception.   
The criteria did not require that inclusion of these entities in these financial statements principally 
because CAPRI does not exercise oversight responsibility over any members. 
 

E. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of Accounting 
 

These statements are prepared on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues from contributions and interest are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recognized when goods or services are received or in the case of 
claims, when the insured event occurs.  Liabilities for reserves for open claims and claims 
incurred but not reported have been recorded in the financial statements.  CAPRI applies all 
applicable FASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations, 
except where superseded by GASB pronouncements.    
 
Fund Accounting 

 
The accounts of CAPRI are organized on the basis of governmental fund accounting.  It operates 
a single enterprise fund which is used to account for governmental activities.  Enterprise fund 
type is used to account for “business-type activities” – activities similar to those found in the 
private sector. Business-type activities include services primarily funded through user charges.  
 
CAPRI’s operations consist of two core insurance programs each with separate program accounts 
to independently evaluate each program on its own. The accounts have been combined for 
presentation in the financial statements.   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank, 
money market funds, cash with the Local Agency Investment Fund, and all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with original maturity of three months or less.  

 

Page 104



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

14 

Receivables 
 

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the 
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.  At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the total 
accounts receivable portfolio was considered collectible.  Earnings on investments are recorded in 
the year the interest is earned. 
 
Investments 
 
CAPRI records its investments and cash in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) at fair 
market value. Changes in fair market value are reported as a gain or loss                                                                                                               
in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The effect of recording 
investments and LAIF at fair market value is reflected as a net increase or decrease in the fair 
value of investments on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and 
on the Statement of Net Position.   
Fair market values of investments and LAIF have been determined by the sponsoring government 
based on quoted market prices. CAPRI’s investments in LAIF have been valued based on the 
relative fair value of the entire external pool to the external pool’s respective amortized cost. 
 
Capital Assets 

 
All capitalized assets are carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation and 
amortization is provided for over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets using the 
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives used for building, improvements, and furniture 
and equipment are twenty-four, ten, and five years, respectively.  
 
Financing Leases 

 
A lease is defined as a contract that coveys control of the right to use another entity’s 
nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-
like transaction. The long-term liability and corresponding asset for financial leases are recorded 
in the financial statements. Related assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the 
life of the contract.  
 
Unearned Revenue/Prepaid Expenses 

 
The coverage/fiscal year-end for the programs is June.  As such, certain revenues are treated as 
unearned and certain expenses as prepaid.  This is to reflect a proper matching of revenues and 
expenses for the coverage/fiscal year-end financial statements. 

 
Unpaid Claims Liabilities  

 
CAPRI establishes claims liabilities (claim reserve and incurred but not reported) based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims, including future allocated claim adjustment expense, that 
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported.  The 
length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved.  
Estimated amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are 
deducted from the liability for unpaid claims.  Because actual claims costs depend on such 

Page 105



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

15 

complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the 
process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount, 
particularly for coverages such as general liability and workers’ compensation. 
 
Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical 
techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and 
other economic and social factors.  A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future 
claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data 
that reflect past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of 
past experience.  Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the 
periods in which they are made.  
 
Liability for Unallocated Loss Adjustment Expense (ULAE) 

 
The liability for ULAE includes all costs expected to be incurred in connection with the 
settlement of unpaid claims that cannot be related to a specific claim.  These amounts were 
determined in connection with other loss development information and are adjusted annually.   
 
Management Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

 
 Member Contributions 

 
Annual member contributions are calculated for each member district based on their respective 
operating expenditures, property values, number/value of vehicles, payroll and loss history, and 
other established criteria, and approved by the Board of Directors.  Member contributions are 
recognized as revenues in the period for which coverage is provided.  If the Board of Directors 
determines that the funds for a program are insufficient to pay losses, CAPRI may impose a 
supplemental assessment on all participating members. Anticipated investment income is not 
considered in this determination. Supplemental assessments are recognized as income in the 
period assessed. There have been no assessments in the program since its inception. 

 
The member contributions are planned to match the expense of insurance premiums for coverage 
in excess of self-insured amounts, estimated claim payments, and operating expenses.  

 
Member Assessments 
 
When claims against participating member districts for a claim year are of such a magnitude (as 
determined by the Board) as to endanger the ability of CAPRI to continue to meet its obligations, 
each member district which has participated in CAPRI during a particular claim year and/or any 
portion of the prior nine claim years may be assessed by CAPRI a pro rata share of the additional 
amount determined necessary by the Board of Directors to restore the ability of CAPRI to 
continue to meet its obligations. Each member district’s pro rata share of the total assessment 
shall be in the same proportion as the total premiums paid by that district during the current claim 
year and the prior nine fiscal years bear to the total premiums paid by all participating member 

Page 106



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

16 

districts during that period of time. Anticipated investment income is not considered when 
determining if a premium deficiency exists. 

 
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 
   
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in 
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as 
subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.  
Operating revenues are defined as revenues earned in connection with normal operating activities.   
All other revenues are classified as nonoperating. 
 
Dividends 
 
The Board can declare and pay dividends at any time after the close of the third year for a “claim 
year.” The total dividend shall be determined by the board.  Each member’s pro rata share of the 
dividends shall be paid in the same proportion as the premium paid by each district during the 
fiscal year for which the dividend is declared.  Dividends are recorded in the financial statements 
when approved by the Board. 

 
 Income Taxes 

 
CAPRI’s income is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, 
which excludes income derived from the exercise of any essential governmental function and 
accruing to a state political subdivision. 
 
Deferred Inflow/Outflow of Resources 

  
In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports separate sections for deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a 
consumption of resources that apply to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense) until then. Conversely, deferred inflows of resources represent an 
acquisition of resources that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow 
of resources (revenue) until that time. 
 
Contributions made to CAPRI’s pension plan(s) after the measurement date but before the fiscal 
year end are recorded as a deferred outflow of resources and will reduce the net position liability 
in the next fiscal year. 
 
Additional factors involved in the calculation of the CAPRI’s pension expense and net position 
liability include the differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, 
differences between projected and actual investment earnings, changes in proportion, and 
differences between CAPRIs contributions and proportionate share of contributions. These 
factors are recorded as deferred outflows and inflows of resources and amortized over various 
periods. 

 

Page 107



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

17 

Pension Liability 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the net position of the California 
Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) plans and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
Allocation of Indirect Expenses 
 
Indirect expenses are allocated among insurance programs in the percentage management 
estimates each program bears on administration costs. 
 
Statement of Cash Flows 
 
CAPRI considers interest on investments to be nonoperating revenue; therefore, investment 
income is presented in the investing section of the Statement of Cash Flows. 

 
2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
   
 Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consisted of the following: 
 

2024 2023

Bank Balance Per Books 2,525,491$     1,705,521$     
Money Market Funds 50,002 459,917
Cash in RIO 306,862         250,000         
Cash in Local Agency Investment Fund 10,387,539 8,111,373
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,269,894$   10,526,811$   

 
 

Cash in Bank is covered by federal depository insurance up to $250,000. Should deposits exceed 
the insured limits, the balance is covered by collateral held by the bank in accordance with 
California law requiring the depository bank to hold collateral equal to 110% of the excess 
government funds on deposit.  This collateral must be in the form of government-backed 
securities. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 

 
CAPRI is a voluntary participant in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is regulated 
by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the state of 
California and the Pooled Money Investment Board.  The State Treasurer’s Office pools these 
funds with those of other governmental agencies in the state and invests the cash.  The fair value 

Page 108



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

18 

of CAPRI’s investment in this pool, which approximates cost, is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements based upon CAPRI’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 
the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are 
recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account 
within twenty-four hours notice.  The Pooled Money Investment Board has established policies, 
goals, and objectives to make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity, and yield are not 
jeopardized.   
 
Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-
backed securities, other asset backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by Federal 
Agencies, government-sponsored enterprises and corporations. This fund bore an average annual 
yield of approximately 3.927% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  LAIF is currently unrated 
and has an average life of 217 days. The monies held in the LAIF are not subject to categorization 
by risk category. It is also not rated as to credit risk by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. LAIF is administered by the State Treasurer and is audited annually by the Pooled 
Money Investment Board and the State Controller’s Office. Copies of this audit may be obtained 
from the State Treasurer’s Office: 915 Capitol Mall, Sacramento, California 95814. 
 

B. Investments 
 
Investments as of June 30 consisted of the following: 

Investment Type 2024 2023
Mutual Funds 23,717,189$      -$               
Money Market -                  21,499,971      
Total 23,717,189$      21,499,971$     

 
Investment Policy   
 
As a governmental entity, CAPRI’s investment policy permits investments in U.S. Government 
obligations, federal agency obligations, California municipal obligations, prime quality 
commercial paper, certain banker’s acceptances, medium-term corporate notes, time certificates 
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market funds, and the State of California's Local 
Agency Investment Fund ("LAIF").  
 

 Interest Rate Risk 
 
As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates, 
CAPRI’s investment policy limits its investment portfolio to a maximum maturity of three years, 
except in cases on investments in US Treasuries or federal obligations for which the maximum 
maturity is five years. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

19 

As of June 30, 2024, the carrying values and maturities of CAPRI’s investments held in a 
managed portfolio were as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value < 1yr 1-3 yrs >3 yrs
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 14,129,403$      14,129,403$ -$              -$             
Mutual Funds - Equity 9,587,786         -              -                9,587,786      
Total 23,717,189$      14,129,403$ -$              9,587,786$    

Investment Maturities

 
As of June 30, 2023, the carrying values and maturities of CAPRI’s investments held in a 
managed portfolio were as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value < 1yr 1-3 yrs >3 yrs
Money Market 21,499,971$      21,499,971$ -$              -$             
Total 21,499,971$      21,499,971$ -$              -$             

Investment Maturities

 
 

Credit Risk 
 

It is CAPRI’s general investment policy to apply the prudent person standard:  Investments shall 
be made as a prudent person would be expected to act with intelligence and prudence, not for 
speculation, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be 
derived.  California law limits investments in medium-term corporate notes to the top three 
ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical ratings organizations.  However, CAPRI’s 
investment policy limits its corporate debt investments to the top two ratings. 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
CAPRI places no limit on the amount it may invest in Federal Government Agencies but restricts 
investments in California municipal obligations to a maximum of 30% of their portfolio. As of 
June 30, 2024 and 2023, no portion of CAPRI’s portfolio, excluding U.S. Government 
guaranteed obligations exceeds 5% of the total portfolio. 
 
Investments, including derivative instruments that are not hedging derivatives, are measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net 
position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments’ fair value measurements at June 30, 2024 
are as shown below: 
 

Investments: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Mutual Funds 23,717,189$    -$            -$           23,717,189$          
Total 23,717,189$    -$            -$           23,717,189$          

 
 

Page 110



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

20 

 
Investments’ fair value measurements at June 30, 2023 are as shown below: 
 

Investments: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money Market Accounts 21,499,971$    -$            -$           21,499,971$     
Total 21,499,971$    -$            -$           21,499,971$     

  
3. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital assets at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following: 
 

2023 Additions Retiremen 2024
Depreciable assets

65,520$    10,242$    -$          75,762$    
Computer Hardware, Software 36,906      1,513        -            38,419      

102,426    11,755      -            114,181    
Less Accumulated Depreciation 93,464      4,911        -            98,375      
     Depreciable assets, net 8,962        6,844        -            15,806      

Capital Assets, net 8,962$      6,844$      -            15,806$    

Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment

     Total depreciable assets

 
 

Depreciation expense was $4,911 and $3,438 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 
 

4. LONG-TERM LEASE AND RIGHT-TO-USE LEASE ASSET 
 
Long-term Lease – CAPRI is under a current lease for building space at 1075 Creekside Ridge Dr, 
Suite #240, Sacramento. Total rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $38,029. 
 
Right to use asset – In accordance with the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement 87, long-term leases that meeting certain criteria are required to be capitalized and recorded 
as Right-to-Use Lease Asset. The following lease met these criteria. 
 

a. The building space lease is for a 63 month term, to expire on September 2025. The rents are 
based upon a predetermined schedule with provision for certain other increases. This lease is 
a long-term lease that must be capitalized and recorded in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB 87. 
 

b. Total amount of the lease asset and related accumulated amortization. Amortization is taken 
over the lease term. 
 

Page 111



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 
 

 

21 

Lease Asset 240,182$            
Accumulated amortization (179,164)            
Right-to-Use Lease Asset 61,018$              

 
c. Leased assets by major classification 

 
Lease Asset - Office building 240,182$          

 
d. Variance payments included in the measurable lease; none. 
e. Other payments included in the measure lease; none. 
f. Principal and interest requirements to maturity; there is no cost of capital interest as defined 

by the contract. 
 

As of June 30, 2024, future minimum lease payments are as follows: 
 

Year Principal Interest Total
2025 57,411$       1,617$           59,028$       

Totals 57,411$       1,617$           59,028$       

 
g. Commitments under leases before commencement of the lease term; none. 
h. Components of any loss associated with an impairment related change in the lease liability; 

none. 
 

Page 112



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 22

5. UNPAID CLAIMS LIABILITIES 
 

CAPRI establishes an undiscounted liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which 
includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claims adjustment expenses.  CAPRI 
does not discount claims.  The following schedule represents changes in liabilities for CAPRI during 
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023: 

2024 2023

Unpaid Claims and allocated claims adjustment 
beginning of the fiscal year 18,286,916$  18,360,004$    

Loss portfolio transfer as of July 1, 2023 870,805 -                

Incurred claims and claims adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of the current

fiscal year 6,374,128 6,550,346
Increases (decreases) in provision for

insured events of prior years (1,453,455)    (3,449,759)
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 4,920,673 3,100,587

Payments
Claims and allocated claims adjustment expenses 

attributable to insured events of the current year 1,021,534     1,073,292
Claims and claims adjustment expenses

attributable to insured events of prior years 5,187,259     2,100,383
Total Payments 6,208,793     3,173,675

Total unpaid claims and claims adjustment
expenses at the end of the year 17,869,601$  18,286,916$    

Components of unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense:

Claims reserve 7,918,480$    8,170,867$      
Claims incurred but not reported 9,100,188     9,245,244
Liability for unallocated loss adjustment expenses 850,933 870,805

Total claims liabilities 17,869,601$  18,286,916$    

Current portion 5,000,000$    5,000,000$      
Noncurrent portion 12,869,601    13,286,916      

Total claims liabilities 17,869,601$  18,286,916$    
 

 
 
 

Page 113



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 23

6. PENSION PLAN 

A. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) - General Information about the 
Pension Plan 
 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in California 
Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit 
pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). 
Benefit provisions under the Plan is established by State statute and California Association for 
Park and Recreation Indemnity resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include 
a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits 
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit 
is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the plan are applied as specified 
by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows: 
 

Hire date
Prior to

 January 1, 2013
On or after 

January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.953% 6.750%
Required employer contribution rates 14.060% 7.680%  

 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for 
the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
The Authority is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and 
the contribution rate of employees. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension 
expense for the Plan were $108,865 and $98,931 respectively. 
 

Page 114



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 24

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

 
As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity 
reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of $874,137 
and $831,201, respectively. 
 
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity’s net pension liability for the Plan is 
measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the 
Plan is measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 rolled 
forward to June 30, 2023 using standard update procedures. California Association for Park and 
Recreation Indemnity’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was as 
follows: 

 
Proportion - June 30, 2023 Measurement Date 0.01748%
Proportion - June 30, 2022 Measurement Date 0.01776%
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.00028%

 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, CAPRI recognized pension expense of $15,054 and 
($101,528). At June 30, 2024, CAPRI reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
June 30, 2024 

 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 108,865$             -$                    
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 141,531               -                     

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions 14,275                 -                     
Changes in assumptions 52,776                 -                     
Changes in proportions -                     (46,369)               

Differences between expected and actual experience 34,721                 (6,927)                 

Total 352,168$             (53,296)$              
 

Page 115



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 25

$108,865 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended
June 30

2025 49,341$                       
2026 36,891                        
2027 99,714                        
2028 4,061                          
Total 190,007$                     

Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources

 
 

June 30, 2023 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 98,931$               -$                    
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 152,254               -                     

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions 928                     -                     
Changes in assumptions 85,174                 -                     
Changes in proportions -                     (71,809)               

Differences between expected and actual experience 16,692                 (11,180)               

Total 353,979$             (82,989)$              
 

 
$98,931 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date are recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the current year. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended
June 30

2024 34,314$                       
2025 28,732                        
2026 15,891                        
2027 93,122                        
Total 172,059$                     

Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources

 

Page 116



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 26

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuations 
were determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Payroll Growth Rate 2.75%
Projected Salary Increase (1) Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return (2) 6.80%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS' 

Membership Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employement
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses  

 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under 
Forms and Publications. 

 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90% for the plan. To 
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the 
Plan, CalPERS stress tested employer rate plans within the Plan that would most likely result in a 
discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, 
none of the tested employer rate plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 6.90 percent discount rate 
is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The stress test 
results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained 
from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.  

 
According to Paragraph 30 of GASB 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. For the CalPERS Plan, the 6.80% investment return 
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses 
are assumed 10 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 
6.90%. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net 
pension liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not 
find it to be a material difference. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 117



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 27

5. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued): 
 

In the December 2016 and April 2017 meetings, the Board voted to lower the funding discount rates used 
for the PERF. In making its decision, the Board reviewed recommendations from CalPERS team 
members, external pension and investment consultants, and input from employer and employee 
stakeholder groups. A lowered funding discount rate for the PERF will be phased in over a three-year 
period beginning July 1, 2018 for public agencies and school districts. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short- term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows 
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on 
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the Plan’s asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short term (first 11 years) and the long-term (60 
years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long- 
term, the present value of benefits was calculated for the Plan. The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash 
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was 
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one 
quarter of one percent. 

 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

 

Asset Class

Assumed 
Asset 

Allocation

Real Return 
Years 1 - 10 

(1,2)

Global Equity - cap-weighted 30.0% 4.45%
Global Equity - non-cap-weighted 12.0% 3.84%
Private Equity 13.0% 7.28%
Treasury 5.0% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5.0% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10.0% 1.56%
High Yield 5.0% 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 5.0% 2.48%
Private Debt 5.0% 3.57%
Real Assets 15.0% 3.21%
Leverage -5.0% -0.59%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period
(2) Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management Study  

Page 118



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 28

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents CAPRI’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each 
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what CAPRI’s proportionate 
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

June 30, 2024 
 
 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(5.90%) Rate (6.90%) (7.90%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability 1,251,031$          874,137$             563,920$                  
 

June 30, 2023 
 

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(5.90%) Rate (6.90%) (7.90%)

Plan's Net Pension Liability 1,190,269$          831,201$             535,776$                  
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.  
 
Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2024, CAPRI had no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan 
required for the year ended June 30, 2024.  

 

Page 119



 
CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023 

 
 

 29

7. JOINT VENTURE 
 

CAPRI participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Public Risk 
Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM) for its excess workers’ compensation insurance.  
The relationship between entities is such that PRISM is not a component unit of CAPRI for financial 
reporting purposes.  PRISM arranges for and provides primary and excess coverage for its members. 
PRISM is governed by a board which controls its operations including selection of management and 
approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member agencies beyond their 
representation on the board. Each member pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage 
requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in each entity. 
Summarized information for PRISM is as follows: 
 
A. Entity

B. Purpose To provide workers' compensation reinsurance protection

C. Participants 55 counties and 301 public entities

D. Governing Board 55 county board members and 7 public entity board members 

F. Condensed Financial Information
June 30, 2024

Total Assets 1,447,905,143$    
Deferred Outflows 4,372,357           

Total Liabilities 1,226,661,370
Deferred Inflows 4,005,637

Total Net Position 221,610,493$      

Total Revenues 2,033,100,970$    
Total Expenses (2,075,317,896)

Change in Net Position (42,216,926)$       

PRISM

 
 
 
Separate complete financial statements are available from PRISM at 75 Iron Point Circle, Suite 200, 
Folsom, California 95630 or on their website: www.prismrisk.gov 
 

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Management has reviewed its financial statements and evaluated subsequent events for the period of 
time from its year ended June 30, 2024 through DATE, the date the financial statements were issued.  
Management is not aware of any other subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

Page 120

http://www.prismrisk.gov


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 121



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

C
LA

IM
S 

LI
A

BI
LI

TI
ES

 B
Y

 T
Y

PE
 O

F 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 

 
C

A
PR

I 
 

A
S 

O
F 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

4 
 

 

 

30

20
24

20
23

20
24

20
23

20
24

20
23

U
np

ai
d 

C
la

im
s a

nd
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

cl
aim

s 
ad

jus
tm

en
t 

be
gin

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r
6,7

82
,1

30
$ 

 
4,

87
8,

38
3

$ 
 

11
,5

04
,78

6
$ 

 
13

,4
81

,62
1

$ 
 

18
,2

86
,91

6
$ 

 
18

,3
60

,00
4

$ 
   

Lo
ss

 p
or

tfo
lio

 tr
an

sf
er

 a
s 

of
 J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
3

(6
,45

9,
17

2)
-

   
   

   
   

(1
0,

95
6,9

39
)

-
   

   
   

   
  

(1
7,

41
6,1

11
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

 

In
cu

rre
d 

cl
aim

s a
nd

 c
lai

m
s a

dj
us

tm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s:
Pr

ov
isi

on
 fo

r i
ns

ur
ed

 e
ve

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t
fis

ca
l y

ea
r

(1
1,

44
5)

3,
87

8,
34

6
(8

,42
7)

   
   

   
 

2,
67

2,0
00

   
  

(1
9,8

72
)

6,
55

0,3
46

In
cr

ea
se

s 
(d

ec
re

as
es

) i
n 

pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r

ins
ur

ed
 e

ve
nt

s 
of

 p
rio

r y
ea

rs
-

   
   

   
   

(9
08

,2
41

)
-

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,5
41

,51
8)

-
   

   
   

   
  

(3
,4

49
,75

9)
To

ta
l i

nc
ur

re
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

cl
ai

m
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
(1

1,
44

5)
2,

97
0,

10
5

(8
,42

7)
13

0,4
82

(1
9,8

72
)

3,
10

0,5
87

Pa
ym

en
ts

Cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s 
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 in
su

re
d 

ev
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r
-

   
   

   
   

53
9,

77
5

-
   

   
   

   
  

53
3,5

17
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

1,
07

3,2
92

Cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

ad
ju

stm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 in
su

re
d 

ev
en

ts
 o

f p
rio

r y
ea

rs
-

   
   

   
   

52
6,

58
3

-
   

   
   

   
  

1,
57

3,8
00

-
   

   
   

   
  

2,
10

0,3
83

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

1,
06

6,
35

8
-

   
   

   
   

  
2,

10
7,3

17
-

   
   

   
   

  
3,

17
3,6

75

To
ta

l u
np

ai
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

ad
ju

stm
en

t
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r

31
1,

51
3

$ 
   

6,
78

2,
13

0
$ 

 
53

9,4
20

$ 
   

  
11

,5
04

,78
6

$ 
 

85
0,9

33
$ 

   
  

18
,2

86
,91

6
$ 

   

C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 u

np
ai

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
ad

ju
stm

en
t e

xp
en

se
:

C
lai

m
s 

re
se

rv
e

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
14

8,
31

6
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

02
2,5

51
$ 

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
8,

17
0,8

67
$ 

   
  

C
lai

m
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
ut

 n
ot

 re
po

rte
d

-
   

   
   

   
3,

31
0,

85
6

-
   

   
   

   
  

5,
93

4,3
88

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

9,
24

5,2
44

Li
ab

ilit
y 

fo
r u

na
llo

ca
te

d 
lo

ss
 a

dju
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
31

1,
51

3
   

   
32

2,
95

8
   

   
53

9,
42

0.
00

   
54

7,8
47

85
0,9

33
87

0,8
05

To
ta

l c
la

im
s 

lia
bi

lit
ies

31
1,

51
3

$ 
   

6,
78

2,
13

0
$ 

 
53

9,4
20

$ 
   

  
11

,5
04

,78
6

$ 
 

85
0,9

33
$ 

   
  

18
,2

86
,91

6
$ 

   

C
ur

re
nt

 p
or

tio
n

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
90

0,
00

0
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
3,

10
0,0

00
$ 

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0,0

00
$ 

   
  

N
on

cu
rr

en
t p

or
tio

n
31

1,
51

3
   

   
4,

88
2,

13
0

   
53

9,4
20

   
   

  
8,

40
4,7

86
   

  
85

0,9
33

   
   

  
13

,2
86

,91
6

   
   

To
ta

l c
la

im
s 

lia
bi

lit
ies

31
1,

51
3

$ 
   

6,
78

2,
13

0
$ 

 
53

9,4
20

$ 
   

  
11

,5
04

,78
6

$ 
 

85
0,9

33
$ 

   
  

18
,2

86
,91

6
$ 

   

Pr
op

er
ty

/L
ia

bi
lit

y 
W

or
ke

rs
' C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n

To
ta

ls

 
 A

s o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
3,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 p
or

tfo
lio

 tr
an

sf
er

 m
ov

ed
 a

ll 
pr

io
r y

ea
r c

la
im

s t
o 

RI
O

 a
s w

el
l a

s c
la

im
s m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d.
  T

he
 U

LA
E 

lia
bi

lit
y 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
 C

A
PR

I a
s p

ar
t o

f p
ro

gr
am

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n.

Page 122



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

C
LA

IM
S 

LI
A

BI
LI

TI
ES

 B
Y

 T
Y

PE
 O

F 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 

 
R

IO
 

 
A

S 
O

F 
JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
4 

 
  

31

 

20
24

20
23

20
24

20
23

20
24

20
23

U
np

ai
d 

Cl
aim

s a
nd

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
cla

im
s 

ad
jus

tm
en

t 
be

gin
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Lo
ss

 p
or

tfo
lio

 tr
an

sf
er

 a
s 

of
 Ju

ly 
1, 

20
23

6,7
82

,13
0

-
   

   
   

   
11

,5
04

,78
6

-
   

   
   

   
  

18
,28

6,9
16

-
   

   
   

   
   

 

In
cu

rre
d 

cl
aim

s a
nd

 c
lai

m
s a

dju
stm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s:

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r i

ns
ur

ed
 e

ve
nt

s o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
fis

ca
l y

ea
r

3,0
29

,00
0

-
   

   
   

   
3,

36
5,0

00
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
6,3

94
,00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
cr

ea
se

s (
de

cr
ea

se
s)

 in
 p

ro
vis

io
n 

fo
r

ins
ur

ed
 e

ve
nt

s o
f p

rio
r y

ea
rs

(4
48

,44
5)

-
   

   
   

   
(1

,0
05

,01
0)

-
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,45

3,4
55

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l in
cu

rre
d 

cl
aim

s a
nd

 c
la

im
 a

dju
stm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s

2,5
80

,55
5

-
   

   
   

   
2,

35
9,9

90
-

   
   

   
   

  
4,9

40
,54

5
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pa
ym

en
ts

Cl
ai

m
s a

nd
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

cl
aim

s a
dju

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s 

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 in

su
re

d 
ev

en
ts 

of
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 y
ea

r
44

6,7
33

-
   

   
   

   
57

4,8
01

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
1,0

21
,53

4
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

Cl
ai

m
s a

nd
 c

lai
m

s 
ad

jus
tm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s

at
tri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 in

su
re

d 
ev

en
ts 

of
 p

rio
r y

ea
rs

2,6
85

,69
1

-
   

   
   

   
2,

50
1,5

68
-

   
   

   
   

  
5,1

87
,25

9
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
3,1

32
,42

4
   

-
   

   
   

   
3,

07
6,3

69
-

   
   

   
   

  
6,2

08
,79

3
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l u
np

aid
 c

la
im

s a
nd

 c
lai

m
s 

ad
jus

tm
en

t
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r

6,2
30

,26
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,7

88
,40

7
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

,01
8,6

68
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Co
m

po
ne

nt
s o

f u
np

aid
 c

lai
m

s 
an

d 
cla

im
s a

dju
stm

en
t e

xp
en

se
:

Cl
aim

s r
es

er
ve

2,9
80

,62
2

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
93

7,8
58

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

7,9
18

,48
0

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Cl

aim
s i

nc
ur

re
d 

bu
t n

ot
 re

po
rte

d
3,2

49
,63

9
-

   
   

   
   

5,
85

0,5
49

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

9,1
00

,18
8

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
fo

r u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

lo
ss

 a
dju

stm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l c
lai

m
s l

ia
bil

itie
s

6,2
30

,26
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,7

88
,40

7
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

,01
8,6

68
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Cu
rre

nt
 p

or
tio

n
1,9

00
,00

0
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

 
3,

10
0,0

00
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
5,0

00
,00

0
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

N
on

cu
rr

en
t p

or
tio

n
4,3

30
,26

1
   

-
   

   
   

   
7,

68
8,4

07
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
12

,01
8,6

68
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l c
lai

m
s l

ia
bil

itie
s

6,2
30

,26
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

10
,7

88
,40

7
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
17

,01
8,6

68
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
op

er
ty

/L
ia

bi
lit

y 
To

ta
ls

W
or

ke
rs

' C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n

Page 123



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 –

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 A
N

D
 L

IA
BI

LI
TY

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

BE
FO

R
E 

JU
LY

 1
, 2

02
3 

 
A

S 
O

F 
JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
4 

 
  

32

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

*
1.

Re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

ev
en

ue
:

   
 E

ar
ne

d
2,

92
6,

62
3

$ 
   

  
2,

87
7,

54
9

$ 
   

  
3,

14
4,

88
5

$ 
   

 
3,

64
2,

53
0

$ 
   

 
3,

93
4,

45
8

$ 
   

 
6,

16
4,

84
0

$ 
   

 
7,

42
9,

45
9

$ 
   

 
7,

56
2,

37
5

$ 
   

 
9,

83
8,

12
0

$ 
   

 
12

,0
75

,4
75

$ 
  

   
 C

ed
ed

(1
,3

94
,1

60
)

   
   

 
(1

,4
51

,2
28

)
   

   
 

(1
,1

46
,5

97
)

   
  

(1
,4

94
,1

44
)

   
  

(1
,6

57
,4

89
)

   
  

(2
,3

31
,1

04
)

   
  

(2
,6

39
,3

87
)

   
  

(3
,5

19
,0

06
)

   
  

(4
,1

65
,0

86
)

   
  

(1
0,

52
5,

91
6)

   
   

 N
et

 e
ar

ne
d

1,
53

2,
46

3
   

   
  

1,
42

6,
32

1
   

   
  

1,
99

8,
28

8
   

   
 

2,
14

8,
38

6
   

   
 

2,
27

6,
96

9
   

   
 

3,
83

3,
73

6
   

   
 

4,
79

0,
07

2
   

   
 

4,
04

3,
36

9
   

   
 

5,
67

3,
03

4
   

   
 

1,
54

9,
55

9
   

   
 

2.
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

39
9,

05
4

   
   

   
  

39
0,

74
6

   
   

   
  

41
1,

51
1

   
   

   
 

43
1,

58
3

   
   

   
 

47
3,

30
1

   
   

   
 

62
2,

69
8

   
   

   
 

51
4,

56
2

   
   

   
 

59
1,

11
7

   
   

   
 

42
5,

42
3

   
   

   
 

59
7,

66
4

   
   

   
 

3.
Es

tim
at

ed
 in

cu
rre

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

e,
 e

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

   
 In

cu
rre

d
1,

61
0,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

24
4,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

94
3,

99
2

   
   

 
1,

81
7,

74
5

   
   

 
3,

08
0,

82
1

   
   

 
2,

18
1,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

72
0,

57
9

   
   

 
2,

18
2,

52
2

   
   

 
3,

87
8,

34
6

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 C

ed
ed

 *
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 N

et
 In

cu
rre

d
1,

61
0,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

24
4,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

94
3,

99
2

   
   

 
1,

81
7,

74
5

   
   

 
3,

08
0,

82
1

   
   

 
2,

18
1,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

72
0,

57
9

   
   

 
2,

18
2,

52
2

   
   

 
3,

87
8,

34
6

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
Pa

id
 (c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 a

s 
of

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
46

6,
27

2
   

   
   

  
24

2,
31

6
   

   
   

  
72

2,
35

1
   

   
   

 
32

7,
32

1
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0,

32
9

   
   

 
22

2,
42

5
   

   
   

 
49

8,
73

2
   

   
   

 
18

5,
98

4
   

   
   

 
53

9,
77

5
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
87

3,
08

9
   

   
   

  
66

4,
71

5
   

   
   

  
1,

32
7,

93
1

   
   

 
87

5,
34

4
   

   
   

 
1,

77
6,

37
0

   
   

 
74

3,
24

6
   

   
   

 
88

4,
22

0
   

   
   

 
58

4,
99

6
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
1,

54
2,

92
5

   
   

  
91

7,
84

4
   

   
   

  
1,

63
3,

37
0

   
   

 
1,

47
5,

77
4

   
   

 
2,

33
7,

16
1

   
   

 
92

8,
96

4
   

   
   

 
1,

27
1,

38
1

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
1,

52
2,

37
2

   
   

  
1,

31
1,

14
1

   
   

  
2,

72
1,

99
7

   
   

 
1,

61
7,

36
9

   
   

 
4,

82
8,

59
8

   
   

 
73

9,
86

5
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

2,
33

6,
73

6
   

   
  

1,
53

9,
13

1
   

   
  

2,
56

0,
97

7
   

   
 

1,
96

9,
38

1
   

   
 

4,
96

8,
54

5
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

2,
48

2,
27

9
   

   
  

1,
68

3,
13

2
   

   
  

2,
75

9,
48

1
   

   
 

1,
90

3,
81

3
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ix 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
2,

53
3,

91
9

   
   

  
1,

86
5,

78
1

   
   

  
2,

56
5,

80
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  S
ev

en
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
3,

65
0,

54
9

   
   

  
2,

13
1,

70
7

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
2,

79
6,

47
5

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 c
ed

ed
 c

la
im

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
:

2,
16

2,
69

0
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
4,

24
1

   
   

   
 

3,
90

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
35

0,
99

9
   

   
 

35
2,

90
5

   
   

   
 

21
,7

29
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 n
et

 in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
1,

61
0,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

24
4,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

94
3,

99
2

   
   

 
1,

81
7,

74
5

   
   

 
3,

08
0,

82
1

   
   

 
2,

18
1,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

72
0,

57
9

   
   

 
2,

18
2,

52
2

   
   

 
3,

87
8,

34
6

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
1,

57
9,

52
6

   
   

  
1,

26
2,

01
1

   
   

  
2,

38
1,

04
8

   
   

 
2,

44
8,

28
4

   
   

 
4,

86
2,

30
6

   
   

 
2,

06
1,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

20
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

03
1,

65
3

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
2,

35
7,

38
0

   
   

  
1,

22
5,

25
8

   
   

  
3,

07
3,

01
5

   
   

 
2,

01
4,

85
4

   
   

 
4,

84
4,

61
4

   
   

 
1,

76
0,

16
4

   
   

 
2,

20
0,

43
7

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
2,

45
3,

91
7

   
   

  
1,

72
3,

80
3

   
   

  
2,

73
2,

48
8

   
   

 
2,

14
7,

85
4

   
   

 
5,

21
6,

00
5

   
   

 
1,

48
3,

37
9

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

2,
95

7,
94

5
   

   
  

1,
82

1,
25

4
   

   
  

2,
63

1,
41

5
   

   
 

2,
03

1,
22

4
   

   
 

4,
96

9,
92

1
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

3,
12

5,
23

7
   

   
  

1,
83

6,
29

4
   

   
  

2,
77

8,
03

4
   

   
 

1,
90

3,
81

2
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ix 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
3,

10
1,

88
2

   
   

  
1,

90
0,

54
3

   
   

  
2,

56
5,

80
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  S
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
3,

65
0,

54
8

   
   

  
2,

13
1,

70
7

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
2,

79
6,

47
5

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
In

cr
ea

se
 (d

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 e

st
im

at
ed

in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
e 

fro
m

 
en

d 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

1,
18

6,
47

5
$ 

   
  

88
7,

70
7

$ 
   

   
  

62
1,

80
8

$ 
   

   
 

86
,0

67
$ 

   
   

   
1,

88
9,

10
0

$ 
   

 
(6

97
,6

21
)

$ 
   

  
(5

20
,1

42
)

$ 
   

  
(1

50
,8

69
)

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
*

As
 o

f J
ul

y 
1,

 2
02

3,
 R

IO
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r a

ll 
pr

io
r a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 c
la

im
s

**
C

ed
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e

Fi
sc

al
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0

Page 124



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 –

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 A
N

D
 L

IA
BI

LI
TY

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

A
FT

ER
 J

U
LY

 1
, 2

02
3 

 
A

S 
O

F 
JU

N
E 

30
, 2

02
4 

 
  

33

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

*
1.

Re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

ev
en

ue
:

   
 E

ar
ne

d
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
30

0,
76

8
$ 

   
 

   
 C

ed
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 N

et
 e

ar
ne

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
30

0,
76

8
   

   
 

2.
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

6,
94

6
   

   
   

 

3.
Es

tim
at

ed
 in

cu
rre

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

e,
 e

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

   
 In

cu
rre

d*
**

3,
42

6,
98

1
   

   
  

2,
16

4,
26

5
   

   
  

2,
87

7,
87

0
   

   
 

1,
98

9,
71

2
   

   
 

5,
50

0,
80

8
   

   
 

1,
41

0,
80

9
   

   
 

1,
53

2,
91

4
   

   
 

1,
59

2,
61

0
   

   
 

4,
62

7,
79

9
   

   
 

3,
02

9,
00

0
   

   
 

   
 C

ed
ed

 *
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 N

et
 In

cu
rre

d
3,

42
6,

98
1

   
   

  
2,

16
4,

26
5

   
   

  
2,

87
7,

87
0

   
   

 
1,

98
9,

71
2

   
   

 
5,

50
0,

80
8

   
   

 
1,

41
0,

80
9

   
   

 
1,

53
2,

91
4

   
   

 
1,

59
2,

61
0

   
   

 
4,

62
7,

79
9

   
   

 
3,

02
9,

00
0

   
   

 

4.
Pa

id
 (c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 a

s 
of

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

44
6,

73
3

   
   

   
 

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

94
9,

01
3

   
   

 
  T

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
98

0,
43

8
   

   
   

 
  T

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
36

4,
43

7
   

   
 

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

31
6,

01
2

   
   

 
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
49

6,
82

8
   

   
 

  S
ix 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

98
9,

71
3

   
   

 
  S

ev
en

 Y
ea

rs
 L

at
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
87

7,
87

0
   

   
 

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

16
4,

26
4

   
   

  
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

3,
42

6,
98

1
   

   
  

5.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 c
ed

ed
 c

la
im

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
:

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 n
et

 in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
02

9,
00

0
   

   
 

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

62
7,

79
9

   
   

 
  T

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

59
2,

61
0

   
   

 
  T

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
53

2,
91

4
   

   
 

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

41
0,

80
9

   
   

 
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
50

0,
80

8
   

   
 

  S
ix 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

98
9,

71
2

   
   

 
  S

ev
en

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
87

7,
87

0
   

   
 

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

16
4,

26
5

   
   

  
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

3,
42

6,
98

1
   

   
  

7.
In

cr
ea

se
 (d

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 e

st
im

at
ed

in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
e 

fro
m

 
en

d 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

*
As

 o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
3,

 R
IO

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

pr
io

r a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 c

la
im

s
**

C
ed

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e
**

*
Va

lu
at

io
n 

at
 ti

m
e 

of
 lo

ss
 p

or
tfo

rl
io

 tr
an

sfe
r

Fi
sc

al
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0

Page 125



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 –

 W
O

R
K

ER
S 

C
O

M
PE

N
SA

TI
O

N
 

 
C

LA
IM

S 
BE

FO
R

E 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

3 
 

A
S 

O
F 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

4 
  

 

34

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

*
1.

Re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

ev
en

ue
:

   
 E

ar
ne

d
3,

73
2,

18
2

$ 
   

  
4,

34
6,

64
1

$ 
   

 
5,

21
4,

99
0

$ 
   

 
5,

40
2,

99
0

$ 
   

   
5,

43
8,

40
7

$ 
   

 
5,

41
5,

43
0

$ 
   

 
4,

66
1,

79
2

$ 
   

 
4,

08
9,

34
2

$ 
   

 
6,

20
0,

95
5

$ 
   

 
6,

01
6,

39
2

$ 
   

 
   

 C
ed

ed
(6

98
,3

36
)

   
   

   
 

(8
42

,9
32

)
   

   
   

(1
,2

00
,2

92
)

   
  

(9
96

,0
96

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,1
04

,9
92

)
   

  
(1

,5
54

,0
70

)
   

  
(1

,7
59

,5
92

)
   

  
(2

,3
46

,0
04

)
   

  
(2

,7
76

,7
24

)
   

  
(4

,5
00

,0
27

)
   

  
   

 N
et

 e
ar

ne
d

3,
03

3,
84

6
   

   
  

3,
50

3,
70

9
   

   
 

4,
01

4,
69

8
   

   
 

4,
40

6,
89

4
   

   
   

4,
33

3,
41

5
   

   
 

3,
86

1,
36

0
   

   
 

2,
90

2,
20

0
   

   
 

1,
74

3,
33

8
   

   
 

3,
42

4,
23

1
   

   
 

1,
51

6,
36

5
   

   
 

2
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

23
4,

95
5

   
   

   
  

26
0,

34
7

   
   

   
 

27
7,

65
2

   
   

   
 

28
1,

83
3

   
   

   
   

28
1,

83
3

   
   

   
 

29
5,

98
1

   
   

   
 

34
3,

04
2

   
   

   
 

39
4,

07
7

   
   

   
 

28
3,

61
4

   
   

   
 

41
7,

84
3

   
   

   
 

3.
Es

tim
at

ed
 in

cu
rre

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

e,
 e

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

   
 In

cu
rre

d
3,

41
6,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

58
9,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

54
5,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

66
2,

43
0

   
   

   
3,

66
2,

43
0

   
   

 
3,

24
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

97
3,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

18
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

67
2,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 C

ed
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 N

et
 In

cu
rre

d
3,

41
6,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

58
9,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

54
5,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

66
2,

43
0

   
   

   
3,

66
2,

43
0

   
   

 
3,

24
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

97
3,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

18
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

67
2,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
Pa

id
 (c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 a

s 
of

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
47

7,
93

8
   

   
   

  
62

4,
49

2
   

   
   

 
42

3,
94

8
   

   
   

 
47

9,
36

8
   

   
   

   
57

8,
88

0
   

   
   

 
47

6,
41

5
   

   
   

 
38

9,
50

1
   

   
   

 
47

5,
32

2
   

   
   

 
53

3,
51

7
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
96

9,
93

9
   

   
   

  
1,

65
3,

71
6

   
   

 
1,

12
9,

82
5

   
   

 
1,

00
5,

98
9

   
   

   
1,

20
8,

53
2

   
   

 
98

5,
57

3
   

   
   

 
95

1,
65

5
   

   
   

 
1,

16
3,

29
5

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
1,

27
3,

08
8

   
   

  
2,

25
8,

26
7

   
   

 
1,

48
5,

45
0

   
   

 
1,

36
7,

67
9

   
   

   
1,

59
3,

28
1

   
   

 
1,

60
6,

94
8

   
   

 
1,

32
0,

00
6

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
1,

65
5,

58
1

   
   

  
2,

82
8,

79
7

   
   

 
1,

86
1,

19
4

   
   

 
1,

33
2,

60
9

   
   

   
1,

79
4,

16
8

   
   

 
1,

85
8,

34
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

1,
76

9,
41

9
   

   
  

3,
03

8,
73

1
   

   
 

1,
94

8,
36

6
   

   
 

1,
37

1,
49

4
   

   
   

1,
90

3,
19

6
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

1,
86

5,
71

2
   

   
  

3,
06

0,
20

9
   

   
 

1,
89

8,
00

2
   

   
 

1,
39

7,
94

2
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ix 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
1,

90
2,

31
9

   
   

  
2,

92
7,

36
9

   
   

 
1,

98
8,

14
2

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ev
en

 Y
ea

rs
 L

at
er

1,
90

4,
05

5
   

   
  

2,
96

3,
34

2
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  E

ig
ht

 Y
ea

rs
 L

at
er

1,
90

4,
79

6
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 c
ed

ed
 c

la
im

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
:

60
,8

52
   

   
   

   
 

76
5,

62
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
,9

89
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  

6.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 n
et

 in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
3,

41
6,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

58
9,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

54
5,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

66
2,

43
0

   
   

   
3,

44
4,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

24
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

97
3,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

18
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

67
2,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
3,

25
9,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

74
8,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

11
0,

84
1

   
   

 
3,

15
5,

00
0

   
   

   
3,

55
3,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

13
2,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

14
4,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

18
8,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
2,

63
0,

00
0

   
   

  
4,

06
3,

39
8

   
   

 
3,

16
4,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

84
5,

00
0

   
   

   
3,

29
8,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

31
3,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

93
0,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  T
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
2,

36
6,

71
9

   
   

  
4,

07
3,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

85
8,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

39
8,

00
0

   
   

   
3,

03
5,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

00
5,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

2,
48

1,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
85

8,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
70

7,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
24

5,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
75

4,
00

0
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

2,
39

0,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
72

5,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
66

2,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
15

7,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ix 
ye

ar
s 

la
te

r
2,

36
9,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

64
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

60
7,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  S

ev
en

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

2,
38

5,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
33

7,
01

4
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
  E

ig
ht

 Y
ea

rs
 L

at
er

2,
23

3,
00

0
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
In

cr
ea

se
 (d

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 e

st
im

at
ed

in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
e 

fro
m

 
en

d 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

(1
,1

83
,0

00
)

$ 
   

 
(2

51
,9

86
)

$ 
   

   
(9

38
,0

00
)

$ 
   

  
(1

,5
05

,4
30

)
$ 

   
  

(9
08

,4
30

)
$ 

   
  

(2
35

,0
00

)
$ 

   
  

(4
3,

00
0)

$ 
   

   
 

3,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

*
As

 o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
3,

 R
IO

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

pr
io

r a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 c

la
im

s

Fi
sc

al
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0

Page 126



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

C
LA

IM
S 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 –

 W
O

R
K

ER
S 

C
O

M
PE

N
SA

TI
O

N
 

 
C

LA
IM

S 
A

FT
ER

 J
U

LY
 1

, 2
02

3 
 

A
S 

O
F 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

4 
  

 

35

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

*
1.

Re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

ev
en

ue
:

   
 E

ar
ne

d
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
21

1,
69

0
$ 

   
 

   
 C

ed
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 N
et

 e
ar

ne
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

21
1,

69
0

   
   

 

2
U

na
llo

ca
te

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

7,
37

5
   

   
   

 

3.
Es

tim
at

ed
 in

cu
rre

d 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

e,
 e

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

   
 In

cu
rre

d*
**

2,
15

6,
00

0
   

   
  

2,
96

0,
56

6
   

   
 

2,
55

1,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
01

7,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
62

1,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
77

5,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
72

3,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
50

9,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
82

7,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
36

5,
00

0
   

   
 

   
 C

ed
ed

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

 N
et

 In
cu

rre
d

2,
15

6,
00

0
   

   
  

2,
96

0,
56

6
   

   
 

2,
55

1,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
01

7,
00

0
   

   
   

2,
62

1,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
77

5,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
72

3,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
50

9,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
82

7,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
36

5,
00

0
   

   
 

4.
Pa

id
 (c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 a

s 
of

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
4,

80
1

   
   

   
 

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

32
6,

55
9

   
   

 
  T

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

82
6,

15
1

   
   

 
  T

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
52

4,
66

2
   

   
 

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

91
3,

25
9

   
   

 
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
97

2,
22

7
   

   
 

  S
ix 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
41

0,
48

4
   

   
   

  S
ev

en
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
99

6,
05

1
   

   
 

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

96
0,

56
6

   
   

 
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

1,
91

6,
29

6
   

   
  

5.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 c
ed

ed
 c

la
im

s 
an

d
ex

pe
ns

es
:

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
Re

es
tim

at
ed

 n
et

 in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

:
  E

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
36

5,
00

0
   

   
 

  O
ne

 y
ea

r l
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

82
7,

00
0

   
   

 
  T

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

50
9,

00
0

   
   

 
  T

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
72

3,
00

0
   

   
 

  F
ou

r y
ea

rs
 la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

77
5,

00
0

   
   

 
  F

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
62

1,
00

0
   

   
 

  S
ix 

ye
ar

s 
la

te
r

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
01

7,
00

0
   

   
   

  S
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

 la
te

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
55

1,
00

0
   

   
 

  E
ig

ht
 Y

ea
rs

 L
at

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

96
0,

56
6

   
   

 
  N

in
e 

Ye
ar

s 
La

te
r

2,
15

6,
00

0
   

   
  

7.
In

cr
ea

se
 (d

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 e

st
im

at
ed

in
cu

rre
d 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
e 

fro
m

 
en

d 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

ye
ar

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

*
As

 o
f J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
3,

 R
IO

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

pr
io

r a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 c

la
im

s
**

C
ed

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e
**

*
Va

lu
at

io
n 

at
 ti

m
e 

of
 lo

ss
 p

or
tfo

rl
io

 tr
an

sfe
r

Fi
sc

al
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 Ju
ne

 3
0

Page 127



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
PR

O
PO

R
TI

O
N

A
TE

 S
H

A
R

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

ET
 P

EN
SI

O
N

 L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 

 
FO

R
 T

H
E 

FI
SC

A
L 

Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 J

U
N

E 
30

, 2
02

4 
  

36
 

  
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
4

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
6

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
8

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
0

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

1
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

02
2

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

3
(1

)

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
t p

en
sio

n 
lia

bi
lity

0.
01

80
6%

0.
01

92
5%

0.
01

79
8%

0.
01

77
6%

0.
01

79
6%

0.
01

78
5%

0.
01

77
8%

0.
02

52
5%

0.
01

77
6%

0.
01

74
8%

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

sio
n 

lia
bi

lity
44

6,
36

3
$ 

   
   

 
52

8,
03

5
$ 

   
   

 
62

4,7
04

$ 
   

   
 

70
0,1

26
$ 

   
   

 
67

6,
90

6
$ 

   
   

  
71

4,7
64

$ 
   

   
  

75
0,

09
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
47

9,
50

8
$ 

   
   

  
83

1,2
01

$ 
   

   
  

87
4,

13
7

$ 
   

   
  

Co
ve

re
d-

em
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll (

2)
34

2,
06

6
$ 

   
   

 
29

2,
79

8
$ 

   
   

 
22

1,4
66

$ 
   

   
 

33
4,8

85
$ 

   
   

 
37

3,
06

8
$ 

   
   

  
33

4,8
85

$ 
   

   
  

33
1,

23
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
35

8,
61

0
$ 

   
   

  
38

1,5
71

$ 
   

   
  

41
3,

02
8

$ 
   

   
  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 n
et

 p
en

sio
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

as
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

-e
m

plo
ye

e 
pa

yr
ol

l
13

0.
49

%
18

0.
34

%
28

2.
08

%
20

9.
06

%
18

1.
44

%
21

3.
44

%
22

6.
46

%
13

3.
71

%
21

7.
84

%
21

1.
64

%
Pl

an
s 

fid
uc

iar
y 

ne
t p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lity

76
.9

6%
78

.4
0%

78
.4

0%
73

.3
1%

75
.2

6%
77

.7
3%

75
.1

0%
88

.2
9%

76
.6

8%
76

.2
1%

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 s
ha

re
 o

f a
gg

re
ga

te
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 (3
)

62
,8

35
$ 

   
   

   
72

,5
13

$ 
   

   
   

78
,1

80
$ 

   
   

   
76

,2
50

$ 
   

   
   

86
,1

03
$ 

   
   

   
 

84
,2

64
$ 

   
   

   
 

87
,8

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
92

,10
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
98

,9
31

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

8,
86

5
$ 

   
   

  

(1
)

H
ist

or
ica

l in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is 
re

qu
ire

d 
on

ly
 fo

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
ds

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 G
A

SB
 6

8 
is 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
.

(2
)

Co
ve

re
d-

Em
pl

oy
ee

 P
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

ab
ov

e 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 p
en

sio
na

bl
e 

ea
rn

in
gs

 p
ro

vid
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

. 
(3

)
Th

e
pl

an
's

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

sh
ar

e
of

ag
gr

eg
at

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
m

ay
no

tm
at

ch
th

e
ac

tu
al

co
nt

rib
tio

ns
m

ad
e

by
th

e
em

plo
ye

rd
ur

ing
th

e
m

ea
su

re
m

en
tp

er
io

d.
Th

e
pl

an
's

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

sh
ar

e
of

ag
gr

eg
at

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
is

ba
se

d
on

th
e

pl
an

's
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
fid

uc
ia

ry
ne

tp
os

itio
n

sh
ow

n
on

lin
e

5
of

th
e

ta
bl

e
ab

ov
e

as
w

el
la

s
an

y
ad

di
tio

na
l

sid
e 

fu
nd

 (o
r u

nf
un

de
d 

lia
bil

ity
) c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
em

plo
ye

r d
ur

ing
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d.
 

   
 

 
 

  

Page 128



C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 P
A

R
K

 A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 IN
D

EM
N

IT
Y

 
 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
C

O
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

S 
 

FO
R

 T
H

E 
FI

SC
A

L 
Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 J
U

N
E 

30
, 2

02
4 

  

37
 

 

(1
)

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
(2

)
62

,83
5

$ 
   

  
72

,5
13

$ 
   

   
 

78
,1

80
$ 

   
  

76
,25

0
$ 

   
  

86
,10

3
$ 

   
  

84
,26

4
$ 

   
  

87
,80

4
$ 

   
  

92
,1

02
$ 

   
  

98
,93

1
$ 

   
  

10
8,8

65
$ 

   
  

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 in
 re

lat
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ial

ly 
de

te
rm

ine
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 
(6

2,8
35

)
  

(7
2,5

13
)

   
 

(7
8,1

80
)

  
(7

6,2
50

)
  

(8
6,1

03
)

  
(8

4,2
64

)
  

(8
7,8

04
)

  
(9

2,1
02

)
  

(9
8,9

31
)

  
(1

08
,86

5)
  

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

de
fic

ien
ce

y 
(e

xc
es

s)
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  

Co
ve

re
d-

em
pl

oy
ee

 p
ay

ro
ll (

3)
34

2,0
66

$ 
   

29
2,7

98
$ 

   
   

22
1,4

66
$ 

   
33

4,8
85

$ 
   

37
3,0

68
$ 

   
33

4,8
85

$ 
   

33
1,2

30
$ 

   
38

1,5
71

$ 
   

41
3,0

28
$ 

   
42

2,4
37

$ 
   

  
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

s a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 c
ov

er
ed

-e
m

plo
ye

e 
pa

yr
oll

 (3
)

18
.3

7%
24

.7
7%

35
.3

0%
22

.7
7%

23
.0

8%
25

.1
6%

26
.5

1%
24

.1
4%

23
.9

5%
25

.7
7%

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

Em
pl

oy
er

s
ar

e
as

su
m

ed
to

m
ak

e
co

nt
rib

ut
ion

s
eq

ua
l

to
th

e
ac

tu
ar

ial
ly

de
te

rm
ine

d
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
(w

hic
h

is
th

e
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

de
te

rm
ine

d
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n)
.

H
ow

ev
er

,s
om

e
em

plo
ye

rs
m

ay
ch

oo
se

to
m

ak
e

ad
dit

ion
al

co
nt

rib
ut

ion
st

ow
ar

ds
th

eir
sid

e
fu

nd
or

th
eir

un
fu

nd
ed

lia
bil

ity
.

Em
pl

oy
er

co
nt

rib
ut

ion
s

fo
rs

uc
h

pla
ns

ex
ce

ed
th

e
ac

tu
ar

ial
ly

de
te

rm
ine

d
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
.C

alP
ER

S
ha

sd
et

er
m

ine
d

th
at

em
plo

ye
ro

bli
ga

tio
ns

re
fe

rre
d

to
as

"s
id

e
fu

nd
s"

do
no

tc
on

fo
rm

to
th

e
cir

cu
m

sta
nc

es
 d

es
cr

ibe
d 

in 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

12
0 

of
 G

A
SB

 6
8, 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ar

e 
no

t c
on

sid
er

ed
 s

ep
ar

at
ely

 fi
na

nc
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

lia
bil

iti
es

.
Co

ve
re

d-
Em

plo
ye

e 
Pa

yr
ol

l r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 a
bo

ve
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pe

ns
ion

ab
le 

ea
rn

ing
s p

ro
vid

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
em

plo
ye

r. 

H
ist

or
ica

l in
fo

rm
at

ion
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

on
ly 

fo
r m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
iod

s 
fo

r w
hic

h 
GA

SB
 6

8 
is 

ap
pli

ca
ble

.

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
14

-1
5

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
15

-1
6

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
16

-1
7

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
17

-1
8

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
20

-2
1

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
18

-1
9

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
19

-2
0

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
21

-2
2

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
22

-2
3

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
23

-2
4

Page 129



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

38 
 

1. Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of Program 
 
The schedule represents the changes in claims liabilities for the current and previous year for all of 
CAPRI’s programs. 
 
2. Claims Development Information 

 
The table illustrates CAPRI’s earned revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment income compared to 
related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses assumed by CAPRI as of the 
end of the year. 
 
The rows of the table are defined as follows:  
 

1. This line shows the amount of required contribution revenue and reported investment revenue, 
amount of premium ceded to reinsurers, and net contribution and investment revenue. 

 
2. This line shows the amount of reported unallocated claim adjustment expenses and other 

unallocated costs. 
 

3. This line shows the total gross amount of incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment 
expenses, loss assumed by excess insurers or reinsurers, and total net amount of incurred claims 
and allocated claim adjustment expenses.  Amounts are presented as originally reported at the 
end of each policy year. 

 
4. This line shows the cumulative net amount paid as of the end of the policy year and each 

succeeding year. 
 

5. This line shows the reestimated amount for loss assumed by excess insurers or reinsurers as of 
the end of the current year for each policy year. 

 
6. This line shows the reestimated amount for net incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 

as of the end of each succeeding year for each of policy year. 
 

7. This line shows the change in net incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses from the 
original estimate, based on the difference between the latest reestimated amount for each policy 
year and the original net incurred claims and claim adjustment amounts reported. 

 
As data for individual policy years mature, the correlation between original estimates and re-estimated 
amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently recognized in less 
mature policy years.  
 
3. SCHEDULE OF PROPROTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET POSITION LIABILITY 

 
Changes in assumptions: There were no changes in assumptions 
 
 
 

Page 130



CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

39 
 

4. SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
If an employer's contributions to the plan are actuarially determined or based on statutory or contractual 
requirements, the employer's actuarially determined contribution to the pension plan (or, if applicable, its 
statutorily or contractually required contribution), the employer's actual contributions, the difference 
between the actual and actuarially determined contributions (or statutorily or contractually required), and 
a ratio of the actual contributions divided by covered-employee payroll. 
 
 
 

Page 131



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 132



 CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 
 COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

  40

CAPRI CAPRI RIO RIO
Property Workers' Property Workers' Eliminating 
Liability Compensation Liability Compensation Entries Total

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,732,589$      10,230,443$      184,117$          122,745$          13,269,894$  
Investments Maturing Within One Year -                -                  8,477,642         5,651,761         14,129,403    
Interest Receivable 71,220            47,035              267                  178                  118,700        
Receivable from Members 315,367          210,245            -                  -                  525,612        
Reinsurance Receivable -                205,354            -                  -                  205,354        
Due from 3,884,752 1,924,585         1,044,633         1,177,440 (8,031,410)          -               
Prepaid Expenses 10,734            7,156               -                  -                  17,890          

Total Current Assets 7,014,662       12,624,818        9,706,659         6,952,124         28,266,853    
Noncurrent Assets

Investment in Captive 125,000          125,000            -                  -                  (250,000)            -               
Investments -                -                  2,077,204         7,510,582 9,587,786      
Right of Use - Asset 61,018            -                  -                  -                  61,018          
Capital Assets (net) 15,806 -                  -                  -                  15,806          

Total Noncurrent Assets 201,824          125,000            2,077,204         7,510,582         (250,000)            9,664,610      
Total Assets 7,216,486       12,749,818        11,783,863        14,462,706        (250,000)            37,931,463    

Deferred Outflows on Pensions 211,301          140,867            -                 -                 352,168        

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 165,767          109,539 583.00             389                  276,278        
Due to 1,044,633 1,177,440 3,884,752         1,924,585 (8,031,410)          -               
Premium Adjustments Payable -                264,376            -                  -                  264,376        
Claims Liabilities -                -                  2,500,000         2,500,000         5,000,000      

Total Current Liabilities 1,210,400       1,551,355         6,385,335         4,424,974         (8,031,410)          5,540,654      

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net Pension Liability 524,482          349,655            -                  -                  874,137        
Lease Liability 57,411            -                  -                  -                  57,411          
Claims Liabilities 311,513          539,420            3,730,261         8,288,407         12,869,601    

Total NonCurrent Liabilities 893,406          889,075            3,730,261         8,288,407         13,801,149    
Total Liabilities 2,103,806       2,440,430         10,115,596        12,713,381        19,341,803    

Deferred Inlows on Pensions 31,978            21,318              -                  -                  53,296          

Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,806            -                 -                 -                 -                  15,806          
Paid in Capital -                -                 125,000            125,000            (250,000)            -               
Unrestricted 5,276,197       10,428,937        1,543,267         1,624,325         -                    18,872,726    

Total Net Position 5,292,003$      10,428,937$      1,668,267$        1,749,325$        (250,000)$           18,888,532$  

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Page 133



 CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 
 COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

  41

 
CAPRI CAPRI RIO RIO

Property Workers' Property Workers' Eliminating
Liability Compensation Liability Compensation Entries Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Member Contributions 11,866,871$  5,877,323$    2,919,893$       3,291,107 (6,211,000)$        17,744,194$      
RIO Administration 27,000          18,000          -                  -                  (45,000)              -                  
Miscellaneous 46,360          30,907          -                  -                  -                    77,267             

Total Operating Revenues 11,940,231    5,926,230      2,919,893         3,291,107         (6,256,000)          17,821,461       

OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims Expense (11,445)         (8,427)           2,580,555         2,359,990         4,920,673         
Insurance Expense 10,525,916    4,500,027      -                  -                  (6,211,000)          8,814,943         
Claims Management -               -               179,515           248,488            428,003            
Office Administration Expense 437,750        291,787        10,849             7,279               747,665            
Consultants and Professional Services Expense 70,947          47,098          40,997             27,532             (45,000)              141,574            
Travel, Conferences and Other Expense 27,076          18,050          4,529               3,020 52,675             
Depreciation Expense 2,947            1,964            -                  -                  4,911               
(Gain)/Loss on Liability Portfolio Transfer 58,944          58,944          (58,944)            (58,944)            -                  

Total Operating Expenses 11,112,135    4,909,443      2,757,501         2,587,365         (6,256,000)          15,110,444       

Net Operating Income (Loss) 828,096        1,016,787      162,392           703,742            2,711,017         

NONOPERATING INCOME
Investment Income (Loss) 208,604        139,069        1,380,875         920,583            2,649,131         

Change in Net Position 1,036,700      1,155,856      1,543,267         1,624,325         5,360,148         

Beginning Net Position 4,255,303      9,273,081      125,000           125,000            (250,000)            13,528,384       

Ending Net Position 5,292,003$    10,428,937$  1,668,267$       1,749,325$       (250,000)$           18,888,532$      

Page 134



 CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION FOR PARK AND RECREATION INDEMNITY 
 
 GRAPHICAL SUMMARY OF CLAIMS 

 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 

  
 

42

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Policy Year

Property & Liability Claims

Paid Reserves IBNR
 

 

Page 135



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 8.3 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Insurance Market Report 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Mr. Doug Wozniak of Alliant Insurance Services will present at the Board Meeting and 
provide an update on the current insurance market and outlook for the 2025-2026 
renewal. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• PRISM February 2025 Budget Estimate 

Page 136



PARDE

California Association for Park and Recreation Insurance (CAPRI)

Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM)

2025/26 Budget Estimates, February 2025

0

This second round of estimates have been prepared to further aid you in budgeting for the 2025/26 
fiscal year. Since the initial version provided in October, we have updated the budget estimates to 
reflect the estimated 2025/26 exposure information submitted via the renewal applications and losses 
evaluated as of 6/30/2024. At the direction of the Board of Directors, the estimates provided are 
intended to be conservative; however, final premiums may be in excess of these estimates. PRISM 
has contemplated surcharge debits into these estimates. Surcharge credits from the prior year are not 
included. Pool rates and reinsurance/excess premiums are still estimated and pending Board 
approval in March therefore, we recommend you budget towards the high end of the range. Final 
estimates will be provided the first week of June 2025. 

If you are aware that you have had any substantial changes over the past 12 months, please contact 
Sarah Bishop and a better estimate will be developed for you.

$107,656,035
$127,838,022

PRISM pool rates are updated in this round of budget estimates, but are pending PRISM's Board 
approval in March of 2025. We have updated the budget estimates to reflect the estimated 2025/26 
exposure information submitted via the renewal applications and losses evaluated as of 6/30/2024. 
Reinsurance/Excess Premiums are estimated with assumptions applied at this time. Administrative 
costs and fees are also estimated. Members who reported payroll exposure increases greater than 
5% over last year, may see premium increases that are higher than the range provided in October.  If 
your agency has directed us to apply the 2023/24 payroll audit to your 2025/26 premium, it has been 
included in the total collection shown. If you have decided to handle the payroll audit outside of the 
renewal premium, the estimated premium shown is the estimated total collection. As noted in the 
introduction, these estimates also do not contemplate any premium credits based on loss experience.

Premium

$1,299,000 $1,342,000

Excess Workers' Compensation Program

2023/24 Estimated Payroll:
2024/25 Estimated Payroll:

 to 

$875,47123/24 Premium:

25/26 Estimated Premium: 2025/26 Estimated Payroll: $140,883,370
Payroll Audit: $266,358
Estimated Collectible: $1,565,358 $1,608,358 to

23/24 Premium:
$1,067,47424/25 Premium:

$103,171,027
$126,977,984

Pool rates are currently being developed by the Actuarial Department and are still pending. Once 
finalized, we will provide the GL estimate in a separate report in the coming weeks.

Premium

General Liability 1 Program

2023/24 Estimated Payroll:
2024/25 Estimated Payroll:

$1,755,755

TBD  

23/24 Premium:

25/26 Estimated Premium: 2025/26 Estimated Payroll: $140,730,471

23/24 Premium:
$2,189,57324/25 Premium:

Page 137



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 8.4 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: WC Program Status Report 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached hereto is a summary of the Workers’ Compensation claims history organized by 
Fiscal year as of December 31, 2024.  The total number of open claims currently sits at 
132.  
 
Below is a historical comparison of the status of the program management with CAPRI’s 
total open claims as of January 1st for the past several years. 
 

 
 

 
Additionally, below is a historical comparison of the program’s claim frequency with the 
total claims made per fiscal year as of January 1st as well as the average number of claims 
made per month that year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180

Total Open Claims
Jan 2018 - Jan 2025 Year 

Total 
Open 
Claims 

Jan-18 163 
Jan-19 128 
Jan-20 102 
Jan-21 96 
Jan-22 113 
Jan-23 120 

Jan-24 121 

Jan-25 130 

Page 138



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Finally, the attachments also include the Annual Report from NPA Return to Work 
Services. This report provides information related to the program’s utilization of the 
Return to Work program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Summary of WC Claims by Fiscal Year as of December 31, 2024 
• NPA Return to Work Services Annual Report 
 

 

Year 
Claims 

This 
Period 

Average 
Claims 

Per 
Month 

Jan-18 111 18.50 

Jan-19 81 13.50 

Jan-20 89 14.83 

Jan-21 47 7.83 

Jan-22 75 12.50 

Jan-23 65 10.83 

Jan-24 74 12.33 

Jan-25 74 12.33 0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Claims This Period
(Peroid: July - Dec)
Jan 2018 - Jan 2025

Page 139



Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

O
pe

n
C

lo
se

d
To

ta
l

In
cu

rr
ed

C
ha

ng
e 

Th
is

P
er

io
d

P
ai

d 
Th

is
P

er
io

d
R

es
er

ve
d 

Th
is

P
er

io
d

To
ta

l P
ai

d
To

ta
l R

es
er

ve
To

ta
l I

nc
ur

re
d

R
ec

ov
er

y
N

et
 In

cu
rr

ed

19
78

 - 
19

79
0

15
15

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

82
,8

16
.5

6
0.

00
82

,8
16

.5
6

0.
00

82
,8

16
.5

6

19
79

 - 
19

80
0

25
25

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
4,

05
8.

47
0.

00
31

4,
05

8.
47

0.
00

31
4,

05
8.

47

19
80

 - 
19

81
0

60
60

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
4,

81
9.

24
0.

00
10

4,
81

9.
24

0.
00

10
4,

81
9.

24

19
81

 - 
19

82
0

11
7

11
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
74

7,
44

6.
03

0.
00

2,
74

7,
44

6.
03

2,
56

8,
21

2.
54

17
9,

23
3.

49

19
82

 - 
19

83
0

14
7

14
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
7,

26
1.

42
0.

00
28

7,
26

1.
42

9,
50

0.
00

27
7,

76
1.

42

19
83

 - 
19

84
0

20
0

20
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

27
6,

37
1.

73
0.

00
27

6,
37

1.
73

0.
00

27
6,

37
1.

73

19
84

 - 
19

85
0

14
7

14
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

24
2,

20
3.

78
0.

00
24

2,
20

3.
78

2,
27

6.
88

23
9,

92
6.

90

19
85

 - 
19

86
0

20
3

20
3

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

46
0,

94
7.

50
0.

00
46

0,
94

7.
50

0.
00

46
0,

94
7.

50

19
86

 - 
19

87
0

26
5

26
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

81
7,

21
0.

40
0.

00
81

7,
21

0.
40

17
0,

66
7.

80
64

6,
54

2.
60

19
87

 - 
19

88
0

26
4

26
4

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

99
3,

71
1.

22
0.

00
99

3,
71

1.
22

1,
92

3.
75

99
1,

78
7.

47

19
88

 - 
19

89
0

23
4

23
4

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

77
4,

22
2.

20
0.

00
77

4,
22

2.
20

0.
00

77
4,

22
2.

20

19
89

 - 
19

90
0

31
2

31
2

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

98
7,

69
2.

44
0.

00
98

7,
69

2.
44

2,
72

5.
87

98
4,

96
6.

57

19
90

 - 
19

91
0

26
9

26
9

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

94
0,

24
1.

49
0.

00
94

0,
24

1.
49

3,
44

6.
00

93
6,

79
5.

49

19
91

 - 
19

92
0

34
9

34
9

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
63

9,
56

2.
92

0.
00

1,
63

9,
56

2.
92

33
2,

32
6.

03
1,

30
7,

23
6.

89

19
92

 - 
19

93
0

27
7

27
7

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
57

0,
05

1.
74

0.
00

1,
57

0,
05

1.
74

56
,2

13
.5

2
1,

51
3,

83
8.

22

19
93

 - 
19

94
0

29
3

29
3

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
01

1,
29

7.
68

0.
00

1,
01

1,
29

7.
68

5,
49

9.
00

1,
00

5,
79

8.
68

19
94

 - 
19

95
0

30
1

30
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
11

3,
09

2.
68

0.
00

1,
11

3,
09

2.
68

30
,0

75
.9

4
1,

08
3,

01
6.

74

20
05

 - 
20

06
1

22
0

22
1

0.
00

17
,6

93
.1

5
-1

7,
69

3.
15

8,
07

1,
55

4.
65

8,
54

2,
85

0.
38

16
,6

14
,4

05
.0

3
5,

27
4,

06
9.

23
11

,3
40

,3
35

.8
0

20
06

 - 
20

07
1

19
1

19
2

0.
00

74
4.

09
-7

44
.0

9
1,

45
8,

91
4.

43
43

,0
00

.1
7

1,
50

1,
91

4.
60

38
,5

00
.0

0
1,

46
3,

41
4.

60

20
07

 - 
20

08
0

22
6

22
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
82

0,
76

2.
09

0.
00

2,
82

0,
76

2.
09

68
2.

00
2,

82
0,

08
0.

09

20
08

 - 
20

09
0

22
6

22
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
38

4,
06

5.
42

0.
00

2,
38

4,
06

5.
42

10
6,

80
9.

97
2,

27
7,

25
5.

45

20
09

 - 
20

10
2

22
3

22
5

81
,1

77
.3

1
7,

08
9.

54
74

,0
87

.7
7

2,
62

7,
72

2.
64

32
0,

61
1.

00
2,

94
8,

33
3.

64
16

,4
94

.0
5

2,
93

1,
83

9.
59

20
10

 - 
20

11
0

25
1

25
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
44

4,
30

0.
74

0.
00

2,
44

4,
30

0.
74

2,
25

5.
18

2,
44

2,
04

5.
56

20
11

 - 
20

12
3

22
5

22
8

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
29

6,
05

1.
68

18
5,

82
8.

40
4,

48
1,

88
0.

08
1,

14
1,

77
4.

94
3,

34
0,

10
5.

14

20
12

 - 
20

13
2

22
2

22
4

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
09

9,
93

0.
05

98
,4

99
.1

0
3,

19
8,

42
9.

15
51

,5
85

.5
7

3,
14

6,
84

3.
58

20
13

 - 
20

14
1

21
2

21
3

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
30

6,
16

2.
84

15
,8

87
.0

0
2,

32
2,

04
9.

84
32

,3
50

.1
1

2,
28

9,
69

9.
73

20
14

 - 
20

15
2

19
5

19
7

0.
00

24
9.

34
-2

49
.3

4
1,

99
8,

46
9.

49
15

7,
77

5.
42

2,
15

6,
24

4.
91

0.
00

2,
15

6,
24

4.
91

20
15

 - 
20

16
0

19
9

19
9

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
95

7,
01

7.
09

0.
00

3,
95

7,
01

7.
09

83
7,

47
1.

65
3,

11
9,

54
5.

44

20
16

 - 
20

17
2

20
0

20
2

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
12

3,
17

4.
08

13
0,

22
3.

90
2,

25
3,

39
7.

98
12

6,
18

6.
91

2,
12

7,
21

1.
07

20
17

 - 
20

18
4

19
1

19
5

0.
00

54
3.

82
-5

43
.8

2
1,

55
0,

43
9.

77
15

6,
95

9.
78

1,
70

7,
39

9.
55

13
9,

40
2.

59
1,

56
7,

99
6.

96

20
18

 - 
20

19
8

17
0

17
8

-2
09

,3
20

.8
1

34
,0

38
.6

0
-2

43
,3

59
.4

1
2,

03
0,

39
4.

99
37

3,
87

3.
22

2,
40

4,
26

8.
21

4,
27

1.
96

2,
39

9,
99

6.
25

C
A

P
R

I W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

p
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
C

la
im

 S
um

m
ar

y 
 - 

W
C

A
ct

iv
ity

 P
ai

d:
 1

2/
1/

24
 - 

12
/3

1/
24

   
  A

s 
O

f 1
2/

31
/2

02
4

S
ed

gw
ic

k 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 ©
 2

02
5 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly

.

Page 140



Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

O
pe

n
C

lo
se

d
To

ta
l

In
cu

rr
ed

C
ha

ng
e 

Th
is

P
er

io
d

P
ai

d 
Th

is
P

er
io

d
R

es
er

ve
d 

Th
is

P
er

io
d

To
ta

l P
ai

d
To

ta
l R

es
er

ve
To

ta
l I

nc
ur

re
d

R
ec

ov
er

y
N

et
 In

cu
rr

ed

20
19

 - 
20

20
9

13
8

14
7

0.
00

2,
46

9.
29

-2
,4

69
.2

9
2,

02
6,

05
4.

10
31

8,
87

0.
16

2,
34

4,
92

4.
26

7,
91

9.
25

2,
33

7,
00

5.
01

20
20

 - 
20

21
12

94
10

6
0.

00
4,

92
0.

34
-4

,9
20

.3
4

1,
68

0,
72

0.
77

89
1,

89
6.

15
2,

57
2,

61
6.

92
41

.4
3

2,
57

2,
57

5.
49

20
21

 - 
20

22
21

12
5

14
6

34
,5

30
.2

4
10

1,
02

6.
31

-6
6,

49
6.

07
2,

04
5,

06
9.

39
1,

20
8,

67
8.

87
3,

25
3,

74
8.

26
13

.0
2

3,
25

3,
73

5.
24

20
22

 - 
20

23
15

14
1

15
6

-2
46

.6
8

15
,7

38
.8

2
-1

5,
98

5.
50

1,
45

3,
24

6.
70

1,
05

4,
06

4.
80

2,
50

7,
31

1.
50

0.
00

2,
50

7,
31

1.
50

20
23

 - 
20

24
22

14
6

16
8

-6
,1

65
.9

4
65

,2
61

.0
5

-7
1,

42
6.

99
1,

13
9,

58
2.

94
65

6,
67

9.
70

1,
79

6,
26

2.
64

74
7.

46
1,

79
5,

51
5.

18

20
24

 - 
20

25
25

49
74

61
,9

71
.9

6
43

,6
68

.4
6

18
,3

03
.5

0
20

8,
40

3.
70

22
5,

07
6.

49
43

3,
48

0.
19

0.
00

43
3,

48
0.

19

To
ta

l:
13

0
7,

12
2

7,
25

2
-3

8,
05

3.
92

29
3,

44
2.

81
-3

31
,4

96
.7

3
64

,0
85

,0
45

.0
6

14
,3

80
,7

74
.5

4
78

,4
65

,8
19

.6
10

,9
63

,4
42

.6
5

67
,5

02
,3

76
.9

5

C
A

P
R

I W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

p
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
C

la
im

 S
um

m
ar

y 
 - 

W
C

A
ct

iv
ity

 P
ai

d:
 1

2/
1/

24
 - 

12
/3

1/
24

   
  A

s 
O

f 1
2/

31
/2

02
4

S
ed

gw
ic

k 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 ©
 2

02
5 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly

.

Page 141



CA
PR

I R
TW

 A
na

ly
si

s 
Re

po
rt

Ja
n,

 2
02

0 
- D

ec
, 2

02
4

G
en

er
at

ed
: 0

1/
09

/2
02

5

To
ta

l R
TW

 S
av

in
gs

 A
na

ly
si

s 
si

nc
e 

:
20

20
To

ta
l T

TD
 S

av
in

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

$1
,9

62
,0

48
To

ta
l F

ee
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
$2

89
,5

55
To

ta
l R

et
ur

n 
on

 In
ve

st
m

en
t i

s 
7:

1

 Y
ea

rl
y 

RT
W

 S
av

in
gs

 A
na

ly
si

s:
20

24
TT

D
 S

av
in

gs
 w

er
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
$4

29
,4

53
N

PA
’s 

RT
W

 fe
es

 w
er

e 
$7

8,
28

0
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
t w

as
 5

:1
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
 a

ct
iv

e 
cl

ai
m

s,
 

 w
or

ke
d 

m
od

ifi
ed

 d
ut

y 
= 

 m
od

 d
ut

y 
ra

te
11

9
87

73
%

Ye
ar

ly
 R

TW
 S

av
in

gs
 A

na
ly

si
s

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

 T
TD

 S
av

in
gs

$3
25

,3
95

$3
54

,8
54

$4
15

,4
48

$4
36

,8
98

$4
29

,4
53

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
$3

8,
70

0
$4

9,
95

0
$5

0,
62

5
$7

2,
00

0
$7

8,
28

0

 T
ot

al
 D

ay
s 

in
 R

TW
3,

53
5

3,
89

9
4,

77
6

4,
98

8
4,

60
7

Al
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 fi

le
 is

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l a

nd
 in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

An
y 

un
au

th
or

iz
ed

 u
se

, d
is

se
m

in
at

io
n,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
or

 c
op

yi
ng

 o
f t

hi
s 

fil
e 

is
 s

tr
ic

tly
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 4

Page 142



Th
e 

gr
ap

h 
be

lo
w

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

fo
ur

 d
at

a 
po

in
ts

:
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 T
ot

al
 C

la
im

s 
th

at
 re

ce
iv

ed
 R

TW
 s

er
vi

ce
s

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s 
W

or
ki

ng
 M

od
ifi

ed
 D

ut
y

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 N

ew
 C

la
im

s
Th

e 
M

od
 D

ut
y 

Ra
te

Cl
ai

m
 C

ou
nt

s 
&

 M
od

ifi
ed

 D
ut

y 
Ra

te

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

 T
ot

al
 C

la
im

s
70

87
99

11
0

11
9

 M
od

 D
ut

y
52

66
72

88
87

 N
ew

 C
la

im
s

53
71

81
89

95

 M
od

 D
ut

y 
Ra

te
74

%
76

%
73

%
80

%
73

%

Al
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 fi

le
 is

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l a

nd
 in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

An
y 

un
au

th
or

iz
ed

 u
se

, d
is

se
m

in
at

io
n,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
or

 c
op

yi
ng

 o
f t

hi
s 

fil
e 

is
 s

tr
ic

tly
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 4

Page 143



Th
e 

gr
ap

h 
be

lo
w

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

th
re

e 
da

ta
 p

oi
nt

s:
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
da

ys
 in

ju
re

d 
w

or
ke

rs
 w

er
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 M
od

ifi
ed

 D
ut

y
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
ay

s 
N

PA
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

RT
W

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
be

fo
re

 in
ju

re
d 

w
or

ke
rs

 re
tu

rn
 to

 U
su

al
 &

 C
us

to
m

ar
y 

du
tie

s 
(U

&
C)

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ay
s 

in
 E

R 
D

ec
lin

ed

D
ay

s 
in

 M
od

 D
ut

y,
 D

ay
s 

to
 U

&
C 

an
d 

D
ay

s 
in

 E
R 

D
ec

lin
ed

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

 A
vg

 D
ay

s 
in

 M
od

64
57

63
56

52

 A
vg

 D
ay

s 
to

 U
&

C
93

76
57

89
93

 A
vg

 D
ay

s 
in

 E
R 

D
ec

lin
ed

24
44

45
62

63

Al
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 fi

le
 is

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l a

nd
 in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

An
y 

un
au

th
or

iz
ed

 u
se

, d
is

se
m

in
at

io
n,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
or

 c
op

yi
ng

 o
f t

hi
s 

fil
e 

is
 s

tr
ic

tly
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 4

Page 144



Th
e 

gr
ap

h 
be

lo
w

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

th
e 

m
os

t u
se

d 
cl

ai
m

 s
ta

tu
se

s 
w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
da

te
 ra

ng
e:

W
or

ki
ng

 M
od

ifi
ed

 D
ut

y
N

ot
 W

or
ki

ng
 M

od
ifi

ed
 D

ut
y

RT
W

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ec
lin

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Em

pl
oy

er
 (E

R)
Re

tu
rn

ed
 to

 U
su

al
 &

 C
us

to
m

ar
y 

D
ut

ie
s 

(U
&

C)

RT
W

 C
la

im
 S

ta
tu

s 
A

na
ly

si
s

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

 N
ot

 W
or

ki
ng

22
29

28
23

24

 E
R 

D
ec

lin
ed

13
28

20
24

30

 M
od

 D
ut

y
52

66
72

88
87

 U
&

C
36

56
57

75
84

Al
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 fi

le
 is

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l a

nd
 in

te
nd

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 a

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

An
y 

un
au

th
or

iz
ed

 u
se

, d
is

se
m

in
at

io
n,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
or

 c
op

yi
ng

 o
f t

hi
s 

fil
e 

is
 s

tr
ic

tly
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
Pa

ge
 4

 o
f 4

Page 145



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 8.5 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: General Liability Program Status Report 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached hereto is a summary of the General Liability claims history organized by Fiscal 
year as of December 31, 2024.  The total number of open claims currently sits at 52 and 
of those claims, 20 are currently being litigated. Furthermore, the total reserved amount 
now sits at $1,482,398.00 down from $1,919,964.15 at this time last year. 
 
Below is a historical comparison of the status of the program management with CAPRI’s 
total open claims as of January 1, 2025 and for several prior years. 
 

 
 

 
Additionally, below is a historical comparison of the program’s claim frequency with the 
total claims made per fiscal year as of January 1, 2025 for each year as well as the average 
number of claims made per month that year. 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Total Open Claims
Jan 2018 - Jan 2025

Year 
Total 
Open 
Claims 

Jan-18 55 
Jan-19 59 
Jan-20 47 
Jan-21 35 
Jan-22 22 
Jan-23 23 

Jan-24 42 

Jan-25 52 

Page 146



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Summary of GL Claims by Fiscal Year – December 31, 2024 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Total New Claims 
(Period: July-Dec)

Jan 2018 - Jan 2025 Year 
Claims 

This 
Period 

Average 
Claims Per 

Month 
Jan-18 28 4.67 

Jan-19 16 2.67 

Jan-20 17 2.83 

Jan-21 8 1.33 

Jan-22 4 0.67 

Jan-23 8 1.33 

Jan-24 9 1.50 

Jan-25 10 1.67 

Page 147



P
o

lic
y

Y
ea

r
O

p
en

C
la

im
s

C
lo

se
d

C
la

im
s

T
o

ta
l

C
la

im
s

P
ai

d
T

h
is

 P
er

io
d

R
es

er
ve

s
T

h
is

 P
er

io
d

T
o

ta
l

P
ai

d
T

o
ta

l
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
T

o
ta

l
In

cu
rr

ed
T

o
ta

l
R

ec
o

ve
ry

N
et

In
cu

rr
ed

19
86

/1
98

7
0

40
40

0.
00

0.
00

15
9,

14
3.

49
0.

00
15

9,
14

3.
49

0.
00

15
9,

14
3.

49

19
87

/1
98

8
0

91
91

0.
00

0.
00

56
7,

78
3.

35
0.

00
56

7,
78

3.
35

0.
00

56
7,

78
3.

35

19
88

/1
98

9
0

77
77

0.
00

0.
00

33
6,

75
8.

78
0.

00
33

6,
75

8.
78

0.
00

33
6,

75
8.

78

19
89

/1
99

0
0

56
56

0.
00

0.
00

25
2,

37
2.

90
0.

00
25

2,
37

2.
90

0.
00

25
2,

37
2.

90

19
90

/1
99

1
0

69
69

0.
00

0.
00

64
6,

70
0.

81
0.

00
64

6,
70

0.
81

0.
00

64
6,

70
0.

81

19
91

/1
99

2
0

78
78

0.
00

0.
00

57
4,

43
2.

62
0.

00
57

4,
43

2.
62

0.
00

57
4,

43
2.

62

19
92

/1
99

3
0

66
66

0.
00

0.
00

33
4,

43
7.

15
0.

00
33

4,
43

7.
15

0.
00

33
4,

43
7.

15

19
93

0
3

3
0.

00
0.

00
9,

20
9.

48
0.

00
9,

20
9.

48
0.

00
9,

20
9.

48

19
93

/1
99

4
0

79
79

0.
00

0.
00

77
8,

13
0.

85
0.

00
77

8,
13

0.
85

0.
00

77
8,

13
0.

85

19
94

/1
99

5
0

71
71

0.
00

0.
00

60
7,

22
7.

03
0.

00
60

7,
22

7.
03

0.
00

60
7,

22
7.

03

19
95

/1
99

6
0

66
66

0.
00

0.
00

48
8,

28
5.

28
0.

00
48

8,
28

5.
28

0.
00

48
8,

28
5.

28

19
96

/1
99

7
0

98
98

0.
00

0.
00

30
8,

46
6.

79
0.

00
30

8,
46

6.
79

0.
00

30
8,

46
6.

79

19
97

/1
99

8
0

54
54

0.
00

0.
00

75
6,

26
3.

30
0.

00
75

6,
26

3.
30

0.
00

75
6,

26
3.

30

19
98

/1
99

9
0

39
39

0.
00

0.
00

58
1,

68
4.

09
0.

00
58

1,
68

4.
09

0.
00

58
1,

68
4.

09

19
99

/2
00

0
0

30
30

0.
00

0.
00

17
5,

05
1.

87
0.

00
17

5,
05

1.
87

0.
00

17
5,

05
1.

87

20
00

/2
00

1
0

56
56

0.
00

0.
00

33
2,

93
2.

06
0.

00
33

2,
93

2.
06

0.
00

33
2,

93
2.

06

20
01

/2
00

2
0

37
37

0.
00

0.
00

35
5,

07
9.

79
0.

00
35

5,
07

9.
79

0.
00

35
5,

07
9.

79

20
02

/2
00

3
0

44
44

0.
00

0.
00

51
5,

58
4.

00
0.

00
51

5,
58

4.
00

0.
00

51
5,

58
4.

00

20
03

/2
00

4
1

31
32

1,
21

1.
90

0.
00

26
1,

70
5.

94
85

,4
28

.0
0

34
7,

13
3.

94
0.

00
34

7,
13

3.
94

20
04

/2
00

5
0

45
45

0.
00

0.
00

42
3,

15
1.

66
0.

00
42

3,
15

1.
66

0.
00

42
3,

15
1.

66

20
05

/2
00

6
0

33
33

0.
00

0.
00

37
8,

84
8.

40
0.

00
37

8,
84

8.
40

0.
00

37
8,

84
8.

40

20
06

/2
00

7
0

27
27

0.
00

0.
00

64
0,

39
4.

43
0.

00
64

0,
39

4.
43

0.
00

64
0,

39
4.

43

20
07

/2
00

8
0

50
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
23

9,
91

7.
12

0.
00

1,
23

9,
91

7.
12

0.
00

1,
23

9,
91

7.
12

20
08

/2
00

9
0

89
89

0.
00

0.
00

2,
65

7,
63

6.
27

0.
00

2,
65

7,
63

6.
27

93
8,

91
9.

27
1,

71
8,

71
7.

00

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 3

R
un

 B
y:

 a
dm

in
2/

1/
20

25
 2

:1
5:

50
 A

M

P
o

lic
y 

Y
ea

r 
S

u
m

m
ar

y
P

er
io

d 
S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 1

/1
/2

02
5

P
er

io
d 

E
nd

 D
at

e:
 1

/3
1/

20
25

V
al

ua
tio

n 
D

at
e:

 1
/3

1/
20

25

Page 148



P
o

lic
y

Y
ea

r
O

p
en

C
la

im
s

C
lo

se
d

C
la

im
s

T
o

ta
l

C
la

im
s

P
ai

d
T

h
is

 P
er

io
d

R
es

er
ve

s
T

h
is

 P
er

io
d

T
o

ta
l

P
ai

d
T

o
ta

l
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
T

o
ta

l
In

cu
rr

ed
T

o
ta

l
R

ec
o

ve
ry

N
et

In
cu

rr
ed

20
09

/2
01

0
0

82
82

0.
00

0.
00

82
3,

29
0.

68
0.

00
82

3,
29

0.
68

0.
00

82
3,

29
0.

68

20
10

/2
01

1
0

68
68

0.
00

0.
00

1,
42

5,
97

1.
57

0.
00

1,
42

5,
97

1.
57

0.
00

1,
42

5,
97

1.
57

20
11

/2
01

2
0

71
71

0.
00

0.
00

75
9,

03
5.

89
0.

00
75

9,
03

5.
89

0.
00

75
9,

03
5.

89

20
12

/2
01

3
0

55
55

0.
00

0.
00

52
7,

62
4.

98
0.

00
52

7,
62

4.
98

0.
00

52
7,

62
4.

98

20
13

/2
01

4
0

75
75

0.
00

0.
00

1,
68

3,
36

6.
31

0.
00

1,
68

3,
36

6.
31

0.
00

1,
68

3,
36

6.
31

20
14

/2
01

5
0

62
62

0.
00

0.
00

3,
04

9,
59

3.
04

0.
00

3,
04

9,
59

3.
04

27
1,

35
4.

75
2,

77
8,

23
8.

29

20
15

/2
01

6
0

70
70

50
.9

5
50

.9
5

1,
82

9,
38

8.
72

0.
00

1,
82

9,
38

8.
72

0.
00

1,
82

9,
38

8.
72

20
16

/2
01

7
0

77
77

0.
00

0.
00

1,
67

8,
82

8.
17

0.
00

1,
67

8,
82

8.
17

0.
00

1,
67

8,
82

8.
17

20
17

/2
01

8
0

75
75

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

8,
15

7.
46

0.
00

1,
50

8,
15

7.
46

0.
00

1,
50

8,
15

7.
46

20
18

/2
01

9
0

73
73

0.
00

0.
00

4,
13

9,
55

0.
33

3,
98

0.
45

4,
14

3,
53

0.
78

34
7,

05
3.

49
3,

79
6,

47
7.

29

20
19

/2
02

0
0

45
45

0.
00

0.
00

75
9,

59
7.

97
0.

00
75

9,
59

7.
97

0.
00

75
9,

59
7.

97

20
20

/2
02

1
1

40
41

1,
36

5.
00

-7
,4

14
.9

7
62

7,
97

6.
16

30
,2

68
.1

0
65

8,
24

4.
26

0.
00

65
8,

24
4.

26

20
21

/2
02

2
3

33
36

14
,8

81
.0

0
-6

,9
54

.4
8

22
7,

23
7.

59
18

9,
51

1.
15

41
6,

74
8.

74
0.

00
41

6,
74

8.
74

20
22

/2
02

3
19

50
69

42
,5

62
.3

7
30

,4
77

.2
5

1,
58

4,
98

8.
68

61
3,

90
6.

03
2,

19
8,

89
4.

71
17

5,
00

0.
00

2,
02

3,
89

4.
71

20
23

/2
02

4
20

40
60

24
,2

38
.4

4
82

,0
16

.0
0

32
4,

13
9.

82
52

7,
49

3.
37

85
1,

63
3.

19
0.

00
85

1,
63

3.
19

20
24

/2
02

5
8

2
10

67
2.

00
26

,5
00

.0
0

15
,2

21
.6

3
31

,8
10

.9
0

47
,0

32
.5

3
0.

00
47

,0
32

.5
3

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

52
2,

24
7

2,
29

9
84

,9
81

.6
6

12
4,

67
4.

75
34

,3
45

,1
66

.4
6

1,
48

2,
39

8.
00

35
,8

27
,5

64
.4

6
1,

73
2,

32
7.

51
34

,0
95

,2
36

.9
5

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 3

R
un

 B
y:

 a
dm

in
2/

1/
20

25
 2

:1
5:

50
 A

M

P
o

lic
y 

Y
ea

r 
S

u
m

m
ar

y
P

er
io

d 
S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 1

/1
/2

02
5

P
er

io
d 

E
nd

 D
at

e:
 1

/3
1/

20
25

V
al

ua
tio

n 
D

at
e:

 1
/3

1/
20

25

Page 149



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

       Agenda Item 8.6 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Property Program Status Report 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Attached hereto please find a summary of the open CAPRI Property claims as of the end 
of the second quarter of FY 2024-2025.  
 
There are 23 open property claims, down from 36 since the first quarter of the 2024-2025 
fiscal year. Of the 23 total open, 12 claims have reached the excess layer, meaning CAPRI 
is no longer responsible for costs. This leaves 11 active in the CAPRI layer. The open claims 
are a mix of storm damage, theft, vandalism, fires, and vehicle accidents. 
 
Staff will be prepared to discuss property losses and excess handling at the meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Open property claims as of December 31, 2024 

Page 150



CA
PR

I P
ro

pe
rt

y L
os

s R
un

O
pe

n 
Cl

ai
m

s a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

4

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

In
su

re
d

Lo
ss

 D
at

e
To

ta
l P

ai
d

To
ta

l R
es

er
ve

To
ta

l I
nc

ur
re

d
C

la
im

 
St

at
us

G
H

C
 C

la
im

 
N

um
be

r
In

ci
de

nt
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n

20
18

/2
01

9
Pa

ra
di

se
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
/8

/2
01

8
$1

,0
41

,8
94

$3
,1

13
,6

06
$4

,1
55

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
23

17
8

Fi
re

20
18

/2
01

9
Ra

nc
ho

 S
im

i R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
11

/8
/2

01
8

$4
,8

91
,3

32
$1

76
,0

81
$5

,0
67

,4
13

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
23

19
7

Fi
re

20
19

/2
02

0
N

or
th

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
2/

12
/2

02
0

$5
3,

54
8

$1
53

,9
52

$2
07

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
30

95
4

N
O

R 
po

ol
 

20
20

/2
02

1
C

ar
m

ic
ha

el
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

8/
15

/2
02

0
$5

39
,2

49
$3

84
,9

01
$9

24
,1

50
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

32
37

9
To

ile
t f

lu
sh

 v
al

ve
 fa

ilu
re

20
20

/2
02

1
H

ig
hl

an
ds

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
1/

1/
20

21
$0

$1
49

,5
00

$1
49

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
79

19
1

La
nd

sl
id

e
20

22
/2

02
3

Ri
m

 o
f t

he
 W

or
ld

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
2/

24
/2

02
3

$9
77

$1
01

,5
23

$1
02

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
57

61
1

Sn
ow

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 fi

el
d 

ne
tt

in
g 

an
d 

fe
nc

e
20

22
/2

02
3

H
es

pe
ria

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
2/

25
/2

02
3

$2
,9

96
$7

02
,0

04
$7

05
,0

00
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

52
73

6
Sn

ow
 a

nd
 ra

in
st

or
m

20
22

/2
02

3
Ri

m
 o

f t
he

 W
or

ld
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

3/
12

/2
02

3
$1

,4
70

$2
11

,0
31

$2
12

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
57

60
9

Sn
ow

 d
am

ag
e

20
22

/2
02

3
Ri

m
 o

f t
he

 W
or

ld
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

4/
17

/2
02

3
$8

02
$3

6,
69

8
$3

7,
50

0
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

57
61

0
Sn

ow
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t e

le
ct

ric
al

 p
an

el
20

22
/2

02
3

Au
bu

rn
 A

re
a 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

5/
14

/2
02

3
$1

,2
32

,3
23

$2
86

,6
18

$1
,5

18
,9

41
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

58
05

3
Fi

re
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 s
ho

p 
st

ru
ct

ur
e

20
22

/2
02

3
Au

bu
rn

 A
re

a 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
5/

31
/2

02
3

$8
41

$6
59

$1
,5

00
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

58
89

0
Tr

an
si

en
t c

au
se

d 
fir

e 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t p

ro
pe

rt
y

20
22

/2
02

3
Pl

ea
sa

nt
 H

ill
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

6/
14

/2
02

3
$9

49
$1

6,
55

2
$1

7,
50

0
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

59
75

0
D

is
tr

ic
t t

ru
ck

 s
to

le
n

20
23

/2
02

4
Su

nr
is

e 
Re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
9/

11
/2

02
3

$8
21

$1
48

,6
79

$1
49

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
66

04
9

A 
bl

ow
n 

H
VA

C
 u

ni
t m

ot
or

 c
au

se
d 

a 
fir

e
20

23
/2

02
4

G
re

at
er

 V
al

le
jo

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
12

/2
5/

20
23

$9
46

$1
4,

24
0

$1
5,

18
6

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
67

09
4

da
m

ag
es

 a
nd

 s
to

le
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 d
ue

 to
 a

 b
re

ak
-in

20
23

/2
02

4
C

ar
m

ic
ha

el
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

12
/2

6/
20

23
$9

47
$1

6,
55

3
$1

7,
50

0
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

66
45

8
Th

ef
t o

f t
oo

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t.
20

23
/2

02
4

El
 D

or
ad

o 
H

ill
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tr

ic
t

2/
1/

20
24

$7
21

$1
0,

46
0

$1
1,

18
1

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
70

66
6

da
m

ag
es

 to
 a

 li
gh

t p
ol

e 
du

e 
to

 a
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

cc
id

en
t

20
23

/2
02

4
Ar

ca
de

 C
re

ek
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

2/
4/

20
24

$4
2,

28
0

$6
,1

40
$4

8,
42

0
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

69
24

0
w

in
ds

to
rm

 d
am

ag
e

20
23

/2
02

4
C

ar
m

ic
ha

el
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

2/
4/

20
24

$1
,0

79
$8

3,
92

1
$8

5,
00

0
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

67
96

6
w

in
ds

to
rm

 d
am

ag
e

20
23

/2
02

4
C

or
do

va
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

2/
4/

20
24

$8
33

$5
3,

97
1

$5
4,

80
4

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
68

24
5

w
in

ds
to

rm
 d

am
ag

e
20

23
/2

02
4

C
ar

m
ic

ha
el

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
3/

13
/2

02
4

$7
99

$5
,0

41
$5

,8
40

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
69

72
0

ve
hi

cl
e 

dr
iv

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

di
st

ric
t b

ui
ld

in
g

20
24

/2
02

5
H

ay
w

ar
d 

Ar
ea

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 D
is

tr
ic

t
7/

26
/2

02
4

$6
42

$1
49

,8
58

$1
50

,5
00

O
pe

n
G

H
C

00
74

76
8

Ar
so

n 
Fi

re
20

24
/2

02
5

C
or

do
va

 R
PD

8/
19

/2
02

4
$6

40
$3

0,
23

4
$3

0,
87

4
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

75
91

5
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Ac

ci
de

nt
20

24
/2

02
5

Au
bu

rn
 A

re
a 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 D

is
tr

ic
t

10
/2

5/
20

24
$1

16
,2

93
$2

5,
20

7
$1

41
,5

00
O

pe
n

G
H

C
00

77
57

0
Fa

ul
ty

 in
st

al
l o

f s
ol

ar
 p

an
el

s

* 
lo

ss
es

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 h
av

e 
re

ac
he

d 
th

e 
ex

ce
ss

 la
ye

r

Page 151



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

               Agenda Item 9.1 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Law Enforcement Coverage Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Over the past several years, the CAPRI Board has continued to monitor the status of armed 
law enforcement programs within its pool. Recently, Staff was asked to research and 
review the pool’s options with respect to coverage for this unique exposure. At the Board 
Meeting, Staff will present its findings and request further direction from the Board.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None 

Page 152



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

               Agenda Item 9.2 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Office Lease Renewal 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Currently, the lease for CAPRI’s office space is up for renewal. As the Board may recall, 
CAPRI relocated to Roseville in 2020 and entered into a five-year lease. At this time, Staff 
requests authority to renew the lease for a period of thirty-six (36) months at a fair market 
rental rate pursuant to the terms of the lease. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize Staff to deliver written notice of CAPRI’s intent to exercise the option to extend 
the lease thirty-six months and negotiate a rental rate at fair market value. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Renewal of the lease will bind CAPRI to an ongoing rental obligation. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None 

Page 153



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

               Agenda Item 9.3 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Cycle XIX (2nd Half) Safety Awards 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The Safety Awards are based upon the results of each member’s performance at its District 
Visit. Those members that put into practice a minimum of 90% of the suggested criteria 
earn an Excellent evaluation. In recognition of this outstanding performance, District 
Safety Awards are presented to these high-scoring districts. The following members will 
be receiving a Cycle XIX Safety Awards at the CARPD Conference scheduled for May 21-
24, 2025, at Paradise Point in San Diego, California: 
 
Cycle XIX (2nd Half) 
Almanor  Ambrose Bear Mountain   
Beaumont-Cherry Valley Belvedere-Tiburon Buttonwillow 
Carmichael                                  Conejo                                      Desert                     
Durham Feather River                            Greater Vallejo             
Hayward Area Isla Vista                                   Jurupa Area 
Ladera Livermore Area Mendocino Coast 
McFarland                                   Mission Oaks North of the River 
Orangevale Pleasant Hill                              Pleasant Valley            
Rancho Simi Rim of the World Rio Linda-Elverta 
Shafter                        Silverado-Modjeska Southgate            
Strawberry Tehachapi Valley Truckee-Donner                       
Tuolumne Valley-Wide Wasco      
West Side    
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve the proposed winners of the Cycle XIX (2nd Half) Safety Awards winners. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

None. 
 

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
None. 

Page 154



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 9.4 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: PARK Award: Excellence in Risk Management  

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The District Visit Program emphasizes risk management, loss prevention, and 
employment practices and is a unique opportunity for the members to share and learn 
from the success of other recreation and park districts around the State.  We acknowledge 
successes and progress, as well as identify areas for improvement with recommendations.   
 
Following each visit, CAPRI Staff identifies areas for improvement with recommendations 
to the Districts. CAPRI has seen certain districts take the recommendations to heart and 
make significant improvements with respect to risk management practices. While member 
districts are recognized each year with Safety Awards for scoring Excellent at their visit, 
Staff is proposing Jurupa Area Recreation and Park District and Feather River to be 
recognized for their unique achievement in risk management practices and significant 
improvement in their District Visit score, respectively. 
 
Jurupa Area Recreation and Park District has an application called, JARPD Connect. You 
may download the app on Google Play or the App Store. The public now has at their 
fingertips access to their website, special events, program registration, facility rentals, park 
maps, trail maps, etc. The public may report through the app issues pertaining to graffiti, 
irrigation, trails, parks, playground, facilities, etc. The District also has staff 24/7 to respond 
to park maintenance emergencies through a phone number.  
 
Feather River Recreation and Park District took to heart their District Visit Cycle XVIII 
Report with a score of 69%. Under new management they improved to 95%.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the PARK Award to Jurupa Area Recreation and Park District for their unique 
achievement in risk management practices and to Feather River Recreation and Park 
District for significant improvement in their District Visit Score.  
 
 

Page 155



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS BELOW: 
 

 

Page 156



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 9.5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Opioid Antagonists Policy Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Our parks and facilities are open to the public and, as a result, recently some of our 
members have observed the crisis of substance abuse and addiction affecting some of 
our communities. According to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 
overdose deaths are increasing across the nation. In 2017, the California Department of 
Public Health issued a statewide naloxone standing order to allow the distribution of 
naloxone and for its administration during an overdose. The CDPH updated their 
Naloxone Standing Order FAQs in June 2023.  
 
The two new California assembly bills below seek to address the rising risk of overdose 
death by requiring the Cal/OSHA Standards Board to adopt new regulations.   
 
Assembly Member Matt Haney introduced Assembly Bill 1976 which requires the 
Cal/OSHA Standards Board to adopt revised standards under Section 3400 of Title 8 of 
the California Code of Regulations that all first aid kits in a workplace include nasal spray 
naloxone hydrochloride. The bill would give the Standards Board before December 1, 
2027 to submit a draft rulemaking proposal to revise specified regulations on first aid 
materials and emergency medical services to require first aid materials in a workplace to 
include naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist approved by the U.S. Food 
and Drug Administration. The bill was signed into law on September 27, 2024. 
 
Assembly Member Juan Alanis introduced Assembly Bill 1996 that requires each stadium, 
concert venue, and amusement park to ensure that unexpired doses of naloxone 
hydrochloride or any other opioid antagonist is accessible on its premises and that at least 
two employees know where to find the medication. This bill also requires the CDPH to 
develop an opioid overdose training program and to provide the training to those 
establishments. This bill was signed into law by the Governor on August 26, 2024.  

Additionally, existing law codified at California Civil Code 1714.22(f) provides that, 
notwithstanding any other law, a person who possesses or distributes an opioid 
antagonist pursuant to a prescription or standing order shall not be subject to 

Page 157

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CCDPHP/sapb/CDPH%20Document%20Library/NSO_FAQ_june_2023_ADA.pdf
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1976
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1996
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=1714.22.


 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

professional review, be liable in a civil action, or be subject to criminal prosecution for this 
possession or distribution. Furthermore, a person not otherwise licensed to administer an 
opioid antagonist, but trained as required under paragraph (1) of subdivision (d), who acts 
with reasonable care in administering an opioid antagonist, in good faith and not for 
compensation, to a person who is experiencing or is suspected of experiencing an 
overdose shall not be subject to professional review, be liable in a civil action, or be subject 
to criminal prosecution for this administration.  

Finally, counties throughout California have programs now that will provide free training 
and free opioid antagonists. Some of our Districts have been approached by their County 
to provide this service.   
 
Coverage, Exclusion, and Exception: 
Notably, CAPRI and its members have been mindful of potential coverage issues related 
to the administration of an opioid antagonist. There is an exclusion in PRISM’s excess 
policy for liability arising out of the rendering of certain “medical professional services.” 
However, there is an exception to this exclusion which is triggered when the liability 
relates to “emergency first aid.” CAPRI reached out to PRISM’s risk management 
department and claims department and was advised that coverage is possible, but each 
situation is unique and requires evaluation before making a decision. CAPRI’s position is 
that the exception to the exclusion applies if related to administration of emergency first 
aid and will also review and evaluate each claim on their own merit.  
 
Training and Policy & Procedures: 
In light of these legal developments and coverage position from PRISM, CAPRI Staff 
intends to educate the membership regarding training standards and comprehensive 
policies so that Districts may responsibly utilize these resources when necessary.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Sample Policy 

Page 158



Sample Naloxone Policies and Procedures 

 

Naloxone Hydrochloride  

PURPOSE: 

To establish guidelines for training and administration of intranasal Naloxone. 

BACKGROUND: 

According to the Centers of Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), “The United States is 
experiencing an epidemic of drug overdose deaths. Since 2000, the rate of deaths from drug 
overdoses has increased 137 percent, including a 200 percent increase in the rate of overdose 
deaths involving opioids. Naloxone Hydrochloride is an opioid antagonist designed to reverse 
the respiratory depression caused by an overdose of opioids.  

The  California Department of Public Health issued in 2017 a standing order (authorized by 
California Civil Code Section 1714.22 to: 

1. Allow community organizations and other entities in California that are not currently 
working with a physician, to distribute naloxone to a person at risk of an opioid-related 
overdose or to a family member, friend, or other person in a position to assist; and 

2. Allow for the administration of naloxone by a family member, friend, or other person to a 
person experiencing or reasonably suspected of experiencing an opioid overdose.  

Note:  A standing order is no longer required for naloxone nasal spray due to the over-the-
counter status.   

According to the CDPH, naloxone has very few negative effects, no effects if opioids are not in a 
person’s system, and no potential for abuse.  

California Civil Code 1714.22(f): 

Notwithstanding any other law, a person who possesses or distributes an opioid antagonist 
pursuant to a prescription or standing order shall not be subject to professional review, be liable 
in a civil action, or be subject to criminal prosecution for this possession or distribution. 
Notwithstanding any other law, a person not otherwise licensed to administer an opioid 
antagonist, but trained as required under paragraph (1) of subdivision (d), who acts with 
reasonable care in administering an opioid antagonist, in good faith and not for compensation, 
to a person who is experiencing or is suspected of experiencing an overdose shall not be 
subject to professional review, be liable in a civil action, or be subject to criminal prosecution for 
this administration. 
 
The Health and Safety Code 1799.113: 

1799.113. (a) (1) A person who, in good faith and not for compensation, renders emergency 
treatment at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid overdose by administering an 
opioid antagonist shall not be liable for civil damages resulting from an act or omission related to 
the rendering of the emergency treatment. 

Page 159

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=1714.22.#:%7E:text=(f)%20Notwithstanding%20any%20other%20law,for%20this%20possession%20or%20distribution.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=1799.113.&lawCode=HSC


(2) A person who, in good faith and not for compensation, furnishes an opioid antagonist to a 
person for use at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid overdose shall not be 
liable for civil damages resulting from an act or omission related to the furnishing of the opioid 
antagonist. 

(b) This section does not apply to an act or omission related to the rendering of emergency 
treatment at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid overdose by means of an 
opioid antagonist that constitutes gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct. 

(c) For purposes of this section, both of the following apply: 

(1) A person who renders emergency treatment by means of an opioid antagonist, or who 
furnishes an opioid antagonist at the scene of an opioid overdose or suspected opioid overdose, 
and who is not compensated for doing so, but receives compensation for other actions as a 
result of their unrelated employment, is not “rendering emergency medical care or furnishing 
opioid antagonist for compensation.” 

(2) “Opioid antagonist” means naloxone hydrochloride or any other opioid antagonist that is 
approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for the treatment of an opioid 
overdose. 

DEFINITIONS: 

Fentanyl: A powerful synthetic opioid similar to morphine, but 50 to 100 times more potent. It is 
a prescription drug that is also made and used illegally. Like morphine, it is a medicine that is 
typically used to treat patients with severe pain, especially after surgery. 

Opioids: Opioids are a broad group of pain-relieving drugs that work by interacting with opioid 
receptors in cells. Opioids can be made from the poppy plant or synthesized in a laboratory. 
Synthetic opioids, including Fentanyl, are now the most common drugs involved in overdose 
deaths in the United States. 

Opioid Overdose: A acute, life-threatening medical condition caused by the excessive intake of 
opioids.  

Naloxone Hydrochloride: A medication that belongs to a class of drugs known as opioid 
antagonists. It works by blocking or reversing the effects of the opioid medication, including 
drowsiness, slowed breathing, or loss of consciousness. It is used to treat known or suspected 
opioid overdose in an emergency situation. 

Narcan: A brand name for Naloxone Hydrochloride. 

Intranasal: Administrated through the nose. The nasal cavity is covered by a thin mucosa, 
which is extremely vascular and provides a direct route into the bloodstream. When Naloxone is 
administrated via spray it can be quickly effective. 

Reversal: A reversal is defined as the person regaining normal breathing, and consciousness 
after administering Naloxone Hydrochloride. 

Naloxone Kit: Contains two nasal spray doses and may include face mask, mouth 
shield/breathing mask, and gloves.  

Page 160



 

 

PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES: 

The Park and Recreation District prioritizes the safety and welfare of our community and 
personnel.  

The District will designate a coordinator responsible for administrating and establishing 
procedures to support this policy and will provide supplies and training on the administration and 
use of naloxone.  

The District supports the overall objective to reduce the number of fatal opioid overdoses in the 
community. 

Coordination: 

The District should have a someone to coordinate and be responsible for policies and 
procedures. 

• Identify employees permitted to carry and administer naloxone.  
• Maintain a roster of employees trained in Opioid Overdose prevention and naloxone 

administration. 
• Maintaining records of naloxone issuance and administration. 
• Establishing secure storage areas for naloxone. 
• Maintaining a naloxone kit and obtaining new kits prior to their expiration.  
• Coordinating new and continued training. 
• Retaining completed reports on naloxone use. 

Administration: 

• Employees who have completed training in opioid overdose prevention.  
• Employees should make sure the naloxone kit is in good condition and unexpired. 
• Expired or damaged kits should be replaced immediately. 
• Naloxone should be administered to adults and children one year of order. 

Training: 

Opioid Overdose Prevention Training should include: 

• How to prevent an overdose 
• How to recognize an opioid overdose 
• How to store naloxone 
• How to administer naloxone 
• How to alert emergency medical services 
• How to administer rescue breathing 
• How to place the subject in the recovery position 
• How to provide post-overdose care 

 

Page 161



Steps: 

1. Assess the person for lack if breathing, pulse, and unresponsiveness prior to administrating 
naloxone. If unresponsive, check the person’s airway to ensure it is unobstructive. If there 
are any bystanders, ask if they are aware if the person is an opioid user. Conduct a visual 
survey of the area of any signs of drug use. 

Characteristics that may indicate an Opioid Overdose may include: 

• Falling asleep or loss of consciousness 
• Constricted pupils 
• Unresponsive to verbal or physical stimulus 
• Awake, but unable to speak 
• Pulse and/or is slow, irregular, or not present 
• Choking sounds or a snore-like gurgling noise 
• Vomiting 
• Limp body 
• Pale or clammy face 
• Blue or purplish black fingernails and lips 

 
2. If another person is available, have them call 911.  

 
3. Administer naloxone in accordance with the training. 

a. Tilt the person’s head back and ensure the nasal cavity is clear. 
b. Hold the nasal spray by placing your thumb on the bottom of the plunger and 

your first and middle fingers on either side of the nozzle. 
c. Insert the nasal spray nozzle into one nostril until your fingers are against the 

bottom of their nose. 
d. Press the plunger firmly to administer the full dose. 
e. Remove the nasal spray from the person’s nostril. 

 
4. If there was not another person to call 911, this is when you should call 911. 

 
5. If the person is not breathing on the own, rescue breathing is needed. If CPR is needed, this 

technique should also be done. 
 

6. Once the person is breathing on their own, place them on their side in the recovery position 
to avoid aspiration.  
 

7. Continue to observe the person until emergency services arrives. Administration of naloxone 
results in immediate withdrawal symptoms that can include nausea/vomiting, cardiac arrest, 
nosebleeds, and possible aggressive behavior.  

 
8. If the person does not respond after 2 minutes, a second dose may be required. A second 

dose may also be required if the lifesaving effects wear off before emergency services arrive 
and be administered in the opposite nostril.  

 

Page 162



Disposal: 

Nasal spray naloxone should be surrendered to emergency services or properly disposed of in a 
hazardous material disposal container.  

Documentation and Reporting: 

1. Verbally advise emergency services of the approximate time naloxone was administered 
and any change in the person’s condition. 
 

2. Complete a Naloxone Use Report with all the pertinent information. 
 

3. Complete any additional reports needed such as an incident report, etc. 
 

4. Provide all reports to the supervisor.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 163



 

 

 

 

Page 164



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

               Agenda Item 9.6 

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 
SUBJECT: Job Description Review 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The professional development of staff is an important component of any successful 
organization. As the skills, knowledge, and abilities of staff grow and the organization 
itself evolves, it then is incumbent upon management to regularly evaluate the job 
descriptions and job titles in order to ensure that staff responsibilities align with the needs 
of the membership. As such, Staff has prepared a draft job description for the proposed 
Director of Safety and Risk Control position that reflects current organizational needs. 
 
Additionally, as discussed at the recent Board Retreat, Staff has reflected on the vacant 
Administrative Assistant position and the skill set and experience that would benefit the 
membership. Updating the job description, pay scale, and revising the job duties to 
include the event planning, member services, and claims management tasks are necessary 
to capture the full and complete scope of the role.  
 
Staff will be prepared to further discuss these updates at the Meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the proposed job description for the Director of Safety and Risk Control position. 
 
Approve the proposed job description for the Executive Assistant position. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• Proposed Job Description – Director of Safety and Risk Control 
• Proposed Job Description – Executive Assistant 
• Proposed Org Chart 

Page 165



 
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI)  

 
DIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND RISK CONTROL 

 
Job Description 
 
The Director of Safety and Risk Control, under the general direction of the Executive 
Director, coordinates CAPRI’s risk management, loss control, and safety programs to the 
members of California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (“CAPRI”). The 
Director of Administrative Operations’ primary role will be to act as a resource person for 
member districts regarding CAPRI policies and procedures, risk transfer, and insurance 
coverage. This is an Exempt position. 
 
Essential Functions/Duties: 
 
Essential Functions/Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Assist the member districts in identifying safety hazards, through safety audits, 
inspections, and surveys as a means to identify assets at risk, their values, and 
ultimate exposure to loss. 

• Assist the member districts in maintaining a quality safety committee in each district 
and provide safety programs and materials for use by the district safety committees.  
Review minutes of the member districts safety meetings and report on the content 
and frequency of the meetings. 

• Establish and maintain a program of district visitation/safety inspections to discuss 
and answer questions concerning CAPRI and to evaluate and assist in district 
safety and loss prevention programs. 

• Assist member districts in establishing and maintaining self-inspection programs. 
• Review and evaluate incident reports, claims experience, minutes of district safety 

meetings to determine where losses are occurring or are likely to occur and make 
recommendations for loss prevention and safety programs to Executive Director. 

• Review and evaluate contracts and agreements and evaluate appropriate risk 
transfer language necessary to protect the pool. 

• Direct the development, implementation, and delivery of prevention services 
workshops, training programs, and seminars for member districts provided 
electronically and remotely as well as in person. 

• Develops and implements best practices in loss control, safety and risk 
management in coordination with member districts. 

• Make recommendations to the Executive Director concerning the transfer of risks by 
the member districts. 

• Serves as a resource for member districts regarding risk management, claims, 
insurance, safety, training, and changes in laws and regulations related to safety 
issues.  

• Provide administrative and management assistance to the Executive Director, by 
participating on a variety of boards, commissions, and committees relevant to areas 
of responsibility; prepare and present reports and other necessary correspondence 
to Executive Director and Authority governing boards and relevant board 
subcommittees. 

• Assists in the event planning, marketing, and event coordination and management 
of the annual CARPD Conference. 

Page 166



 
• Assists in updating and maintaining CAPRI/CARPD website. 
• Assists in the marketing of CAPRI/CARPD to special districts in the State of 

California including travel to conferences, development of marketing materials, 
maintaining records for district contacts, etc. 

• Provides excellent customer service. 
• Performs other duties as assigned by the Executive Director. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Training and Experience 
 
Any combination of experience and education that provides the required knowledge and 
ability will be qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 

• Bachelor’s Degree in field directly related to position such as Business 
Administration, Public Administration, Insurance, or Risk Management; or 

• At least seven (7) years’ work experience with insurance claims management, risk 
management, contract writing/negotiating, or loss control; or; 

• An Associate in Risk Management (ARM) and/or Certified Safety Professional 
(CSP); Certification in Playground Safety Inspections (CPSI); Certified Safety 
Technician (CST); Associate Safety Professional (ASP); or Associate in Loss 
Control Management (ALCM). 
 

Public Sector or Joint Powers Authority experience is highly desired.  
 
Licensing Requirements 
 
A valid California Driver’s License. 
 
Knowledge and Skills 
 
Thorough Knowledge of:   
 Principles and practices of risk management, loss prevention and safety; 
 Principles and practices of claims management and the proper reserving of claims; 
 Risk and exposures related to Recreation and Park Districts, facilities and activities; 
 Computer operations and use of spreadsheets, data base management and word 

processing programs. 
 
Skills in:  
 Read, interpret and analyze insurance policies; 
 Formulate policies and plans; 
 Evaluate, recommend and implement solutions to complex issues and problems;  
 Organize work schedule and perform assigned tasks with little supervision. 
 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with each member district. 
 Speak in public, give presentations and write effectively; 
 Maintain records and reports; 
 Keep abreast of new trends, technology and best practices in the risk management, 

loss prevention and safety fields; 
 Maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 

 

Page 167



 
PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Director of Safety and Risk Control position typically requires: reaching, grasping, 
talking, walking, hearing, seeing and repetitive motion.   
 
Medium Work:  Exerting up to 50 pounds of force occasionally, and/or up to 20 pounds of 
force frequently, and/or up to 10 pounds of force constantly to move and lift objects. 
 
Frequent travel is required for this position. 
 
Accommodation may be made for some of these physical demands for otherwise qualified 
individuals who require and request such accommodations. 
 
  
WORKING CONDITIONS  
 
Environmental Conditions: Almost always works indoors in temperature-controlled 
environment; exposure to potentially hazardous chemicals, various colognes/perfumes, 
dust, fumes from printing cartridges; exposure to noise/vibrations from office machines. 
 
Physical Conditions: Essential and marginal functions require maintaining physical 
condition necessary for long periods of sitting and frequently walking, standing, and 
reaching; occasional or rare bending, pushing, pulling, stooping, lifting, climbing, kneeling 
and squatting may be required; use of hands to finger, handle or feel objects, write, type, 
use telephone, operate office machinery; handle money; close and distance vision; 
speaking; hearing; driving vehicle. High level of concentration and attention to detail for 
extended periods of time.  
 
EXAMINATION 
 
All applications will be screened and only those candidates who best match the needs of 
CAPRI will be invited to compete further in the examination process.  
 

• Examination may include pre- and/or post-interview testing. 
• Post-Conditional Offer Preemployment Functional Capacity Examination. 

 
BACKGROUND CHECK 
 
Undergo and clear fingerprinting and a background check. 
 
IMMIGRATION LAW 
 
Prior to employment, the successful candidate shall be required to present documentation 
establishing identity and employment eligibility in accordance with the U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services (USCIS). 

Page 168



 
California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI)  

 
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 

 
Job Description 
 
The Executive Assistant, under the direction of the Executive Director, will provide 
administrative support to the organization, but primarily for the Executive Director and 
Board of Directors. This is an Non-Exempt position. 
 
Essential Functions/Duties: 
 
Essential Functions/Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
Day to Day Operations 

• Various administrative duties including phones, processing mail, processing checks, 
and general filing. 

• Prepares reports related to legal disputes and property claims. 
• Prepares reports and assists with various projects related to risk management and 

safety compliance for park and recreation professionals. 
• Assists with organizing and maintaining underwriting and financial data relating to 

insurance coverages for recreation and park districts in the State 
• Communicates regularly with Staff from Recreation and Park Districts throughout 

the state regarding risk management resources and insurance data. 
• Assists in updating and maintaining CAPRI and CARPD websites. 
• Support claims management functions of the organization including reviewing and 

preparing reports, calendaring upcoming dates and deadlines, and working with the 
Executive Director to ensure timely closure of liability, property, and workers’ 
compensation claims. 

• Provides excellent customer service. 
• Performs other duties as assigned by the Executive Director. 

 
Meeting Planning Responsibilities 

• Assists in the coordination and scheduling of the meetings, conferences, training 
seminars and retreats for CAPRI/CARPD/RIO Boards including securing travel 
arrangements, meeting space, meal planning, room accommodations, and sending 
out meeting notices. 

• Assists with on-site meeting set-up and clean-up. 
• Assists with proofreading and compilation of agendas. 
• Serves as backup minute taker. 
• Prints and distribute agendas and handout materials. 

 
Member Services 

• Assists in the preparation of CAPRI/CARPD’s newsletters, annual reports, budgets, 
annual financial reports, annual payroll reports, legislative reports, etc. 

Page 169



 
• Assists in the event planning, marketing, and event coordination and management 

of the annual CARPD Conference. 
• Assists in the marketing of CAPRI/CARPD to special districts in the State of 

California including travel to conferences, development of marketing materials, 
maintaining records for district contacts, etc. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Training and Experience 
 
Any combination of experience and education that provides the required knowledge and 
ability will be qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 
 

• At least five (5) years’ work experience with administrative support. A Bachelor’s 
Degree in a relevant field may substitute for 4 years of work experience; 

• Proficiency with computers and software (Microsoft Office applications; Word, 
Excel, PowerPoint, Access, Publisher, etc.); 
 

Public Sector or Joint Powers Authority experience is highly desired.  
 
Licensing Requirements 
 
A valid California Driver’s License. 
 
Knowledge and Skills 
 
Skills in:  

• Ability to communicate tactfully and courteously with the public and other staff while 
providing a wide range of assistance and help; 

• Responsible and reliable individual who can work well in a small office setting, filling 
in and supporting staff who are away from the office; 

• Some travel may be required to support CAPRI/CARPD responsibilities at 
association meetings several times a year; 

• Ability to understand and follow directions, effectively adjust to changing priorities, 
problem solve and multi-task; 

• Ability to maintain a professional and respectful working environment; 
• Proficiency in the basic principles of indexing, filing and recordkeeping systems, 

preparing and maintaining a variety of files and records; 
• Ability to perform a full range of agency office support work involving use of 

independent judgment and requiring accuracy and speed; 
• Ability to work well under pressure and within defined parameters and time frames. 

 
WORKING CONDITIONS  
 
Environmental Conditions: Almost always works indoors in temperature-controlled 
environment; exposure to potentially hazardous chemicals, various colognes/perfumes, 
dust, fumes from printing cartridges; exposure to noise/vibrations from office machines. 
 

Page 170



 
Physical Conditions: Essential and marginal functions require maintaining physical 
condition necessary for long periods of sitting and frequently walking, standing, and 
reaching; occasional or rare bending, pushing, pulling, stooping, lifting, climbing, kneeling 
and squatting may be required; use of hands to finger, handle or feel objects, write, type, 
use telephone, operate office machinery; handle money; close and distance vision; 
speaking; hearing; driving vehicle. High level of concentration and attention to detail for 
extended periods of time.  
 
EXAMINATION 
 
All applications will be screened and only those candidates who best match the needs of 
CAPRI will be invited to compete further in the examination process.  
 

• Examination may include pre- and/or post-interview testing. 
• Post-Conditional Offer Preemployment Functional Capacity Examination. 

 
BACKGROUND CHECK 
 
Undergo and clear fingerprinting and a background check. 
 
IMMIGRATION LAW 
 
Prior to employment, the successful candidate shall be required to present documentation 
establishing identity and employment eligibility in accordance with the U.S. Citizenship and 
Immigration Services (USCIS). 

Page 171



PR
O
PO

SE
D 
O
RG

AN
IZ
AT

IO
N
AL

 C
H
AR

T

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s

•
Ac

tu
ar

y
•

Ac
co

un
ta

nt
•

Au
di

to
r

•
In

su
ra

nc
e

Br
ok

er
•

In
ve

st
m

en
t

M
an

ag
er

•
Le

ga
l C

ou
ns

el

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

O
pe

ra
tio

ns

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

Cl
ai

m
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Lo
ss

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

•
Li

ab
ili

ty
Cl

ai
m

s
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s
•

Pr
op

er
ty

Cl
ai

m
s

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
s

•
W

or
ke

rs
’

Co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n
Cl

ai
m

s
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
or

s
•

Le
ga

l C
ou

ns
el

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 
Ri

sk
 C

on
tr

ol

•
Ex

ce
ss

 C
ar

rie
r

–
M

em
be

r
Se

rv
ic

es
•

O
nl

in
e

Tr
ai

ni
ng

Pl
at

fo
rm

s
•

Re
tu

rn
 to

W
or

k 
Ad

m
in

s
•

Le
ga

l C
ou

ns
el

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
As

si
st

an
t

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or

Page 172



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: District Visit Update – Cycle XIX 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
There were twenty-one district visits completed during the months of October 2024 and 
January 2025.  There were four District Visits scheduled for February 2025 to close out 
Cycle 19 but they were postponed due to the weather. These four Districts are Cazadero, 
Russian River, Monte Rio, and Western Gateway. The visits will be rescheduled in the near 
future. As the Board may recall, Staff conducted a member training Zoom webinar titled, 
“How to Score 100% on Your District Visit” on November 14, 2023. This webinar was well 
attended and gave our members an increased understanding of the visit process and how 
they may maximize their score. Districts that attended the webinar receive a bonus point 
on their District Visit Scoring.  
 
Summaries of the visits from October 2024 through January 2025 are provided below. 
 
Dunsmuir Recreation and Parks District – October 14, 2024 
 
Dunsmuir Community Pool 
The pool is located adjacent to the District Office and Community Center. The pool has a 
ramp which leads into the pool to assist individuals of varying physical capabilities in 
and out of the pool. The mural at the pool was done by Daniel DeLeon which is a great 
addition.   
 

Page 173



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

  
 

 
Dunsmuir received a Very Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with five of the eleven 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 The District should update their COVID 
Prevention Plan.  

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a policy in place to 
help facilitate their cybersecurity practices. 

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

N/A The District does not have any full-time 
employees.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

1/3 An Employee Handbook should be established 
for all employees associated with the pool and 
be reviewed and updated on an annual basis. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 174



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 6/8 The District should provide CAPRI the minutes 

of the meetings within 30 days from the date 
of the meeting. 

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

N/A The District previously maintained the City-
owned parks and Community Center. The City 
has taken over inspections and maintenance. 

Playgrounds N/A The District previously maintained the City-
owned parks but now the City has taken over 
inspections and maintenance. The District does 
not own or maintain any playgrounds 
currently. 

Life Safety 6/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380. 
 
The District should have Emergency Action 
Plan for the pool and work with the City for an 
Emergency Action Plan for the Community 
Center. 

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

4/8 The District should continue to develop its 
ADA compliance program. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

7/8 The pool equipment where there are chemicals 
should have an eye wash and shower 
equipment per California Code of Regulations 
Section 5162.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 64/76  

 
 
Weed Recreation and Parks District – October 14, 2024 
 
Bel Air Park and Pool 
Bel Air Park is located at 450 College Avenue.  This attractive tree-filled park includes a 
playground, bocce ball court, horseshoe pits, gazebo and picnic tables with barbeques, 
and a ball field.  The Pool complex consists of a pool and a wading pool.  
 

Page 175



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 

 
Weed received a Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with the five of the 

seventeen recommendations from the 
previous visit. 

Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

4/5 The District should update their COVID 
Prevention Plan.  
 
The IIPP should have evidence of annual 
review. 

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to help facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 176



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  
  

Employee Training Practice 1/3 The District should comply with California 
Senate Bill 1343. 

Employee Driving Record 
Management 

2/3 The District should have written 
procedures for unacceptable MVR’s or 
loss of license.  

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The Employee Handbook should be reviewed 
and updated on an annual basis.  

Volunteers 3/4 The District should require CAPRI-approved 
Waiver and Release forms for each volunteer.  

CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 0/8 The District should conduct Safety Committee 

Meetings and should meet at least quarterly 
and provide CAPRI the minutes of the 
meetings within 30 days from the date of the 
meeting. 

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

6/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance plan and checklist for each 
facility. 
 
The District should assess and correct the 
exposed rebar at the entrance of Charlie Byrd 
Park.  
 
The District should inspect all the barbeques 
and make sure they are in proper working 
order. 
 
The District should remove the stickers 
covering the skatepark’s rule sign.   
 

Playgrounds 6/10 The District’s playgrounds should be assessed 
to make sure there is sufficient surfacing for 
the type of play equipment installed. 
 
The District should assess the playground at 
Bel Air Park for exposed metal on the steps and 
platforms (See photos on page 31). 
 

Page 177



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

The District should address the exposed 
concrete anchor (see photo on page 30)  
 
The District should facilitate both low and high 
frequency inspections into their inspections. 
 

Life Safety 5/8 The District should conduct a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under   
     CCR 3380. 
 
The District should conduct emergency drills at 
least annually.  
 
The District should have an Emergency Action 
Plans for all their facilities.  
 

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

5/8 The District should continue to develop its 
ADA compliance program. 
 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

7/8 The pool equipment room where there are 
chemicals should have an eye wash and 
shower equipment per California Code of 
Regulations Section 5162.  
 

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 70/100  

 
 
Mount Shasta Recreation and Parks District – October 15, 2024 
 
Shastice Park 
This facility is located adjacent to the local high school. This facility consists of 
baseball/softball fields, soccer field, tennis courts, basketball court, 1300 square feet 
Siskiyou Skateboarding Park, and a dog park.  The park also has an outside ice-skating 
rink that is used heavily during the winter. This is a very large park that also includes a 
frisbee golf course.  
 

Page 178



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 

 
Mount Shasta received a Very Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with two of the five 

recommendation from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 The District should update their COVID 
Prevention Plan.  

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 179



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The Employee Handbook should be review and 
updated on an annual basis.  

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 0/8 The District should conduct Safety Committee 

Meetings that are held no less than on a 
quarterly basis and the minutes are timely sent 
to CAPRI within 30 days from the date of the 
meeting. 

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

9/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance plan and checklist for each 
facility.  

Playgrounds 8/10 Low and High frequency inspections should be 
done. 
 
The District should review the damaged slide 
at Shastice Park for replacement.  

Life Safety 7/8 The District should update their Emergency 
Action Plans for all their facilities.  

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  
  

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 77/92  

 
 
Highlands Recreation District – October 21, 2024 
 
District Office 
The District is located at 1851 Lexington Avenue. The District Office is on the second 
floor of the Recreation Center building. The General Manager’s office overlooks the 
tennis courts as well as the indoor basketball court. Recreational activities in the building 
are limited to the first floor which includes a basketball court, fitness room, and room 
used for day-care programs. The District had an accessible ramp leading up to the 
Recreation Center as well as accessible restrooms. The pool is located on the other side 
of the Recreation Center. The District also has a building adjacent to the Recreation 
Center that contains classrooms for various district sponsored programs. The park 
includes a playground for children 2-5 years old and a playground for children 5-12 
years old.   

Page 180



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 

 
 
 
Highlands received a Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District should comply with the eight  

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 3/9 The District should use CAPRI-approved 
indemnification language in their facility use 
agreements. 
 
The District should have insurance 
requirements addressing the minimum limits 
and an additional insured endorsement.  
 

Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

4/5 The District should have evidence of 
annual review of their IIPP. 

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 

Page 181



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

in place to facilitate their practices.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

0/4 The District should require post-conditional 
offer, preemployment functional capacity 
examinations for all full-time positions.  
 

Candidates should be informed that the offer 
is conditional, based upon satisfactory 
examination. 
 

Functional Capacity Examinations should not 
be initiated until all background checks have 
been completed. 
 

The results from the Functional Capacity 
Examination should be maintained in a manner 
that protects the employee’s privacy. 

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The Employee Handbook should be reviewed 
and updated on an annual basis.  
 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 0/8 The District Safety Committee should meet at 

least quarterly and provide CAPRI the minutes 
of the meetings within 30 days from the date 
of the meeting.   
 

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

9/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance plan and checklist for each 
facility. 

Playgrounds 5/10 The District should conduct both low and high 
frequency playground inspections. 
 
The District should assess the trip hazards in 
the play area as seen in the photo at the 
bottom of page 27 that consist of the bender 
boards and the different surface materials to 

Page 182



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

determine if it meets ASTM playground 
standards.  
 
The District should assess the slide, the 
platform, and the tree stumps used as steps up 
to the platform to determine if it meets ASTM 
playground standards. 
 
The District should remove the purple dinosaur 
in the playground so the playground users do 
not fall on it from the play equipment. 
 
The District should assess the steps on the play 
equipment for replacement due to exposed 
metal.  
 
The District should review the entrance to the 
large playground to make sure there is an 
accessible transition to the wood chips from 
the sidewalk.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

7/8 The District should have a grievance policy and 
procedures in place and also have them posted 
on their website.  

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Total 71/100  
 
 
Tuolumne Recreation and Park District – October 22, 2024 
 
Bay Street Tot Lot 
In 2011 this playground was completed using Proposition 40 funds and has a low impact 
artificial fall zone made from recycled materials.  As you can see in the photo below the 
District is making an amphitheater adjacent to the playground area. 
  

Page 183



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Tuolumne received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with four of the nine 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

4/5 The District should update their COVID 
Prevention Plan.  

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 1/3 The District should comply with California 
Senate Bill 1343.  

Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 184



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time.  

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The District Safety Committee meets at least 

quarterly but should provide CAPRI the 
minutes within 30 days from the date of the 
meeting.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 10/10 No recommendations at this time.  
  

Life Safety 7/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380. 

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

6/8 The District should have grievance policy and 
procedures in place. 
 
The District should follow up with the County 
regarding their self-assessment and transition 
plan. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool.   

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 86/92  

 
 
Livermore Area Recreation and Park District – October 23, 2024 
 
Big Trees Park 
This 4.2-acre park is located at 5470 Kathy Way. The park was named after its large 
eucalyptus trees. Amenities include swings, play structure, tot lot, barbecue, and picnic 
area. The playground has a communication board to help enrich interactions and 
boundless inclusivity.  

Page 185



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Livermore Area received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the one 

recommendation from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time.  

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time.  
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time.   

Employee Handbook & 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  

Page 186



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employment Counsel 
Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time.   
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The District should provide the Safety 

Committee Meeting Minutes to CAPRI within 
30 days of the meeting date.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should review the playground 
areas at Bill Clark Park for accessibility.  

Life Safety 7/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380. 

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

4.5/8 The District should have a self-assessment and 
transition plan.  
 
The District should have their grievance policy 
and procedures on their website. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 99/100  

 
La Selva Beach Recreation District – November 4, 2024 
 
District Office/Clubhouse and Park 
The District Office is located within the Community Center, referred to as the Clubhouse. 
The Board of Director’s meetings are conducted here. The Clubhouse renovation has been 
completed and looks great. The Clubhouse can accommodate up to 150 people and may 
be rented for events such as baby showers, weddings, fundraisers, and celebrations of life. 
Adjacent to the Clubhouse is the Library and Park. The Park includes a playground, 
basketball court, and picnic tables. At the time of the visit the Clubhouse was a voting 
center for this year’s election.  
  

Page 187



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
La Selva Beach received a Needs Improvement evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with five of fifteen  

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 3/9 The District Facility Use Agreements should 
contain CAPRI-approved indemnification 
language. 
 
The District requires renters of the Clubhouse 
to have insurance but the District should have 
these requirements addressed in their 
application/agreement with the minimum 
limits and additional insured endorsement.  
 
Note: The GM has updated their agreement 
with indemnification language and insurance 
requirements.  

Page 188



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

3/3 The District should have a COVID 
Prevention Plan.  

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

N/A The District does not have any full-time 
employees and if they decide to hire a full-time 
employee they will require a preemployment 
functional capacity examination. 

Employee Training Practice 0/2 The District should comply with California 
Senate Bill 1343. 
 
The District should utilize Vector Solutions and 
CAPRI webinars and trainings.  

Employee Driving Record 
Management 

2/3 The District should establish written 
policies for dealing with employees 
whose driving records become 
unacceptable and the written policies 
are communicated to the employee.  

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The Employee Handbook should be reviewed 
and updated on an annual basis. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The District should provide the Safety 

Committee Meeting Minutes to CAPRI within 
30 days of the date of the meeting.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

6/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance plan and checklist for each 
facility.  
 
The District should have inspection forms for 
each location and have them specific to the 
needs of the site being review. 
 
The District should have a documented plan 
for corrections that cannot be completed 
during the inspection process. 
 
Inspection forms should be signed and dated, 

Page 189



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

and repairs should be documented. 
 
The picnic tables at Triangle Park should be 
assessed for the rubber covering and rust. 
 
The broken concrete anchor that holds the 
telephone poles in place should be replaced at 
The Bluffs. 
 
The District should review the asphalt in front 
of the drinking fountain.  

Playgrounds 6/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance program developed for each 
playground to help prevent deferred 
maintenance.  
 
All inspections and repairs should be signed 
and dated by the inspector. 
 
The District should address the loose base of 
the spring rocker. 
 
The District should address the S-hooks in the 
swings to make sure they are closed.  
 
The District should not use chain quick links for 
the swings and should use S-hooks.  

Life Safety 6/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380.  
 
The District should have an Emergency Action 
Plan for all their facilities.  

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

4/8 The District should continue to develop its 
ADA compliance program. 
 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool.  

Total 58/85  
 

Page 190



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Boulder Creek Recreation and Park District – November 4, 2024 
 
Bear Creek Recreation & Community Center 
This Community Center is located at 15685 Forest Hill Drive. The facility has a pool with 
diving board, lighted tennis courts, and a clubhouse with kitchen and picnic area.  
 

 
 
Boulder Creek received a Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with three of twenty-one 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

1/5 The District should maintain an Injury 
and Illness Prevention Program and 
have evidence of annual review. 
The District should have an active 
training program and a system in place 

Page 191



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

to ensure employee compliance with 
safe and healthy work practices. 
 
The District should have a COVID 
Prevention Plan. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 1/3 The District should comply with California 
Senate Bill 1343. 

Employee Driving Record 
Management 

2/3 The District should have current MVRs 
and establish written policies for 
dealing with employees whose driving 
records become unacceptable and the 
written policies are communicated to 
the employee.  

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The District should review and update their 
Employee Handbook on a annual basis.  

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 0/8 The Safety Committee should meet at least 

quarterly and provide CAPRI the minutes of the 
meetings within 30 days from the date of the 
meeting.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

6/10 The District should have a comprehensive 
maintenance plan and checklist for each 
facility. 
 
Buildings should be inspected regularly to help 
prevent deferred maintenance.  
 
The District should have a regularly scheduled 
inspection system. 
 
The sidewalk and concrete slab at Junction 
Park have been uplifted since the last visit and 
should be removed and replaced.  
 

Page 192



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

The parking lot at Junction Park should be 
reviewed for accessible parking.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should conduct low and high 
frequency playground inspections.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

6/8 The District has a self-assessment and 
transition plan for Bear Creek Community 
Center and should conduct a self-assessment 
and transition plan for their District Office and 
three parks.  
 
The District should complete an ADA upgrade. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Total 76/100  
 
Truckee-Donner Recreation and Park District – November 13, 2024 
 
Shoreline Park at Donner Lake 
This park is located at 14551 Donner Pass Road wherein there is parking and a quick walk 
down to the water where there is access for fishing. There is an accessible ramp to the 
fishing platform and an accessible ramp into the water. The District has Sailing Camps for 
kids 8-17 years of age. There is the basic course for kids that have little to no sailing 
experience and the advanced course for kids that have the basics of sailing and want to 
increase their skill as a sailor.  

 

Page 193



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Truckee-Donner received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the two 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 10/10 No recommendations at this time. 
Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Total 100/100  
 
Ladera Recreation District – November 14, 2024 
 
 
 

Page 194



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

District Office/Recreation Center/Pool/Park 
The District Office is at the entrance to the pool complex in the Recreation Center. The 
Recreation Center has an office, room for the lifeguards, and a single room for use as a 
classroom, meeting room, or party room. The District has tennis courts, ping pong 
tables, bocce ball court, sand volleyball court, and playground. The District removed the 
skateboard half-pipe. The District put a brand-new pool in and opened June 2023. The 
zero-entry wading pool has now been completed.  

 
 
Ladera received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with seven of eight 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 195



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers N/A The District does not have volunteers. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The District should provide CAPRI the Safety 

Meeting Minutes within 30 days of the meeting 
date.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should conduct both low and high 
frequency playground inspections. 

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 95/96  

 
Bear River Recreation and Park District – November 18, 2024 
 
Dr. Ralph Schaffarzick Park 
The District owns one park which is Dr. Ralph Schaffarzick Park next to a neighborhood 
called Cascade Crossing. This park opened in 2014 and celebrated its 10th anniversary this 
year. The park has a playground which is in good condition and has sufficient surface 
material. The slide was vandalized, and the District has ordered a new one to install.  
 

Page 196



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Bear River received a Very Good evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied two of the ten 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

3/3 The District should implement an IIPP as 
best practice. 
 
The District should have a COVID 
Prevention Plan.  

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

 N/A The District has three part-time employees. 

Page 197



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employee Training Practice 2.5/3 The District should utilize Vector Solutions as 
well as attend CAPRI Webinars. 

Employee Driving Record 
Management 

2/3 The District should establish written 
policies for dealing with employees 
whose driving records become 
unacceptable and the written policies 
are communicated to the employee. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The District should provide the Safety 

Committee Meeting Minutes to CAPRI within 
30 days of the meeting date.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

7/8 The pathway at Dr. Schaffarzick Park should be 
assessed for accessibility due to a lip from the 
County sidewalk to the pathway. 
 
The District should remove the sharp pieces of 
metal at the entrance of Dr. Ralph Schaffarzick 
Park. 
 
The asphalt accessible path from the parking 
lot up to the entrance of Gary D. Clark Turf 
Field should be assessed due to it crumbing 
apart.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The pathway at Dr. Ralph Schaffarzick Park 
should be assessed for accessibility due to a lip 
from the pathway to the playground.  

Life Safety 7/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380.  

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

3/8 The District should continue to develop its 
ADA compliance program. 
 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Total 79.5/92  
 
 

Page 198



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District – December 2, 2024 
 
Bogart Regional Park 
Bogart Regional Park is located at 9600 International Park Road in Cherry Valley. The 
District improved the parks infrastructure including running all new pipelines for water 
with fire hydrants.  The park has many trails for horseback riding, hiking, and biking. It 
has a pond, many camp sites, and restrooms. They installed a self-pay kiosk at the 
entrance of the park. There is a new maintenance building with a meeting/breakroom. 
At the top of Candlelight Trail is now a large flagpole dedicated to first responders. The 
District recently put in accessible parking with a ramp down to the playground. 
 

 
 
Beaumont-Cherry Valley received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the one 

recommendation from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 199



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

4/5 The District should have evidence of 
annual review of the IIPP.  

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should fill the holes in the poured 
in place surfacing in the playground area at 
Bogart Regional Park.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 91/92  

 
Desert Recreation District – December 3, 2024 
 
The Golf Center at Palm Desert 
This facility is located at 74-945 Sheryl Avenue and is home of the First Tee. First Tee is a 
youth development organization that integrates the game of golf with a life skills 
curriculum. Amenities include a 9-hole par 3 golf course, driving range, putting greens, 
and chipping bunkers.   
 

Page 200



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Desert received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the two 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

N/A The District has workers’ compensation 
through CAPRI and has liability and property 
insurance through CAL JPIA.   

Facility Use Agreement N/A The District has workers’ compensation 
through CAPRI and has liability and property 
insurance through CAL JPIA.   

Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices N/A The District has workers’ compensation 
through CAPRI and has liability and property 
insurance through CAL JPIA.   

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Page 201



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

8/10 The District should inspect the hole in the 
sidewalk at Placitas de la Paz Park to determine 
if a cap or cover is needed. 
 
The District should inspect the valve cover at 
Thousand Palms Community Park and make 
sure there is a lock on it.  

Playgrounds 10/10 No recommendations at this time. 
Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 81/83  

 
Rim of the World Recreation and Park District – December 4, 2024 
 
Firehouse Playground 
This park is located on Whispering Pines Drive. The park consists of a playground and 
basketball court. The District install new signs at all their parks.  
 

 

Page 202



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
Rim of the World received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with ten of the thirteen 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

9/10 The District should inspect and retrofit the 
bleachers at Running Springs Ballfield and 
Harich Field per the Guidelines for Retrofitting 
Bleachers by the U.S. Consumer Product Safety 
Commission.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should assess the playground at 
Arrowbear Park for sufficient surfacing.  

Life Safety 6/8 The District should complete a PPE assessment 
through a written certification process under 
CCR 3380.  
 
The District should conduct emergency drills at 
least annually.  

Page 203



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

5/8 The District should have a detailed self-
assessment and transition plan.  

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool.  

Total 85/92  
 
Valley-Wide Recreation and Park District – December 5, 2024 
 
Lago Vista Sports Park 
This 29-Acre park is located at 29100 Holland Road in Menifee. There is a large grass 
and soccer field along with gazebos and playground. The ballfields are used by Pony 
Baseball.  
 

 
 
Valley-Wide received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the two 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 204



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Release Form   
Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 10/10 No recommendations at this time. 
Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 101/100  

 
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District – January 6, 2025 
 
Mission Oaks Park 
This 20.2-acre park was established in 1983 and is located at 5501 Mission Oaks Blvd. 
Amenities include three lighted softball fields, picnic shelters, six lighted tennis courts, 
playground, walkways, dog park and multipurpose fields. The District installed an AED at 
the park.  
 

Page 205



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Pleasant Valley received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with all three 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 206



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employment Counsel 
Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

9/10 The District should inspect and retrofit the 
bleachers at Mission Oaks Park per the 
Guidelines for Retrofitting Bleachers by the 
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The play surface under the play structure at 
Mission Oaks Park should be assessed for 
tripping hazards.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 99/100  

 
Isla Vista Recreation and Park District – January 7, 2025 
 
Camino Pescadero Park 
This park is located between 6500 and 6600 blocks of 6605 Del Playa Drive. This park 
has beach access, outdoor shower for beachgoers and surfers, picnic area, and benches. 
At the time of the visit the park was closed to the public for renovation where the 
District is in the process of constructing a new six-foot wall overlooking the ocean. 
 

Page 207



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Isla Vista received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with one of the five 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 208



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

2/3 The District should review and update their 
Employee Handbook.  

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 

should be sent to CAPRI within 30 days from 
the meeting date.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should conduct low and high 
frequency playground inspections.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

5/8 The District should conduct a self-assessment 
and have a transition plan in place.  

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 85/92  

 
Conejo Recreation and Park District – January 9, 2025 
 
Banyan Park 
This park is located at 3605 Erinlea Avenue in Newbury Park. It is one of the District’s 
oldest parks and acquired in 1964 and developed in 1967. The plants have filled in 
beautiful and makes the walk throughout the park a eye-catching experience. The park 
has barbeques, turf area, parking, picnic structures, playground, and restrooms. 

 

Page 209



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
Conejo received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with the two 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time.  
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 7/8 The Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 

should be provided to CAPRI within 30 days of 
the date of the meeting.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 10/10 No recommendations at this time. 
Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 100/100  

 

Page 210



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District – January 8, 2025 
 
Corriganville Park 
This park is located at 7001 Smith Road in Simi Valley. This park has a history in the filming 
industry with movies starring John Wayne, Lana Turner, and Gene Kelly. TV shows were 
also filmed here such as Rin Tin Tin, Bonanza, Cisco Kid, and The Lone Ranger. In 1949 the 
park was open to the public on weekends and holidays and considered an amusement 
park. The public could visit and watch stunts at the Wild West shows. There were fires in 
1970 and 1979 destroying almost all the structures and the park was closed. Corriganville 
opened again in 1998 when the District obtained the park. Now people can enjoy the 
amenities of an equestrian trail, hiking trail, walking trail, picnic area, and restrooms.   
  

 
 
 
Rancho Simi received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 0/1 The District complied with one of two 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 211



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 2/3 The District should have a cybersecurity policy 
in place to facilitate their practices.  

Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

10/10 No recommendations at this time. 

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should assess the surface material 
under the climber at Chumash Park. 

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 98/100  

 
Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District – January 13, 2025 
 
Gymnastics Building 
The building is located at 100 N. Main Street in Fort Bragg. The District is in the process 
of setting up their gymnastic equipment as well as preparing to move their District 
Office into this building. 
 

Page 212



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Mendocino Coast received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with four 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement N/A The District does not have any facilities that 
they rent out.  

Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

4/5 The District should have evidence of 
annual review of the IIPP. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 2/3 The District should comply with CA SB 1343. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Page 213



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Employment Counsel 
Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 6/8 The Safety Committee should meet at least 

quarterly and provide CAPRI the minutes of the 
meeting within 30 days of the meeting date.  

Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

1/2 Inspections of equipment pertaining to 
gymnastics, roller skating, fitness, etc. should 
be done on a regular basis and documented. 
 
The District should establish walk-through 
inspection forms for each facility they lease 
and have regular inspections prior to the use 
of the facility to make sure there are no 
hazards. 

Playgrounds N/A The District does not have playgrounds. 
Life Safety 7/7 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

4/7 The District should contact the owners of the 
facilities they lease for their self-assessment 
and transition plans.  

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

8/8 No recommendations at this time.  

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 64/71  

 
Carmichael Recreation and Park District – January 21, 2025 
 
Charles C. Jensen Botanical Garden 
The garden is located at 8520 Fair Oaks Blvd in Carmichael. Up from the garden is The 
Garfield House that can be rented out for weddings or other occasions. The District 
poured a new walking path as you will see in the third photo below. The botanical garden 
has the largest oak tree of the District and volunteers plant tulips within the fenced area 
every year. The District puts on a gourmet dinner and auction in the park near the 
botanical garden to fund youth scholarships and park beautification.  
 

Page 214



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

 
 
Carmichael received an Excellent evaluation.  
 
Scoring and Recommendations: 
 

Criteria Score Comments 
Follow Up Items 1/1 The District complied with all six 

recommendations from the previous visit. 
Agreement, Waiver and 
Release Form   

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Facility Use Agreement 9/9 No recommendations at this time. 
Injury & Illness Prevention 
Program (IIPP) 

5/5 No recommendations at this time. 

Cybersecurity Practices 3/3 No recommendations at this time. 
Job Descriptions 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Screening and Review 2/2 No recommendations at this time. 
Preemployment Functional 
Capacity Examination 

4/4 No recommendations at this time.  

Employee Training Practice 2/3 The District should comply with California 

Page 215



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Associaton for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

Senate Bill 1343. 
Employee Driving Record 
Management 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Employee Handbook & 
Employment Counsel 

3/3 No recommendations at this time. 

Volunteers 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
CAPRI Member Portal 4/4 No recommendations at this time. 
Safety Committee 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Parks and Facility 
Maintenance 

9/10 The District should assess the wheel stops by 
the Community Clubhouse for exposed rebar. 
 
The District should assess the transition from 
the sidewalk to the pavers in front of the Wall 
of Honor for accessibility.  

Playgrounds 9/10 The District should assess the pebble steps that 
appear worn where the bar goes through for a 
pinching hazard.  

Life Safety 8/8 No recommendations at this time. 
Americans with Disabilities 
Act(“ADA”)Implementation 

8/8 No recommendations at this time. 

Pool Safety Practices & 
Maintenance 

N/A The District does not have a pool. 

Bonus Point (Webinar) +1  
Total 90/92  

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None. 

Page 216



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CARPD Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The 2025 CARPD Conference is approaching fast! This year, the event will take place in 
San Diego, CA from May 21-24, 2025. Staff is working with the Conference Committee to 
develop a fantastic program for the CARPD Members, and we look forward to seeing you 
all there! Currently, CARPD is on track for record number of sponsorships – a reflection of 
the organization’s growing influence within the industry. 
 
Additionally, together with its lobbyists at California Public Policy Group (“CPPG”) CARPD 
is planning its third annual Capitol Visit for its Board of Directors on March 12th. A number 
of key meetings are scheduled with legislators and legislative staff. CARPD continues to 
show its presence in Sacramento! 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None. 
 

Page 217



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: RIO Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
Recreation Insurance Organization (“RIO”) held its second annual meeting in Salt Lake 
City, Utah in January 2025. The RIO Board reviewed the first annual audit, evaluated 
financial performance for the second fiscal year, and examined the insurance outlook for 
fiscal year 2025-2026.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None. 
 

Page 218



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: CAPRI Member Trainings Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
The CAPRI Employee Assistance Program was implemented July 1, 2023, through our 
partnership with Anthem. Part of our contract with Anthem is six free trainings per year. 
CAPRI and Anthem hosted “Work/Life Wednesdays” in January 2024.  CAPRI and Anthem 
hosted “Work/Life Wednesdays” again this January 2025. Each training session had a 
different presenter. The presenters had their own unique style of presenting, and they 
were all professional, fun, energetic, and interactive with our members.   
 
January 8, 2025 

• Dealing with Challenging People - 46 Attendees 
January 15, 2025 

• Assertive Communication - 37 Attendees 
January 22, 2025 

• Teamwork - 28 Attendees 
January 29, 2025  

• Stress Reduction Tool Bag - 22 Attendees 
 
Anthem will also have two in-person training at our next CARPD Conference in May 2025. 
The training will be Riding the Change Wave and Creating a Great Place to Work in Ten 
Easy Steps.  
 
Staff will continue to look for new and relevant training opportunities for the membership. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None. 
 

Page 219



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal Platform Update 

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
As the Board may recall, CAPRI recently contracted with in2vate, LLC (also known as 
ilearning engines) to create an online data collected tool that will streamline the renewal 
for both General Liability and Property and the Workers’ Compensation programs. The 
Tool will house all renewal items in one location, with secure access for each member, and 
will have the capability to share files via a media library. Members will be able to monitor 
their renewal progress and see what is due via a member-specific dashboard. 
 
At the meeting, Staff will share an update on the status of the Renewal Platform tool and 
projected timeline for rollout. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Information only. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
 

• None. 
 

Page 220



 
             Regular Board Meeting 

  

 
California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity   

February 25, 2025 

              Agenda Item 10.6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS 
 
SUBJECT: Online Training Program Utilization Review  

  
 
BACKGROUND AND STATUS: 
 
One of the many safety and risk management resources available to our members is the 
Vector Solutions online training platform. Over the last several years, Staff has made it a 
point of emphasis to encourage the membership to utilize this free service by, among 
other things, regularly highlighting relevant trainings in the monthly Safety Line 
newsletter. 
 

Year Total Number of Trainings Completed 
(Membership wide) 

2018 1,110 
2019 2,163 
2020 3,221 
2021     4,509  
2022 4,181 
2023 5,023 
2024 4,070 

 
The majority of completed trainings from our Districts come from the anti-harassment 
training throughout the last seven years. The CAPRI Safety Line newsletters in 2024 
discussed workplace violence, mandated reporting, safe driving, and eye safety. These 
trainings came in as the second, third, fourth, and fifth most completed courses, 
respectively.     
 

Staff will work to continue this trend and further develop a culture of safety throughout 
the pool at large. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Information only. 
 

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED: 
None. 

Page 221


	6.1 - Board Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Item 6.1
	Consent Items
	SUBJECT: Approval of CAPRI Board Minutes

	6.2 - Warrant Listings
	Agenda Item 6.2
	Consent Items
	SUBJECT: Warrant Listings

	6.2 (a) - Warrant Listing_Oct24-Dec24
	Transaction Detail by Account

	6.3 - Financial Reports
	Agenda Item 6.3
	Consent Items
	SUBJECT: Financial Reports

	6.3(a) - CAPRI Combined FS Packet 12-31-24
	CAPRI Consolidated SNP 12-31-2024
	CAPRI Consolidated St Rev 12-31-2024
	CAPRI Consolidated Budg vs Actual 12-31-2024
	CAPRI Consolidating SNP 12-31-2024
	CAPRI Consolidating St Rev 12-31-2024

	8.1 - Investment Status Report
	Agenda Item 8.1
	SPECIAL REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Investment Status Report

	8.1(a) - Recreation Insurance Organization 2024Q4
	PFMAM_Multi-Asset Class Quarterly Commentary - Q4 2024_Unbranded
	PFMAM_Heat Map and Factors to Consider and Strategic Approach_Q4 2024

	8.2 - 2023-2024 CAPRI Financial Audit Update
	Agenda Item 8.2
	SPECIAL REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Financial Audit Report 2023-2024

	8.2(a) - CAPRI Audit Report 2024 Draft
	8.3 - Insurance Market Report
	Agenda Item 8.3
	SPECIAL REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Insurance Market Report

	8.3 (a) - February 2025 Budget Estimates - CAPRI
	PARDE

	8.4 - WC Program Review
	Agenda Item 8.4
	SPECIAL REPORTS
	SUBJECT: WC Program Status Report

	8.4 (a) - Fiscal Year Claim Summary WC x3A 151737442
	Summary

	8.4 (b) - NPA Annual Report 2024
	8.5 - GL Program Status Report
	Agenda Item 8.5
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: General Liability Program Status Report

	8.5 (a) - CAPRI GL Policy Year Summary 2025.02.01
	8.6 - Property Program Review
	Agenda Item 8.6
	SPECIAL REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Property Program Status Report

	8.6 (a) - CAPRI PR Loss Summary_2024-12-31
	Sheet1

	9.1 - Law Enforcement Coverage Review
	Agenda Item 9.1
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Law Enforcement Coverage Review

	9.2 - CAPRI Lease Renewal
	Agenda Item 9.2
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Office Lease Renewal

	9.3 - Cycle XIX (2nd Half) Safety Awards
	Agenda Item 9.3
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Cycle XIX (2nd Half) Safety Awards

	9.4 - PARK Award Excellence in Risk Management
	Agenda Item 9.4
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: PARK Award: Excellence in Risk Management

	9.5 - Opioid Write Up
	Agenda Item 9.5
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Opioid Antagonists Policy Review

	9.5 (a) - Sample Naloxone Policy and Procedures
	9.6 - Job Description Review
	Agenda Item 9.6
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
	SUBJECT: Job Description Review

	9.6 (a) - Director of Safety & Risk Control Job Description clean
	Job Description
	QUALIFICATIONS


	9.6 (b) - Executive Assistant Job Description clean
	Job Description
	QUALIFICATIONS


	9.6(c) - Proposed Org Chart
	10.1 - District Visitations Update 2-25-25 BOD Meeting
	Agenda Item 10.1
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: District Visit Update – Cycle XIX

	10.2 - CARPD Update
	Agenda Item 10.2
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CARPD Update

	10.3 - RIO Update
	Agenda Item 10.3
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: RIO Update

	10.4 - CAPRI Member Trainings Update
	Agenda Item 10.4
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: CAPRI Member Trainings Update

	10.5 - Renewal Platform Update
	Agenda Item 10.5
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Renewal Platform Update

	10.6 - Online Training Program Utilization Review
	Agenda Item 10.6
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ STAFF REPORTS
	SUBJECT: Online Training Program Utilization Review




